
MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board
DATE: Tuesday, 2 October 2018
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

AGENDA

1  Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests  

2  Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 5th June, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/2)  
(Pages 3 - 8)

3  Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 
27th April, 8th June, and  13th July, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/3)  (Pages 9 - 34)

4  Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 9th May and 8th August, 
2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/4)  (Pages 35 - 50)

5  Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 13th June, and 12th September, 2018 
(HWB.02.10.2018/5)  (Pages 51 - 58)

6  Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 21st May and 20th 
August, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/6)  (Pages 59 - 72)

7  Minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Shadow Integrated Care 
System Collaborative Board held on 9th February, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/7)  
(Pages 73 - 82)

8  Public Questions (HWB.02.10.2018/8)  

For Decision/Discussion

9  Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017-18 (HWB.02.10.2018/9)  
(Pages 83 - 94)

10  Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Board 2017-18 
(HWB.02.10.2018/10)  (Pages 95 - 110)

11  Public Health Strategy 2018 - 2021 - Renewing Action for a Healthier Barnsley 
(HWB.02.10.2018/11)  (Pages 111 - 126)

12  Public Health Food Plan (HWB.02.10.2018/12)  (Pages 127 - 136)

13  Hospital Services Review (HWB.02.10.2018/13)  (Pages 137 - 370)

14  Tackling Excess Winter Deaths (HWB.02.10.2018/14)  (Pages 371 - 390)

To: Chair and Members of Health and Wellbeing Board:-

Councillor Sir Steve Houghton CBE, Leader of the Council (Chair)
Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (Vice Chair)

Public Document Pack



Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson – People (Safeguarding)
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson – Communities
Rachel Dickinson, Executive Director People
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director of Public Health
Lesley Smith, Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group
Scott Green, Chief Superintendent, South Yorkshire Police
Emma Wilson, NHS England Area Team
Adrian England, HealthWatch Barnsley
Dr Richard Jenkins, Medical Director, Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
Rob Webster, Chief Executive, SWYPFT
Helen Jaggar, Chief Executive Berneslai Homes

Please contact Peter Mirfin on  or email governance@barnsley.gov.uk

Monday, 24 September 2018



MEETING: Health and Wellbeing Board
DATE: Tuesday, 5 June 2018
TIME: 4.00 pm
VENUE: Reception Room, Barnsley Town Hall

1

MINUTES 

Present 

Dr Nick Balac, Chair, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group (in the Chair)
Councillor Jim Andrews BEM, Deputy Leader
Councillor Margaret Bruff, Cabinet Spokesperson - People (Safeguarding)
Councillor Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson - Communities
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities
Julia Burrows, Director Public Health
Lesley Smith, Chief Officer, NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group
Emma Wilson, NHS England Area Team
Adrian England, HealthWatch Barnsley
Sean Rayner, District Director, South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation 
Trust
Helen Jaggar, Chief Executive, Berneslai Homes

1 Declarations of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests 

There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest.

2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 3rd April, 2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/2) 

The meeting considered the minutes of the previous meeting held on 3rd April, 2018.  
Arising from Minute 58, the meeting noted SSDG consideration of topics for 
discussion at the proposed development session on 7th August, 2018 and that any 
contributions from Board members as to matters to be considered at that session 
would be welcomed.

RESOLVED that the minutes be approved as a true and correct record.

3 Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 28th February, 2018 
(HWB.05.06.2018/3) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership meeting 
held on 28th February, 2018.  The meeting noted the benefits of closer working and 
collaboration between the Council, South Yorkshire Police and South Yorkshire Fire 
and Rescue Service identified in the minutes.  Work was also progressing in 
developing the next edition of the Safer Communities Plan, which would be launched 
at a joint event with the Adult Safeguarding Board, and would be circulated to Health 
and Wellbeing Board members when finalised.

RESOLVED that the minutes be received.

Page 3

HWB.02.10.2018/2



2

4 Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 7th March, 2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/4) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Provider Forum meeting held on 7th 
March, 2018.

The meeting noted the focus of the discussion on dementia, and consideration of the 
contribution made by providers in other partnerships.  The Forum had developed a 
forward plan of agenda items, and would be considering the Public Health Strategy at 
a future meeting, but would welcome suggestions from partners as to areas that the 
Provider Forum should consider.

The meeting discussed the membership of the Forum and attendance by 
representatives and the need perhaps to give this further consideration.  A particular 
consideration was the move towards delivery of services at the neighbourhood level, 
and whether Provider Forums should be built around this geographical configuration.  
However, the key consideration in this approach would be whether sufficient capacity 
existed to support Provider Forums at this level.  

RESOLVED:- 

(i) that the minutes be received; and

(ii) that the Executive Director Communities and Chair of Provider Forum discuss 
arrangements for a review of the membership and configuration of the 
Provider Forum for further consideration.

5 Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 19th February, 
2018 (HWB.05.06.2018/5) 

The meeting considered the minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership 
Board meeting held on 19th February, 2018.  The meeting noted in particular the 
launch of Live Well Barnsley and the engagement with over 700 groups in this 
initiative, and the need for partners to help promote the service.  The meeting noted 
the importance of providing appropriate links to My Best Life from Live Well Barnsley 
and the need to give further consideration about how the two initiatives can work 
better together.  A better understanding of the people using both services as a way of 
identifying gaps in provision was noted as an area for further investigation.

The meeting noted the increasing role for the voluntary and community sector in 
complementing the health and social care system.  The meeting noted the value of 
support from friends, family and the wider community, particularly for people with 
mental health problems, with agencies making provision where this support was not 
in place.  However, there was a need to give consideration to the proper training of 
volunteers in these roles, and to ensure that there was clarity about how this could be 
escalated to the agencies when necessary.

The meeting noted plans to develop growing schemes on unused public space, 
perhaps under the banner of “Incredible Edible”.  The meeting noted the role that 
could be played in growing schemes tackling food poverty, and noted that Fair Share 
was investigating the possibility of developing a community pantry.

Page 4



3

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the minutes be received; and

(ii) that the Executive Director Communities and Chief Officer of the CCG 
investigate how better links can be made between Live Well Barnsley and My 
Best Life, including an analysis of data to identify gaps in provision/coverage.

6 Public Questions (HWB.05.06.2018/6) 

The meeting noted that no public questions had been received for this meeting and 
that a further review of the arrangements was due at the October meeting of the 
Board.  The meeting discussed the need for the review to consider if the current 
arrangements were such that they encouraged the public to ask questions.

RESOLVED that the intention for the review of the arrangements for public questions 
to be considered at the Board’s October meeting be noted.

7 Local Health and Care Records Exemplar (LHCRE) (HWBB.05.06.2018/7) 

The meeting received a report on proposals for a Yorkshire and Humber Health and 
Care Record Exemplar site bid, and informing the Health and Wellbeing Board of the 
request that Barnsley Council give its support for this bid.  The proposal was 
consistent with the work already being undertaken in Barnsley to develop a digital 
roadmap to establish interoperability of systems across health and social care, which 
had previously been considered by the Board.  The meeting noted that, if the bid was 
successful, there would be a need to identify match funding across the region of 
£7.5m over 2 years. Although the bid would not commit partners to providing that 
match funding at this stage, it was anticipated that the funding already provided for 
the digital roadmap could be counted towards this.  Similarly, the element of 
vanguard funding towards interoperability might also be a source of match funding.

RESOLVED that the proposed Yorkshire and Humber Local Health and Care Record 
Exemplar bid be noted and the Health and Wellbeing Board place on record its 
support for the Chief Executive of Barnsley Council to write in support of the bid.

8 Health Protection (HWB.05.06.2018/8) 

The meeting received a report and presentation on the role and scope of health 
protection work being undertaken in Barnsley, including the system where a range of 
organisations have responsibility to respond to threats to the health of the population.  
The meeting noted action in relation to preventing future deaths from food induced 
anaphylaxis and the measles action plan as examples of work undertaken under the 
auspice of the Barnsley Health Protection Board.  The meeting also noted work to 
undertake an audit of local health protection arrangements, to review plans and test 
response arrangements.

The meeting noted the intention to incorporate a check of food businesses’ 
procedures in relation to preventing anaphylaxis as part of the normal food hygiene 
regime.  Members commented on the emphasis in relation to food businesses, and 
noted that many food related services might now be provided in the voluntary and 

Page 5



4

community sector.  There was a need to be clear whether the proposed checks 
would pick up this type of activity.

The meeting noted the recent publication of data in relation to sexually transmitted 
diseases, which had seen a 25% increase nationally.  There was a need to consider 
the data for Barnsley to identify if this raises any issues for the Health and Wellbeing 
Board.  In relation to flu vaccinations, the meeting noted the need for further 
promotion for next winter, although it was understood that vaccination rates in 
Barnsley for 2017/18 were the highest ever achieved.

RESOLVED:-

(i) that the approach to health protection in Barnsley, as identified in the report, 
be noted and minutes of the Health Protection Board be received by the 
Health and Wellbeing Board by exception when there are matters in need of 
further consideration;

(ii) that a report be submitted on an annual basis to the Health and Wellbeing 
Board on Health Protection Board activity to provide assurance that the health 
of the residents of Barnsley is being protected in a pro-active and effective 
way; and

(iii) that the Director of Public Health review the data on sexually transmitted 
diseases in Barnsley for reporting to the Board in order that any further actions 
can be considered.

9 Access to Primary Care (HWB.05.06.2018/9) 

The meeting received a report and presentation giving an overview of arrangements 
for access to primary medical care in Barnsley.  The meeting noted specific initiatives 
in relation to extended access through the iHeart Barnsley arrangements, the use of 
digital technology to improve access through the Patient Partner and Patient On-line 
arrangements, and a range of workforce initiatives that recognise the importance of 
access to general practice services, rather than just the GP as an individual.  The 
presentation highlighted as priorities for 2018/19 the consideration of results from the 
2018 Patients Survey, the wider development of e-consultations, increased capacity 
of extended access and patient on-line uptake, a review of current opening hours and 
consideration of locality access.

The meeting welcomed the proposals to develop the extended access arrangements, 
particularly given the difficulty that residents of the Dearne Valley would have 
accessing the current arrangements.  The use of digital technology to access 
services was noted, and there was a need to consider possible barriers, including 
poor broadband coverage as well as digital exclusion, in enabling access.  The 
current review of libraries also provided an opportunity to review the use of space in 
LIFT centres to support developments within the locality. 

The meeting welcomed the consideration being given to the work undertaken by 
HealthWatch in relation to access to general practice.  The importance of promoting 
with the public the idea that there were numerous entry points for general practice 
services, and not just through the GP, in order to maximise access was 
acknowledged.  The meeting noted the response from Accident and Emergency 

Page 6



5

services that 25% of those patients attending hospital could have been treated by 
their GP, and that potentially more patients could be redirected if general practice 
had the capacity.  This highlighted the importance of ensuring that patients were 
properly signposted to those different access points.

RESOLVED that the report and presentation be noted and the plans and priorities for 
improving access to general practice services during 2018/19 be welcomed.

------------------------------------------
Chair

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members: 
Rachel Dickinson (Chair) BMBC Executive Director, People 
Brigid Reid     Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse 
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding) 
Bob Dyson Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association 
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People 
Margaret Libreri  BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and 

Prevention 
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC Service Director, Stronger Safer and Healthier 

Communities 
Lisa Phelan,  Barnsley CVS, Head of Community Services 
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care and 

Safeguarding 
Scott Green  South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent 
 
Deputy Members: 
Nick Bowen  Executive Principal, Horizon Community College on behalf of 

Dave Whittaker 
Katherine Clark on behalf of Gerry Foster-Wilson 
 
Advisor: 
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships 
 
In Attendance: 
Dawn Fitzpatrick BMBC, Partnerships and Project Officer  
Lisa Loach BMBC, Improvement Programme Manager 
Kaye Mann BMBC, Senior Health Improvement Officer, Public Health 
Amy Booth  BMBC, Public Health Senior Practitioner, Public Health (0-19) 
Mark Anderson BMBC, Transportation Officer, Economic Regeneration 
Adrian England  Healthwatch Chair, on behalf of Sue Womack 
   

  Action 

1. Apologies 
The following apologies were received: 
Amanda Glew  BMBC Organisation Development Manager 
Dave Whitaker  Executive Headteacher representing BACCUS and 

Secondary Schools 
Anna Turner BMBC Schools Models and Governor Development 

Manager 
Dr Jamie McInnes Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
Cllr Tim Cheetham  Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential) 
Cllr Pourali Cabinet Member 
Cllr Saunders Cabinet Member 

 

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting 
27 April 2018, from 9.30 – 12.30 

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3 

Page 9

HWB.02.10.2018/3



2 

 

  Action 

Gerry Foster-Wilson  Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools 
Jayne Hellowell Barnsley MBC, Head of Locality Commissioning and 

Healthier Communities  
Sue Womack Healthwatch Manager, Healthwatch  
Phil Briscoe  Barnsley College Vice-Principal Quality and Student 

Experience 
Sandra Newman BHNFT, Interim Head of Nursing 
Sean Rayner SWYPFT, District Director 
 
Introductions were made.  
 

2. Feedback from the front line  
Colleagues shared feedback from front line including: 
 
1. Alicia provided an update with regards to CYP Voice and noted it was 

amazing. The young people participated really well including 
presentations. This had been captured on video unfortunately due to a 
technical issue with the sound; the sound wasn’t captured on the video. A 
voice over was suggested.  
 

2. Adrian stated that the Independent Review of CAMHS had started.  
 

3. Rachel provided an update on a recent visit with a social worker noting 
that the child had never been out of the area where they lived and had 
very limited other life experiences. Rachel highlighted the importance of 
the Neglect Strategy which had identified issues, which highlights the 
important reminder of the work that is done. It was stated that it is nice to 
see the commitment of family members and that people are willing to step 
up to the mark.  
 

4. Phil H reported that following the successful pilot in the North East area 
regarding the concentrated recruitment of foster carers at community 
level, this approach was now being rolled out to the other areas and Area 
Council Chairs had been briefed about this approach.  Key community 
events with the highest footfall would be identified and the fostering team 
would target these first. 

 

 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflicts of interest  
It was noted that item 6 & 13 should be treated as confidential.   

There were no conflicts of interest declared.   

 
 

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 19th January  2018  
 
Rachel provided clarification on item 12 – CSI Plan with regards the 
Safeguarding Improvement Plan noting it was just around the focus of the plan.  

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record. 

 
 
 

4.1 Action log / matters arising 
The following updates to the action log were noted:  
 
Action from 19 January 2018 
 

 Item 5 i, ii, iii, iv Actions closed, discussed on the 27 April Agenda.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



3 

 

  Action 

 Item 7 i, Action completed. Learning Review – Information has been 
shared. Nina Sleight & Gerry Foster-Wilson to look at individual cases.  

 Item 7 ii Action completed. Gerry Foster-Wilson and Claire Strachan have 
been in contact with each other.  

 Item 12 i, ii Actions completed. 

 Item 12 iii Action completed. Phil H has shared the discussion with Police. 

 Item 13 i, ii Actions completed. 

 Item 13 iv Refresh has been completed. This is going to the Stronger 
Communities Strategic Meeting before coming to TEG.  Work programme 
to be updated, date to be presented to TEG to be confirmed. 

Action: Action log to be updated.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 

 

Improving education, achievement and employability 

5. Early Help Assessment 
(Margaret Libreri) 
 
An update was provided with regards to the commissioned self-assessment of 
Early Help noting the following:  

 The self-assessment has identified strengths and noted that there are 
clear lines of sight between the work of the Early Help Delivery Group and 
the All Age Early Help. Although there may be some duplication between 
the Stronger Communities Partnership, the Barnsley Children’s 
Safeguarding Board and the Executive Commissioning Group. 

 The Strategy Action Plan, led though the Early Help Steering Group had 
good engagement from partners.  

 With regards to Performance Management, there is good news to report 
as there has been significant improvement in tracking cases, plus 
measuring the distance travelled.   
 

Areas have been strengthened around the Multi-agency Audit programme, 
particularly around step up/step down protocol where there has been 
considerable strengthening. It has helped to identify continuing priorities. 
Family centres or primary schools are largely the majority initiators. Work is 
underway with Secondary schools, with more Secondary schools taking up 
training.   
 
An enhanced comprehensive parenting pathway from prevention through to 
targeted/specialist support leading to improved outcomes for children and 
young people is to be developed. 
 
Comments / questions noted were: 

 Examples to be provided to boost it.   

 More are being completed which is good, although it was highlighted that 
they may not get closed down when appropriate.  

 Reminder that the Early Help needs closing at this end.  

 Suggested issue around continued support to advice level of parenting 
required.  

 Secondary schools and Early Help is much more proactive.  

 Information came from Child Missing Education Review.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



4 

 

  Action 

Brief discussion with regards to Public Health Nursing and Midwifery 
Engagement took place. Action: Rachel to speak to Nina Sleight.  
Discussion with regards to initiating Early Help when needed and the work 
being capture via the CSI Plan continued. It was noted that Public Health now 
sits on Early Help Panel and are working with Nina. Action: Alicia to check 
with regards to closing down Early Help plans.  
 
The conversation moved to indicators and the focus on showing Early Help is 
having an impact on families, noting that the bellwether indicators are really 
useful and these can be looked at in the future.  
 
Partners are encouraged to ensure their staff access Early Help training and 
ensure their respective agencies make a positive contribution to the continuing 
priorities for improvement.  

Rachel 
Dickinson 

/Nina Sleight 
 

Alicia 
Marcroft 

 
 
 
 
 
 

All  
 
 

Supporting Children, young people and families to make healthy lifestyle choices. 
 

6. Self Evaluation CONFIDENTIAL 
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 
 
 

 

Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health. 

7. Local Area Special Educational Needs Ofsted Inspection  
(Margaret Libreri)  
 
It was noted that we are in a relatively stronger position. We do have a 
narrative. The SEF was taken to ECG and had useful feedback. Focus on 
vulnerable group, it was noted that there is better data now.   
 
A deep dive into different services to be completed looking at those making a 
difference and how do we know they are making a difference? This will provide 
the SEF with a good basis for reference of the action plan and strategies.  
 
Members were asked for comments. 
No comments were given.  
 
Item 12 discussed next  
 
Scott Green entered the meeting at this point.  
 

 

Agenda items  

8. Teenage Pregnancy Update 

Amy Booth provided an update to members following the last update in 
September last year where a case was presented for a multi-agency approach 
to reducing teenage pregnancy.  

It was recommended that a partnership group be set up to work on the 10 key 
factors identified as being key to an effective strategy. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



5 

 

  Action 

The Preventing Teenage Pregnancy Partnership was set up in October 
involving key stakeholders from health, education and the voluntary sector. 
 
Public Health was successful in obtaining a place on the 6 month Design in 
Public Sector (DiPS) Programme – a programme consisting of 5 monthly 
workshops using design techniques to tackle a public health challenge for a 
small multi-agency team with the aim of tackling the challenge of reducing 
teenage pregnancy which finished in March.  
 
Alongside the programme, work was presented back to the wider partnership 
for feedback and iteration of ideas. The last workshop in March culminated in a 
proposal for a number of design-led actions for reducing teenage pregnancy.  
In addition, PHE published the National Teenage Pregnancy Framework in 
February this year – again emphasising the 10 key factors. 
 
An action plan has been developed for the PTPP which incorporates both the 
actions from the DIPS programme and the national framework. 
 
The group have started to implement the action plan but its success will 
depend on the commitment and engagement of the multiple stakeholders 
involved. 
 
Also noted that there will be a Launch of a new Barnsley Sexual Health 
Network.    
 
Questions and comments asked were as follows:  

 What is this going to do differently?  

 Amy explained that it is a fresh approach, step back design which has 
been researched. It is taking a sex positive approach, empowering young 
people to make right decisions, addressing safe sex, safeguarding and 
creating a core vision and it is valuable in bringing sex health outside of 
the clinical environment. To help deliver a holistic approach. The main shift 
is engaging young people. The conversation touched on perceptions and 
social norms. 

 Have you got the right engagement, right organisations they may be not 
the right people? It was suggested for Amy to come back to TEG if there is 
any difficulty with this.  

 It was highlighted that it is necessary to think about ‘sex positive culture’ 
term, as this could be misconstrued.  

 The project is being led by Brook nationally and also working with Hanna 
Bailey (BMBC) with regards to media.  

 Cllr Bruff asked ‘What about faith schools, who may not want to be 
involved? Amy explained it would be a tailored approach.  

 Voluntary Groups, looking at delivering training. Training for foster carers. 
Amy noted that training will be provided for foster carers and Social 
Services. 

Action: Amy to share the work plan of the Preventing Teenage Pregnancy 
Partnership with TEG members. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amy Booth 

Updates on Progress 

9. DPH Annual Report   
 

 
 

Page 13



6 

 

  Action 

Kaye Mann started the presentation with an update on ‘A day in the life of’. 
This project had been promoted as far and wide as it could. There had been a 
total of 266 completed diary received. These were analysed and 5 themes 
came out of the diaries which were then used to write the report. Kaye noted 
that people were very honest in what they had written in the diaries.   
 
Five themes were identified from the diary entries received: 
1. The importance of being resilient.    
2. The importance of our connections with others. 
3. The importance of Five Ways to Wellbeing– connect, be active, learn, 

give, take notice of good things. 
4. The importance of sleep. 
5. The importance of work. 

 
It was noted that out of the five ‘resilience’ is the trickier one and more work will 
be done to help tackle this as it affects lots of people.  ‘Connections’ is the one 
we can do something about.  
Kaye asked the question ‘Is there anything that could be done for employees, 
such as providing a sleep toolkit?’ 
 
Questions and comments included:   

 Thrive approach, and brain development, noting if doesn’t go right in the 
beginning.  

 Emotional Health – noting the mental health of parents is important, there 
is more to do.  

 Link between 5 themes - Work / family life / resilience. 

Mel stated that all these run through what is currently being done. There are 
some case studies around resilience and how it has a knock on effect.  
 
Rachel noted that it was a good read, and gave time to pause and reflect. 
 
Brigid mentioned a Care bundle which was making a difference to CCG staff. 
Action: Brigid to share what CCG are doing more widely.  
 
The question was noted ‘What do we need to think about as an organisation?’ 
Is the CYP Plan focussing on the right priorities? To pick up in review of action 
plan. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brigid Reid 
 
 

Richard 
Lynch 

10. Transport Update.  
(Mark Anderson)  
 
Mark Anderson presented an update on the Barnsley Bus Partnership – Youth 
Marketing Campaign which took place between December 2017 and 28th 
January 2018.  
 
The following points were noted: 
 

 Focus of marketing on the youth market, campaign targeting 11 – 18 year 
olds. The results are quite good.  

 Focus was on promoting freedom, independence and social confidence. 

 Child concessionary tickets – changes introduced in July 2017 were 16-18 
year pass. 

 

Page 14



7 

 

  Action 

 Appeal to Youth Market was via Social Media, on-line general advertising 
there have been 300,000 impressions.  

       Click rates for general online advertising includes: 
 11-13 – 0.29% - Internet security tends to be tightest for this age group, 

which makes it harder to target via online advertising.   
 14–16 – 0.34% - biggest engagement – Age group tends to be at an 

age when starting to travel independently and therefore more likely to 
investigate bus journey information.    

 17–18 – 0.28% - Although this age group is easier to get hold off via 
online advertising, they tend to already have a few years’ experience 
under their belt in travelling independently, and are also at an age 
where they are learning to drive and aspiring to car ownership, which is 
why engagement tends to be lower.     

 
With regards to the results, the Bus Partnership was happy with the marketing 
campaign and with the levels of youth engagement achieved.  It is important to 
recognise that the industry average click-through rate for online advertising is 
0.05%, with our results far in excess of this.  Mark advised it will be some time 
before we’re able to assess the actual impact on bus patronage.      
 
The next marketing campaign will be in the Summer and will target 25 to 34 
age group.  In addition there will be marketing focused on boosting Barnsley 
town centre footfall, where adverting to the youth market will feature.    
 
 
Questions / Comments 
Bob noted that he had recently visited Darton School and they spoke positively 
about the bus to school.  
 
Rachel noted that she is keen to know about the impact and how that changes 
behaviour when travelling.  
 

11. CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance / Highlights/Risks  
(All Members)  
 
None were raised.  
 
Item 14 discussed next.  
 

 

12. SEND Strategy 
(Margaret Libreri)  
 
Margaret provided an update on the work of the SEND Strategy group and to 
propose an extension of the current SEND strategy priorities to March 2019, 
with a view of publishing a new strategy in April 2019.  
Purpose is twofold.  
 
The SEND Strategy Board was established in January 2017, replacing the 
Disabled Children’s and Young People’s Partnership Group. This increased 
representation of universal services in the oversight of the SEND strategy.  
 
A particular focus is building capacity in main stream schools. A programme of 
training is being rolled out to support schools in conducting peer-reviews of 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 15



8 

 

  Action 

SEND provision in schools, and a number of schools have signed up.  
Most SEN children are in mainstream schools. 
 
A SEND Placement Sufficiency and Commissioning Strategy has been 
developed and consulted on. The transfer of statements to EHCP met the 31st 
March deadline. Next steps are to focus on improving the quality of planning, 
including through better directing multi-agency input. 
 
Parent Participation update was provided by Richard. Another SEND 
Talkabout was held yesterday, where parents are invited to raise issues of 
importance to them. It was noted that attendance was low and that the new 
approach should ensure the broadest possible range of parent / carer 
experience can be reflected through more meaningful and systematic 
participation in future.  
 
The tender closed last week, with a view to appointing an organisation in May 
2018. Parents have been involved in selecting the successful organisation 
throughout the procurement process.   
 
Following on from this, Margaret raised the issue of participation of children 
and young people with SEND, including through schools and organised 
participation activity, asking ‘How do we reach wider group of young people’. A 
proposal has been developed which will support SEND CYP to get their voices 
heard in helping to shape services in Barnsley. To report progress to a future 
meeting.  
The discussion moved on to work underway with schools to improve inclusion 
practice and to prevent permanent exclusion. A charging model has been 
introduced to ensure placements with Alternative Provision (Pupil Referral 
Units) are appropriate and timely. Barnsley has the 2nd highest fixed term 
exclusion rate in the country which needs to be addressed. This provides a 
real challenge to some schools and academies, and requires change in culture 
and behaviour across schools and supporting services.  
 
Nick mentioned there was a spike in permanent exclusion but there had been 
a significant reduction of pupils moving schools. Schools are working to be 
more inclusive. 
  
The discussion moved to the length of stay, noting the PRU should be a time-
limited intervention with a view to reintegration to mainstream wherever 
possible.  
 
Margaret acknowledged that this will take time to shift. Adrian stated that this 
needs to be focused on what is best for the child, not necessarily what is best 
for the school.  
 
The request to TEG was to endorse the proposal that the 2016-18 SEND 
Strategy be extended for a further 12 months, up to the end of March.  
Rachel stipulated that it needs to be highlighted that we have extended the 
strategy without further consultation.  
 
The proposal was agreed by members.  
 
Item 8 Discussed after this item 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Margaret 
Libreri / 
Richard 
Lynch 

Page 16



9 

 

  Action 

 

13. Continuous Service Improvement Plan – CONFIDENTIAL  
(Lisa Loach).  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

14. Encouraging Positive Relationships and Strengthening Emotional Health 
 
Brigid provided a brief update with regards to encouraging Positive 
Relationships and Strengthening Emotional Health, noting that the Q4 report 
from NHS England and Future in Mind includes everything, and a cover paper 
will be brought to the next meeting.  
 
The outcome as to whether the Green Paper regarding Education and 
Emotional Wellbeing will be progressed to statute is not yet known but Brigid 
identified that the outcome of the nomination of Barnsley as a trail blazer 
should be known in June. Michelle Sault, who leads Mindspace, has been 
asked to be on a working party with regards to curriculum development.  
 
Rachel asked what colleagues feel about this. It was suggested that it would 
be helpful to have how far we have travelled. Brigid shared that the feedback 
from the recent future in mind workshop included a young person asking for 
CAMHS to be extended to the age of 25 years old, she indicated that whilst 
she had said that could be considered she was more interested in why the 
request had been made i.e. what were adult services not doing and the likely 
need for more consistency of good person centred practice across all services 
and better pathway transitions. 
 
It was noted that with regards to care leavers and how they access Adult 
Mental Health, that there is more to do. Brigid noted that adult IAPT is out to 
procurement and is a rightly more ambitious specification than previously. 
 
The discussion also raised workforce issues of having enough skilled 
practitioners and how children’s mental health is linked to parents’ health and 
wellbeing.  
 

 
 
 
 

Brigid Reid 
 

15.  Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Meeting held on 9 March 2018 – 
Highlights  
 
Bob provided a brief update noting the following:  
 
Meeting held on 9th March at Darton College. It was a positive meeting and the 
following was noted:  

 Agreed Inter Board protocol, which clearly sets out which board does 
what. 

 Paper proposed - Young People Safeguarding Board more work to be 
done.  

 Section 11 report, agencies & Safeguarding. Peers sitting on interviews.  

 Section 1.75 from Schools. Third year received 100% returns in schools. 
Thank you to Nigel and the Schools. 

 Quality of data has improved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



10 

 

  Action 

 Numbers re bullying, these are better. Five schools were contacted which 
did not submit any data on bullying to check the information and was 
reassured that it was correct. Audit section 47 decision making. 
Reassurance and positive with a lot of management oversight.  

 
Questions / Comments   
Peer Challenging is going from strength to strength. Tightening of the system 
is working.  
 
Feedback is via Schools Alliance.  
 
Bob reminded everyone of Safeguarding Awareness Week and to sign up to 
events. There are 2 different route for booking these are:  

 Adults via Event Bright, which is a free system.  

 Children via POD. 
 
Nick informed the members with regards to CPOMS system and how this 
works, it is a comprehensive Safeguarding and Child Protection software 
package for schools that records any safeguarding issues and helps with 
actions and audit trails e.g. It automatically generates a number of emails to 
inform people and there are different levels for staff access. It gives a much 
better audit trail and is a modest investment at around £900 for a primary 
school. Action: Nick and Katherine (School representatives) to consider a 
presentation to the Alliance Board on the system and its benefits.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

All 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Nick Bowen/ 
Katherine 
Clark 

16. TEG Work Programme Review  
 
Richard reviewed with members the Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-
19 Action Plan (2018-2019) along with actions drawn from the current TEG 
work programme highlighting that some of the objectives / actions were now 
out of date. 
 
In the January TEG meeting members were asked to review the programme to 
ensure that items are in the right order or if they required updating and inform 
Richard what strategies they are responsible for, some information has now 
been received, although some is granular, and other information provided was 
useful but not required.  
 
Members were asked to: 
1. Review current actions and indicate where these can now be closed as 

complete or either replaced or consolidated with other actions. 
2. Review the current designated TEG Champion for each of the objectives.  
3. Agree the update / reporting schedule to TEG for the 2018/19 financial 

year. 
 
The action plan will be revised in accordance with the outcome of TEG 
discussions. 
 
Action: Richard to arrange separate meetings with theme leads / champions 
or nominated reps to progress. 
 
It was noted that information going forward for Mental Health would be agreed 
at the next TEG meeting.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Richard 
Lynch/ 

Margaret 
Libreri/  Phil 

Hollingsworth 
 

Brigid Reid 

Page 18



11 

 

  Action 

 
It was agreed to take Workforce Development (Amanda Glew) off line for the 
time being.  
 
This item to be brought back to next meeting.  
 
Item 13 discussed next  
 

 
TEG Work 
programme 

 Date and time of next meeting: 9.30pm – 12.30pm on 8th June 2018, at 
Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom). 

 

 
Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 8 June 2018 

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board (BSCB Minutes) – Bob Dyson 

 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan – Lisa Loach 

 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes Performance highlights/risks 

 TEG Work Programme Review – Richard Lynch 

 CYP’s Plan Monitoring – Bob Dyson 

 Keeping Children and Young People Safe update - Bob Dyson 

 Managing risk for Children in Care placed outside the Borough – Mel John Ross 

 Peer Review on children missing education – Margaret Libreri 

 Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health update 
including behaviour support and emotional wellbeing and access to therapeutic support and 
waiting times – Brigid Reid 

 Stronger Communities Partnership – Phil Hollingsworth 
 

 
Date of meeting  Time Venue Deadline dates for reports  

8 June 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 
3, Room 3 
(Boardroom) 

25 May 2018 

13 July 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 
3, Room 3 
(Boardroom) 

29 June 2018 

14 September 
2018  

09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 
3, Room 3 
(Boardroom) 

3 September 2018 

23 November 
2018  

09.30 – 12.30 Town Hall, Meeting 
room 11 
Note change of 
venue 

9 November 2018 

 
Meetings will normally be held approximately every 8 weeks, as determined by an annual 
calendar, with a minimum of 6 per calendar year. 

 

 

 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members: 
Rachel Dickinson (Chair) BMBC Executive Director, People 
Brigid Reid     Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse 
Cllr Margaret Bruff Cabinet Member: People (Safeguarding) 
Cllr Tim Cheetham   Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential) 
Bob Dyson Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People 
Margaret Libreri  BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and 

Prevention 
Lisa Phelan,  Barnsley CVS, Head of Community Services 
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care and 

Safeguarding 
Gerry Foster-Wilson   Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools 
 
Deputy Members: 
Nick Bowen  Executive Principal, Horizon Community College on behalf of 

Dave Whittaker 
Jayne Hellowell Barnsley MBC, Head of Locality Commissioning and Healthier 

Communities on behalf of Phil Hollingsworth 
Chris Foster  South Yorkshire Police on behalf of Scott Green 
Adrian England  Healthwatch Chair, on behalf of Sue Womack & Margaret 
 Gostelow 
Jess Leech Barnsley College, Assistant Principal Students on behalf of Phil 
 Briscoe. 
 
Advisor: 
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships 
 
In Attendance: 
Dawn Fitzpatrick BMBC, Partnerships and Project Officer  
Lisa Loach BMBC, Improvement Programme Manager 
Sara Hydon BMBC, Head of ICT, Service Management Customer Information 
 & Digital Services  
Claire Strachan SWYPFT, General Manager, Barnsley CAMHS 
Cllr Tattersall Cabinet Member  
Patrick Otway  Barnsley CCG, Head of Commissioning (Mental Health, 
 Children’s and Specialised Services) 
   

  Action 

1. Apologies 
The following apologies were received: 
Amanda Glew  BMBC Organisation Development Manager 
Dave Whitaker  Executive Headteacher representing BACCUS and 

Secondary Schools 

 

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting 
8 June 2018, from 9.30 – 12.30 

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3 

Page 21



2 

 

  Action 

Anna Turner BMBC Schools Models and Governor Development 
Manager 

Dr Jamie McInnes Barnsley Local Medical Committee 
Cllr Saunders Cabinet Member 
Sue Womack Healthwatch Manager, Healthwatch  
Phil Briscoe  Barnsley College Vice-Principal Quality and Student 

Experience 
Sandra Newman BHNFT, Interim Head of Nursing 
Sean Rayner SWYPFT, District Director 
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association 
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC Service Director, Stronger Safer and Healthier 

Communities 
Scott Green  South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent 
 
Introductions were made.  
 

2. Feedback from the front line  
 
Colleagues shared feedback from front line: 
 
1. Bob provided members with personal feedback from a family member with 

regards to the positive experience they had encountered in Barnsley 
Hospital’s Maternity ward noting that the family member felt it was a better 
experience at Barnsley Hospital than they had experienced elsewhere. 
 

2. Cllr Bruff updated members on her attendance at a Regional Conference 
recently and noted that children from Barnsley and York did a presentation 
(based upon the same topic) and Barnsley Children won the topic debate.  

 
3. Alicia & Bob updated member on a really positive meeting with BSCB & 

Barnsley College. Noting it was interesting but reassuring that young 
people don’t accept the concept of people using drugs and sleeping rough 
they showed two way concerns, for both the people and themselves. They 
showed amazing ambition, they were clear and knew were they wanted to 
go. 

 
4. Brigid highlighted work being done and carried by Karen O’Brien for the 

last 3 years noting her tenacity and dedication to a situation that didn’t fit 
any boxes. Brigid highlighted the superb team working between the 
medical team and Yorkshire Ambulance Service (YAS). 

 
5. Rachel informed members that she had recently attended a review with 

LAC and updated them on the progress and accelerated learning at the 
right level that had taken place, highlighting the great support and good 
team working. It was also noted that Carlton was doing great work. 

 

 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflicts of interest 
  
It was noted that item 6, 8, 9, 10, 12 and 15 should be treated as confidential. 

There were no conflicts of interest declared.   
 
 

 
 

Page 22



3 

 

  Action 

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 27 April 2018 
 
Feedback from the front line. 

Feedback 1. FiM.  Clarification was provided with regards to the video, noting 
that there was a technical issue whereby the sound had not recorded not that 
the young people’s voice hadn’t been heard.  

Feedback 3. Clarification was provided noting that it was to highlight the 
commitment of families.   

The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record, items 
mentioned above to be amended to show clarity. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 

4.1 Action log / matters arising 
The following updates to the action log were noted:  
 
Actions from 13 November 2017. 

 Item 1 (ii) this item is now closed.  
 
Actions from 27 April 2018. 

 Item 5 (ii) Alicia requested clarification as she was not at the previous 
meeting, clarification was provided.  

 Item 5 (iii) this item is now closed.  

 Item 9 (i) Brigid has a meeting on Monday 11 June 2018 - update to follow  

 Item 12 this has been progressed and is now closed.  

 Item 15 (i) Completed. 

 Item 15 (ii) Closed as this has been put on the agenda for the next 
Alliance Board meeting.  
 

Action: Action log to be updated.  

Matters arising  

Rachel provided an update with regards to the recent SEF/Ofsted Annual 
engagement meeting, noting that it was a very satisfactory meeting with 
challenges and progress noted. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 

 

Agenda Items and Updates on Progress 

5. Stronger Communities Partnership – update (Jayne Hellowell)  
 
Jayne updated TEG members with the following key points: 
 
All Age Early Help Strategy (2017-2020) for Barnsley identifies a series of 

priorities where we feel collectively, that we can make the most difference to 

achieve the best outcomes for individuals, families and communities within the 

borough.   

Annual plan helps us track our achievements against the strategy and where 

required challenge our performance and delivery. 

Three main priorities: 

1. To put in place the right help, in the right place at the right time. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 23



4 

 

  Action 

2. To develop strong partnership working and strong leadership. 
3. To empower people and communities to build capacity and resilience, so 

they can do more for themselves.  
 

These priorities will be put in place through working in partnership across 3 

multi-agency delivery groups. They are: 

 Early Help Adults. 

 Early Help Children. 

 Anti-poverty. 
 

Under each delivery group we show how last year we said we would, last year 

we have.  This shows our achievements.  For example: 

Early Help Adults: 
Last year we said we would: Help people access clear information and advice 
for themselves and their families. 
 
Last year we have: Exceeded our target for referrals for social prescribing with 
a 33% reduction in GP appointments of those supported. 

 
Early Help Children: 
Last year we said we would: Put in place a comprehensive, direct offer of early 
help to children, young people and families in order to address identified needs 
leading to improved outcomes. 
Last year we have: Increased early help to families by 15%. 
 
Anti-poverty: 
Last year we said we would: Work with partners to embed activities under the 
new priority themes. 
 
Last year we have: Supported community delivery of school holiday activities 
with food, under the banner of ‘Holiday Hunger’. A total of 2122 meals/snack 
were served to 1362 children and 789 adults who attended 7 different venues 
across 3 Area Council Areas (Dearne, Central and North) in school holidays in 
2017-18. 
 
In the Annual Plan for 2018-19 we set out what we aim to do.  Again this is 

though the 3 delivery groups.  For example:  

Early Help Adults: 
Reduce the incidences of preventable sight loss. 

 
Early Help Children: 
Delivering a comprehensive parenting pathway for families with children pre-
birth to 19 years old from early support through to specialist. 
 
Anti-poverty: 
Continue to support the delivery of joined up training and information linked to 
alleviating fuel poverty, developing financial resilience, responding to the 
impact of Welfare Reforms. 

 

 We have a comprehensive programme of activity through the 3 delivery 
groups with around 40 targets set for 2018-19. 

 We have a newly established performance and delivery group to check 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 24



5 

 

  Action 

and challenge delivery. 

 Progress is reported to the Stronger Communities Partnership Board 
through an exception report that looks at achievements and challenges. 

 We are reading the priorities in the Annual Plan against other key 
strategies and plans for example the Safer Barnsley Plan, the Health and 
Well Being Strategy and the Public Health Plan. 

 The full published annual plan will be distributed soon.  
 
Comments/questions noted were as follows:  

 Really positive news. 

 We don’t shout about it enough; need to get messages out to the public.  

 Really helpful. Impact to be highlighted to HWB re Social Prescribing and 
Early Help. Action: Impact report to go to HWB.  

 Challenge with Performance Indicators. Annual plan is going through 
HWB.  

 Gerry Foster-Wilson asked with regards to the Holiday Hunger initiative for 
identified families. Action: Jayne to gather the information and distribute 
to get key messages out.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Jayne /  
HWB work 
programme 

 
 

Jayne 
 

6. Information Sharing – CONFIDENTIAL (Sara Hydon)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

7. Children and Young People’s Plan Monitoring  
(Richard Lynch)  
 
Richard provided a brief update with regards to the CYP Plan and the following 
was  points were noted:  

 Follow up with regards to refreshing the action plan. Richard has met with 
all team leads. Follow up with regards to collating information had been 
assigned in the diary. Richard asked if TEG members were happy with 
this and could it be signed off virtually. Members agreed to sign off 
virtually.  

 

 Richard noted the actions at the end of CYP Plan. The CYP Plan expires 
in March 2019 and it is a long process to work through. Could a detailed 
discussion be scheduled in with the view to either do a full review or 
should a refresh. Will the priorities be the same? 

 
Action: 45 minutes to be scheduled on the next TEG agenda to review 
Partnership working and the Plan.  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Work 
programme 

Agenda items  

8. Keeping Children and Young People Safe Update – CONFIDENTIAL  

(Bob Dyson). 

This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

Page 25



6 

 

  Action 

9. Managing risk for Children in Care placed outside the Borough – 
CONFIDENTIAL (Mel John-Ross)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

10. Encouraging positive relationships and strengthening emotional health. 
CONFIDENTIAL (Brigid Reid)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

11. CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes performance / Highlights/Risks  
(All Members)  
 
None were raised.  
 

 

12. Continuous Service Improvement Plan – CONFIDENTIAL  
(Lisa Loach).  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

13. Barnsley Safeguarding Children’s Board Meeting held on 11 May 2018. 
Highlights. (Bob Dyson) 

Bob provided a brief highlights noting the following:  
Probation is now known as South Yorkshire Community Rehabilitation 
Company (SYCRC). Bob provided an update with regards to Inspire to Change 
which is working to create healthier and safer relationships and the work that 
SYCRC are currently involved in with perpetrators and timely interventions 
(World Cup noted as example). 

Bob updated members with regards to the BHNFT CQC inspection – 
Safeguarding Report, recommendations and the shared action plan. The 
example linked to this which was provided by Bob was noted to be a very rare 
event. 

An update was provided on creating Junior Representative and using them as 
a resource.  

Bob updated members with regards to Safeguarding week. Nigel Leeder is the 
contact. Sheffield and Rotherham are running their Safeguarding week at the 
same time.  
 
There were no further comments or questions. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14. TEG Work Programme Review  
 
Richard reviewed with members the Children and Young People’s Plan 2016-
19 Action Plan (2018-2019) along with actions drawn from the current TEG 
work programme.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 26



7 

 

  Action 

Scheduling time with regards the CYP Plan was mentioned and items planned 
in for July were discussed and the following changes were noted.   
Items for the next agenda include  

 Foster Carer Recruitment 

 Public Health – data side  

 Children Missing Education 
 
Action – Items to be deferred  

 LAC – Sufficiency Strategy deferred to September meeting.  

 Careers Advice and Guidance deferred to September meeting.  
 
Action: Work programme to be updated with changes noted above. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Work 
programme 

15. Any Other Business  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

 Date and time of next meeting: 9.30pm – 12.30pm on 13 July 2018, at 
Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom). 

 

 
Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 13 July 2018 

 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan – Lisa Loach 

 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes Performance highlights/risks 

 TEG Work Programme Review – Richard Lynch 

 0-19 Public Health – Data – Alicia Marcroft 

 Peer Review on children missing education – Margaret Libreri 

 Review of Partnership working and the CYP Plan (45 minutes).  

 
Date of meeting  Time Venue Deadline dates for reports  

13 July 2018 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 
3, Room 3 
(Boardroom) 

4 July 2018 

14 September 
2018  

09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 
3, Room 3 
(Boardroom) 

3 September 2018 

23 November 
2018  

09.30 – 12.30 Town Hall, Meeting 
room 11 
Note change of 
venue 

9 November 2018 

 

Meetings will normally be held approximately every 8 weeks, as determined by an annual 
calendar, with a minimum of 6 per calendar year. 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Present 
 
Core Members: 
Rachel Dickinson (Chair) BMBC Executive Director, People 
Martine Tune     Barnsley CCG, Chief Nurse 
Cllr Tim Cheetham   Cabinet Member: People (Achieving Potential) 
Bob Dyson Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
Alicia Marcroft BMBC Head of Public Health, Children and Young People 
Margaret Libreri  BMBC, Service Director for Education, Early Start and 

Prevention 
Mel John-Ross BMBC, Service Director of Children’s Social Care and 

Safeguarding 
Margaret Gostelow Barnsley Governors Association 
Phil Hollingsworth BMBC Service Director, Stronger Safer and Healthier 

Communities 
Scott Green  South Yorkshire Police Chief Superintendent 
Phil Briscoe  Barnsley College Vice-Principal Quality and Student Experience 
 
Deputy Members: 
Nick Bowen  Executive Principal, Horizon Community College on behalf of 

Dave Whittaker 
Adrian England  Healthwatch Chair, on behalf of Sue Womack & Margaret 
 Gostelow 
Katherine Clark  Headteacher, Hoyland Springwood 
 
Advisor: 
Richard Lynch BMBC Head of Commissioning, Governance and Partnerships 
Anna Turner BMBC Schools Models and Governor Development Manager 
 
In Attendance: 
Dawn Fitzpatrick BMBC, Partnerships and Project Officer  
Sarah Sinclair BMBC, Service & Strategy Manager 
Claire Strachan SWYPFT, General Manager, Barnsley CAMHS 
Cllr Tattersall  Cabinet Member 
 

  Action 

1. Apologies 
The following apologies were received: 
Amanda Glew  BMBC Organisation Development Manager 
Dave Whitaker  Executive Headteacher representing BACCUS and 

Secondary Schools 
Sue Womack Healthwatch Manager, Healthwatch  
Cllr Saunders  Cabinet Member 
Cllr Bruff Cabinet Member 
Lisa Phelan,  Barnsley CVS, Head of Community Services 
Gerry Foster-Wilson  Executive Headteacher representing Primary Schools 

 

Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group Meeting 
13 July 2018, from 9.30 – 12.30 

Westgate Plaza Boardroom, Level 3, Room 3 

Page 29



2 

  Action 

Lisa Loach BMBC, Improvement Programme Manager 
Laura Rumsey  Interim Associate Director of Nursing/Head of Midwifery 
 
Introductions were given.  
 

2. Feedback from the front line  
 
Colleagues shared feedback from front line: 
 
1. Bob updated members with regards positive events taking place including 

a conference on neglect at Shaw Lane Cricket Club. Safeguarding Week 
had included lots of other events taking place in the borough. 
 

2. Alicia updated members with regards to Future in Mind noting that Oasis 
had been involved in helping with the redesign of the Service. There had 
been a wide consultation, working with school nurses. It was proactive, 
and they were interested in the service asking how they can help.  

 
3. Anna updated members with regards to Governor Development Induction 

Programme, 25 new Governors attended the session.  
 
4. Margaret Gostelow updated members with regards a forum on Multi 

Academy Trusts, which provided information on everything needed to 
know about Academy Trusts. Presentations were provided and the 
feedback was very positive. All the training and network events had all 
been good. 

 
5. Rachel updated members with regards a visit she had undertaken with a 

social worker to a Tier 4 CAMHS inpatient and the issues encountered by 
the young person and parent. Rachel noted that it would be really helpful 
to get together as strategic leaders to look at the case to see what 
improvements can be put in place. Emphasising the commitment required 
to ensure this happens. Ensuring the right response at the right time, there 
is more that we can do. Patrick Otway and social care / Health leaders to 
get together and talk about the experience.  Action: Rachel to speak to 
Patrick Otway.  

 
6. Adrian updated members with regards Healthwatch audit, noting that this 

piece of work has started and there will be an interim report in October.  
 
7. Mel updated members noting that there had been three adoption 

breakdowns. These were older children and not Barnsley adopters. Need 
to look at what are the lessons learned? Flagged at this meeting to help to 
provide support for these children. It was noted that in identifying the 
needs and preparation work with these children will provide rich learning.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rachel 
Dickinson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

3. Identification of confidential reports and declarations of any conflicts of interest 
  
It was noted that item 5, 6, 7 & 9 should be treated as confidential. 

There were no conflicts of interest declared.   
 
 
 

 
 

Page 30



3 

  Action 

4. Minutes of the Trust Executive Group meeting held on 8 June 2018 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as an accurate record, items 
mentioned below to be amended. 
 
Item 2 – Feedback from the front line. 
Point 2. Should read Barnsley children won the debate topic. 
Point 5. Should read it was noted that Carlton was doing great work.  
 
Item 7 Children Young People’s Plan Monitoring 
1st bullet point – clarification required. Follow up with regards to refreshing the 
action plan. Richard has met with all the team leads. Follow up with regards to 
collating information had been assigned in the diary.  
 

 
 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 

4.1 Action log / matters arising 
The following updates to the action log were noted:  
 
Actions from 27 April 2018. 

 Items 5ii & 9i are now closed.  
 
Actions from 8 June 2018. 

 Item 5i – in progress 

 Item 5ii – In the summer it will be targeting in the 3 Area Council Areas: 
Dearne, Central and North, plus a slightly wider distribution via Barnsley 
Libraries (to include, Hoyland and Wombwell Libraries). 
In total 23 venues, 188 sessions 2.5k breakfasts 2539 lunches & dinners 
2000 snacks, 4000+ places for children, young people  & families are 
planned. 

 Item 8 – Item now closed 

 Item 10i – Springwell have a number of cases ongoing 

 Item 10ii – Item now closed 

 Item 12 – Item now closed 

 Item 15i – no comments received. There will be another update by 1st 
September. Send any comments to Margaret by 22nd August 2018.  
 

Action: Action log to be updated.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick 

Agenda Items and Updates on Progress 

5. Peer Review on Children Missing Education CONFIDENTIAL 
(Margaret Libreri)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

6. 0-19 Public Health Data – CONFIDENTIAL (Alicia Marcroft & Cheryl Devine)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

7. Open Early Help Interventions  – CONFIDENTIAL (Mel John-Ross)  
 
 This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 

 

Page 31



4 

  Action 

Agenda items  

8. CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes Performance Highlights / Risks 

There were no items raised.  

 

9. Continuous Service Improvement Plan - CONFIDENTIAL (Mel John-Ross)  
 
This item was confidential and is therefore not included in the published 
minutes. 
 

 

10. TEG Work Programme Review 
(Richard Lynch)  
 
Richard provided a brief update of what items where scheduled on the work 
programme for the next meeting in September. It was noted that Workforce 
Development had not been scheduled into the work programme yet for various 
reasons.  The following items were noted:  

 Careers and Guidance report to come to next meeting.  

 Redefining the work of the board was briefly mentioned. 

 Margaret suggested the September meeting would be a good time for the 
Early Years outcomes as the headline results would give food for thought.  

 
Sarah Sinclair arrived at the meeting at this point.  
 

 

11. Review of Partnership Working and the Children and Young People's Plan 
 
Sarah was welcomed to the meeting.  
 
This section of the meeting looked at the Children and Young People’s Trust 
and how to take this forward. Barnsley has maintained the production of a high 
level Children and Young People’s Plan to help frame our collective strategic 
endeavour. 
 
A discussion took place on the component parts, noting that the TEG sets the 
direction. The Executive Commissioning Group (ECG) leads on commissioning 
and updates / informs TEG.   
 
Currently TEG has been meeting 8 times a year, is this the right frequency of 
meetings?, is the membership correct? what does the relationship need to look 
like (ECG & HWB also Safer Communities). Duplication and overlap of 
meetings needs to be looked at. There is a need to re think the relationship 
with the Safeguarding Board. Action: Rachel and Bob to have a discussion 
with regards to this.  
 
It was noted that on a practical level, there has been a loss of capacity over the 
years. It was suggested that reducing the meetings to quarterly would help with 
the workload and make the agenda more focussed. Scott expressed the view 
that police key stakeholders should be a member and attend TEG and would 
welcome more focussed meetings, ideally quarterly.  
Action: Martine to have conversation with hospital with regards who attends 
TEG. 
 
The discussion moved to items that do not need to come via TEG i.e. LAC 
sufficiency strategy. It was highlighted that there may be a formal signing off 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Rachel 
Dickinson/ 
Bob Dyson 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Martine Tune 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



5 

  Action 

required for some items by TEG. It was suggested that a consent section could 
be added to the agenda for these particular items.  
 
It was discussed and agreed to keep the September meeting and move to 
quarterly meetings as from then and to prune the work programme. 
 
 
CYP Plan.  
There are 6 key priorities and themed areas. The proposed timeline for 
updating the CYP Plan was outlined, looking at the plan spanning the next 3 
years. It will include the involvement of young people. There will be one 
version of the plan aimed at everyone. Starting conversations with young 
people will be built into the timeline earlier, including building into the work with 
Oasis as it was suggested that this could be expanded. Action: TEG members 
to think about the strategic priorities, what are they?  
It was suggested to look at a longer term plan i.e. 5 year plan with a light 
refresh at 3 years.  
 
It was noted that Barnsley Alliance and Barnsley SEND Strategy have 
concurrent timescales.  
 
There will be the joint TEG / BSCB meeting session on 23rd November, 
Takeover day, where young people will attend.  The voice of vulnerable young 
people is needed. Oasis & Chilypep were mentioned as they have credible 
reach and contact with vulnerable groups. Chilypep is funded through Future in 
Mind.  
 
It was suggested that the 5 key priorities will not change; the 6th is work force 
development.  
 
The following actions to take place:  

 Contact members.  

 Dates.  

 Plan YP involvement.  

 Format of Report.  

 Test with children & young people for ideas. 
 
Sarah suggested people bringing information to these planned meetings / 
workshops  
 

 
 

Dawn 
Fitzpatrick / 

Work 
programme  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

TEG 
Members 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sarah 
Sinclair / 

TEG 
members 

12 Any Other Urgent Business  
 
12.1 Rachel formally welcomed Martine Tune, Chief Nurse, Barnsley CCG 

to TEG.   
 
12.2   Goodbye and best wishes were given to Katherine Clark, Headteacher, 

Hoyland Springwood who is leaving Barnsley. Katherine was thanked 
for her great contribution around this table and beyond. 

 

 

 Date and time of next meeting: 9.30pm – 12.30pm on 14 September 2018, 
at Westgate Plaza, Level 3, Room 3 (Boardroom). 

 

 
Proposed agenda items for next meeting on 14 September 2018 

 Barnsley Safeguarding Children's Board (BSCB) minutes 

Page 33



6 

  Action 

 Continuous Service Improvement Framework & Plan  

 CYP Plan Strategic Priority Themes Performance highlights/risks 

 TEG Work Programme Review  

 Careers advice and guidance  

 Tackling child poverty and improving family life  

 Stronger Communities Partnership Update  

 Foster Carer Recruitment  

 Review of Partnership working and the CYP Plan.  

 

 

Date of meeting  Time Venue Deadline dates for reports  

14 September 18 09.30 – 12.30 Westgate Plaza, Level 3, 
Room 3 Boardroom) 

3 September 2018 

23 November 2018  This meeting will be the Joint TEG BSCB meeting. Meetings will now be quarterly 
as agreed at the 13

th
 July meeting. 

Page 34



1

Safer Barnsley Partnership Board
Wednesday, 9 May 2018 :  10:00 – 12:00

Gateway, L4 Boardroom

Minutes
Attendees
Scott Green, Chief Superintendent – SY Police (Chair)  
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities – BMBC (WL)
Phil Hollingsworth, Service Director – Stronger, Safer & Healthier – BMBC (PH)
Lennie Sahota, Service Director Adults Assess & Care  – BMBC (LS)
Monica Green, Service Director Children’s Social Care & Safe – BMBC (Part)
Sarah Poolman, Superintendent, South Yorks Police (SP)
Carrie Abbot, Service Director Public Health – BMBC (CA)
Steve Fletcher, Service Group Manager, SY Fire & Rescue (SF)
Linda Mayhew – SY Criminal Justice Board (LM)
Amanda Cullen – SY CRC (AC)
Janette Hawkins – SWYPT (JH)
Darren Asquith, Berneslai Homes (DA)
Cllr Chris Lamb, Elected Member – BMBC (CL)
Shiv Bhurtun, Strat Gov Partnership & Transformation Manager – BMBC (SB)
Jules Horsler, Equality & Inclusion Manager – BMBC (Part)
Sam Goulding, Project Manager – IDAS (Part)
Margaret Libreri, Service Director Education Early Start & Prev – BMBC (Part)

Apologies
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Member Communities – Cllr Chris Lamb to attend
Dave Fullen, Berneslai Homes – Darren Asquith to attend
John Hallows, Barnsley Neighbourhood Watch
Sean Rayner, SWYPT – Janette Hawkins to attend
Liz Mills, National Probation Service
Cheryl Wynn, SY Police & Crime Commissioner’s Office
Mel John-Ross, Service Director Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding- BMBC 
– Monica Green to attend
Brigid Reid, Barnsley CCG

1. Apologies and Introductions
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies were received and noted from the above members.  It was agreed 
there was no need for more than one representative from Social Care so 
Monica Green left the meeting at this point.

2. Minutes and Matters Arising from the last meeting
Page 1
Action:  Clarification on CCG / SWYPT representation – Remove CCG from 

Page 35

HWB.02.10.2018/4



2

membership just include SWYPT.  The Chair also expressed his thanks in 
respect of Brigid Reid who retires in July.   Her contribution will be missed over 
the whole of Barnsley – Action discharged

Page 2
Action:  Steve Fletcher to supply details of collaborative events which can be 
built into the quarterly refresh – Information received from SF.  
Action: Sharon Pitt to circulate document. 

Page 6 
Inter Partnership protocol - Final document has now been agreed and 
signatures received. Next discussion is in June with Bob Dyson to iron out any 
issues.  It was suggested that modern slavery should be included.

Action:  Ray Powell/Brendan Pakenham to present their views on the 
Safeguarding & Radicalisation Paper at the next meeting before 
discussion takes place – Agenda item

Action:  Phil Hollingsworth to consult re the Safeguarding & Radicalisation at 
Prevent Silver and bring any feedback to this Board – Paper circulated with 
meeting papers – Action discharged.

The Chair reported that SY Police have now moved to the Connect IT system 
which is focussed on case management re offences which have occurred.  
They are the first force in the country to purchase this and the Fire Service has 
been invited to consider the system.  It will be a good opportunity for all 4 
authorities and Paul Brannan to be involved in discussions.    

Page 7
Amendment to ASB Update :  second bullet point to read : Established MAAGS 
in town centre and strengthening other MAAGS …………… 
Action:  Sharon to amend

The Chair confirmed that the final copy of the SBP Annual Plan has been 
circulated and it is proposed to launch the document as part of the ‘Meet the 
Boards’ event on 10 July as part of the Safeguarding Awareness week.  The 
format of the 2 hour session has yet to be formalised.  WL agreed it was a good 
idea to work together and suggested it would be helpful for SMT to see the 
Plan.  It was considered the Final plan 2018-19 was a good, concise document 
with straight forward language and accessible to members of the public. SB 
confirmed that a PDR version will be available to download and paper copies 
will be available at the launch.

3. New Police Structure
The Chair outlined the new structure and stated that previously SY Police had 
gone for a hybrid structure including a mixture of geographic and directorate 
models which had not been ideal.  The new Deputy Chief Operations Officer is 
passionate about the geographic model and this has now been adopted which 
has meant a 90% restructure for Barnsley resulting in him now having a more 
strategic role as District Commander.  

Page 36



3

Roles confirmed as follows:
 Sarah Poolman - Operations Superintendent dealing with day to day 

delivery and will have 3 Officers reporting to her.
 Mark James - Neighbourhood policing including police assets and 

partnership working
 Operations Chief Inspector (vacant post) – Chris Foster is Interim at the 

moment – in charge of response policing 
 DCI  role – The Chair confirmed that sadly the best DCI in the county, 

Delphine Waring, is moving to a another role outside the district and her 
post is vacant. Once in place the post holder will be responsible for 3 
detective inspectors.

 Reactive CID – based in Churchfield will be responsible for all crime 
except murder.

 Gary Askew - PVP  - will lead a specialist workforce with a cross 
fertilisation of skills.  This will comprise 140 people - 80 police officers 
and 60 civilian investigators (experienced and new people). A 1 year 
training programme for investigators is available with Sheffield University 
and will form a different route for people to join the police force.  Sarah 
Poolman will have oversight of the team as she has a knowledge of 
PVP.

 Proactivity DCIs – there are equivalent roles in Sheffield and Doncaster. 
1 will be funded by SY Police and 1 by BMBC. This will be a real 
opportunity to make a difference working with partners. 

 Visor teams who monitor sex offenders (low level sex offenders need an 
annual visit).  Neighbourhood police officers should undertake this as 
they will need a local level of knowledge.

This is a positive move in the right direction.  WL agreed that shared strategies 
are moulding together with plans and resources for the future.  District 
Commander is now in charge of local resources which is really positive.  Police 
horses are now back in Cudworth which is a cause for celebration for the 
Barnsley area.  The Chair also confirmed that additional special constables are 
now being recruited and the new Mayor Elect wants to celebrate policing in the 
community.  Police Cadets should also be included in public events and need to 
be celebrated.
 

4. Town Centre Update
Paul Brannan shared a presentation with the Board which outlined the 
challenges and key issues which have been worked through over the last 18 
months to assist the Council in regenerating the town centre.  He will be sharing 
this presentation with other groups.

 There have been significant spikes in ASB but by introducing additional 
resources there has been a steady decline and by the end of this 
financial year there had been a 20% reduction in recorded ASB.  
Attention has been focussed on the Interchange and Peel Square and 
information suggests that the issues have not moved on to other areas.

 Town Centre Team have done considerable work and the number of 
repeat breaches have reduced.
  

Page 37



4

 There are support pathways for those presenting with complex needs in 
the town centre including advice on housing, support for rough sleepers 
and a Mental Health Worker has been employed on a temporary basis 
seconded from SWYPT.  

 PSPO’s are used as a lower intervention tool to move people on but this 
doesn’t provide power with persistent offenders 

 CPN is used extensively and Section 1 injunctions have been used 
successfully.  28 civil injunctions have been secured in the last 9 months 
and used for persons of interest in the town centre.  Breaches are 
treated seriously by courts and 2 recent breaches have resulted in 
sentences.

 Begging in the town centre is a recent problem and is seen as something 
which detracts from the viability of this area.  A more measured 
approach is needed as these people are begging to feed drug and drink 
habits.

Moving forward it has been recognised that significant improvements in security 
and safety in the town centre during the day time have been made but more 
work is needed.  Partners have met to discuss how resources can be organised 
more effectively and the following key actions were identified at the meeting :

 Look at how issues are case managed in the town centre. 
 Organise more joint environmental volunteering sessions in the town 

centre.  The first session involved 38 people cleaning an entire street 
and  4/5 sessions are planned for the year.  It was suggested that 
offenders could be included in these sessions. 

 Establish an alliance between agencies who support homeless people – 
the first session will be held on 18 May to move this forward.  

 Co-ordinated begging campaign
 Looked at human resources we have, what is needed and also exploring 

the opportunity of placing an integrated team into the new Glassworks 
complex to show commitment to a safer town centre.

 Homeless Reduction Act  - new legislation which deals with persistent 
and complex needs. The Act puts an emphasis on the local authority re 
prevention duty and how to develop partnerships and reduce numbers of 
homeless people.

Linda Mayhew confirmed that the SY Accommodation Sub Group is now up 
and running and is meeting this afternoon.  There is a big issue around people 
coming into homelessness out of custody.  She can provide data around people 
coming out of custody.   It was reported that Doncaster Prison only gives 2/3 
days notice on release of offenders and no notice is given to police to get 
provisions in place.  Sarah Poolman confirmed this is a current challenge faced 
by her on a weekly basis. 

The Chair thanked PB for his presentation and confirmed that resources need 
to be put in place for this work to continue.

5. CRC Update
Amanda Cullen shared a presentation with the Board in respect of reducing re-
offending in South Yorkshire via a multi-agency partnership approach with 

Page 38



5

governance arrangements through;
 the County Reducing Reoffending Steering Group (sub group of the 

Local Criminal Justice Board), and
 the 4 Local Authority Area Community Safety Partnerships

focussed on :
 Binary – reducing the number of individuals offending
 Frequency – reducing the amount of individual offences

There are currently 4,786 offenders on the books with 850 in Barnsley in the 
cohort.  20% of people are causing 80% of problems.  Gender 17% female 
slightly higher in Barnsley, down to mental health issues.  Predominantly 
shoplifting, and 30-39 age range causing most of the problems. Alcohol, drugs 
and children being removed are dominant issues – how do we help these 
people?  Some people are being arrested 40+ times.

Barnsley’s offending rates are higher than Manchester which is due to external 
factors.  Sheffield Hallam have done work which suggests Barnsley is spending 
less per head than other areas.  For example Mental Health Greater 
Manchester spend £8.30 per head of population whereas we are spending 
£2.20 per head across South Yorkshire. The document will be shared with 
Board once it is finalised.

Need commitment from all partners re looking at SAC offences and working 
together with a co-ordinated approach. 

The Chair stated that we shouldn’t be surprised with the scores as less is spent 
per head on services and recommended that once the final document is 
released then a dialogue should be held at a county level to take this forward.
WL agreed with this course of action which will link in with Paul Brannan re 
complex needs management.  2 members of CRC staff work in the Hub so 
improvements should be seen in the future. 

6. Tolerance and Respect Equality Strategy
Jules Horsler confirmed that the purpose of the report is to seek the Board’s 
views on the developing Equality Strategy 2018-20 outcomes and objectives, 
and in particular those elements to be overseen by the Community Tolerance & 
Respect Sub Group.

There are 5 main equalities which come under the Safer Barnsley Board 
through the CTR Sub Group :

1. Challenge prejudicial beliefs and actions that underpin community 
tensions.

2. Reducing the impact of migration in local neighbourhoods.
3. Remove barriers to volunteering for new arrivals.
4. Preventing radicalisation and violent extremism.
5. Increase provision of suitable English Language learning activities for 

new arrivals.

Page 39



6

The document has been to CTR who are happy to have an oversight of this but 
wanted to ensure the Board were in agreement.

The Chair asked whether BMBC is happy that CTR and the Board are chaired 
by police and WL confirmed this was not an issue.
 
Remove barriers of volunteering – the wording was questioned and JH 
confirmed the question for all partners is how they are approaching 
volunteering.  Some have a similar practice to BMBC but others have better 
practice to get asylum seekers into volunteering.  PH was of the opinion that 
this equality to reduce barriers should sit under the Safety & Wellbeing Board.

Jules Horsler confirmed the report is going to SMT tor Chief Executive approval 
and it was agreed BMBC should take leadership of this rather than SY Police.

7. Effectiveness of Repeat MARAC
Sam Goulding confirmed the purpose of the report is to provide factual data 
about MARAC repeats in Barnsley since June 2017 to date, including case 
studies to demonstrate, in reality, the nature of repeat incidents. It will confirm 
where MARAC is now and the large scale improvements recognised across the 
whole of South Yorkshire.

The report focusses on performance in respect of repeats. Since IDAS took 
over administration the data processes are now more efficient and everything is 
risk assessed.

 Chair meetings are held quarterly along with Rep meetings/training also 
held quarterly.  

 A working manual is being established to give an understanding or what 
agencies are able to bring to MARAC

 There are some issues with Adult Social Care representatives not being 
clear about their role and what added value they bring – Lennie Sahota 
asked that any issues should be escalated to him – Sam to action

 Children’s Social Care representative has been replaced and is now 
attending regularly, however out of 4 invited social workers only 1 from 
the Disability Team attended – Rachel Dickinson encourages escalation 
if issues arise.

 There seems to be duplication of safeguarding particularly with High Risk 
cases between IDAS and SY Police SAT Team – a meeting is planned 
with Delphine Waring in respect of standard and medium cases.  The 
Chair let Sam know that Delphine was moving onto another role outside 
the district but was interested in any recommendations on how this 
duplication could be reduced.  Gary Askew would be the person to 
contact and Sam confirmed she has already spoken to him.  
Action : Following discussion it was agreed that Jayne Hellowell, 
Lead for PVP Sub Group, be given an action to identify a process re 
the lower level of risk

 Difficulties are being experienced re DISC and Mental Health support in 
that any referrals taken back from MARAC cannot be actioned by the 
Chair as they work on a consensual basis so responsibility usually lies 

Page 40



7

with the IDVA or CSC to encourage that consent which can create 
issues with clients.

8. Youth Offending Management Board Update
Margaret Libreri confirmed the purpose of the report was to give a broad 
overview of the current priorities of the Youth Crime and ASB Board which is a 
statutory board who oversee the work of the Youth Offending Service to reduce 
re-offending and keep young people out of the criminal justice system.

 Numbers are below 300 for the first time and the aim is to keep re-
offending at around 30%.  As the cohort is smaller and includes more 
complex cases re crimes and chaotic lives, Prevent work is as much 
working with the family as well as the individual.

 There is concern around the increase in custody cases when compared 
with other parts of South Yorkshire.

 There is a lot of integration between YO services and targeting youth 
support service who are working proactively together. Case-loads are 
reducing but need to continue working with these young people and 
ensure partners are not reducing their involvement. 

 Youth Justice Board has notified the partnership that grant will stay the 
same and the Board can continue to improve performance.  

 Grants have been maintained from PCC who recognise the importance 
of the work

 Concern re reduction from Probation Service went from 2 people down 
to 0.5 but following discussion this is now back up to 1.

 Performance and prevention is working but more work needed.

Good work is being done by Ben Finley and it is important that Barnsley does 
not get left behind.

Sarah Poolman confirmed that the police have worked with 5 or 6 young people 
within the town centre to avoid criminalisation and this work is having the 
desired effect on young people.

9. Performance & Delivery Exception Report
SB apologies for the delay in circulating the report to the Board. 

Highlights :
Crime : Sad to hear about Delphine Waring moving on.  There has been a 
general reduction in residential burglary with the rise in March due to 2 
offenders being released from prison. However they have both recently been 
arrested and charged with offences and we expect to see burglaries reduce 
again in April, the Issue is with SAC offences.  There is a constant battle to 
keep on the top of low level crime and tackle core offenders and there has been 
some positive recent work done on this.
PVP – NDTMS monitoring reports show that successful completions have been 
steadily increasing since April 2018 and are now exceeding local targets and 
fall within the Top Quartile ranges. 
ASB – More than 120 individuals of concern were identified and through a 
combination of support, engagement and robust enforcement this had been 
reduced to single figures.  Action: SNS Update – item for next meeting. 

Page 41



8

Obtained a licence to fly drones re tackling off-road biking. Barnsley is the only 
authority 
CTR - The first meeting of the Community Challenge Board has taken place. 
Operation Jabbingley – re ‘Punish a Muslim Day’ on 3 April – additional patrols 
were organised but no incidents occurred in the Barnsley area.

The Chair thanked SB for a good report which shows that Priority Leads are 
addressing the priorities set. 

10. Forward Plan 
4 main items were identified for the next meeting :

SCP Annual Plan 2018 – Shiv Bhurtun
SNS update – Paul Brannan
In-Authority Placements & Accommodation Update – Jon Banwell
Town Spirit – Phil Hollingsworth

11. Any Other Business

No further business was identified.

12. Date of Next Meeting

Wednesday, 8 August 2018
10.00am – 12.00noon
Town Hall MR2

Page 42



1

Safer Barnsley Partnership Board
Wednesday, 8 August 2018 :  10.00am – 12.00noon

Town Hall, MR2

Minutes
Attendees
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities - BMBC (Chair)
Scott Green, District Commander – SY Police
Phil Hollingsworth, Service Director – Stronger, Safer & Healthier – BMBC
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Spokesperson for Communities – BMBC
Lennie Sahota, Service Director, Adults’ Assess and Care Management – BMBC
Monica Green, Head of Safeguarding & Quality Assurance – Children – BMBC
Cllr Martin Dyson, Police & Crime Panel Representative – BMBC
Carrie Abbott, Service Director Public Health – BMBC
Ben Finley, Youth Justice Service Manager – BMBC
Spencer Rowland – SY Fire & Rescue
Cllr Chris Lamb, Chair - SY Fire & Rescue Authority
Amanda Cullen, Director – South Yorks CRC
Liz Mills, Head of Barnsley & Sheffield LDU – Prison & Probation Service
Janette Hawkins – SWYPT
Linda Mayhew – SY Criminal Justice Board and on behalf of OPCC
John Hallows – Neighbourhood Watch/Safer Communities Forum
Dave Fullen, Director of Customer & Estate Services – Berneslai Homes

Apologies
Sarah Poolman, Superintendent – SY Police
Cheryl Wynn - SY Police & Crime Commissioners Office
Mel John-Ross, Service Director Children’s Social Care & Safe - BMBC
Martine Tune, Chief Nurse - Barnsley CCG
Steve Fletcher – SY Fire & Rescue

1. Apologies and Introductions
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  Apologies 
were received and noted from the above members.

Monica Green attended on behalf of Mel John-Ross – Children’s Services
Janette Hawkins attended on behalf of Sean Rayner - SWYPT

Martine Tune (replacement for Brigid Reid) also confirmed that Barnsley CCG is 
currently reviewing its corporate calendar, membership and attendance at all meetings.  
She will contact us once decisions have been made.
ACTION:  Sharon Pitt to confirm details to Scott Green once available.

Cllr Chris Lamb has replaced Cllr Burgess as Chair of the SY Fire & Rescue Authority.

Page 43



2

2. Minutes and matters arising from the meeting held on 09/05/18
P.4 
Linda Mayhew asked for an amendment to penultimate paragraph of Item 4 – now 
reads “She can provide data around people coming out of custody.  It was reported 
that Doncaster Prison ……… “
ACTION:  Amendment to be made

Following which the minutes of the last meeting held on 09/05/18 were agreed as a 
true copy and actions dealt with as follows :

P6 
Action for Jayne Hellowell
MARAC – A report was taken to PVP Sub Group on 16/07 and a meeting is planned 
with SY Police in respect of low & medium risk cases – Item discharged 

3. Items for Information
Our Borough Profile:  now publicly available on the intranet and provides summary of 
landscape of borough in terms of age profile, households, social care information etc. 
which is broken down into areas.  
ACTION:  Link to be circulated to members today and carry forward for 
discussion to next Board meeting – Agenda item for next meeting
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/our-borough-
profile/ 

Stronger Communities Annual Plan:
Document has been completed and will be available on the weblink shortly.  Planning 
to share it in paper form but there is a delay in publishing. 
ACTION:  Circulate Plan to Board when published

There is an historic overlap in the relationship between Stronger Communities  and 
Safer Barnsley and time has been spent to make clearer distinctions between the two.  
Cllr Lamb chairs SCP which has been mirrored, during the last 12 months, re 
performance to take the same approach as SBP.  Following these changes it was 
thought helpful that a flowchart showing SCP strategic governance be drawn up and 
circulated to members with the purpose of each organisation identified.

Scott Green reported that although SCP and SBP Board minutes are sent through to 
the Health and Wellbeing Board this Board has no statutory oversight for either Board 
as they sit in their own right.  Clarification is also needed around this.

ACTION:  Shiv Bhurtun to draw up SCP strategic governance flowchart and 
circulate to members identifying the purpose of each organisation.  

4. Prevent Update
Phil Hollingsworth confirmed he chaired Silver Prevent and was aware that SBP had 
not had a formal update for the last 12 months.  The recommendation is that an annual 
update comes into the Board to provide reassurance that the Prevent agenda is 
supported and being delivered within Barnsley.
ACTION:  Prevent Annual Update to be noted on the Forward Plan

Ray Powell outlined the purpose of Prevent in that it is one part of the overall 
government Counter-Terrorism Strategy (CONTEST) stopping people becoming 
radicalised or extremist. Prevent is working well within Barnsley and being delivered 
successfully as indicated by the commitment and awareness amongst partner 
organisations.

Page 44

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/our-borough-profile/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/our-borough-profile/


3

Partner organisations were asked to produce an action plan under the 6 following 
headings and all are being delivered reasonably well.

 Leadership
 Working together in partnership
 Developing capability
 Addressing the ideology
 Supporting the individual
 Working with institutions

Foundations were laid in 2016 and continued to be embedded throughout 2017 with 
support from leadership both within BMBC and partner organisations. As well as online 
training sessions, workshops were also delivered to BMBC Tier 1-4 Managers, Elected 
Members and frontline staff to bring them up to speed with their statutory 
responsibilities. 

Channel Panel – This is co-chaired by Ben Finley and Sarah MacGillivray (Barnsley 
CCG) and is running really well with a commitment to training frontline staff and 
partners. About building up community relationships with support from mental health 
and safeguarding.  Contest 3 – need to make sure decisions are audited in a timely 
way – need core members to share opinions and expertise.  Home Office have 
commented on how well Prevent work is going in Barnsley

Brendan Pakenham then gave an update from the police management angle.
SY Police Prevent Lead is working on behalf of Scott Green to manage threat and risk 
on behalf of the Partnership.  We have seen a number of terrorism incidents over the 
last few years and statutory guidance and goals are in place. It is important we 
manage risk effectively, as early as possible, through pathway reporting with risks 
shared at source and assessments made in the early stages.  Need to ensure 
colleagues working in the Hubs and Mashes understand triggers etc. in making 
reports.  Recommendations were made in June as a result of the Parsons Green 
incident re training and information was shared across the county with Channel Chairs, 
Ray Powell, Phil Hollingsworth and principles will be embedded.  Low numbers have 
come through to the Channel Panel, however these are quality cases.  The Channel 
Panel is well run with Ben Finley heading up the team, and he is confident everything 
is dealt with to a high standard.  Scott Green is confident that any risk is managed 
effectively.

Next steps :
 Build up capacity.
 Better integration within communities and work with third sector and voluntary 

organisations to raise their awareness.
 Work with Counter Extremism Co-ordinator at Barnsley who looks at promoting 

projects around the right wing narrative. 
 Continue to reach out to Locality Teams and attending council meetings to try 

and develop an approach re supporting the Prevent agenda
 Look at cohesion and development – map this out to identify good practices 

and look at areas for further development.

Amanda Cullen reported that CRC already deliver hate crime interventions and can 
offer support.  
ACTION: Amanda Cullen will contact her CRC colleague and ask them to attend 
the next SBP meeting 

Page 45



4

Monica Green reported on small groups of young men coming from abroad and being 
placed in the Barnsley area.  There are not large numbers of children seeking asylum 
but they are very disillusioned and vulnerable.  Not thought to be a problem at the 
moment but they need to be dealt with confidently.  The Parsons Green incident was 
all about looking after young people travelling from abroad and issues around 
understanding what is in someone’s head.  Need to look at supporting mechanisms 
and not criminalisation. Due to low numbers in the Barnsley region we do not have the 
level of expertise and need skills for assessment.  Staff need to be confident in dealing 
with vulnerable people. 

The Chair thanked partners for their support and leadership and asked for additional 
information to understand the reach and take-up of training across all organisations 
and area wards and how this translates into reality. 

Scott Green confirmed that CCG representatives attend Prevent and co-chair the 
Channel Panel.  He noted that they had sent apologies this time due to a management 
re-organisation and looked forward to their attendance at the next meeting.  
Action – Sharon Pitt to let Scott Green have the information on meeting 
representation when this is received from Martine Tune.

Scott Green also thanked Ben Finley for his fantastic work and re-iterated that Police 
can only Prevent when they are informed.  Stakeholder and member training is 
important to increase public reporting.

Scott Green confirmed he would give reassurance at the Safeguarding Boards of this 
discussion and Cllr Chris Lamb can report on this to SCP.

5. SNS Update
Ellie Cooper presented the report on SNS Performance and gave details of the 
Partnership operating process and management performance over their first 12 
months.  The report had been circulated prior to the meeting.

Principles around operation are :
 Prevention and Early Intervention
 Engagement
 Tackling Crime,  ASB & PVP
 Demand Reduction

Risks & Challenges are identified – in particular:
 Understanding the relationship between volume demand and effort based 

demand.
 MAAG meetings are being reviewed to focus on better attendance and suitable 

membership to increase early intervention in neighbourhoods.
 Mental Health Support Worker has been appointed to map mental health 

processes
 Shift in the supply chain of drugs into Barnsley Town Centre with a known 

street gang from out of town linking to crime related activity specifically around 
Holden House

 Nuisance motorcycles continue to be a priority and the purchase and operation 
of a drone has been successful in obtaining convictions.

Ella also reported that Twitter posts have been sent out with positive messages but 
that they welcomed any advice on this.

Page 46



5

Feedback from Board members :

 Homelessness – is this being looked at the wrong way round – shouldn’t the 
focus be that the high number of cases being dealt with is positive.

 Focus on rural crime in SY – tend to focus on urban and estates, is there 
enough focus on rural issues?  Phil Hollingsworth reported he was not aware 
there was a particular issue in rural areas and Scott Green confirmed there are 
sufficient resources west of the M1 who are the only district who operate a rural 
neighbourhood watch in SY. 

 Urban Street Gang – There is concern around the urban street gang coming 
into Barnsley Town Centre and using young people to supply drugs. Civil 
injunction has now taken place through Safe Child via the CSE Group.  

 Off-road motorcycles  - Cllr Lamb confirmed this had been an issue in early 
spring at Hoyland and Birdwell and these people were a danger to members of 
the public.  On a recent walk he met a team of officers on trial bikes who are 
doing effective work which is very positive.  Scott Green pointed out the 
challenges of chasing a person under the age of 16yrs and the high risks 
associated with this, not only to the young person on the bike but also to 
members of the public. 

The Chair thanked Ella for a good picture of their performance and thanked everyone 
for their contribution. 

Phil Hollingsworth agreed that after only one year they were in a good position. A 
baseline assessment has been carried out with Sheffield University to show the results 
one year in, following which reflections will be made.

6. In-Authority Placements & Accommodation Update
John Banwell presented this report which informs on the number of children in care 
placed in Barnsley from other local authorities. Although there is no national league 
table Barnsley takes a high proportion of the children placed.  Barnsley has 16 
independent privately registered children’s homes plus numerous independent 
fostering agency placements (around 190 placed at present).  Ofsted will use a 20 mile 
radius of a child’s place of residence. A monthly report of children placed in Barnsley 
goes to the Safeguarding Children Board.

Due to the private market in fostering and residential, numbers are not spread out 
proportionately so there are a high number of children from Rotherham and Doncaster 
as Barnsley has more residential homes.  There is more concern around children 
coming from further afield.  This puts significant additional pressure on local services 
such as CAMHS, SY Police and some local schools.

Barnsley has very clear arrangements and processes to manage all the notifications 
and placements in the Borough.  The numbers are recorded and reported monthly in 
the CSC monthly performance report that goes to the BSCB, TEG and Corporate 
Parenting Panel.

If there are concerns about a young person placed in Barnsley these can be raised 
through Mel John-Ross (Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding) and 
decisions can be challenged.  

Rachel Dickinson (Executive Director – People) has communicated twice by letter with 
neighbouring Local Authorities advising them of local pressures to try to reduce 
numbers coming into Barnsley.

Page 47



6

The Chair thanked Jon for his clear report and asked for any feedback :
 Lennie Sahota (Service Director – Adults Assessment & Care Management) 

confirmed that this pressure cannot be underestimated and although we can 
influence through discussion we cannot say no.

 Ben Finley stated that if a young person moves to another authority the original 
placing authority still have responsibility for them. 

 Scott Green confirmed that other authorities do not seem to share this 
responsibility and a paragraph has been added to Rachel Dickinson’s letter re 
the resultant pressure on SY Police.

 The Chair asked what the roles of Ofsted and the PCC were re the advancing 
role of LA and police resources.
ACTION:  This should be raised with the PCC.

Cllr Platts stated that a Members briefing was held re the number of children’s 
residential homes in Barnsley and that cheaper housing prices contributed to the high 
numbers of these.  It was also reported that one authority had taken a number of 
asylum seeking unaccompanied children and placed them with another authority.

7. Town Spirit
Phil Hollingsworth presented the report which was an update on BMBC’s intention to 
launch ‘Town Spirit’ and to seek partner’s support and buy-in to the approach.

He confirmed that the Council has looked at other towns where an overarching brand 
has been introduced successfully to help people understand what is happening. Need 
to get people involved to take Barnsley forward.  Soft launch process at the moment 
and talking to people about the concept.  Asking for the Board’s support – think about 
how you can get involved and work with BMBC to launch this.  Like to do sound bites 
with leaders etc.  Launch date is planned for October.  

ACTION :  Everyone to circulate the document to their teams for information

8. Safer Roads Partnership
Scott Green stated that as SBP is not a local authority meeting it is not fair to have this 
paper here today as there are issues that need dealing with outside this forum.  He 
recommended therefore that the item should be stood down as further discussion was 
needed.  

9. Performance & Delivery Exception Report
Phil Hollingsworth reported that changes to the recording system will affect the ability 
to monitor.

Crime – The last meeting did not take place due to a change in personnel and Paul 
Murphy has now taken over as Lead for the group following the departure of Delphine 
Waring.  Performance indicators will therefore be reviewed and updated for the next 
quarter to better reflect measurable outcomes.

PVP – Numbers of referrals are expected to increase within the next quarter and 
numbers of repeat MARACs have reduced by 50% over a 3 month period. 

ASB – There are negative perceptions re social media and injunctions continue to be 
sought re use of Spice in the town centre.  There have been a number of convictions re 
environmental crime and work continues.

Page 48



7

CTR - A new Hate Crime Co-ordinator was appointed in early June and she is now 
established in her role.  Discussion has taken place with Ben Finley around the YOT 
interface and Ben has agreed to provide a quarterly update into PADG.

Comments/Feedback:

 Cllr Lamb reported that SY Fire & Rescue are now engaged in Safe & Well 
activities especially where there are vulnerable people. 

 Linda Mayhew (SY Criminal Justice Board) had a query re ASB showing figures  
from a police perspective and seeing a reduction but when feedback is from  
communities this does not necessarily accord.  Are the reports in Barnsley 
picking up these issues and experiencing a similar thing? Important to know 
what the real picture is – need to speak to people in the community. Localised 
data from Area Councils etc.
ACTION: Phil Hollingsworth to clarify this   

 Lennie Sahota took objection to the comment that Adults are attending MARAC 
but not helping.  If there are issues these need to be escalated to him, he 
should not have to read this in a report. 

 Scott Green reported that SMART CONTACT has been purchased re reporting 
incidents. CONNECT manages custody, investigations and case building.  
Things are improving and this system will be shared by 4 local authorities and 
SY Police and launched before 1 April 2019.  South Yorkshire is the only 
county to be using this system.

 P5 table 4 – Domestic incidents figures are inaccurate – 
ACTION: Scott Green to clarify with Harriet Hirst.

 Following re-organisation and a request from the public, regional phone 
numbers are being recreated for SY Police.

10. Forward Plan
Items identified for November meeting :

 CSE/Safeguarding Update - Paul Murphy (SY Police)
 Update on Re-offending Figures – Amanda Cullen (SY CRC)
 Violent Crime Update – Paul Murphy
 Public Meeting – Option Appraisal – Shiv Bhurtun
 YOT Update – Ben Finley

11.  Any Other Business
 Early Intervention Youth Fund : The document was circulated late.  The 2 year 

Fund will provide support for early intervention programmes with young people 
(under 18) at risk of criminal involvement, as victims and/or perpetrators.  Phil 
Hollingsworth will attend a meeting next week and asked whether there was 
any particular steer from the Board. 
- Scott Green asked whether some work could be done through SNS around   

criminal exploitation. 
- Ben Finley suggested work around the emerging challenge of criminal gangs 

coming into Barnsley. 
- There would be an element of match funding – how much?? 

Page 49



8

Ben & Phil to discuss details before the meeting next week.

 Web-link to SBP and SCP Annual Plans : insert weblinks

 Web-link to State of Borough Annual JSIA survey : insert link ask Shiv
ACTION: Board members to circulate to their organisations and contacts 
re feedback.

 Probation changes – Amanda Cullen confirmed that CRC contracts are being 
cancelled and a document is out for consultation.  There are risks with moving 
to a Yorkshire & Humberside model and dangers for SBP in sharing 
information. Consultation closes on 21 Sept.
ACTION:  Document to be circulated to the Board

 NRJ national female offender strategy – A county-wide bid is being pulled 
together in terms of deferred prosecutions for female offenders and bids are 
being submitted re domestic abuse and women coming out of custody.    
Information will be circulated in due course.

12. Date, Time and Venue of Next Meeting

Monday, 12 November 2018
10.00am – 12.00noon
Town Hall, MR11

Page 50



1

MINUTES OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING PROVIDER FORUM
13 JUNE 2018

Present:
Sean Rayner (Chair) - SWYPFT
Mark Goodhead - Barnsley Premier Leisure
Hayley Broadhead - Centrepoint
Phil Parkes - SYHA
Stephen Gallagher - Barnsley Futures
Julie Ferry - Barnsley Hospice
Jan Walker - Barnsley Hospice
Andrew Peace - Caremark
Sam Goulding - IDAS
Jane Holliday - Age UK

Item 1 – Apologies
Apologies were received from Helen Jaggar, Berneslai Homes, Jo 
Clark, CAB, Tyler Moore, Centrepoint

ACTION

Item 2 – Minutes of the previous meeting 7 March 2018
Agreed as an accurate record.
Item 2.1 – Matters arising
Item 3 - Dementia discussion – MH reported that BPL has registered 
with the Dementia Friends website and has established to enable staff 
to access available resources 
Item 4 – Health and Wellbeing Board Update 30/1/18 – Safe and Well 
Checks – SR provided an update on behalf of HJ.  The roll out of the 
checks has not yet taken place due to the Information Sharing 
Agreement (ISA) awaiting sign off by a number of partners (Berneslai 
Homes has signed off).   It is still unclear when this will be completed.  
HJ to provide a further update when this has progressed.  HJ
Item 3 – Health and Wellbeing Board Update
SR reported on the items discussed at the meeting held on 5/6/18.
 The Board received the following minutes for information/comment:

₋ Safer Barnsley Partnership held 28/2/18
₋ Health and Wellbeing Provider Forum held 7/3/18
₋ Stronger Communities Partnership held 19/2/18

 Local Health and Care Records Exemplar – the meeting received a 
report on proposals for a Yorkshire and Humber Health and Care 
Record Exemplar site bid and agreement was given in principle to 
BMBC supporting this.

 Health Protection – a presentation and report was received on the 
health protection work being undertaken in Barnsley and the role of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board in relation to this.  A specific 
question was raised by Members in relation to fast food outlets and 
how the proposed checks of food businesses’ procedures would be 
monitored. It was agreed that the Health and Wellbeing Board 
would receive minutes of future meetings of the Health Protection 
Board.

 Access to Primary Care – a report and presentation was received 
giving an overview of arrangements for access to primary medical 

Page 51

HWB.02.10.2018/5



2

care in Barnsley.  The difficulty in accessing  GP practices was 
noted and although this is improving proposals to develop the 
extended access arrangements were welcomed. SR commented 
that the forum may find of particular interest CCG’s detailed audit 
information on access arrangements, patient times and feedback 
which is available to view on BMBC’s website. 

Item 4 – Stronger Communities Partnership update 
PP reported that the meetings held in February and May had focussed 
on the All Age Early Help Annual  Plan 18/19 which the forum had 
received in draft together with the Stronger Communities Services 
2017/18 Qtr 4 Narrative Report.  Key points from the documents were 
highlighted and discussed. 

Progress made during 2017/18 by each of the 3 delivery groups was 
noted.

The priority areas for 2018/19 (which still require further work) were 
highlighted and provider’s attention was drawn to how their work could 
link into these. Progress against the priorities will be reported to the 
Boards’ Performance and Delivery Group. The Health and Wellbeing 
Providers Forum linkage into the SCP and 3 delivery groups was 
referenced and PP stated that providers were welcome to join any of 
the delivery groups and could contact him P.Parkes@syha.co.uk if 
interested.  

Attention was drawn to the example case studies within the Qtr 4 
narrative report which highlighted the work that had taken place in 
each of the Area Councils.  PP commented that this indicated that 
there were clear issues around Welfare Reform leading to poverty. 
 
The forum highlighted some of the funding successes that had been 
achieved through Area Councils which were not reflected in the report 
and asked how these could be included.  PP requested that any 
comments be made directly to him so that these could be fed back. 
The forum raised the need to specifically deal with the needs of older 
people and an ageing population.  It was felt this would be a significant 
issue arising in the future and sensed this was not being adequately 
addressed in Barnsley.  Previously this issue had been addressed by a 
separate strategy which was no longer in place.  The need to ensure 
no duplication of services across the district was also raised.  PP 
requested that comments be sent to him directly so these could be fed 
back to the SCP. 
Item 5 – Be Well Barnsley
Jayne Hellowell, BMBC attended to provide an up to date position on 
the Be Well Barnsley service.  The forum noted that the current 
contract ends on 31/10/18 with the new arrangements coming into 
effect approximately 1/11/18.  Be Well Barnsley will cease receiving 
referrals on 13/7/18.  Activity groups within communities will continue 
to operate until 31/10.   Work is currently taking place on obtaining 
ideas from communities for consideration together with continuation of 

Page 52

mailto:P.Parkes@syha.co.uk


3

some existing initiatives and how these can continue in the long term 

A Commissioning Intentions Paper is being produced which will detail 
how it is intended to spend available grants.  JH asked providers to 
forward any suggestions/ideas they may wish to put forward in relation 
to this to the contact details below. 

Janehellowell@barnsley.gov.uk.  
Cathbedford@barnsley.gov.uk
SamuelCrowson@barnsley.gov.uk

All

Item 6 – Accountable Care Partnership – Jeremy Budd, Director of 
Accountable Care, CCG
The forum received a presentation from Jeremy Budd which set out 
the scope, approach and vision for the development of an Accountable 
Care Partnership in Barnsley together with progress to date.

The collaborative work that has taken place in order to work towards 
integrated health and care in Barnsley was outlined and the 3 initial 
priority areas the partnership will work on were noted as 
cardiovascular disease, frailty and neighbourhoods.

Work is currently taking place on the outcomes framework which will 
define the scope and ambition of the Partnership and partner 
organisations are currently being consulted on this.  How integration 
will be achieved will be determined over the coming weeks.  In autumn 
2018 the CCG will be able to provide a final ambition statement. 

The forum raised the need for further collaborative working both at 
strategic and operational levels.  In respect of operational working the 
forum felt focus should be on collaboration rather than competitiveness 
of services however the legal obligation in respect of this was 
highlighted by JB and acknowledged.  The need for Barnsley to have 
consistency amongst the various models that are launched together 
with the need to achieve change through collaborative working with 
existing service providers was also highlighted by the forum. 

Reference was made to the Barnsley Health and Care Together: 
neighbourhood development visioning workshop to be held on the 20th 
July in the Dearne area.  This will explore ideas to develop at a 
neighbourhood level a new model of working between various 
organisations and it was felt this would test the concept of integrated 
working.   2 places had been made available for forum members who 
work specifically in the Dearne area to attend.   Relevant providers to 
consider.
Item 7 – Future Agenda Items
12th September, 2018
Universal Credit – Joanne Dearnely, DWP   
Increasing levels of physical activity – Adam Norris &               

Page 53

mailto:Janehellowell@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:Cathbedford@barnsley.gov.uk
mailto:SamuelCrowson@barnsley.gov.uk


4

                                                            Julie Tolhurst, BMBC                                                                   

Item 8 – Date of next meeting  - 12th September, 10.00 – 12.00
Future date – 12th December
Item 8.1 Any Other Business
1. Barnsley Hospice - JH, CEO, Barnsley Hospice outlined the 
services and health and wellbeing work currently being undertaken. 
The areas the Hospice are looking to develop in the future in addition 
to palliative care were outlined together with the links being made with 
organisations to ensure no duplication of service across the district.  
An invitation was extended to any members of the forum to visit the 
Hospice to explore any opportunities for linkages with work providers 
are undertaking in the area. Providers to contact jan.walker@barnsley-
hospice.org if interested.  JH said that the Hospice would welcome 
being represented on any relevant working groups.

SG highlighted a marketing opportunity available to promote the 
Hospice during Safeguarding Week at various events commencing 9th 
July.  PP to forward e mail of programme of events taking place. 

2. Caremark - AP outlined the services provided by Caremark for 
information.   AP also drew attention to concern made by the Director 
of Social Care within a recently published report which highlighted the 
decrease in the number of people in receipt of social care and the 
need for them to fund their own care in the future.  Reference was 
made to the comment that potentially 78% of social care providers 
were at risk of not being sustainable in the future and leaving the 
sector.  It was felt this highlighted the need for a strategy to address 
the future needs of an ageing population.  The Government’s paper to 
be published summer 2018 which will set out plans on how the 
Government proposes to tackle this issue and the challenges faced  
was referenced and felt would be of particular interest.

1.  3.Age Concern – JH outlined the services and information/advice 
services offered by Age UK in Barnsley for information.  

PP

Page 54

mailto:jan.walker@barnsley-hospice.org
mailto:jan.walker@barnsley-hospice.org


MINUTES OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING PROVIDER FORUM

12TH SEPTEMBER, 2018

Present

Helen Jaggar - Berneslai Homes
Joe Hall - SYHA
Gill Stansfield - SWYFT
Mark Goodhead - BPL
Andrew Peace - CAREMARK
Emily Todd - Human Kind
Jo Clarke - Citizens Advice
Richard Walker - TLC Homcare
Hayley Brotherton - Centrepoint
Joanne Dearnley - DWP (for Item 5 only)
Anna Tummon & - Public Health BMBC (for Item 6 & 7
Adam Norris     

ACTION

Item 1 – Apologies
Apologies were received  from Ben Brewis – Barnsley Hospital, Jane 
Holliday – Age UK, Phil Parkes – SYHA , Chris Lennon – SWYFT, 
Anne Simmons – Alzheimer’s Society, Stephen Gallagher – Barnsley 
Futures.

Item 2 – Minutes of previous meeting held 13th June

The minutes were agreed as an accurate record

Item 2 a – Matters Arising

Item 2.1 Matters Arising  Item (4) Safe and Well Checks
HJ advised she was uncertain whether  the safe and well checks have 
yet commenced.  However, it was felt that South Yorkshire Fire and 
Rescue Service have been out to the area teams and liaised with 
partners on the referral process.  HJ stressed the importance of 
providers being aware  of this service and utilising where possible, 
especially from a CAB view point.   When the scheme is operational 
information will be shared.   Action point to remain on agenda.
 

HJ
JT

Item 3 – Health and Well Being Board Update
HJ provided the meeting with an update.  She advised there had not 
been a meeting of this group since the last Provider Forum in June and 
that the Board is going through a period of review.   As a Statutory 
Board, the Board oversees all partnerships and the workings of all 
health, adult social care, hospital, CCG Commissioning to ensure the 

Page 55



delivery of the Barnsley Placed Based Plan.  This sets out the priorities 
for health for the hospital and the CCG  which is around cardio 
vascular disease, frailty, trips and falls, neighbourhood work , together 
with the Public Health work priorities around obesity, smoking and 
physical activity. 
The Health and Well Being Board is supported by an Executive Officer 
Group, namely the Senior Strategic Development Group (SSDG).  
Debate is not always taking place at Board level, this tends to happen 
at SSDG and Board has become the mechanism for reports to be 
received and signed off.  Following discussions, consultants have been 
appointed to look at the shape of the governance structure.  One 
option being considered is to bring the Board and Officer Group to one 
single group as there are lots of duplication and many attendees sit on 
both groups, with the exception of the Councillors.  The Board has 
been running for 3 years and is ready for a substantial change.  HJ 
feels next time the Forum meets more information will be available on 
what is planned.  

HJ

Item 4 – Stronger Communities Partnership Update

HJ referred to the minutes  PP had circulated previously to the group.  
She referred to the key areas she thought the meeting would find to be 
particularly useful, one of which was the Borough Profile item.  The 
group felt discussion on neighbourhood work would be beneficial at a 
future meeting, particularly in relation to the Community Health 
Strategy and the Primary Voluntary sector with regard to integrated 
working which could be co-terminus, co-located, common pathways 
etc. GS advised she is part of the Leadership Team for the Dearne and  
referred to a workshop that had taken place in the Dearne in July on a 
pilot approach which focussed on 3 key areas – frailty, CBD and 
neighbourhood development.  She also advised that discussions had 
taken place at the last Leadership meeting on cardio vascular disease, 
of which there is a high level of fatalism over the life expectancy in the 
community.  Therefore improvement on engagement is required.  
Services are available but people are not presenting themselves early 
enough.  ET referred to a substance misuse group that Human Kind 
operates in the Dearne, which she feels has some gaps and felt it 
would be useful if an appropriate officer attended a future meeting of 
the Forum.   It was also established that not all providers are aware of 
events taking place and advice needs to be sought on how providers 
are informed/involved.  It was noted that some information comes from 
the Ward Alliance.  They are part of the governance structure of the 
Council working at a locality level.  They identify locality priorities and 
feed into Area Councils.  HJ to liaise with Phil Hollingsworth with the 
potential for him to attend the December Forum., to brief on 
neighbourhood development work. 

The group felt the minutes had been useful and requested these 
continue to be circulated.  HJ confirmed they would be attached to 
future agendas.

HJ

JT

Page 56



Item 5 – Universal Credit (Joanne Dearnley DWP)

HJ updated JD on the purpose/remit of the meeting.

Providers had highlighted issues they were aware of which were 
impacting on people due to the roll out of UC which had resulted in 
inviting JD to present information.  The presentation slides will not be 
circulated due to the continuous changes that are made to the scheme 
by DWP.

JD provided detailed Information on the support available for 
claimants. The  DWP provide funding for all LA’s to provide digital 
support and this is working well in Barnsley.  Digital Champions are 
available every day.  Howeve, if more extensive support is required an 
‘agent by proxy’ service can be put in place.  BMBC also provides 
budget support which CAB are involved in. The service is provided by 
the Welfare Reform Team and assists those on UC with all aspects of 
budgeting.  This has not received as much take up as expected, with 
only 50/60 referrals per month.  The meeting noted that individuals can 
refer themselves and is open to everyone.  The alternative payment 
arrangement was also outlined which landlords can apply for if tenants 
are 2 months behind with their rent, this allows them to be paid direct.    

HJ highlighted the significant impact UC has had on Berneslai Homes.  
Q1 data shows that 1500 tenants are in receipt of UC, of these 1200 
are in arrears.  The value of arrears amounts to £580K, with the 
average debt of £500 per person.  Where alternative payment 
arrangements are in place they are working well.  The overall rent 
collection rate is normally 98%, but the rate for UC claimants is 91%.  
Concern is that when UC is fully live 65% of Council tenants will be in 
receipt of UC.  

JD referred the meeting to the gov.uk website which has some very 
useful information

Item 6 – Public Health Strategy – (Anna Tummon)

AT presented an overview of the refreshed Public Health Strategy.  
More detailed information on specifics i.e. Food Plan, Alcohol Plan, 
Emotional and Resilience Plan will be discussed in more detail at 
future meetings.  HJ asked the members to think about particular 
requirements in advance. 

All

Page 57



Item 7 – Increasing Levels of Physical Activity (Adam Norris)

AN presented detailed information on the impact of physical activity on 
health, preventing harmful behaviours and improving and saving 
people’s lives.  He outlined some of the achievements and plans for 
future schemes.    HB (Centre Point) feel they would be interested in 
being involved in some of the projects and would welcome further 
discussion.  Separate meeting to be arranged. HB/AN

Item 8 – Future Agenda Items

HJ reminded the meeting of the items for the next meeting in 
December:-

1. Prevention of falls, frail and the elderly – Emma White (BMBC)
2. Food Plan – Anna Tummon (BMBC)
3. Barnsley Penpals – Graham Harris (BMBC)
4. Neighbourhood Development Work – HJ to liaise with Phil 

Hollingsworth (BMBC)

Human Kind Services to be added to Forward Plan for the June 2019 
meeting – (Sam Higgins presenting)

HJ

Date of next Meeting – 12th December, 2018

2019 Meeting Dates – for Information

13th March 2019 
12th June  2019
11th September 2019
11th December 2019

All at 10 a.m. in the Board Room, Gateway Plaza, Level 10

Page 58



1

Stronger Communities Partnership Board
21 May 2018 :  14.00 – 16.30

Gateway Plaza, L4 Boardroom

Minutes
Attendees

Cllr Chris Lamb, Elected Member – BMBC (Chair)
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director, Communities – BMBC
Phil Hollingsworth, Communities Service Director – BMBC
Lennie Sahota, Social Care and Health (Adults) – BMBC
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Member Communities – BMBC
Marie Hoyle, CEO, Barnsley Healthcare Federation
Dave Fullen, Berneslai Homes
Sean Rayner, SWYPT
Phil Parkes – H&WBB Provider Forum
Steve Fletcher – South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue
Carrie Abbot – Public Health Service Director – BMBC
Tom Smith – Head of Employment and Skills - BMBC
Shiv Bhurtun – Partnership and Transformation Manager

Apologies

Margaret Libreri – Service Director, Education & Early Start Prevention - BMBC

1. Welcome, Introductions and Apologies
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies were received and noted from the above member.

1a Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

1b Minutes of last meeting/Action Log
Apologies to be recorded for Marie Hoyle for the last meeting.  MH will be 
attending future meetings in her role as CEO of the Barnsley Healthcare 
Federation and no longer represents the Practice Managers’ Forum.
 
There were no further matters arising and minutes agreed as a true copy.

Page 59

HWB.02.10.2018/6



2

2. All Age Early Help Strategy Annual Plan 2018/19

Shiv Bhurtun (SB) introduced and presented the draft ‘All Age Early Help 
Annual plan for 2018/19’. SB highlighted that this will be produced by the Board 
on a yearly basis. Its main purpose will be to :

 Share the range of activities being delivered against strategy 
 Re affirm the Board’s commitment to its strategic vision through action.
 Provide an opportunity to celebrate progress and impact pertinent to early 

intervention and prevention work.
 Inform key stakeholders on overall performance.
 Inform board on evolving performance management structures to support 

meeting objectives. 

SB updated board members on the new performance management framework 
which will focus on supporting the 3 delivery groups through validating 
performance collaboratively. Note: The Performance & Delivery group is 
chaired by Service Director Phil Hollingsworth. 

SB provided a brief of the annual plan 2018-19. Key points were :

 The plan confirms the strategic focus for the year ahead and provides 
summary progress against key areas/commitments agreed in the last 
period.

 Case studies are included to evidence actual impacts of actions.
 Area of focus for the next period in the plan is informed by emerging 

priorities, better understanding the distance travelled to date as well as 
various key intelligence and performance information. 

 The plan has been designed with the public in mind. It is user friendly in 
terms of readability and clarity. This will be enhanced further through the 
Communication team and design before publishing. 

 Next year’s annual plan is expected to be more focussed on articulating the 
impact on the community and measurable performance.  

 SB recommended that the Board endorse and agree the content of the 
Stronger Communities Annual plan 2018-19 today with a view to 
progressing towards finalising the design and production.

The Chair invited comments from members and the following were noted and 
agreed in respect of the plan :  

1. Branding of the plan: This will be the Partnership’s shared branding i.e 
‘Stronger Communities Partnership’ only.  

2. Future review of Performance by the Board: This will focus on 
arrangements as set out by each delivery group in section 5 of the annual 
plan. 

3. Safe and Well Checks: SF gave a background to the Safe and Well 
Checks.  Programme is focus on preventative work. The checks were 
initiated in 2012 and involve visiting homes across the Borough to carry out 

Page 60



3

assessments in respect of risk of fires, smoke alarms and wider risks. The 
programme has expanded in scope, is nationally recognised and has been 
rebranded as ‘Safe and Well’.  The target group are vulnerable people and 
the scope  now includes fire safety, crime survey questionnaire, mental 
health issues, obesity and fitness, smoking and advice on smoking 
cessation services.  Visiting staff use tablet devices for data capture which is 
then uploaded and sent to relevant services for action.  

An area specific soft launch is scheduled in May 2018.  Police and Safer 
Neighbourhood services are working together on this.  SNS are also 
working in a similar way. SF indicated that adopting a joint approach would 
be even more beneficial.  

Action: It was agreed that SF will:
a) provide a presentation on the ‘Safe and Well’ checks to a future 

Board meeting following the launch.
b) capture and evidence the impact of the activities 
c) prepare a presentation to share the overall impact to the Board

4. Maximising opportunity through the Libraries:    WL stressed the 
importance of closer interface with partners and links on emerging work. 
There is a need to maximise universal assets across the Borough, eg 
explore possibilities through the libraries review and developments at the 
Light Box. 

5. Homelessness Reduction Act and statutory referral pathways: A 
question was asked about the Act and referral pathways from partnership 
organisations. It was acknowledged that this area was outside the scope of 
the annual plan and is being explored through a different channel.  There is 
a newly created ‘Homelessness Alliance’ involving different agencies and it 
is perhaps too broad of a subject to sit with this Board. It was suggested that 
the Housing and Energy Board would perhaps be best the line of 
accountability.  

6. Early Help Children: The Board was pleased to see a focus on parenting 
support.

7. Anti-poverty:   Cllr Platts informed the Board about the various lines of 
funding available in this respect and a number of applications have been 
made.  

8. Employment support:  It was suggested that this area is important and 
may need further development with its own heading in the report in the next 
plan.

9. Area Councils – optimising welfare and benefits: It was agreed that 
extending opportunities to attract funding across all areas is important. Cllr 
Platts has successfully achieved this with teams which are impacting 
positively on services.  Targeted employment support and addressing in 

Page 61



4

       work poverty is a focus. Coaching on form filling is taking place at the Job 
Centre and the Community shops are also assisting in encouraging people 
into work and further education.

10. It was agreed that for the next period Delivery Groups Leads need to be 
more specific in measuring progress and evidencing impact through their 
respective performance reporting.

11.Monitoring the delivery of our annual plan:  Cllr Lamb commented that 
monitoring delivery in the proposed way is helpful and this clarifies the 
connectivity between the 3 Partnerships Boards.  The Chair emphasised the 
importance of structured escalation of items to the appropriate Boards in a 
timely way and indeed to ensure shared escalation processes.

The Chair :
 thanked the priority leads for the work and input into the annual plan.  
 acknowledged the level of work behind the priorities.
 agreed this provides a stepping stone going forward in meeting our 

priorities.

Action:  It was agreed that :
 SB will progress finalising the plan with COMS and publication.  
 any further comments from members should be emailed to SB 

within the next week to help finalise the document.
  

3. Update on Activities within the Neighbourhood pertinent to broader 
Prevention agenda

The Quarter 4 narrative report provided examples of work taking place over the 
last 3 months. The Chair recommended that this report be shared with all 
partners to encourage further innovation. It was also noted with high level of 
positivity how well communities are rising up to the challenge.

Note: The document is formally reported to Council and is published on the 
Council website.  

4. Local Integration Board update

The LIB is being developed in order to assist in delivering the employment skills 
strategy encouraging employers and broader partners in helping people to 
become work ready.  Employment skill in Barnsley is positive, with NEET levels 
reducing and skills levels improving.  However, it was acknowledged that 
groups of people are still at risk of being left behind.  Some people are 
presenting with health problems, disabilities and other barriers to employment.  
LIB is working with SCR and others to look how more integration of health and 
work can be achieved.
 

Page 62



5

Last year saw new projects introduced within Barnsley via the Early Help 
delivery groups. It was noted that significant resources may be available (a 
share of several million pounds) in the near future to assist adults furthest away 
from the work market.  LIB would seek the SCP support in targeting this 
funding.  This was welcomed and supported.

It was commented that there should be also be reference to volunteering as a 
staged approach to employment. There is a plan to map out the customer 
journey and various interventions available appropriate to the needs of 
individuals. It was stressed that poor work experiences, as well as 
unemployment, can also have a negative impact on a person’s wellbeing.  
There is also an onus on employers regarding workplace health and wellbeing.  
Self-employment is also taken into consideration.  

Positive work with Job Centre Plus and DWP is ongoing, protecting benefits, 
etc, and moving people into work.

Neighbourhoods’ work – peer support and further development of this and 
sustaining work.

SYFS – Community Shops linking into poverty.  Work experience is highly 
regarded and it was agreed that this should be scaled up.  Suggestion to use 
the European Social Fund to achieve was made.  

5. 2 Year Old Progress Check

Lisa Bosson and Alison Addy delivered a presentation on 2 year old progress 
checks.   SB commented that it would be beneficial to ensure appropriate 
impact assessments are completed when changes to practice are considered to 
safeguard resources.   Note: The Powerpoint presentation was distributed with 
today’s agenda.

6. Performance Exception Report

PH updated as follows: 

The board has previously received a highlights report on performance. This 
process has been enhanced further by the introduction of:

 A new performance management framework 
 Production of exception reports focusing on outcomes and impacts 

The intention is that there will be a performance meeting each quarter, prior to 
the SCPB meeting. This will identify set performance measures trends and 
validate performance by exception which will be brought forward to each Board.  
Work will centre around anti-poverty, early help adults and early help children, 
looking at community solutions in line with strategic commitment.  

Page 63



6

7. Tolerance & Respect Equality Strategy

Jules Horsler presented the Equality strategy.

A review of the Equality scheme is underway which has been in place for last 9 
years.  It is intended to take a more dispersed approach and focus on corporate 
objectives working with all partners / boards in developing the strategy.

The objective is to achieve a greater equality across the borough. 

Community – It is important to for Barnsley’s diverse communities to be 
celebrated with a view to raise awareness widely. There is a focus on  
developing more diversity festivals, eg ‘Destination Barnsley’ which will take 
place on 15 July and the ‘Love where you Live’ initiative could be developed to 
include other diverse communities. There is a need to build stronger 
communities and removing barriers to volunteering by new arrivals.  Asylum 
seekers, for instance are not allowed to carry out voluntary work, but can 
volunteer. This can add to local assists as well as help integration.   

There is an ‘Actions and measures’ worksheet on the spreadsheet.  Barnsley 
Reach and partnership of several organisations support the equality forum.

A request was made for a 6-monthly update to be embedded into the SBP 
reporting framework.

Board members and the Chair acknowledged the importance of this strategy 
and also the need for appropriate reporting lines. It was acknowledged that 
SBP strategic objectives fully accommodate the aims of the equality strategy 
but that the delivery is a Council wide responsibility.   

8. Forward Plan 

Items for the next meeting:
 Barnsley Brand
 Town Spirit, 
 Neighbourhood Development work 

9. Any Other Business

It was suggested during the course of the meeting that, in future, subject matter 
be refined and kept as brief as possible as there were such a number of wide-
ranging matters to be discussed. The length of meetings to be reduced to 2 
hours in future.  

10. Date & Time of next meeting

Monday, 20 August 2018 :  14.00 – 16.00
Town Hall, MR1

Page 64



1

Stronger Communities Partnership Board
Monday, 20 August 2018 :  14:00 – 16:00

Town Hall MR1

Minutes
Attendees
Cllr Chris Lamb, BMBC Elected Member – BMBC (Chair)
Wendy Lowder, Executive Director Communities - BMBC
Phil Hollingsworth, Service Director Communities - BMBC
Chris Neal, Station Manager – South Yorks Fire & Rescue
Lennie Sahota, Services Director Adults - BMBC
Carrie Abbott, Service Director Public Health – BMBC
Dave Fullen – Berneslai Homes
Cllr Roya Poulari, Support Member Communities - BMBC
Lisa Phelan – Voluntary Action Barnsley 
Adrian England – Healthwatch
Shiv Bhurtun, Partnership & Transformation Manager - BMBC

Apologies
Cllr Jenny Platts, Cabinet Member Communities – BMBC
Margaret Libreri, Service Director Education & Early Start Prevention – BMBC
Gill Stansfield, Deputy District Director Community Services - SWYPFT
Sue Wing, Deputy District Director Community Services - SWYPFT
Paul Clifford, Head of Economic Generation – BMBC
Phil Parkes, SYHA on behalf of H&WBB Provider Forum
Tom Smith, Head of Employment & Skills – BMBC
Steve Fletcher, Group Manager Barnsley District – SY Fire & Rescue
John Marshall – Voluntary Action Barnsley

1. Apologies and Introductions
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and introductions were made.  
Apologies were received and noted from the above members.

It was noted that both Margaret Libreri’s deputies were on leave so no-one was 
available to attend on behalf of Children’s Services.

Cllr Poulari attended as a support Member in Cllr Platt’s absence but was 
asked to attend future meetings in her own right by the Chair.
ACTION:  Sharon Pitt to add her to membership/circulation list

Station Manager Chris Neal attended for Steve Fletcher, SY Fire & Rescue, he 
is Station Manager at Cudworth and involved in the Project Board. 

Page 65



2

It has been confirmed that Sean Rayner (SWYPFT) has been replaced by Sue 
Wing/Gill Stansfield (Deputy District Directors, Community Services) as the 
representatives for SWYPFT and work on a job share basis.  This change takes 
place with immediate effect following a change of Directors’ portfolios. 
Unfortunately neither are able to attend due to the short notice and work 
commitments.

Representation from Barnsley CCG has yet to be confirmed following Cath 
Bedford’s move to BMBC.  It was considered by those present that a 
representative from CCG was not required in the future.
ACTION:  Sharon Pitt to remove CCG from membership list

2. Minutes of last meeting/matters arising

Page 3 
5.  Homelessness Reduction Act – Wendy Lowder confirmed that the Strategy 
is out for consultation and is happy to share this. There is no clarification 
around the availability of any additional money as yet.

The Minutes were agreed as a true copy.

3. Town Spirit
Phil Hollingsworth gave a brief resumé of the Council’s intention to launch 
‘Town Spirit’ and to seek partners’ support and buy-in to the approach and 
confirmed that further details are available at 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/town-spirit/ .  

The Council is at the soft launch phase and seeking feedback re the 
brand/concept and this briefing is part of that process. Different town brands 
were considered from around the country which would inspire people to get 
involved.  The launch will take place in November when partners will be 
involved and get behind the campaign to raise people’s aspirations and get 
behind Barnsley.

Cllr Lamb thanked Phil for his contribution and stressed that engagement of the 
business community will be critical to its success and asked whether there was 
a separate strategy.  Phil confirmed that other colleagues are dealing with the 
business sector and a showcase event will be held to invite press, partners and 
businesses.  

Also need to include police, fire and rescue etc. in the future.  About collecting 
stories, video clips etc around prevention.  Chris Neal confirmed the Fire has 
information they have used to get people back into employment which will feed 
naturally into this initiative.  He also suggested contacting the Prince’s Trust.
ACTION:  Chris Neal to send contact details to Phil Hollingsworth re 
Prince’s Trust 

4. Our Borough Profile
The Chair welcomed Malachi Rangecroft to the meeting who gave a brief 
outline of the purpose of the report which was to provide an overview of a new 

Page 66

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/town-spirit/


3

profile for the Borough called Our Borough Profile.

The profile draws upon information that is publicly available from a variety of 
sources and brings it together into one place for the first time as a readily 
accessible reference document. Contact details are included if further 
information is needed.

The profile includes information re area and ward councils and in future will be 
more interactive and web based so it can be shared with partners. It will be 
available in other locations to make it more accessible to the public and will be 
publicised through Facebook and on the BMBC website.

Information re health, crime, school attendance etc will also be available and 
open to questions on future direction.

Cllr Lamb confirmed he had accessed the profile which did contain a lot of data 
amplifying the inequalities in the borough and urged everyone to access this. 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-
statistics/our-borough-profile/ .  

The Chair thanked Malachi and his team for the hard work undertaken and 
opened the meeting up for any comments: 

 Relevant statistics with good background information and would be a 
useful document in respect of the wards. 

 Priorities can be more easily identified and drilled down to help focus in 
moving forward.

 Would be good to have Leader and Chief Executive put their names to 
the document.

 Information will be helpful to voluntary groups.
 Interesting to see what the different wards are doing and what has made 

an impact.
 Age profiles are useful – could disability be added?
 The new system will be easily accessible but will bear in mind that 

people may still prefer a paper copy to be available.

Feedback/enquiries can be made by clicking on the relevant link on the profile.

5. Neighbourhood Development Work
Wendy Lowder outlined the Neighbourhood Development Proposal which will 
be a new model of working between community health, social care, primary 
care and the voluntary/community sectors concentrating on improving 
outcomes and managing systems around demand. 

The objectives of the proposal are :
 Distributed leadership is delivering improvements for all
 To deliver the right support, at the right time for the right reason
 Co-location and working intelligently
 An empowered, happy and productive workforce
 Empowering communities to have ownership and influence

Page 67

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/our-borough-profile/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/our-council/research-data-and-statistics/our-borough-profile/


4

The document was co-produced with GP’s, Barnsley Hospital, SWYPFT and 
BMBC re integrated locality working and the proposed location for the test bed 
is the Dearne.  An event was held at Priory Campus in June following which a 
more detailed plan was developed and shared with local leaders at a recent 
meeting. 

A Plan will be brought to SCP in due course, probably late Autumn, with 
governance of the work being held through the Integrated Care Delivery Group 
reporting into the Stronger Communities Partnership.

Cllr Lamb stated that with the Early Help agenda at the heart of this work, it will 
be interesting to see how this progresses alongside other aspects of primary 
care.

Cllr Pourali noted that complex important information will be gathered and 
confirmed that a development session was held recently for HWBB to take a 
stronger role in supporting integration with a second development session to be 
planned.  

Cllr Lamb asked whether issues re sharing of data with communities and 
healthcare had been resolved. Lennie Sahota confirmed there was more work 
to do in respect of differing systems which are unable to contact each other but 
there is a willingness amongst partners to solve this problem.  

6. Progress Report

Phil Hollingsworth reported on the highlights of the Progress Report for 
Quarter 1 2018/19 :

 Working on improving process management with the introduction of the 
Performance & Delivery Group to oversee the work of the 3 delivery 
groups – Early Help Adults, Early Help Children and Anti-Poverty.  

 The Report will highlight exceptions and be an opportunity for the Board 
to receive further information to include in their future plan

 A successful workshop was held on 13 July with partners re Winter 
Deaths.  The workshop gave participants an opportunity to be involved in 
planning at an early stage.  Key initiatives included uptake of flu 
vaccinations, improving cold homes, energy efficiency and reducing falls.

 Barnsley Carers Service has been launched and is run by an 
organisation called Making Space and will be an agenda item for the 
November meeting.
ACTION:  Barnsley Carers Service – Agenda item (Nov)

 Age Friendly Action Plan – following a successful workshop held last 
October a further event is being held this October to revisit and refresh 
the report.

 System wide review of assisted living will support vulnerable customers 
who need support on discharge from hospital from January 2019 and will 
be an agenda item for the November meeting.
AGENDA:  System Wide Review of Assisted Living – Agenda item 
(Nov)

Page 68



5

 The siting of Digital Champions in the job centre has helped Universal 
Credit claimants, with the annual target being delivered in the first 
quarter.

 Healthy Holidays Programme (formerly Holiday Hunger) has again been 
delivered to established community groups re summer holiday activities 
(including access to food and refreshments) for children, young people 
and families through 23 local venues in North, South, Central and 
Dearne Council Areas.
ACTION: Healthy Holidays work feedback report – Agenda item 
(Nov)

Cllr Pourali agreed that Healthy Holidays was a good theme as it encouraged 
volunteers from the communities to get involved.  Wendy Lowder also reported 
that the events held had been very successful which had been reflected on 
social media and the positive feedback received from young people.

The Food Access Group is going from strength to strength since the launch of 
Incredible Edible Barnsley who use green spaces to encourage growing 
schemes around the town and bring communities together.  Incredible spaces 
have sprung up already in Penistone and Goldthorpe and a Twitter page exists.

Discussions have also taken place re a fuel bank and consideration is being 
given to approaching Npower/British Gas.

7. Forward Plan

Additional items identified for November meeting : 

 Safe & Well Checks, Fire Service -  Chris Neale confirmed that the Data 
Team are finalising and starting Safe & Well Checks but would prefer to 
take this item forward to the February 2019 meeting which will allow for 
production of data and testing of the system.  Once the system is 
running an evaluation will be done to assess whether information is 
reaching the right people.  Specifically picked fire stations which are 
completely within the Barnsley Authority area so Dearne has not been 
included as this would be run from Rotherham.  The Safe & Well Checks 
model run in Doncaster has been mirrored for Barnsley but would like to 
test it before reporting back.
ACTION:  Item to be moved to February 2019 meeting

 Area Council Progress Report - Kate Faulkes - to be a standard item on 
a quarterly basis for information.

 Early Help for Children, Young People & Families Report – Laura 
Hammerton & Julie Hammerton

 Poverty Data concerns re limited/out of date local information Report – 
Liz Pitt

 Social Prescribing Report – CCG

Any further suggestions from members please email to
saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk 

Page 69

mailto:saferb-strongerc@barnsley.gov.uk


6

8.  Barnsley Brand & My Local Pantry
Gary Stott attended to give an update on the work of the Food Access Network 
and seek support for its vision and actions, affirming its strategic alignment with 
the vision and values of BMBC and the SCP Board.  Gary is Director of 
Community Shop, Director of Incredible Edible and Chair of a food access 
network and reports into the Anti-Poverty Delivery Group.

The Report talks about the work ethic over the last year in respect of food and 
food access and the mechanism chosen to engage from the borough wide food 
access network.  Members of the Steering Group have become ambassadors 
of the Feeding Barnsley Group and part of a national programme of Feed 
Britain and the report outlines the work done to date:

 Barnsley Food Access Vision – “Building a better Barnsley where 
everyone has the right to the food they need to thrive” – the vision moves 
away from the use of ‘poverty’ which creates a negative mindset and has 
been informed by academic research, best practice from UK regions and 
the aspirations of FAN and was ratified by them in May 2018.  Positive 
feedback was received from consultation with partners and staff who felt 
part of a partnership re community cohesion.

 Strategic Focus:  Food Ladder and healthier, happier, involved 
residents - The best response we have is investing in the food ladder 
which focusses on the delivery of food access promoting an upward 
resident journey of self-supported access to the food that they need to 
thrive.  Work is ongoing to explore various food option models.

 Delivery Plans 2018-20 – Andrea Hoyland reported that the Steering 
Group are exploring the feasibility of new models of food access such as 
the community pantry ‘My Local Pantry’.  Looked at the model but on the 
back burner at the moment due to funding availability. 

 Future developments - Continue to connect with activists to support 
citizens struggling to access food and the dialogue continues.  Barnsley 
has the most people on the Alexandra Rose voucher scheme and a 
number of integrated partners who talk together regularly.  Want to 
create an online portal to talk to each other more to develop 
methodology and develop a food charter so that anyone can access the 
food they want to at any time.

Chris Neal confirmed that the Fire Service is looking at growing spaces and the 
new fire station in Barnsley could include this.  About getting community 
involved. There is also space at Cudworth Fire Station.
ACTION:  Chris to escalate the suggestions re establishing growing 
spaces at Barnsley & Cudworth Fire Stations. 

The Chair thanked Gary for his update on the good work being undertaken and 
which aligns with the vision of BMBC.

Page 70



7

9. Any Other Business
 Dave Fullen reported on a Housing Green Paper which does affect 

security of tenure for council houses and would be useful for people to 
see as it will change the wider policy environment. 
ACTION: Dave Fullen to forward a summary paper covering the 
main points to circulate with minutes. 

 Bids going in for :
- Ministry of Justice re victims of DV – 2 bids to provide a women’s 

centre to provide accommodation. 
- Continuing dialogue with the lottery as Barnsley is under represented 

negotiating easier access to lottery funding. 
- Social Prescribing – on the forward plan - has seen great results and 

need to widen out referral pathways in.
- Early Intervention around violent crime bid in conjunction with 

Doncaster and Rotherham

 Crowd funding – a relaunch has been undertaken to obtain more support 
and match funding.  Could make it more workshop based – use Northern 
College/ look at story boarding.  
ACTION:  Information/Poster to be sent to Chris Neal (Fire Service) 

11. Date and time of Next Meeting

Monday, 26 November 2018
14:00 – 16:00
Town Hall MR2

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Shadow Integrated Care System 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

9 February 2018 

 
The Boardroom, NHS Sheffield CCG 

722 Prince of Wales Road, Sheffield, S9 4EU 

 

Decision Summary 
 

 
 

Minute 
reference 

Item  Action  

20/18 Communication and Engagement: 
 
Draft Communication Plan for ICS Launch 
 
Helen Stevens agreed to ensure the bullet points in the 
embargoed draft media release were accurate. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Helen Stevens 

21/18 Finance Update 
 
Jeremy Cook informed members that the paper required 
correction at: 
 

 Item 2.2 at the end of the paragraph surplus should 
read deficit.  

 Item 2.4 £3m should read £2m. 
 

 
 
Jeremy Cook 
 
 

22/18 Hospital Services Review Update 
 
Alexandra informed members that Annex A accompanying 
her Stage 1B report for the Hospital Services Review paper 
required amendment at paragraph 3,  the paragraph should 
be deleted and replaced by:  
 
‘The HASU proposals have received a letter before claim for 
judicial review.’ 
 

 
 
Alexandra 
Norrish 
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 73

HWB.02.10.2018/7



2 

 

 

 

 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Shadow Integrated Care System 

 

Collaborative Partnership Board 

 

Minutes of the meeting of 

 

9 February 2018 

 
The Boardroom, NHS Sheffield CCG 

722 Prince of Wales Road, Sheffield, S9 4EU 
 
 

Name Organisation Designation Present Apologies Deputy for 

Sir Andrew Cash 
 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

ACS Lead/Chair,  
Sheffield Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT, CEO 

 
   

Adrian Berry 
 

South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Deputy Chief Executive 
 

   

Adrian England Healthwatch Barnsley Chair 
 

  
 

Ainsley Macdonnell 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council  

Service Director 
 


Anthony 
May CEO 

Alison Knowles 
Locality Director North 
of England, 

NHS England   
 

  

Alan Davis  
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Director of Human 
Resources 

  
Adrian 
Berry 

Alexandra Norrish  
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Programme Director – 
Hospital Services 
Review  

(pt)   

Andrew Hilton  Sheffield GP Federation GP    
 
 

Anthony May 
Nottinghamshire County 
Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Ben Jackson 
Academic Unit of 
Primary Medical Care, 
Sheffield University 

Senior Clinical Teacher  
 

  

Catherine Burn 
Voluntary Action 
Representative 

Director    

Chris Edwards 
NHS Rotherham Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Chris Holt The Rotherham NHS FT 
Deputy Chief Executive 
& Director of Strategy 
and Transformation 

  
Louise 
Barnett 

Chris Welsh 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Independent Lead - 
Hospital Services 
Review 

   

Clare Morgan 
Sheffield Teaching 
Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Programme Director 
(Chief Executives 
Office) 

   

Cosima Pettinicchio Monitor Deloitte Director, Consulting   
 
 

Des Breen 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Medical Director 
 

  

Diana Terris 
Barnsley Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Page 74



3 

 

 

Greg Fell Sheffield City Council  Director of Public Health 
 

 
John 
Mothersole 
CEO 

Frances Cunning 
Yorkshire & the Humber 
PHE Centre 

Deputy Director – Health 
& Wellbeing  

   

David Purdue 
Doncaster& Bassetlaw 
Teaching Hospitals NHS 
FT 

Deputy Chief 
Executive/COO 

  
Richard 
Parker 

Helen Stevens 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Associate Director of 
Communications & 
Engagement 


 

  

Idris Griffiths 
NHS Bassetlaw Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Jackie Pederson 
NHS Doncaster Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Accountable Officer 
 

  

Jane Anthony 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Corporate Committee 
Administrator, Executive 
PA & Business Manager 

   

Janette Watkins 
Working Together 
Partnership Vanguard 

Director 
 

  

Janet Wheatley  
Voluntary Action 
Rotherham 

Chief Executive  


  

Jeremy Cook 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Interim Director of 
Finance 


 

  

John Mothersole 
 

Sheffield City Council 
 

Chief Executive 


 
 
 

John Somers  
Sheffield Children’s 
Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Executive 
 

   

Jo Miller 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive     

Julia Burrows Barnsley Council Director of Public Health 


 
  
 

Julia Newton NHS Sheffield CCG Director of Finance  
 
 

Kathryn Singh 
Rotherham, Doncaster 
and South Humber NHS 
FT 

Chief Executive     

Kevan Taylor 
Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS FT 

Chief Executive  
 

  

Lesley Smith 
CHAIR 

NHS Barnsley Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

SYB ACS System 
Reform Lead, Chief 
Officer, NHS Barnsley 
CCG 


 

  

Lisa Kell 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw ACS 

Director of 
Commissioning Reform 

   

Louise Barnett 
The Rotherham NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Lynne Richards NHS Barnsley CCG    
 
 

Maddy Ruff 
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group  

Accountable Officer  
 

  

Matthew Groom 
NHS England 
Specialised 
Commissioning 

Assistant Director   
 

  

Matthew Sandford 
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust 

Associate Director of 
Planning & 
Development 


 

Rod 
Barnes 

Mike Curtis 
Health Education 
England 

Local Director 
 

  
 
 

Page 75



4 

 

 

Neil Taylor 
Bassetlaw District 
Council  

Chief Executive 


 
 
  
 

Paul Moffat 
Doncaster Children’s 
Services Trust 

Director of Performance, 
Quality and Innovation  

 
 

Paul Smeeton 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS 
Foundation Trust  

Chief Operating 
Executive  

   

Richard Henderson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

Richard Jenkins 
Barnsley Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Chief Executive  
  

Richard Parker 
Doncaster and 
Bassetlaw Teaching 
Hospitals NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

  

Richard Stubbs 
The Yorkshire and 
Humber Academic 
Health Science Network  

Acting Chief Executive 


   

Rob Webster 
South West Yorkshire 
Partnership NHS FT 

Chief Executive 
 

   

Rod Barnes  
Yorkshire Ambulance 
Service NHS Trust  

Chief Executive  
 

 

Roger Watson 
East Midlands 
Ambulance Service 
NHS Trust 

Consultant Paramedic 
Operations 

 
 

Richard 
Henderson 

Rupert Suckling 
Doncaster Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Director of Public Health 


   

Ruth Hawkins  
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Chief Executive     

Sandra Crawford 
Nottinghamshire 
Healthcare NHS FT 

Associate Director of 
Transformation 
Local Partnerships 
Division 

  
Paul 
Smeeton 

Sharon Kemp 
Rotherham Metropolitan 
Borough Council 

Chief Executive  


   

Simon Morritt 
Chesterfield Royal 
Hospital 

Chief Executive  
  

Steve Shore Healthwatch Doncaster  Chair 
 


  
 

Tim Moorhead  
NHS Sheffield Clinical 
Commissioning Group 

Clinical Chair   
 
 

Victoria McGregor-
Riley 

NHS Bassetlaw CCG Director of Primary Care    

Will Cleary-Gray 
South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Shadow ICS 

Sustainability & 
Transformation Director 

 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 

Minute reference Item  Action  

14/18 Welcome and introductions  
 
The Chair welcomed members to the meeting. 
 

 

15/18 Apologies for absence 
 
The Chair noted the apologies for absence. 
 

 

Page 76



5 

 

 

16/18 Minutes of the previous meeting held 12thJanuary 2018 
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were agreed as a true 
record. 
 

 
 

17/18 Matters arising  
 
There were no matters arising. 

 
 
 
 

18/18 National Update  
 
CEO ACS Report 
 
The Chair gave the Chief Executive Officers report to the meeting 
on behalf of Sir Andrew Cash. 
 
This monthly report provides members with an update on: 
 

 The work on the Shadow ICS CEO over the last month. 

 A number of key priorities not covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 

 
The report gave a concise update to members regarding the: 
 

 Workshop on 2nd February 2018 with chief executives and 
accountable officers.   

 Meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 

 Update from the Local Maternity System board. 

 National ACS primary care leads 

 South Yorkshire, Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire Cancer 
Alliance. 

 Visit by Professor Don Berwick. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board noted the update. 
 

 
 
 
 

19/18 Shadow ICS Update 
 
The Chair welcomed Will Cleary-Gray and invited him to give his 
presentation summarising the actions and next steps from Chief 
Executives and Accountable Offices workshop held on 2nd 
February 2018. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray highlighted the following points: 

 The programme needs to refine the 39 priorities identified 
from workstreams and they will in turn give the Shadow 
ICS its transformational delivery plan. 

 Work towards the summary of key actions identified in the 
presentation is progressing, however, there are a number 
of items that require addressing regarding the control 
totals. 

  
Will Cleary-Gray informed members that the control planning 

 
 

Page 77



6 

 

 

guidance and control totals were released on 2nd February 2018.   
 
Will Cleary-Gray informed members that he has not prepared a 
comprehensive paper regarding the control totals for this meeting 
because more detailed work needs to be progressed on them. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray reported that there is a visit to SYB Shadow ICS 
from the Health Select Committee on 20th February 2018 and 
there will be an opportunity on the day to discuss the control totals 
along with representatives from the other Shadow ICSs. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray added that South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw have 
been asked to put forward a proposal on what South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw will require to enable them to work within 
the control totals. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray handed over to Jeremy Cook who continued the 
presentation.  Jeremy Cook provided a report on the following key 
points: 

 The planning guidance for 2018/19 

 Provider sustainability funds for 2016/17 and 2017/18 

 Provider sustainability funds for 2018/19 

 Integrated System working 

 Shared ICS control totals 
 
Jeremy Cook highlighted the potential risks involved to South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw in applying the planning guidance. 
 
Members discussed the planning guidance, control totals and 
raised their concerns regarding the changes and the effect this 
could have to the level of risk to their individual organisations. 
 
Members added that certain rules were applied to South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw STP in its development phase which the 
Collaborative Partnership Board signed up to.  The Collaborative 
Partnership Board did not sign up to this latest change.  The 
change regarding the control totals has been applied to us 
retrospectively and it will have implications to our funding for 
2017/1018. 
 
Members highlighted that they were unaware of the collective risk 
they had signed up to for 2017/18.  This effectively means that 
organisations exceeding their control totals would get their £ for £ 
bonus but trusts will only receive the additional bonus if the 
Shadow ICS exceeds the system control total.  
 
Members requested that a consistent message should be 
prepared regarding the risks involved and they could take this 
message to their respective boards i.e. the existing risks involved 
as a STP vis-à-vis the potential risks involved as an ICS. 
 
Alison Knowles acknowledged the change is being applied 
retrospectively to the Memorandum of Understanding.  However, 

Page 78



7 

 

 

we must be clear about the opportunity of any surplus and how 
many organisations would have been eligible, we must not 
overstate the risk involved, the risk to each organisation and then 
the risk to the system.  We should clearly state what funds are lost 
in 17/18 by being a Shadow ICS. 
 
Will Cleary-Gray added that officers will be working through the 
control totals and SYB and Manchester will be working together to 
lobby government on this issue.  
 
The Chair added that further work regarding the control totals will 
be progressed and a briefing will be prepared.  The Chair thanked 
everyone for their input.  
 

20/18 Communication and Engagement: 
 
Draft Communication Plan for ICS Launch 
 
Helen Stevens presented the draft communication plan for the 
ICS launch.  
 
Helen highlighted that after almost two years of development, 
Health and Care Working Together in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw could formally become an Integrated Care System on 
1st April 2018. 
 
Helen added that she would be happy to receive comments 
regarding the draft communications plan for the ICS launch.  The 
draft plan would now be held in abeyance. 
 
A comment was made that at Chief Executive/Accountable Officer 
level they understand what an ICS is, however at a lower level 
people think that an ICS is an intermediate care system.  Helen 
added that she would be more than happy to expand upon the 
explanation of an ICS in any media release. 
 
Helen Stevens agreed to ensure the bullet points in the 
embargoed draft media release were accurate. 
 
Helens Stevens responded to a comment about ensuring local 
authority members are informed of the Shadow ICSs work.  Helen 
added that an event is being arranged for MPs and local 
Councillors.   
 
The Chair added that Local Authorities also form part of the 
Collaborative Partnership Board and there is an onus on all 
members to ensure we are up to speed and we convey this 
message. 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board is asked to note and discuss 
the plan, to highlight any areas for further development. 
 
The Chair thanked Helen Stevens for her update at this meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Helen 
Stevens 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 79



8 

 

 

 

21/18 Finance Update 
 
Jeremy Cook, Interim Director of Finance SYB Shadow ICS, 
presented his finance report to the meeting.  The report informs 
members on a number of items e.g. Directors of Finance meetings 
and other general updates, financial reporting and risks. 
 
 
Jeremy Cook informed members that the paper required 
correction at: 
 

 Item 2.2 at the end of the paragraph surplus should read 
deficit.  

 Item 2.4 £3m should read £2m. 
 
The Chair thanked Jeremy Cook for his report and for presenting 
information to this meeting. 
 

 

 
 
 

22/18 Hospital Services Review Update 
 

The Chair welcomed Alexandra Norrish to the meeting. 
 
Alexandra Norrish updated the group on progress on the Hospital 
Services Review (a copy of her presentation will be circulated to 
members).  
 
Alexandra informed members that Annex A accompanying her 
Stage 1B report for the Hospital Services Review paper required 
amendment at paragraph 3,  the paragraph should be deleted and 
replaced by:  
 
‘The HASU proposals have received a letter before claim for 
judicial review.’ 
 
The Collaborative Partnership Board was in agreement with 
Alexandra Norrish’s proposal that the Hospital Services Review 
Steering Group should scrutinise the 1B Report and when 
satisfied regarding its content they should sign off the 1B Report 
for publication. 
 
Alexandra Norrish highlighted that the final version of the Hospital 
Services Review will be signed off on 26th April by the Oversight 
and Assurance Group.  The group will be signing off the process 
only as the report is to the CCGs and the system and not of the 
CCGs and the system.  Alexandra said that the aim is to circulate 
to draft report as widely as possible and to this end it will be 
discussed at a series of stakeholder governance group meetings 
for their comment.   Comments in writing will be received up to 
close of play on 26th April 2018 and there will be an evolving 
change log of comments received and actions taken that will be 
kept and shared with members to update them in a timely manner. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Alexandra 
Norrish 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 80



9 

 

 

The Chair thanked Alexandra Norrish her presentation and 
attendance at this meeting. 
 

23/18 To consider any other business 
 
The Chair responded to a comment regarding the HASU and 
confirmed that the HASU proposals have received a letter before 
claim for judicial review. 
 
There was no other business brought before the meeting. 
 

 
 

24/18 Planning Guidance – Full and Summary 
 
The Chair informed members that the planning guidance for 
Refreshing NHS Plans for 2018/19 published by from NHS 
England and Improvement has been circulated to members for 
their information. 
 

 

25/18 Date and Time of Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting will take place on 9th March 2018 at time and 
venue t.b.c. 
 

 

 

Page 81



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Barnsley Safeguarding Adults 
Board Annual Report 

2017 - 2018 

Page 83

HWB.02.10.2018/9



2 
 

Welcome to the annual report of the Barnsley 

Safeguarding Adults Board 

We decided that the 2017/2018 annual report would be shorter and easier to 

read. In addition there will be some videos to watch on our webpage: 

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding 

I am pleased to be able to tell you that the Board, and its member agencies, 

have continued to improve the ways we keep adults in Barnsley safe from 

harm and abuse. This report will tell you what the Board and its sub groups 

have been working on and lets you know what we have achieved. We have 

included a number of case studies to show how we have protected adults and 

how we will work to keep them safe in the future. 

We are very grateful to the adults who have volunteered to be part of the 

SAFE sub group (Safeguarding Adults Forum (by) Experience) supporting the 

work of the Board by telling us about issues that need some or all of the 

partners to work to address. The issues are based on their own experiences or 

the experiences of adults they support. 

From January to the end of March 2018; we received three requests for a 

Safeguarding Adult Review; we do these when an adult has died and they met 

the safeguarding adults’ threshold. .  The purpose of these reviews is to see if 

there are any lessons to be learned from how agencies supported the 

individual and how they worked together. In one case we have appointed an 

independent author to look at the sad death of a man who died in a house 

fire at his home address. The learning from all these cases will be shared on 

our website and included in training and newsletters. I am satisfied that the 

agencies that are represented on the board display a high level of 

commitment to keeping people safe. This was tested through a self-

assessment process and a challenge process, which all partners contributed 

to.  

Bob Dyson QPM,DL 

Page 84

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding


3 
 

 

What is abuse? 

Any action, deliberate or unintentional, or a failure to take 

action or provide care that results in harm to the adult (this is 

called neglect). There are many different types of abuse; more 

details about abuse can be found on the Safeguarding Web site 

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding 

The website tells you how you can tell us if you or someone 

you know if being harmed or abused. 

 

Who do we help keep safe? (Adult Safeguarding) 

All adults aged 18 and over who: 

1. Need  care and support, even if they 

are not getting care or support now 

(AND) 

2. They are  experiencing, or at risk of, 

abuse or neglect (AND) 

3. As a result of their care and support 

needs is unable to protect themselves 

from either the risk of abuse or the 

experience of abuse or neglect.      

Adults who are not able to speak up for themselves are 

particularly vulnerable and we all need to speak up to keep 

them safe.  

 

 Page 85

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding


4 
 

 

Case Study – many thanks to the family for their story 

Elsie had lived in a care home in Barnsley for two years, visited 

regularly by her family. The family reported that the carers were 

very kind but the management was not very effective and 

regularly lost items such as teeth, hearing aids and glasses which 

reduced Elsie’s ability to communicate with family, friends and 

staff. 

Sadly Elsie had to move to alternative care home at very short 

notice, which she and her family found very upsetting. However 

support from Adult Social Care (Social workers) gave them 

information and help to explore alternative care homes.  Her 

family expressed real concern about the lack of notice given by 

the owner and manager to find somewhere for Elsie to live that 

they thought she would like. 

Despite the hurried move and the worry caused to Elsie and her 

family, they report that Elsie is now very happy and she has 

blossomed partly due to getting new teeth, hearing aids and 

glasses. Active work to improve Elsie’s mobility is ongoing to 

reduce the reliance on a hoist, which Elsie finds very distressing. 

Elsie’s family say she is happy, has put on weight and has more 

social interaction with other adults who live in the care home, 

who always make the family members feel welcome when they 

visit. 

Page 86



5 
 

Safeguarding Data 
 

Who told us they were worried about an adult? 

 

 

Care homes are required to share all concerns, even if no harm has taken place – 
e.g. adults with dementia throwing things at each other, the number of reports 
has increased from 2016/17. 
 

The Structure of The Barnsley 
Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 
Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 
Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

Page 87



6 
 

 
 
The data above includes cases that did not meet the threshold for a safeguarding 
enquiry and /or were addressed by more appropriate organisations (e.g. Police 
or specialist domestic violence services). The numbers include a small number of 
multiple abuse cases. The significant growth in the number of self-neglect cases 
is mirrored regionally and nationally and requires a strong multi agency response 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88



7 
 

A section 42 enquiry (safeguarding enquiry) is started when an adult meets 
the three stage test (see page three) and they agree to a S42 enquiry or it is in 
their “best interests” as they are unable to make this decision for themselves 
 
 

 
 
This chart shows that Barnsley adults feel safer in 17/18 than they did in 
16/17 and that adults in Barnsley feel safer than adults in other areas.  

 

Page 89



8 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Our priorities to keep adults 
in Barnsley safe in 

2017 - 2018 
 
Put the adult who has been 
harmed or who is at risk of 
harm at the centre of 
everything we do. Listen to 
their views to find out what 
we can do to improve the 
safety of adults. 
 
Hold board members to 
account – are we/they doing 
enough to keep adults safe. 
 
Collect and share 
information about how well 
we are keeping adults safe 
and what more we could do. 
 
Make sure our workers and 
volunteers get the training 
they need to provide safe 
services and to share 
concerns if they think an 
adult is being hurt or abused. 
 
Review our policies and 
guidance to make sure we 
are constantly improving. 

What the Care Act says we 

have to do 

 

Share our plans showing 

what we want to achieve 

in the coming year. 

 

Publish an Annual Report – 

detailing what we have 

done to keep people safe 

and if we have done what 

we said we would do. 

 

Look at cases when adult 

dies or are seriously 

injured as a result of   

abuse or neglect and all 

agencies did not work 

together well (known as 

Safeguarding Adults 

Reviews). 

Page 90



9 
 

Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board 

Independent Chair: Bob Dyson 

 
 

Performance 
Management 
and Quality 
Assurance 
Sub Group 

 
Chair: 

Michael 
Potter 

 
 

SAR and DHR 
Sub 

Committee 
 
 
 

Chair: 
Bob Dyson 

 
 

Pathways 
and 

Partnership 
Sub Group 

 
 

Chair: 
Sarah 

MacGillivray 

 
 

Safeguarding 
Adults Forum 

by 
Experience 

 
 

Chair: 
Margaret 

Baker 

Page 91



10 
 

Safeguarding Adults Board Members 
Our Partners 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 92

http://www.syfire.gov.uk/


11 
 

Key Achievements 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Developed a New Self-Neglect 
and Hoarding policy; to help 
workers and volunteers to 
support adults who self-neglect 
and/or hoard. (The number of 
cases of self-neglect and 
hoarding, locally and regionally is 
increasing). 

 

Established a Safeguarding Customer Forum – SAFE (Safeguarding 
Adults Forum (by) Experience) to tell the Board about issues affecting 
adults who either live with disabilities or care for adults with 
disabilities. The group has produced a short video to tell you about the 
work of the group. – https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding 

Set up a NEW sub group to make sure that 
workers and volunteers are able to 
recognise and respond to abuse and help 
adults to stay safe. 

Set up an audit programme to make sure that the policies and 
education are working. As a result of these audits we have made 
changes to the concern form used by workers to tell us about an 

adult who is being harmed or is self-neglecting.  

Thanks to all of our partners who have worked with us to show the 
Board what all our partners are doing to prevent harm and abuse 

every day. Safeguarding is everyone’s business and ideally we need to 
prevent abuse by supporting adults to stay safe. 

Page 93

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/safeguarding


12 
 

Key Achievements 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

June 2018 

Agreed a People in Positions of Trust Policy to 
help stop workers and volunteers who take 
advantage of adults they work with; moving 
onto other jobs. Training has been provided 

for key people in our partner agencies. This is 
a requirement of the Care Act. 

Safeguarding Awareness Week 
A large number of events were held 
for both the public and workers/ 
volunteers, including sessions on the 
Herbert Protocol – to help the police 
get adults with dementia back home 
quickly and safely and recognising 
and stopping Mate crimes – 
“friends” who take advantage and 
hurt adults. 

Worked with our partners to agree a set of operational guidance, to 
help workers and volunteers to keep adults safe or to work with the 

adult and their families to stop harm and abuse.  

Page 94



 

1 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 

Annual Report 2017 - 2018 

Page 95

HWB.02.10.2018/10



 

2 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contents Page 
  
Chair’s Foreword 3 
Our Partners 4 
Our Plan on a Page and 
Our Strategic Priorities 

5 

Governance Structure 6 
Performance Audit and 
Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 

7 

Policy, Procedure and 
Workforce Practice and 
Development 

8 

Neglect Sub Group 9 
Serious Case Review Sub 
Committee 

10 

Child Death Overview 
Panel 

10 

Safeguarding Children 
with a Disability or 
Complex Health Need 

11 

Child Sexual Exploitation 
Strategy Group 

12 

Good News Stories! 13 
The Safeguarding 
Landscape 

14 

BSCB Budget 2017-18 15 

 

Barnsley Safeguarding Children 

Board is responsible for bringing 

local services together to plan and 

agree how best to keep children 

and young people in the area safe. 

 

The Board develops shared 

policies and plans to protect 

vulnerable children. Their role is to 

make sure all children are well 

cared for and able to reach their full 

potential. They also provide 

support and training for people who 

work with children and young 

people, to make sure that they are 

fully aware of their safeguarding 

responsibilities. 

Page 96



 

3 
 

Chair’s Foreword 

Welcome to the annual report of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board. 

We have made a conscious decision to have a much briefer annual report 

that is supplemented by a number of videos that are intended to make the 

report more accessible to a wider range of people. I hope that you find the 

changes to be appropriate. 

As the Independent Chair of the board, I am pleased to be able to report that 

the board, and its member agencies, have continued to make progress in its 

drive to enhance the safeguarding of children and young people here in 

Barnsley. 

The annual report gives details of the work of the board and its sub groups; 

this includes some of the achievements. We have included a number of case 

studies that are intended to help illustrate the work of agencies working with 

vulnerable children and young people. 

During the year, I am pleased to report, that we have not had cause to 

commission any Serious Case Reviews. Such reviews are commissioned 

when a child who is subject to abuse or neglect either dies or is seriously 

injured and there is concern that agencies may not have worked together 

effectively in keeping them safe. On April 3rd 2018 we did publish on the 

board web site the report from a Serious Case Review arising from the tragic 

death of a seven year old boy, who was the subject of a multi-agency child 

protection plan, in July 2015. That report, written by an independent author, 

found that the decision making of agencies had been appropriate given the 

information available to them at the time. The report did identify some 

opportunities for learning; all of those have been implemented. 

I am satisfied that the agencies that are represented on the board display a 

high level of commitment to keeping people safe. This was tested through a 

self-assessment process which in turn was subject to a challenge process. 

We recognise that schools have an important role to play in helping to keep 

our children and young people safe; we achieved a 100% return on the 

school self-assessment process that demonstrated that they are addressing 

their safeguarding responsibilities. 

Bob Dyson QPM, DL 

Page 97



 

4 
 

This is what we do 

The Role of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board is to: 
Ensure that safeguarding children and young people is at the centre of 
everything we do 
Hold board members to account – are we/they doing enough to keep 
children and young people safe? 
Collect and share information about how well we are keeping children and 
young people safe and what more we could do 

 
 

These are our Partners 

   

 
  

   

 
 

 

 

 

 

         

                                               

                                                 

Page 98

http://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=0ahUKEwiG49n_7aDTAhUFbxQKHd-NDHwQjRwIBw&url=http://www.oxspringplan.org.uk/about/&psig=AFQjCNGwzst-Em5t0t726wAp18TD2YlXqg&ust=1492153202791971
http://www.syfire.gov.uk/


 

5 
 

Produce a ‘Plan on a Page’ 
 

We have created a ‘Plan on a Page’ which sets out: 
The Statutory Responsibilities of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board  
The Role of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
The Structure of the Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 
It also outlines our Strategic Priorities 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What We Will Do: 
 

 

 

 

 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

Strategic Priority 1  
Sharing and Engaging 
The Board will continue to monitor service 
improvement through the Continuous Service 
Improvement Plan and a schedule of regular 
audit activity 
The Board will continue to seek the views of 
children and young people  
Safeguarding Awareness Week provides an 
opportunity for all of the partnership and 
community to come together with the 
message  
“Safeguarding is Everybody’s Business“ 

Strategic Priority 2 
Helping, Empowering and 
Supporting 
Ensure the availability of quality multi-
agency child protection training and the 
provision of quality safeguarding services 
Supporting children and young people to 
have a voice 
Help shape services and support best 
practice via the Designated Safeguarding 
Leads and other Forums 
Ensure accessibility of information via the 
website and other resources 

Strategic Priority 3 
Prevention 
The synergy obtained from strong 
partnership working remains an essential 
element of effective safeguarding. 
The continuing effectiveness of the work of 
the Board will continue to be subject to close 
scrutiny  
Ensure partners are kept up to date with 
emerging themes and key messages 
Support learning and development through 
Serious Case Reviews and Lessons Learned 

 

 

Strategic Priority 3 
Prevention 
The synergy obtained from strong 
partnership working remains an essential 
element of effective safeguarding. 
The continuing effectiveness of the work of 
the Board will continue to be subject to close 
scrutiny  
Ensure partners are kept up to date with 
emerging themes and key messages 
Support learning and development through 
Serious Case Reviews and Lessons Learned 

 

 

Strategic Priority 3 
Prevention 
The synergy obtained from strong partnership 
working remains an essential element of 
effective safeguarding. 
The continuing effectiveness of the work of 
the Board will continue to be subject to close 
scrutiny  
Ensure partners are kept up to date with 
emerging themes and key messages 
Support learning and development through 
Serious Case Reviews and Lessons Learned 

Strategic Priority 4 
Accountability 
Continue work to ensure that the 
thresholds are understood and correctly 
applied by partner agency staff and that 
effective use is made of the escalation 
process in cases where there are 
concerns about the decision making 
The Board will continue to strengthen and 
evidence its own effectiveness through 
rigorous challenge, participation and 
engagement 

Develop and deliver a sustainable Communication and Engagement Plan with the People of Barnsley 
Let people know how to get help or report harm 
Design and deliver effective training for all staff and volunteers 
Provide children and young people and their families who have been harmed with support and information 
Evaluate children and young people’s views of safeguarding and demonstrate if we have helped them to 
reduce risk 
Carry out SCR’s and Lessons Learned Reviews to improve the way we keep children safe 
Continue to provide Performance Information to the Board to assure the Board that we are working 
together to prevent harm 
Regularly challenge processes and performance at Board level to show all organisations are being held to 
account for the safety of children in Barnsley 
Identify any gaps for young people moving from children’s to adult services that may leave them at risk of 
harm 
Ensure synergy and a joint response to shared themes such as Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)/Honour 
Based Violence /Forced Marriage (FM) and Prevent  

Page 99



 

6 
 

Governance Structure of the Barnsley Safeguarding 
Children Board 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The main priorities of the Board as identified by the partners are 
the responsibility of seven sub groups who ensure that the work of 
the Board is carried forward.  Each of the sub groups has a work 
plan which focuses on a particular area of the Board’s priorities. 

  

Independent Chair 
Bob Dyson 

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board 

Performance Audit 
and Quality Assurance  

Sub Group 
 

Mel John-Ross 

Serious Case 
Review  

Sub Committee 
 

Bob Dyson 

Child Death 
Overview 

Panel 
 

Alicia Marcroft 

Disability 
Sub Group 

 
 

Debbie Mercer 

Neglect Sub 
Group 

 
Debbie Mercer 

Child Sexual Exploitation 
Strategy Group 

 
Jo Bates 

Policy, Procedures and 
Workforce Practice and 

Development 
Monica Green & Angela Fawcett 

 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

Page 100



 

7 
 

Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub Group 
Mel John Ross Service Director, Children’s Social Care & Safeguarding 

 

What We Do: 
 
 

What We Did 
 
 
 

 

 

 
In 2017 – 18 we undertook five Multi Agency Themed Audits and 
ongoing monitoring of Action Plans 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

What We Will Do: 
 

 

Responsible to the Board for overseeing the Quarterly Performance Management Report and 
the Quarterly Themed Audit Schedule 

On behalf of the Board we carry out regular checks of individual 
agency safeguarding practice. We also keep a very close eye on 
a number of key performance indicators.  We secure quality 
assurance through findings from single and multi-agency audits 

Co-ordinate single agency safeguarding Section 11 self-assessment audits and analysis, 
monitoring agency action plans by reviewing summary data and determining response in 
respect of non-compliance and  oversee the Section 175 and 157 audit process relating to 
schools and outcomes 

In February 2017 we carried out an audit of 
Children where a S.47 has been completed 
but has not progressed to an Initial Child 
Protection Case Conference.  This is to 
ensure all appropriate measures are being 
taken to make sure children are as safe as 
possible. 

In April 2017 we carried out an audit of 
‘Children who have been on a Child 
Protection Plan for Neglect’. We have a 
lot of children living in Barnsley suffering 
neglect and this audit was to ensure the 
more serious cases are receiving all the 
support they need. 

In September 2017 we carried out an audit 
of Children where there have been 
concerns about sexual abuse or harmful 
sexual behaviour.  This is to ensure that 
where children have suffered sexual 
abuse, appropriate plans are in place to 
help keep them safe and where children 
and young people are engaging in harmful 
sexual behaviour they are receiving 
appropriate advice and guidance to help to 
keep them safe 

In December 2017 we carried out an 
audit of Children on a Special 
Guardianship Order to ensure that the 
children and those looking after them are 
receiving all the help and support they 
need. 

In 2018 – 19 we will continue to carry out multi-agency audits to give the Board assurance that 

partners are doing everything they can to keep children and young people safe in Barnsley 

In July 2017 we carried out an audit of 
‘Return to Care Interviews’.  All children 
who ‘go missing from home’ are offered a 
‘Return to Care Interview’ 

Page 101



 

8 
 

Policy, Procedure and Workforce Practice and Development 
Monica Green, Head of Service, Safeguarding Unit and Quality Assurance and  
Angela Fawcett, Designated Nurse Safeguarding Children and Looked After Children 

 

What We Do: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

What We Did  
In 2017 – 18 the policies we reviewed and signed off included: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Multi-Agency Child Protection Training Delivered 2017-18 

 

 

 
What We Will Do:  
 

 
 

 

Anti-Bullying, Hate and 
Harassment Strategy 

and Action Plan 

123 Courses were delivered 

to 2293 delegates 

11 Different Virtual College Courses 

Delivered to 2916 delegates 

The PPWPD sub group oversees a range of areas of safeguarding practice and continues 
to benefit from the work across the People Directorate with Adults Safeguarding 
 

Make sure our workers and volunteers get the training they need to provide safe services 
and to share concerns if they think a child or young person is being hurt or abused 
 

Review our policies and guidance to make sure we are constantly improving.  This year 
we have checked and updated ten different policies, procedures and action plans to 
ensure they say what we need them to say and do what we need them to do, as well as 
keeping a check on all the National Safeguarding Policies that are updated on a special 
platform called Tri-X 
 

We are also constantly developing new policies and procedures for safeguarding and 
promoting the welfare of children in the Borough 

Bruising to Non-
Mobile Children 
Protocol, 
Guidance and 
Flowchart 

Revised 

Fabricated and 
Induced Illness  
Training, Policy and 

Flowchart 

Harmful Sexual 
Behaviour Policy 
for Children and 

Young People 

0 – 19 Guidelines for 
non-compliance 
where young children 
are not brought for 
important medical 

appointments 

Barnsley Child 
Death Notification 

Process Revised 

Private Fostering 
Awareness 
Raising 

Campaign 

Children Missing 
Education Guidance 
and Procedures for 
Early Years Settings, 

Schools and Academies 

In 2018 – 19 one thing we want to do more about is measuring the impact of training on 
workforce practice.  Does the training we deliver have a positive effect on the way people 
go about their day job and the way they inter-act with members of the public? 

Page 102



 

9 
 

Neglect Sub Group 
Debbie Mercer Head of Service, Children and Family Social Care 

 

What We Did: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                    

  
 
                                                                               

 
 
 

 
 
What We Will Do:                             

 

       

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

In 2017 we established a new sub group of the Safeguarding Board, 
specifically to try and help tackle Neglect.  We recognise that 
neglect is a serious problem in Barnsley and so we have worked 
together with the NSPCC to launch a new Neglect Strategy and 
developed documents with guidance to support professionals and 
families in recognising neglect and what they can do to help sort the 
problem out. 

We aim to reduce the impact and prevalence of 
neglect in Barnsley over time 
To raise everyone’s awareness about the signs, 
symptoms and impact of neglect for children and 
young people 0-18 years. 
To ensure that neglect is identified at an early 
stage and that it is responded to consistently, 
confidently and appropriately at the right 
threshold of need with a timely response 
To develop a strategy for referral pathways and 
management of neglect cases in Barnsley so 
that the impacts upon children and young people 
are minimised 
To develop consistent multi agency practice and 
approaches to neglect through training and 
development and report to the BSCB on 
progress against these objectives 

We have also produced 
documents to help people 
understand and recognise 
Neglect, including a guide for 
parents, young people and 
professionals called ‘Neglect 
Matters’ 

We will continue to work with partners, including the delivery of the Graded Care Profile 
training, to help them recognise neglect and support families in deciding how best to tackle 
neglect and improve outcomes for children, young people and families 

Page 103



 

10 
 

 

Serious Case Review Sub Committee 
Bob Dyson QPM, DL 
 

What We Do: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Child Death Overview Panel 
Alicia Marcroft  Head of Public Health (Children and Young People) 

Head of Service Public Health Nursing 
 

What We Do: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

What We Will Do: 
 
 
 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

Local Safeguarding Children Boards are required to commission an independent author to 
conduct a serious case review (SCR) in circumstances where abuse or neglect of a child is 
known or suspected and either the child has died or been seriously injured and there is 
cause for concern as to the way in which agencies worked together to safeguard the child. 
The SCR subcommittee is chaired by the independent chair of the Barnsley Safeguarding 
Children Board; it forms a panel to consider any case which may meet the criteria for an 
SCR to be commissioned. During the time covered by this annual report, there were no 
cases that needed to be considered. On 3 April 2018 the board published an SCR into the 
tragic death of a seven year old boy that occurred in 2015. The Independent Author did not 
find any fundamental failings by agencies but did identify six learning opportunities all of 
which have been addressed. That report, entitled Child R, is available to read on the 
Barnsley LSCB website. 

In the absence of any new cases in Barnsley, the subcommittee has considered SCR 
reports from other parts of the country to see if there are lessons that we can learn here in 
Barnsley. That has led to the board taking a greater interest in some subjects, an example 
being Special Guardianship Orders, to ensure that they are being effectively managed in 
Barnsley. 

It is the role of one of the sub groups of the Board to look at all deaths of children and young 
people in Barnsley, whatever the reason, to see if there is anything that we can learn from 

 them and anything that might help us avoid such deaths happening in the future.  This is the 
role of the Child Death Overview Panel. 

We will continue to work as a multi-agency partnership, to review all deaths of all children 
and young people in Barnsley and ensure that any lessons that can be learned are shared 
with colleagues in a timely way to make Barnsley as safe a place as possible. 

Page 104



 

11 
 

 

Safeguarding Children with a Disability or Complex Health 
Needs Sub Committee 
Debbie Mercer Head of Service, Children and Family Social Care 

 
What We Do: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
What We Will Do: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

One of the more vulnerable groups in society is those who either have a disability and/or 
complex health needs. The Board considers it very important that it continues to have 
oversight of this group of children and young people and that the needs of this vulnerable 
group are being met.   

 
The role of the Safeguarding Children with Disabilities or Complex Health Needs 
subcommittee is to make sure that partners are working together to ensure the support 
needed is available for this group of vulnerable children and young people and to work 
alongside colleagues and partners of the Adult Safeguarding Board to ensure appropriate 
arrangements are in place for when these young people transition into adulthood, 
particularly with regard to relevant training. 

We will continue to work alongside partners in both children’s and adult services to ensure 
colleagues are aware of their responsibilities towards this group of children and young 
people and that appropriate services are available 

Page 105



 

12 
 

 
 

Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
DCI Jo Bates, South Yorkshire Police 

 

What We Do: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
What We Did: 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
What We Will Do: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

The Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Strategy Group is responsible to the Safeguarding 
Children Board for overview of inter-agency working in the area of CSE.  The Strategy Group 
is also responsible for the development and implementation of the Safeguarding Children 
Board CSE Strategy and Action Plan. 
 

In 2017-18 we carried out four multi-agency audits so that we are able to assure the Board 
that our partners are fully aware of the risks facing our children and young people from 
those wishing to try and harm them through CSE.  This includes on-line grooming and 
pressures they may face from their peers in engaging in risk taking behaviours that might 
further expose them to harm. 
 
As well as making sure the BSCB CSE Strategy and Action Plan is kept up to date, the 
CSE Strategy Group received regular reports and updates from the Multiple Vulnerabilities 
and Complex Abuse Panel, which considers some of our most at risk children and young 
people and reports from the Missing Panel, that meets regularly to consider children and 
young people who go missing from home, the reasons why they go missing and what we 
can do to try and keep them safe. 

In 2018-19 we will continue to conduct regular audits of cases where children and young 
people have been exposed to or at risk of CSE.  We will continue to assess the local risks 
that our children and young people are facing, including harmful sexual behaviour and we 
will make sure all our partners and people that work for them are aware of what CSE is and 
for them to be constantly vigilant so that we can keep our children and young people as safe 
as possible 

Page 106



 

13 
 

Good News Stories 
We are pleased to be able to tell you of some very positive stories from 
2017-18 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

One story is as a result of training we have delivered to colleagues who 
work in Barnsley.  The training is to help workers recognise situations 
where children and young people may be particularly at risk.  As a result 
of the training delivered, two colleagues spotted a situation where a 
young person was putting themselves at risk of serious harm.  They 
spoke about this to other colleagues and as a result the young person 
received the help they needed to better understand the risks they were 
exposing themselves to and how to better keep themselves safe in future.  
Other steps were also taken to ensure that harmful situation could not 
happen again to any other children or young people in Barnsley. 

Another ‘Good News Story’ is all about multi-agency working and how 
much more we can achieve when we all work together.  It involves two 
children on a Child Protection Plan because of parent’s inability to care for 
them properly, mostly because of the parent’s alcohol misuse.  Through 
very effective multi-agency working, involving school, the school nurse, 
social workers, workers from Barnardo’s and the love and care of an aunt 
and uncle, who were prepared to take the children into their home, this 
story has a very happy ending.  It shows just what can be achieved when 
we all work together to make Barnsley as safe a place as possible for our 
children, young people and families! 

Page 107



 

14 
 

The Safeguarding Landscape in Barnsley 
 

The below graph shows the number of children on a plan in Barnsley.  
There are also c. 4,500 children receiving support through early help on 
an Early Help Assessment. 

 

What to do if you are worried about a child 
 

If the child is in danger 
 

Call the police on 999 or (01142) 202020. 
 

If the child is not at risk of immediate harm 
If you're concerned about a child, but they're not in immediate danger, it's 
still important to share the information with us as soon as possible. 
 

If your call is not urgent contact the Assessment Service on (01226) 
772423. Our offices are open between Monday and Friday from 9am to 
5pm. 
 

Out of hours emergencies 
 

If you want to report your concern urgently and our offices are closed you 
can contact our Emergency Duty Team on 0844 9841800. They work on 
weekends and bank holidays and deal with issues that can't wait until 
usual office opening hours. 
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-

in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/worried-about-a-child/ 

1529 

189 

310 

1

2

3

Child in Need 

Child Protection 

Looked After 

Children 

Page 108

https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/worried-about-a-child/
https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/services/children-families-and-education/safeguarding-families-in-barnsley/safeguarding-children-in-barnsley/worried-about-a-child/


 

15 
 

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Budget  
 

Year End 2017/18 
 
   

Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Final Position 2017/18 

Income   Expenditure   

£   £   

Partner Contributions       

Barnsley 
MBC 

£62,622 Staffing £100,004 

NHS Barnsley 
CCG 

£49,000 

Professional Fees, Supplies 
and Services 

£24.192 

PCC £12,024 

Cafcass £550 
  

TOTAL £124,196 TOTAL £124,196 

        

     

 

 

 

The Structure of The Barnsley 

Safeguarding Children Board 

Safeguarding Board with Independent Chair 
Performance Audit and Quality Assurance Sub 
Group 
Child Death Overview Panel 
Serious Case Review Sub Group 
Policies, Procedures and Practice Development 
Sub Group 
Workforce Management and Development Sub 
Group 
Children with Disabilities and Complex Health 
Needs Sub Group 
Child Sexual Exploitation Strategy Group 
Neglect Sub Group 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

2nd October 2018

PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY 2018-2021:  RENEWING ACTION FOR A HEALTHIER 
BARNSLEY

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows
Report Author: Rebecca Clarke
Received by SSDG: 2nd September 2018
Date of Report: 19th September 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1. To present the Public Health Strategy 2018-2021 to the Health and Wellbeing Board.

2. Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

2.1 Renewing our Public Health Strategy provides an opportunity for us to reflect on what 
we have achieved with our partners which contributes to the delivery of the Health & 
Wellbeing Strategy.  Our priority areas (smoking; physical activity and oral health) 
now have successfully established programmes in place and have achieved a 
number of significant results in the last 3 years.  

           Our approach strengthens our efforts in prioritising policy level action to support 
individual behaviour change in order to improve healthy life expectancy and reduce 
health inequalities.  

3. Recommendations

3.1.  Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 Note the Public Health Strategy which has been produced in consultation with 
key partners

 Support the delivery of the Public Health Strategy

4. Introduction/ Background

4.1 The refreshed Public Health Strategy 2018-2021 (Appendix 1) demonstrates our 
commitment to work with partners to actively improve the health of all people living in 
Barnsley.  It provides us with the opportunity to reflect on what we have achieved 
with our partners to improve the health and wellbeing of Barnsley residents.

4.2 We have reviewed our 2015-18 priorities areas (smoking; physical activity and oral 
health); these work areas all have successfully established programmes in place and 
have achieved a number of significant results in the last 3 years.  These existing 

Page 111

HWB.02.10.2018/11



2

priorities are now business as usual and the programmes of work are well 
established and show progress.  To complement our three existing priorities, we 
have selected three new priority areas, alcohol, emotional resilience and food.  

5. Conclusion/ Next Steps

5.1 All new priority areas will have robust action plans developed and shared with 
partners.  Targets for our public health priorities will be aligned to the developing 
work on the outcomes framework for the emerging Integrated Care Partnership.

6. Financial Implications

6.1. There are no direct financial implications associated with this report.

7. Consultation with stakeholders

7.1 The refreshed strategy has been drafted in consultation with partners from Barnsley 
Hospital, SWYPFT, Healthwatch, Barnsley CCG and Barnsley Healthcare Federation.  
It has been shared with Directorate Management Team meetings in BMBC, and 
shared with a number of partnership boards,

7.2 The choice of the three new priorities was strongly informed by the two most recent 
annual DPH reports which involved hearing the views and experiences of Barnsley 
people in relation to health and wellbeing.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1: Renewing action for a healthier Barnsley Public Health Strategy 2018-
2021.

Officer: Rebecca Clarke Date: 19 September 2018

Page 112



Public Health Strategy   •   2018 to 2021

Public Health Strategy 2018 to 2021
Produced by Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council, Public Health Directorate
Design by Beth Heath

Renewing Action for a Healthier Barnsley

P
age 113

lindak
Text Box
Appendix 1



1 https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_lhPPDhzH1I
2 https://www.barnsley.gov.uk/media/7655/director-of-public-health-2017-annual-report.pdf

FOREWORD
Renewing our Public Health Strategy is an opportunity for us to reflect on what we have 
achieved with our partners to improve the health and wellbeing of Barnsley residents. We 
want to renew our actions for a healthier Barnsley by working collaboratively to improve our 
residents’ health and wellbeing at an accelerated pace. This approach strengthens our efforts 
on prioritising policy level action to support individual behaviour change in order to improve 
healthy life expectancy and reduce health inequalities.  

The priority areas set out in this strategy have been selected for the impact they have in Barnsley 
on avoidable illness and early death, and the consequences of both in terms of lost quality of 
life, lost economically productive years and pressure on health and social care services. The 
priorities also respond to key findings from recent Director of Public Health Annual Reports. 
In the 2016 report1, we heard about the impact of alcohol, depression, smoking, food and 
exercise and how residents of Barnsley want to be “the best of the best”.  The 2017 ‘A day in the 
life of…’ report2 based on diaries of local residents describes people’s daily challenges that 
affect their physical and mental health, and describes how to help individuals, their family, 
and their friends live healthier lives. 

We have designed our approach to complement the existing strategic plans of the council 
and the health and care system. Our Public Health Strategy will contribute specifically to the 
Health & Wellbeing Strategy, and the Barnsley Plan. 

We are grateful to our partners and colleagues across the council for their input in developing 
our renewed Strategy.

IF YOU REQUIRE THIS DOCUMENT IN AN EASY      
TO READ FORMAT PLEASE REQUEST YOUR   
COPY VIA ANY OF THE FOLLOWING WAYS:
Write to Public Health Directorate, Barnsley 
Council, P O Box 634, Barnsley, S70 9GG

2

Cllr Jim Andrews

Deputy Leader of the Council
Cabinet Spokesperson                      

for Public Health

01226 787416      

PublicHealth@barnsley.gov.uk

BarnsleyCouncil      

@barnsleycouncil

P
age 114



OUTCOMES AND PRIORITIES
As illustrated in Figure 1, (on page 4) our Public Health Strategy 2018-
2021 vision and long term outcomes remain as they were in our 2016-2018 
Strategy. The responsibility of delivering these long term outcomes lies 
with not only the public health distributed model but with collective action 
across the health and care system in Barnsley. Organisations with statutory 
responsibilities work in partnership with all agencies, the voluntary sector 
and local residents to make a contribution to public health. The successes 
of this partnership are evident in our local achievements. However, there 
is still more work to do to achieve our vision; that all Barnsley children are 
given the best start in life and all our residents enjoy a happy, healthy life.

We have reviewed our 2016-18 priorities and these work areas all have 
successfully established programmes in place and have achieved a 
number of significant results in the last 3 years. These existing priorities are 
now business as usual and the programmes of work are well established 
and show progress.

NEW PRIORITY AREAS
To complement our 3 existing priorities, we have selected 3 new priority 
areas; food, alcohol and emotional resilience. All the priority areas will 
have robust action plans developed and shared with partners. Targets 
for our public health priorities will be aligned to the developing work on 
the outcomes framework for the emerging Integrated Care Partnership. 
Figure 4 (on page 13) previews the work planned in these six areas.

ACHIEVEMENTS Improving the oral                        
health of children

11% increase in the proportion 
of Barnsley children free from              

dental decay

4.5% increase in the                                                      
number of child courses              

of f luoride varnish

61% of adults are physically 
active and 28% of adults are                  

physically inactive

4.3% reduction in adults 
smoking in Barnsley from 

22.5% in 2014 to 18.2% in 2017

Creating a                                        
smokefree
generation

Increasing levels
of physical activity

PUBLIC
HEALTH 
PRIORITIES

2016-2018
& BEYOND 

TO 2021

• Oral Health of Children
• Smokefree Generation
• Physical Activity

2018-
2021

• Food
• Alcohol
• Emotional Resilience

Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 20213

P
age 115



THE PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY WILL CONTRIBUTE TO ACHIEVING A 
BRIGHTER FUTURE AND A BETTER BARNSLEY BY ENSURING CHILDREN 

HAVE THE BEST START IN LIFE AND EVERYONE ENJOYS A HAPPY 
HEALTHY LIFE WHEREVER THEY LIVE AND WHOEVER THEY ARE.

PUBLIC HEALTH STRATEGY

WE WILL CONTRIBUTE TO THE THREE PRIORITIES THROUGH 
OUR FOUR LONG TERM PUBLIC HEALTH OUTCOMES:

OUR RESIDENTS WILL 
START LIFE HEALTHY 
AND STAY HEALTHY

OUR RESIDENTS 
WILL LIVE LONGER 
HEALTHIER LIVES

WE NARROW THE GAP 
IN LIFE EXPECTANCY 

AND HEALTH BETWEEN 
THE MOST AND LEAST 

HEALTHY

WE PROTECT OUR 
COMMUNITIES FROM HARM, 

HEALTH INCIDENTS AND 
OTHER PREVENTABLE 

HEALTH THREATS

TO DEMONSTRATE WE ARE MAKING A DIFFERENCE IN A SHORTER 
TIMESCALE WE WILL FOCUS ON SIX PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES

ORAL HEALTH
OF CHILDREN

SMOKEFREE 
GENERATION

PHYSICAL
ACTIVITY

THE THREE BARNSLEY COUNCIL PRIORITIES WHICH WILL HELP US ACHIEVE THE VISION ARE:

FIGURE 1

FOOD ALCOHOL
EMOTIONAL
RESILIENCE

4 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 116



WHAT MAKES US HEALTHY?
Health improvement and inequality continue to be a 
challenge for the borough and this is influenced by a 
number of determinants. These determinants include 
political, social, economic, environmental and cultural 
factors which shape the conditions in which we are born, 
grow, live, work and age. Achieving a healthy population 
requires greater action on these factors to keep all our 
residents well, not simply action on treating ill health 
alone. 

Figure 2 shows that our health is shaped by factors 
outside the direct influence of health care. Published data 
shows that there is a gap of almost 18 years in healthy 
life expectancy between people living in the most and 
least deprived areas of the UK. This gap that is explained 
not by our ability to access health care but by differences 
in our experience of the things that make us healthy 
including good work, education, resources, our physical 
environment and social connections.

The healthy life expectancy gap 
between the most and least 
deprived areas in the UK is:

As little as 10% of the population’s       
health and wellbeing is linked to 
access to health care.
We need to look at the bigger picture:

But the picture isn’t the same for everyone.

Good work

Our 
surroundings

Money & resources

Housing

Education 
& skills

The food   
we eat

Transport

Family, friends 
& communities

FIGURE 2

18
YEARS

5 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 117



WHAT IS HEALTHY                         
LIFE EXPECTANCY?

We all have a role in improving healthy 
life expectancy and reducing health 
inequalities. We need to promote active, 
healthy lifestyles to address some of the 
important public health and employment 
challenges facing our residents. By providing 
equal opportunities for our local residents 
to work and lead healthy lives, both the 
physical and mental health of the borough 
as a whole is likely to improve and contribute 
to narrowing the gap in life expectancy and 
health between the most and least healthy. 
In return, individuals and local health and 
social care services will benefit from a 
reduced burden of chronic disease and 
disability, as well as equipping people to live 
fuller longer working lives; benefiting our 
local economy.

Although the latest data available from the 
Office for National Statistics identifies that 
life expectancy and healthy life expectancy 
has improved for both women and men 
born in Barnsley there is still more to do.  

Healthy Life Expectancy 
at birth in Barnsley

81.9years
Life expectancy 

for females                   
2014-2016
in Barnsley

Life expectancy 
for males                          

2014-2016
in Barnsley

78.2years

Are spent not
in ‘good’ health

WHAT IS LIFE 
EXPECTANCY?

The average number of years 
a person would expect to live 

based on current mortality rates.

WHAT IS HEALTHY                   
LIFE EXPECTANCY?

The average number of years 
a person would expect to live 

in good health based on curent 
mortality rates and self-reported 

good health.

Healthy life 
expectancy 

for females in 
Barnsley 
2014-2016

59.8
years

Healthy life 
expectancy 

for males 
in Barnsley 
2014-2016

58.6
years

22.1
Years

19.6
Years

*Source, ONS, 2014 – 2016

6 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 118



Review of progress
with public health
strategy priorities
2016 – 2018

SMOKING
Our ambition to continue to drive 
forward ‘make smoking invisible’ 
impacts every part of the Council and 
our partners. From supporting the 
development of smokefree markets, 
smokefree play parks and smokefree 
schools.  We will continue to work with 
Public Health England to develop 
licensing policies for tobacco sales. 
Every part of the system has a crucial 
role to play if we are to achieve 
our ambition to reduce smoking 
prevalence to less than 10% by 2022 as 
outlined in the Tobacco Alliance Action 
Plan, the Barnsley Plan and South 
Yorkshire & Bassetlaw Integrated Care 
System outcomes.

4.3% REDUCTION IN ADULT SMOKING

A CLeaR assessment was 
undertaken in June 2017. We 

achieved 70% of the available 
points, a 30% increase from 
our 2013 peer assessment.

All 24 key play parks                  
are now smokefree to ensure 

our children can play in a safe 
environment where smoking 

is invisible.

The Breathe 2025 campaign 
rolled out across Barnsley, 

working towards seeing the next 
generation of children being 

smokefree growing up in a town 
free from tobacco.  

We are the first 
northern town to issue a 
Fixed Penalty Notice for 
smoking in cars and are 
the only Local Authority 
to be actively enforcing 
this national legislation.

We continue 
to raise 

awareness           
of illicit 
tobacco            

and how to 
report it.

We are the 
first northern 

town to 
introduce a 
smokefree 

town centre 
zone.

The latest smoking prevalence 
data demonstrates local 
impact, as there has been 
a 4.3% reduction in adults 
smoking in Barnsley from 
22.5% in 2014 to 18.2% in 2017.  
This is better than the national 
reduction in the same time 
period from 17.8% in 2014 to 
14.9% in 2017.

Alongside this, there has 
been a 5.1% reduction in 
Barnsley adults in routine 
and manual occupations 
smoking from 32.6% in 2014 
to 27.5% in 2017. This again 
is better than the national 
reduction in the same period 
from 29.6% in 2014 to 25.7% 
in 2017.

7 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 119



FUTURE PRIORITIES                    
FOR ACTION
• Continue to drive forward ‘make smoking 

invisible’, working towards a reduction in 
adult smoking prevalence of 10% by 2020.

• Evaluate the smokefree schools pilot and 
roll out to all other primary schools across 
the borough.

• Support Barnsley Hospital in delivery of 
the Risky Behaviours CQUIN3.

• Support Barnsley Hospital in audit against 
NICE 484 and lead development of 
improvement plan.

• Support development of smokefree 
markets across the borough.

• Continue to lead Barnsley Tobacco 
Alliance.

• Review progress against the revised Local 
Action Plan on a quarterly basis. 

• Complete another CLeaR peer assessment 
aiming to improve even further.

• Investigate the possibilities of disinvestment 
in shares in the tobacco industry from 
pension fund investments working with 
collegues across South Yorkshire.

Smoking has been embedded in                 
other areas of work and included in key 

policies and action plans such as the   
Anti-Poverty Plan for Barnsley.

We are ensuring retailers                       
aren’t selling to under 18’s by               

carrying out underage test sales.

A new BMBC Smoking at Work Policy 
has been introduced that encourages 

and supports staff to quit smoking.

We have provided training/
information to retailers to ensure 
they are aware of the legislations.

Make Smoking Invisible

9 out of 10
local people 

support 
smokefree

zones

“If I see my       
parents smoking 

it might make              
me start”

Leon – Age 7                              
Laithes Primary  School,                                     

Barnsley

Please do not 
smoke in or 
around our 

school!

Barnsley’s #Smokefree Generation

Help us make smoking 
invisible to children.

PLEASE DON’T 
SMOKE IN THIS 
MARKET SQUARE.
Children who see adults smoking are more likely to 
take up the habit. 97% of Barnsley residents don’t 
want their children to smoke.

OPPORTUNITIES
• SUSTAINING AND GROWING MOMENTUM
• CONTINUING TO REDUCE SMOKING PREVALENCE
• REDUCING THE WIDE INEQUALITIES IN SMOKING 

PREVALENCE ACROSS THE BOROUGH AND 
ACROSS DEMOGRAPHICS

We are the first northern town to 
implement a ‘smokefree market’.

Smokefree 
Barnsley 

programme                        
was awarded 

‘Highly 
Commended’ 
in the Public 

Health 
category, LGC 
Awards 2018.

3 CQUIN – Commissioning for Quality & Innovation
4 www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ph48

8 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 120



PHYSICAL ACTIVITY
Physical activity, active travel and air quality are key elements 
of the Public Health Strategy working across the Public Health 
distributed model with external partners. Developing a new 
Strategic Physical Activity Partnership and 3 year Physical Activity 
Plan (2018-2021), along with new investment, will enable us to 
build community assets to increase levels of daily physical activity.

We are unable to compare the data in figure 3 with previous years 
as the way this information is gathered has changed. Our effort 
and resources have focused on inactive children, young people 
and adults who have the most health benefit to gain.

of adults are 
physically inactive

(achieving less than 30 minutes 
physical activity per week).

A new Strategic 
Physical Activity 
Partnership has 

been established 
to progress a 
whole system 
approach to 

tackle physical 
inactivity and 

to develop 
a refreshed 

Physical Activity 
Plan 2018-2021 
to align with the 

Public Health 
Strategy.

In the last 12 
months over 

1,444 Barnsley 
leisure cards 

have been issued                        
to eligible 

residents to access 
cheaper sport and 
leisure facilities.

12 active walks 
developed across         

the borough. Over the 
last 12 months over 
1,827 participants 
have attended and              

19 people have 
become volunteer 

walk leaders.

Funding 
obtained to 
improve the 
standard of 
17 playing 

pitches 
across the 
borough. 

Together with our 
partners, Inclusive Ping 
Pong, we have delivered 

a number of tailored 
bat and chat sessions 

for older people at         
Barnsley Age UK.

‘Barnsley Walking 
for Health’ a guide 

led volunteer 
scheme funded for 

a further 3 years 
up to 2020.

A Town 
Centre Bike 

Race & 
Community 

Ride - 
offering an 
opportunity 
for people to 
ride on a 1km 
closed Town 

Centre circuit 
route.

Active Travel Strategy 
2018-2021 will be 

progressed to build the 
commitment to improving 

cycling and walking 
across the borough.

Sport England funding 
secured to deliver a project 

over the next 3 years 
that supports families to 
be more active together 

throughout the week.

Secured funding to pilot a project that uses 
community activity champions and builds capacity 

across the Dearne to increase activity amongst 
adults in low level employment.

PUBLISHED DATA FOR BARNSLEY DEMONSTRATES THAT...

of adults are 
physically active 
(achieving 150 minutes 
physical activity per week) 

60.9%
27.7%

FIGURE 3

9 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 121



FUTURE PRIORITIES FOR ACTION
• Develop senior level commitment through the development of 

a borough wide Physical Activity Strategy.
• Continue to progress a Council wide Active Travel Strategy to 

improve levels of cycling and walking to work and/or school.
• Bring in investment to support the development of physical 

activity programmes.
• Continue to drive forward Daily Mile or equivalent schemes in 

schools. 
• Further develop a borough wide offer for table tennis through 

PING!
• Continue to support key sport and physical activity initiatives – 

Creating Connections etc. 
• Review progress against the new Strategy and Local Action 

Plan on a quarterly basis. 
• To ensure our residents understand that exercise isn’t just 

about sport but about finding a physical activity that they can 
enjoy and that suits their level of mobility and fitness, such as 
dancing, walking, stretching, DIY, housework or gardening etc.

 In partnership with Barnsley Premier Leisure 
and the Football Foundation we secured funding 
to install full size match artificial grass pitch at 
Dorothy Hyman Sports Centre.  The pitch will be 
utilised by a variety of sessions including junior 

training and adult flexible football.

Research - We are 
currently commissioning 
an Active Travel study to 
inform our future Active 

Travel Strategy and 
commissioning processes.

Successful PING!             
Table Tennis Festival 

saw a record number of 
people picking up a bat 
with 9,073 participants 

recorded.

OPPORTUNITIES
• SUPPORTING INACTIVE PEOPLE TO BECOME MORE ACTIVE

• ENABLING ALL KEY STAKEHOLDERS TO REMAIN COMMITTED TO 
IMPROVING LEVELS OF PHYSICAL ACTIVITY ACROSS THE BOROUGH

• IMPROVING ACCESS TO PHYSICAL ACTIVITY OPPORTUNITIES

• EXPLORE OPPORTUNITIES TO DEVELOP THE ACTIVE TRAVEL AND HEALTHY 
STREETS APPROACH WORKING ACROSS THE SHEFFIELD CITY REGION.

Tour de Yorkshire saw an estimated audience of 
26,650 line the Barnsley route. We used this as 

an opportunity to raise the profile of active travel 
and the various opportunities that exist across the 
borough to gain training and support for people to 

cycle for leisure, education and work purposes.

Active Travel Hub - 
the current cycle hire 
provision in Barnsley 

Town centre will 
be expanded as a 

community cycling and 
walking offer.

10 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 122



IMPROVING THE ORAL                    
HEALTH OF CHILDREN
We recognise the importance of good oral health to 
ensure every child has the best start in life. To achieve 
improvements in tooth decay levels in children we have 
worked to provide more intensive exposure to fluoride 
as children grow up; both at home, at school and in the 
dental practice.

Improving the oral health of children continues to be a 
public health priority.  We know that fluoride remains 
the most effective means of preventing tooth decay.

The latest data demonstrates our impact, as there has 
been an 11% increase in the proportion of children free 
from dental decay from 58.8% in the 2011/12 dental 
survey to 69.8% in 2015/16. Alongside this there has 
been a 4.5% increase in the application of fluoride 
varnish in Barnsley children from 59.2% in 2014/15 to 
63.7% in 2015/16.  

A programme of 
training for early 

years, nurseries and 
reception staff to 

support delivery of 
daily tooth brushing 

has been introduced.

Communication links 
have been set up between 

Barnsley Hospital and 
local dentists to ensure 
children attending for 
extractions have the 

required follow up and 
any DNA’s are not lost in 

the system.

Dental practices 
in Barnsley have 
been encouraged 
to undertake brief 

intervention training 
on smoking and 

alcohol.

11%
increase in the 
proportion of  Barnsley 
children free from 
dental decay

4.5%
increase in the number 
of child courses of 
fluoride varnish 
application

Working with NHS 
England and the Local 

Dental Committee 
we have increased 
the use of fluoride       
varnish in Barnsley 
dental practices by 

targeted work.

Tooth brushing 
clubs are 

established in all 
Family Centres 

across Barnsley.

WHATHAVE WE ACHIEVED?

11 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 123



An Oral Health Needs 
Assessment has 

been undertaken 
in partnership 

with Public Health 
England.

More Barnsley 
families are 
attending a 

dentist than the 
national average.

Working with 
Barnsley Hospital 

we now provide 
tooth brushing 
packs and oral 

health advice to 
families attending 

the hospital for 
dental extractions.

Superhero 
campaign has been 

launched across 
the borough with 
leaflets, posters 

and brushing charts 
given out to families 

via schools and 
dental practices.

The Public Health 
Nursing Service 

includes oral health 
promotion to be 
delivered at key 
contact points.

Tooth brushing        
packs have been 

distributed to the most 
vulnerable families 
in the borough via           

food banks.

BMBC has led the way in encouraging healthy eating            
though removal of vending machines and full sugar drinks, 

and there may be opportunities to promote this in other            
public settings e.g. leisure centres.

OPPORTUNITIES
• TO USE THE OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC 

HEALTH NURSING SERVICE TO PROMOTE 
ORAL HEALTH.

FUTURE PRIORITIES                 
FOR ACTION
• Encourage and support more Early Years 

settings to start a tooth brushing club.

• Continue to roll out ‘Sugar Free Barnsley’ by 
encouraging organisations to stop selling 
full sugar drinks.

• Evaluation of the tooth brushing packs 
distribution and brushing clubs.

• Explore the feasibility for interventions that 
increase fluoridation at a population level.

12 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 124



OUR PUBLIC HEALTH PRIORITIES

FOOD ALCOHOL EMOTIONAL           
RESILIENCE

Food is extremely important to our local 
population, the health and wellbeing of our 

residents, the local economy and the environment.  
Food gives us pleasure, allows us to share and 

celebrate and connect with others.

The vast majority of people know that                 
eating a healthy diet, as well as being physically 
active is good for them and will help to prevent 

weight gain, but for many people it can be a          
real struggle to put this into practice. We know                                                                                  

that more than 7 out of 10 (73.1%) adults in 
Barnsley are classified as overweight or obese; 

this is significantly worse than the England 
average of 61.3%.

By working together and in partnership               
with the local community we can go further 
to positively influence the food environment; 
to promote and make healthier food choices, 

enabling us all to live healthier lives.

We are therefore developing a Food Plan 
Strategy that will address issues around healthy 

weight, but is not limited to that alone. The Plan is                           
about changing the food environment and culture          
within Barnsley as well improving access to quality 

food. Our approach will focus on the policies 
and structures which we all live, work, shop, eat            

and learn within.

Although alcohol has been part of 
our culture for centuries and many                 

people use it sensibly, its misuse has become 
a serious and worsening public health 

problem in the UK.

The misuse of alcohol – whether as 
chronically heavy drinking, binge-drinking 

or even moderate drinking in inappropriate 
circumstances not only poses a threat to the 
health and wellbeing of the drinker, but also 

to family, friends, communities and wider 
society through such problems as crime, 

anti-social behaviour and loss of productivity. 
It is also directly linked to a range of health 
issues such as high blood pressure, mental 
ill-health, accidental injury, violence, liver 

disease and sexually transmitted infections.

A programme of work is being developed  
to tackle the availability, affordability and 

acceptability of alcohol use in Barnsley. This 
will include a revised Alcohol Strategy for the 
borough and the development of an Alcohol 

Alliance to deliver the actions from the Strategy. 
We will also work with key partners to address 
the rise in alcohol related hospital admissions. 

To support this we are working to explore 
different approaches to alcohol harm data.

Resilience is the ability to cope with and rise                     
to the inevitable challenges, problems and set-backs 

you meet in the course of your life, and to come 
back stronger from them.  It is having the ability to            

bounce back in the event of adversity.

The Five Year Forward View for Mental Health 
included an important recommendation for Public 

Health England to establish a Prevention Concordat for 
Better Mental Health ensuring a prevention-focused 
approach to improving mental health for everyone.  
This covers prevention in the widest sense from the 
promotion of good mental health through to living 
well with mental health problems and everything 

in between.  The recommendations of the Five Year 
Forward View for Mental Health were accepted                

in full by government on 9 January 2017.

We will work across the local system to ensure we are 
able to deliver against the concordat whilst meeting 

local need, increasing equity and reducing health 
inequalities. Specific work programmes will include:

• Improving our needs and asset assessment             
with effective use of data and intelligence

• Improving our partnerships,                      
collaborations and alignments

• Translating need into deliverable commitments
• Defining success outcomes

FIGURE 4

13 Public Health Strategy  |  2018 to 2021

P
age 125



ORAL
HEALTH SMOKING PHYSICAL               

ACTIVITY

Tooth decay is the main 
oral health problem 

affecting children with 
significant impacts on 

their daily lives including 
pain, sleepless nights and 
time missed from school. 

There are wide inequalities 
in the distribution of 

tooth decay. In Barnsley 
the average number of 
decayed teeth in some 

wards is five times higher 
than in other less deprived 

wards of the borough. 
Over 600 Barnsley children 

are admitted to hospital        
every year for the removal 

of decayed teeth.

The main risk factors 
for tooth decay are diets 
high in sugars and lack 
of exposure to fluoride, 
therefore tooth decay is 

largely preventable.

The Global Burden of 
Disease study (2010)5 
provides evidence of           

the impact of poor oral 
health on children.

Smoking prevalence in Barnsley is reducing but we still                       
have one of the highest smoking rates in the country.

The latest data illustrates that 18.2% of the adult                      
population in Barnsley are smokers - significantly higher                     

than the England average of 14.9%.

There is a wide variation between wards where the proportion of 
adult smokers ranges from 12% to 29%. The prevalence amongst 

routine and manual workers within Barnsley is higher than                    
the overall prevalence at 27.5% compared to 18.2%.

The smoking prevalence at age 15 of 10.7% is significantly                     
worse than the England average of 8.2%.

Although recently smoking in pregnancy has                                           
seen a large reduction at 15.4%, this is still significantly higher                               

than the England average of 10.7%.

Smoking attributable mortality and admissions are significantly 
higher in Barnsley when compared with the regional average.

Roughly £62million per year is spent on tobacco by the smokers of 
Barnsley. This is on average around £1,323 per smoker per year.

Each year in Barnsley smoking costs society around £63.5 
million; this includes factors such as lost productivity, the cost of                         

social care and smoking-related house fires (ASH Ready                                                                                               
Reckoner, The local cost of tobacco, May 2018).

When net income and smoking expenditure is taken into 
account, 8,326 (32%) households with a smoker fall below the                                                                                                    
poverty line. If these smokers were to quit, 2,140 households                 
would be elevated out of poverty, these households include                     

around 1,707 dependent children6.

Leading a physically active 
lifestyle has been proven to 
improve both the length and 

quality of life for individuals and 
reduces the burden of disease                       
and disability. Being active can 
boost workplace productivity; 

reduce sickness absence, crime           
and anti-social behaviour.

Physical inactivity is the               
fourth largest cause of disease              

and disability in the UK.

Children and young people who 
are physically active are more 
likely to continue the habit into 

adult life and can bring benefits for 
academic attainment and attention.

Barnsley falls below the national 
and regional average for physical 

activity participation with the 
latest figures from the Active Lives 

Survey indicating that 60.9% of 
adults achieve the recommended 
levels of 150 minutes of moderate 
intensity physical activity a week. 

27.7% of Barnsley adults are 
classified as inactive. Both figures 

are significantly worse than 
the Yorkshire and the Humber,               

and England averages.

5 Global Burden of Disease study (2010) https://www.thelancet.com/gbd/2010
6ASH Estimates of poverty in England adjusted for expenditure on tobacco, October 201514

P
age 126



1

REPORT TO THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

2nd October 2018

Public Health Food Plan

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows 
Report Author: Anna Tummon
Received by SSDG: 3rd September 2018
Date of Report: 10th September 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To share the Food Plan with Health and Wellbeing Board members for 
information, support and commitment. 

2. Delivering the Health & Wellbeing Strategy

2.1 The Food Plan contributes to delivering the Health and  Wellbeing Strategy in a 
number of ways.  By addressing the accessibility and quality of food, the Food Plan 
will support improving health outcomes and addressing health inequalities related to 
healthy weight and associated chronic illnesses. 

By working with partners to concentrate our efforts on changing the structure of the 
environment we live, work and learn in will support making prevention everybody’s 
business. In line with the aims and approach of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, a 
whole systems approach is necessarily to achieve positive outcomes around healthy 
weight.

3. Recommendations

3.1 Health and Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-
 note and support the aims and priorities of the Food Plan
 assist with implementing the Plan and offer support in its delivery

4. Introduction/ Background

4.1 Food is one of the public health strategic priorities (2018-2021). To deliver this 
priority, a Food Action Plan has been developed to achieve the goals outlined in the 
executive summary (appendix one). The Plan is Barnsley Council’s response to the 
increasing levels of obesity and proposes how we can all contribute locally to 
improving health outcomes and address the health inequalities related to healthy 

Page 127

HWB.02.10.2018/12



2

weight and associated chronic illnesses.  The Food Plan seeks to go beyond 
traditional interventions and will address food access, food quality and the local 
supply chain to ensure we achieve our ambition of Accessible quality food for all. 

Over the past 12 months, our collaborative work to tackle healthy weight has 
gathered support and momentum.  There are a number of examples of this work:-

 Elected Members have agreed to support a proposal to restrict further growth 
in the number of takeaways across the borough as one of the ways of 
supporting healthy weight in the population and addressing food access.

 The Council’s Supplementary Planning Guidance is currently being revised to 
include a health related criteria and a health impact assessment to the 
planning application process.  

 Public Health has worked with Norse to remove full sugar drinks and vending 
machines in Westgate and Gateway Plaza.  Alongside this, public health has 
worked with Norse to improve their conference buffet menu.

 Public Health has also developed a plan to add calorie information to food 
labels and menus across town enabling residents to make more informed 
choices at the point of purchase. Our local calories plan known as Barnsley’s 
Big Calories Count and echoes Public Health England’s national healthy 
eating campaign which focuses on the promotion of a healthy calorie intake.  
The campaign is part of the national campaign to reduce calories 
consumption by 20% by the year 2024. 

 Our Family Centres have successfully run the Alexandra Rose voucher 
scheme which provides free vouchers to our most disadvantaged families to 
be spent on fruit and vegetables in the local market, which has the advantage 
of keeping money in the local economy. 

 The Food Access Steering Group and Area Councils have chosen to support 
holiday hunger schemes for children who receive free school meal in term 
time who are at risk of not eating a substantial diet over the school holidays.

 The food bank partnership commissioned by the Communities Directorate 
provides emergency food parcels to families in crisis.

We are keen to explore further collaboration with partners to collectively achieve an 
improvement in healthy weight across Barnsley. 

Page 128



3

5. Conclusion/ Next Steps

5.1 The launch of the Food Plan will build on the existing work and allow us to 
extend our reach to other stakeholders and introduce new interventions relating to 
healthy weight, quality and accessible food.   Our Plan mirrors the Government’s 
refreshed Childhood obesity: a plan for action 2018 and other recently published 
guidance on food in public sector settings.

6. Financial Implications

6.1 No financial implications, however, existing staff members in each of the Council 
directorates and partner organisations will need to be involved to support the delivery 
of the food action plan in order to achieve our ambition.

7. Consultation with stakeholders

7.1 The Food Plan has been drafted in consultation with colleagues from the People, 
Place, Communities Directorates, the Barnsley GP Federation, South West 
Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust, Healthwatch and Barnsley CCG.  Other agencies 
were also invited to comment and provide feedback.  Changes and feedback 
suggested during the consultation phase have been addressed and incorporated into 
this final version of the plan.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1 – Food Plan Executive Summary

Officer: Anna Tummon Date: 10th September 2018

Page 129



This page is intentionally left blank



FOOD PLAN 2018-2021

1 Food Plan  |  2018 to 2021

OUR VISION: ACCESSIBLE QUALITY FOOD FOR ALL

SUPPLY
CHAIN

SUGAR EDUCATION

OUR PRIORITIES

PUBLIC
SECTOR

CATERING

CONSUMER
ENVIRONMENT

ACCESS

OUTCOMES

Supply        
Chain
We will 

celebrate 
the food 

journey from 
production to 

waste 

Consumer 
Environment
 Food will play 
a key role in 

strengthening 
our local 

economy and 
connections 

with our 
businesses and 

communities 

Sugar
We will 

reduce the 
amount and 
frequency 

consumed by 
our children 
and young 

people

Education
Residents and 

employees 
will have an 

improved 
understanding 

of the 
importance 
of a healthy 

balanced diet 

Public               
Sector          

Catering
We will be 
exemplar 
and serve 

quality 
products 

Access
 Each person 

will have access 
to food that 
is nutritious, 
affordable, 
diverse and 
that benefits 

their health and 
wellbeing

QUICK WINS

Supply        
Chain

Host a meet 
the trader 
event to 

maximise local 
supply chain

Consumer 
Environment

Roll out the revised 
Supplementary 

Planning 
Guidance into the 
Council’s planning 

application process

Sugar
Replace the 
sale of high 
sugar drinks 
to diet/zero 
with partner 

organisations 

Education
Introduce lunch 
box guidance 
for parents & 

schools

Public Sector          
Catering

Introduce catering 
guidelines for 

BMBC catering 
providers through 

procurement & 
contract monitoring

Access
Support the 
expansion of 

the Alexandra 
Rose Voucher  

scheme

• Child excess weight
• Children with one or more decayed, missing or filled teeth
• Proportion of 12 year olds free from dental decay
• Adult excess weight
• Proportion of the population meeting the recommended 

“5-a-day” 

• Breastfeeding initiation & prevalence 6-8 weeks after birth

HOW WE’LL GET THERE

• One Council
• Existing Working Groups
• Action Plan

• Education & training
• Campaigns
• Supply chain

DIGITALINDICATORS

Page 131



2 Food Plan  |  2018 to 2021

Executive Summary
Food is the only product we buy and create 
that becomes part of us. We need it to function, 
grow and repair. Food is extremely important to 
our local population, the health and wellbeing 
of our residents, the local economy and the 
environment. Food gives us pleasure, allows us 
to share, celebrate and connect with others. 

The food plan will require partnership delivery 
which will address issues around healthy weight, 
but it is not limited to that alone. The plan is 
about changing the food environment and 
culture within Barnsley, as well as improving 
access to quality food and improving health and 
wellbeing outcomes. Our approach will focus 
on developments to the policies and structures 
which we live, work, shop, eat and learn within. 
Barnsley’s food plan has been developed in 
response to priorities in the 2018 refreshed 
public health strategy and will help to influence 
the social, cultural and environmental conditions 
around us. The plan will prioritise local supply 
chain, the reduction of sugar, education, public 
sector catering, the consumer food environment 
and food access.  

The food plan supports the Future Council’s vision 
and corporate priorities: Thriving and vibrant 
economy, People achieving their potential and 
Strong and resilience communities.

N.B There are specialist services that support individual behaviour 
change and individual psychological relationships with food 
which can be accessed through primary care. This level of 
support and provision is beyond the scope of the food strategy.

MONEY SPENT ON LOCAL FOOD 
IN BARNSLEY’S TOWN CENTRE 
AND PRINCIPAL TOWNS KEEPS 
MONEY IN THE BOROUGH AND 
SUPPORTS LOCAL BUSINESS 
AND THE VISITOR ECONOMY. 

FOOD EDUCATION 
PREPARES AND EQUIPS 

OUR YOUNG PEOPLE 
WITH LIFE SKILLS AND 

KNOWLEDGE.

GROWING LOCAL PRODUCE IN 
COMMUNITY ALLOTMENTS UNITES 

LOCAL PEOPLE. COMMUNITY 
COOK AND EAT SESSIONS CAN 
FOSTER NEW RELATIONSHIPS 
AND EDUCATE PEOPLE ABOUT 

HEALTHY EATING.

ALTHOUGH WE ARE ALL 
DIFFERENT, FOOD IS THE ONE 

THING WE ALL HAVE IN COMMON 
AND IT HAS THE ABILITY 

TO UNIFY PEOPLE THROUGH 
CELEBRATIONS AND EVENTS.

Page 132



3 Food Plan  |  2018 to 2021

How we will deliver the Food Plan 
1. One Council

The food plan will be delivered in partnership with all Council directorates and external partners. Although 
the plan will be led by public health, the food agenda has relevance to Council business plans and strategies: 
therefore success will only be made possible through collaboration and shared responsibilities. 

2. Action Plan          

A detailed action plan has been developed which lists the steps needed to achieve our vision. The action plan 
includes specific interventions, resources and timescales. Interventions have been assigned under the relevant 
priorities. 

3. Working Groups          

Progress and achievements will be monitored by public health DMT. Given the diversity of the food plan, 
developments will also be reported into other stakeholder groups as and when required – some of which are 
listed below. In order to be successful, the action plan will be owned by existing groups with the need for only a 
minimum number of task and finish groups to be established.  A virtual network will be established to maintain 
communication. It will be the responsibility of the Health and Wellbeing Officer to provide updates when 
appropriate, plus with quarterly updates to public health DMT. The following groups have been identified who 
have a role to play in delivering the food plan:

Delivery of the food plan and action plan will be reviewed regularly to ensure all relevant and necessary 
stakeholders have the right amount of involvement.

Group Priority Link Representative

Oral Health Improvement 
Advisory Group Sugar/Education Health & Wellbeing Officer

Evening and                  
Night-Time Economy Consumer food environment/Food access Head of Public Health

Town Centre 
Communications

Sugar/Consumer food environment/Food 
access/Public sector catering/Supply chain

Communications and 
Marketing Business Partner

Maternal and infant 
feeding Steering Group Food access/Education Head of Public Health 

Nursing Service

Early Help                   
Steering Group

Food access/Public sector catering/Sugar/
Education

Public Health Nursing       
Service Manager

Children’s Trust         
Executive Group (TEG)

Sugar/Food access/Public sector catering/
Education

Head of Public Health 
Nursing Service

Barnsley Schools        
Alliance

Public sector catering/Sugar/ Education/
Food access

Health and Wellbeing Officer 
(People Directorate)

Food Access                
Steering Group Food access/ Education Health & Wellbeing Officer

Page 133



4 Food Plan  |  2018 to 2021

Stakeholders  
Food is of interest to multiple services and departments both in and outside of the Council, with many initiatives 
already addressing food security, hygiene and access. To be successful, the food plan will need support of its 
stakeholders. Some of these stakeholders will make up the virtual network described above. A communication 
plan will be developed for all stakeholders containing key messages.

Progress to date          

Hot Food Takeaways           
In February 2018, Cabinet approved the recommendations of the Hot Food Takeaways Task and Finish 
group. From January 2019 the Supplementary Planning Guidance and additional Health Impact Assessment 
will be used as part of the planning application process to restrict the number of new hot takeaway outlets 
opening across the borough. This works contributes to the developing the local consumer food environment 
priority and the food access priority. 

Barnsley’s Big Calorie Count         
An action plan has been developed which aims to ensure that calorie information is added to all menus 
and labels across shops, cafes and other outlets in Barnsley. The aim is to help consumers make informed 
choices when making purchasing decisions. This project is also our local response to Public Health England’s 
national calories campaign. This project supports four of the food plan’s strategic priorities: education, public 
sector catering; consumer food environment and food access. 

Barnsley is Sweet Enough          
Public health has already started to reduce sugar consumption amongst Barnsley Council employees. The 
team has worked positively with Norse to remove the sale of full sugar drinks and replaced them with diet 
and zero options in Westgate and Gateway Plaza. There has not been a negative impact on sales which 
shows staff are switching to the sugar free options. Confectionary vending machines from all staff kitchens 
and break out areas have been removed. The project supports three of the strategic priorities: sugar 
reduction, public sector catering; and food access. 

Alexandra Rose Vouchers         
Were introduced in Barnsley (Central, Dearne and South Areas) two years ago. The scheme helps tackle 
food poverty and supports healthy eating whilst supporting local markets. To date 286 families have been 
supported and £35,000 worth of vouchers has been spent in Barnsley’s local markets. An evaluation report 
has shown Alexandra Rose has led to increased use of the markets, increased consumption of fruit and 
vegetables, weight loss, increased cooking from scratch and families eating together. A full evaluation 
report is available from the People Directorate. This project support the following priorities: supply chain, 
education, consumer food environment and food access.

 Internal Stakeholders  External Stakeholders
Anti-Poverty Delivery Group
Area Councils
Business Intelligence
Environment & Transport
Environmental Health
Events and Culture
Family Centres
Market Kitchen Project Board
Museums
Planning 
Public Health Nursing Service 
School Catering Service
School Governor Development
Town Centre Management
Trading Standards

Alexandra Rose Charity 
Barnsley and Rotherham Chamber of Commerce
Barnsley CCG
Barnsley Food Bank Partnership
Barnsley GP Federation
Barnsley Hospital
Berneslai Homes
Food Access Steering Group
Food suppliers
Healthwatch
Incredible Edible
Local food retailers
Manufacturing
Schools & Colleges
South West Yorkshire NHS Foundation Trust
Town Centre Retail Forum
Voluntary Sector

Page 134



5 Food Plan  |  2018 to 2021

Strategic Links
Cancer and Cardiovascular Disease Prevention
Through encouraging healthy eating, improved access to fresh fruit and vegetables, a reduction in the 
availability of excess salt, fats and sugar are all examples of how the food plan will contribute to reducing 
mortality in Barnsley. The future restrictions imposed on hot food takeaways will support the health outcomes 
of those living in the most deprived communities as the evidence shows high proliferation of takeaways in 
disadvantaged areas. 

Physical Activity
Although healthy weight is only one part of the food plan, excess weight is one of the indicators. The food 
plan will be complemented by the developments in the physical activity strategy 2018-2021 and vice- versa, 
in order to promote healthy weight. The link between physical inactivity and obesity is well established, 
however, it is important to note that not one alone can combat obesity. Food and physical activity 
interventions together at a population level are more likely to be successful in addressing healthy weight. 

Food Access 
Under the governance of the Stronger Communities Partnership sits the Food Access Steering Group. The 
group’s vision is to build a better Barnsley where everyone has the right to the food they need to thrive. There 
are clear links between the aims of the food access network and this plan. Part of the remit for the Steering 
Group will to become a delivery group for the food access objective of the Barnsley Council food plan. 

Healthy Lifestyles Service
The review of Barnsley Council’s healthy lifestyles service (includes individual behaviour change and weight 
management) will support the aims and objectives of the food strategy. 

Public Health Strategy 2018-2021 
Food is one of the three new priority areas in the refreshed public health strategy 2018-2021.

Elements of Barnsley’s food plan can only be 
achieved at a national level. Through this plan, 
Barnsley Council would support all interventions 
in the Government’s Childhood obesity: a plan 
for action Chapter 2 (2018) such as:
• Clear calorie information on food labels
• Calorie reduction programme 
• Restrictions on junk food marketing to 

children

Plus other national campaigns such as: 
• Reduction of trans-fats in products and 

cooking methods
• Development of a UK food policy

Page 135



This page is intentionally left blank



Covernote for mental health and community providers and Local Authorities
on the

Strategic Outline Case on Hospital Services
August 2018

1. Summary

Local Authorities, and the Boards of community, mental health and ambulance service providers in 
South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire, are invited to note the 
attached Strategic Outline Case on hospital services.

In May, the Hospital Services Review (HSR) published its final report. Boards, Governing Bodies, 
some Local Authorities and members of the public have now given their feedback on the 
recommendations in the report. 

The feedback has been used to inform a Strategic Outline Case (SOC), which is the system’s 
statement of intent around how it will take forward the recommendations of the HSR.

The SOC largely accepts the recommendations of the HSR, with two main changes:
 it emphasises the transformation of the workforce more than the HSR did
 it outlines that the Clinical Working Groups on maternity and paediatrics will be asked to 

explore clinical models that could satisfy interdependencies between maternity and 
paediatrics, as a possible alternative to moving to a Standalone Midwifery Led Unit.

The SOC has been circulated to CCG Governing Bodies for agreement, in line with their statutory 
responsibility to make decisions on issues related to service change. It has also been circulated to 
Boards of acute providers as the organisations most directly affected.

It is circulated to other provider and Local Authority members of the Collaborative Partnership Board 
to note. The full copy list of organisations is attached below.

The SOC will be submitted to the next meeting of the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
(JHOSC). 

The Boards of community, mental health and ambulance service providers, in South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire, are invited to note the 
attached Strategic Outline Case for information.

Local Authorities are invited to note the SOC for information. In line with the agreed 
governance arrangements, they are asked to discuss the paper in the JHOSC rather than in 
individual Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

2. Background: responses to the HSR

The final report of the independent Hospital Services Review was published on 9th May 2018. 

Governing Bodies, provider Trust Boards, Local Authorities and the public were invited to comment 
on the report by 12th July (this was not a formal public consultation). Responses were received from 
providers (including the community and mental health trusts and ambulance services); CCGs; 1 local 
authority; and 2 members of the public. All responses received as of 21st August are at Annex B. 

The responses from the CCG Governing Bodies, Boards and Local Authorities broadly supported the 
recommendations. Some points were raised which were addressed in the drafting of the SOC 
(section 3 below). 

Page 137

HWB.02.10.2018/13



In July NHSE also provided input through Gateway 1 of the NHSE assurance process. NHSE approved 
the process thus far, and laid out the areas which will need further work if the system takes forward 
the recommendations. 

3. The Strategic Outline Case 

Up to May, the HSR was an independent review. The vehicle for the system to confirm its response 
to the recommendations, and publicly state its next steps, is the Strategic Outline Case (SOC). 

Content of the SOC

The draft SOC lays out the overall direction for the SYB Integrated Care System (as SYB defined in the 
Sustainability and Transformation Plan) with Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire; the case for 
change; and the response to the HSR recommendations. The document says that the system will 
take forward work in three areas:

 Shared working between acute providers: through developing Hosted Networks and a 
system-wide Health and Care Institute, alongside an Innovation Hub

 Service transformation: building on and supporting the shift of activity out of hospital into 
the primary and community care sectors; and transforming workforce roles and clinical 
pathways

 Reconfiguration: modelling options for reconfiguration of maternity and paediatrics on 1-2 
sites; considering moving to 3-4 sites for emergency GI bleeds out of hours; and looking at 
options to support stroke services on sites which only have an Acute Stroke Unit through 
joint working, while standardising access to e.g. Early Supported Discharge and stroke 
rehabilitation across the trusts. 

The 5 trusts of SYB, plus Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust will participate in all of 
these workstreams. Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust will consider whether they want to be part of 
the Hosted Networks and service transformation workstreams as these develop; they are not part of 
the reconfiguration workstream.

Changes between the HSR and the SOC

In response to the comments received, the following key changes have been made between the HSR 
and the SOC. A more detailed point by point response to each of the replies received is at Annex B.

 A greater focus on transformation has been introduced, in particular a stronger role for 
Clinical Working Groups in redesigning job roles and clinical pathways. This is now a 
workstream in its own right.

 The timeline has been lengthened, to allow more time to develop the transformation of the 
workforce roles before modelling reconfiguration, and to allow more time for Boards and 
Governing Bodies to engage.

 On maternity and paediatrics, several organisations raised concerns about 
interdependencies and Standalone Midwifery Led Units. The SOC says that the Clinical 
Working Groups will be asked to explore alternative ways of addressing interdependencies 
between maternity and paediatics, without moving to a SMLU. Any models which are 
proposed would be scrutinised by the Clinical Senate. 

 On elective services, the HSR recommended that the next stage of work should look at some 
elective services. CEOs and AOs agreed that this should not be a part of the next stage of 
work on hospital services, although work on improving quality of elective services will 
continue through the elective workstrand.

Page 138



 In relation to Chesterfield, the SOC makes it clearer that the SYB ICS will work with the 
Derbyshire STP in developing proposals and mitigations.

 Where a reconfiguration option would result in some patients moving to trusts which are 
not within SYBND, the SOC says that the team will do due diligence around any quality 
issues while the options are being modelled, and the quality implications will be assessed 
against the evaluation criterion on quality.

 The data in the financial analysis has been slightly updated. Some updated numbers on 
activity levels were provided by some trusts too late to be included in the HSR. They make 
only a very marginal difference and do not change the decision making but in the interests of 
completeness they will be published alongside the SOC.

 Local Authorities requested that they should be more closely involved in the development 
of the next stage of work. This is being taken forward formally through the context of the 
wider ICS governance review and through relationships between the ICS and Local 
Authorities, and individual Places and Local Authorities. 

 Members of the public raised a number of concerns. The detailed response to the points 
raised is at Annex B, and clarifications (e.g. around the intention to retain all existing A&Es, 
and to engage with transport organisations) have been provided in the SOC where possible. 

The Boards of community, mental health and ambulance service providers, in South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire, are invited to note the attached Strategic Outline 
Case for information.

Local Authorities are invited to note the SOC for information. In line with the agreed governance 
arrangements, Local Authorities are asked to discuss the paper in the Joint Health Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee rather than in individual Overview and Scrutiny Committees.

Alexandra Norrish
Programme Director, Hospital Services Programme
28 August 2018

This paper is copied to:

 The Boards of South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust; Sheffield Health and 
Social Care NHS Foundation Trust; Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS 
Foundation Trust; and Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Trust

 The Boards of East Midlands Ambulance Service and Yorkshire Ambulance Service
 The Boards of Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council; Derbyshire County Council; 

Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council; Nottinghamshire County Council; Rotherham 
Metropolitan Borough Council and Sheffield County Council.

 

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank



1

South Yorkshire and BassetlawIntegrated Care System 

Strategic Outline Case on Hospital Services
Presentation to Governing Bodies and Boards

August 2018

P
age 141



2

The final report of the Hospital Services Review was published in May
The Hospital Services Review was set up to ensure people 
across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and 
North Derbyshire (SYBMYND), continue to receive 
excellent hospital services now and in the future.

It made recommendations focused on 5 services (see purple box) which:
• Are facing significant difficulties with workforce and quality; and
• have a significant impact on the service as a whole

• Urgent and Emergency Care
• Maternity
• Care of the Acutely Ill Child
• Gastroenterology and 

Endoscopy 
• Stroke 

P
age 142



3

Hospital Services 
Review

• An independent 
Review, chaired by 
Prof. Chris Welsh

• Made 
recommendations 
around 
• how Trusts can work 

together; and
• configuration of 

services

Commentsby Boards, Governing Bodies, Local Authorities, members of the public; assuranceby NHSE

Strategic Outline 
Case

The statement by the 
health and care 
stakeholders in SYBMYND 
which 
• lays out SYBMYND’s 

response to the 
recommendations; and 

• lays out the agreement 
by commissioners and 
trusts as to how 
SYBMYND will take 
forward work in these 
areas

P
age 143



4

The three main principles of the HSR are also the main principles of the SOC:

1. There will continue to be a hospital in every Place: we are not closing any District General Hospitals;

2. Most patients will receive most of their hospital-based care at their local DGH;

3. We need the staff we have – we do not expect that the work of the Review will lead to any redundancies, although we may need to work differently.

P
age 144



5

The SOC lays out three main workstreams

1. Shared 
working

2. 
Transformation

3. 
Reconfiguration

Developing Hosted Networks to support co-operation between trusts and improve conditions for staff.
Support for workforce and innovation through a Health and Care Institute and Innovation Hub

Shifting activity from the acute sector to primary and community care, where appropriate
Transforming the workforce, e.g. by changing job roles

Exploring options around how services are configured, for maternity, paediatrics andgastroenterology.

P
age 145



6

The proposal for Hosted Networks is formal collaborations between trusts

All trusts, for all specialties
All trusts, for some specialties

Some trusts, for some specialties

• Agreed protocols for patient transfers 
• Agreed clinical protocols
• Opportunities to work across sites egsecondments, rotations
• Standardised job roles for the alternate professions

• Managing capacity across sites – e.g. a single point to co-ordinate available beds across sites
• More direct role in workforce planning to address shortages

• More direct role in supporting the delivery of services on another site

The host could be any of the SYB trusts (and potentially Mid Yorks / Chesterfield in long term)

P
age 146



7

Transformation is focused on making the best use of our workforce and buildings 
Delivering care in the right 

setting
Making the best use of our 

workforce

• The 2016 Sustainability andTransformation Plan identified thatsome patients are receiving care inhospital which could better bedelivered elsewhere
• The Clinical Working Groups will lookat shifts of activity in their ownspecialties, supporting existing workin Places

• The HSR recommended that hospitalsshould work together to redesign theworkforce, for example aroundmaking more consistent use ofAdvanced Nurse Practitioners andPhysicians’ Associates
• The Clinical Working Groups will lookat the options in their own specialties

Patient and public input will be sought on any recommendations the CWGs put forward

P
age 147



8

On reconfiguration, we will explore options for maternity, paediatrics and gastroenterology
Acutely ill childrenA&E Maternity Gastroenter-ologyStroke

• Maintain 6 consultant led A&Es (plus the consultant led paediatric A&E at Sheffield Children’s)

• Increase choice: home births; allhospitals have midwifery led services for low risk women
• Could replace 1 or 2 obstetric units with MLUs. But we will explore other options to meet requirements for interdependen-cies with paediatrics.

• More care for children at home / in community
• Explore focusing 24/7 paediatric units on fewer sites: 1 or 2 could become Paediatric Assessment Units open 14/7. We will explore options to meet interdependen-cies with obstetrics 

• Standardised approach to Early Supported Discharge, TIA and rehab services
• Consultants on Sites which will have a Hyper Acute Stroke Unit support services on those sites which have Acute Stroke Unit  

• Explore consolidating evening and weekend cover onto 3 or 4 sites: so that all sites have formal access to 24/7 GI bleed cover at all times, if necessary on another site 

P
age 148



9

Responses to the Hospital Services Review Some changes have been made in response to feedback on the HSR. 
Greater emphasis on transformation

Trusts requested that we make it clearer that the acutework is built on transformation of the workforce andmoving care out of hospital. We have made this a piece ofwork in its own right. Reconfiguration work will be basedon the transformed workforce.
Interdependencies between maternity and paediatrics 

Some concerns were raised about moving to standaloneMidwifery Led Units. The SOC says that we will exploreother options around meeting interdependencies betweenpaediatrics and obstetric units.

Refreshing modelling

Patients travelling out of area

Public feedback

Involvement of Local Authorities

Some concerns were raised about the impact on patientswho might move to a non-SYB Trust. The ICS team willlook at the quality implications of this and assess againstthe evaluation criterion on quality at evaluation stage.
LAs asked to be more engaged going forward. Thegovernance of the ICS is being reviewed, and the hospitalservices team will engage with LA colleagues.
A key theme of transport was raised, which we will explorefurther in a dedicated transport group. The SOC outlinespublic feedback and how comments have been addressed.
Some updated data on activity was provided too late to beincluded in the HSR final report. We have refreshed themodelling to include it; the changes are marginal and donot change the recommendations.

P
age 149



10

Next steps
The shared working and transformation workstreams will require public engagement. Any reconfiguration options will require formal consultation which requires a longer timeframe. These timescales are provisional.
Sep – Dec 2018 Jan – May 2019 Jun – Sept 2019

Reconfiguration: 
develop evaluation 
criteria, the model 
and the longlist of 

options

Public engagement on all workstrands

Continue modelling, 
work on travel and 

transport

Signoff by Governing 
Bodies, NHSE 

Gateway 2, finalise 
Business Case

Oct ->

Public 
consult-

ation

Shared working: Development and implementation of the hosted 
networks, Health & Care Institute, Innovation Hub

Transformation: CWGs 
identify out of hospital shift, 

workforce changes

P
age 150



11

Thank you

P
age 151



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire 
and North Derbyshire: Hospital Services 
Programme 

STRATEGIC OUTLINE BUSINESS CASE 

August 24th 2018

Page 153



2

CONTENTS

1 Executive Summary ........................................................................................................................4

1.1 Shared working between acute providers..............................................................................4

1.2 Transformation of services .....................................................................................................5

1.3 Reconfiguration ......................................................................................................................5

1.4 Governance.............................................................................................................................5

2 Strategic Context ............................................................................................................................7

2.1 Vision ......................................................................................................................................7

2.2 Integrated Care Systems.........................................................................................................7

2.2.1 The SYB ICS .....................................................................................................................7

2.2.2 The SYBMYND Collaborative...........................................................................................7

2.3 The Hospital Services Review (HSR)........................................................................................8

3 Challenges in Acute Services ..........................................................................................................9

3.1 Introduction............................................................................................................................9

3.2 Unsustainable Services ...........................................................................................................9

3.3 The Main Challenges Facing the Five Core Services .............................................................11

3.4 Future work on other services..............................................................................................11

4 Recommendations of the Hospital Services Review.....................................................................12

4.1 The Recommendations in the Final Report ..........................................................................12

4.2 Responses to the HSR Recommendations ............................................................................13

5 The Agreed Way Forward .............................................................................................................14

5.1 Shared working between acute providers............................................................................14

5.1.1 Hosted Networks ..........................................................................................................14

5.1.2 Health and Care Institute & Innovation Hub ................................................................15

5.2 Service Transformation.........................................................................................................15

5.2.1 Moving care out of hospital into primary care and community care ...........................15

5.2.2 Transformation of clinical models and workforce roles ...............................................16

5.3 Reconfiguration ....................................................................................................................16

5.3.1 Urgent and Emergency Care .........................................................................................16

5.3.2 Care of the Acutely Ill Child...........................................................................................16

5.3.3 Maternity ......................................................................................................................17

5.3.4 Gastroenterology..........................................................................................................18

5.3.5 Stroke............................................................................................................................18

5.4 Considerations in Relation to Reconfiguration .....................................................................19

5.4.1 Sites in Scope ................................................................................................................19

5.4.2 Trusts outside the ICS ...................................................................................................19

Page 154



3

5.4.3 Transport ......................................................................................................................20

5.4.4 Equalities Impact Assessment.......................................................................................21

5.4.5 Affordability ..................................................................................................................21

6 Capital Funding .............................................................................................................................23

7 Next steps .....................................................................................................................................25

7.1 Service Level Collaboration...................................................................................................25

7.2 System Level Collaborative Working ....................................................................................25

7.3 Service Transformation.........................................................................................................25

7.4 Reconfiguration ....................................................................................................................25

7.5 Moving care into the community (out of hospital)...............................................................26

7.6 Public consultation and engagement ...................................................................................27

7.7 Assurance of the proposals...................................................................................................28

7.8 Governance...........................................................................................................................28

8 Timeline for delivery.....................................................................................................................31

8.1 High level timeline ................................................................................................................31

8.1.1 Agreed way forward .....................................................................................................31

9 Glossary ........................................................................................................................................33

Annex A – Responses to HSR Feedback

Annex B – Case for Change

Annex C – SYB ICS Collaborative Partnership Board

Annex D – Details of CCG Governing Body and Trust Board Discussions on HSR, Post-Publication

Annex E – Addendum to HSR Financial Modelling

Page 155



4

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Health and care organisations in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire, and North 
Derbyshire (SYBMYND) have formed strong partnership working over a number of years with a 
reputation for delivering long term improvement to health and care for all of our local populations.

This joint working covers primary care, community care, mental health, acute and specialist care and 
our thinking starts with where people live, in their neighbourhoods, focussing on people being 
enabled and supported to stay well. Our ambition is to introduce new and improved services, to 
develop better coordination between those which already exists, to provide support for people who 
are at most risk and to adapt our workforce so that we are better meeting people’s needs.  

Prevention will be at the heart of everything we do, and investing in and reshaping primary and 
community services and integrating mental and physical health will ensure people are supported as 
close to home as possible.  At the same time we have an ambition that everyone should have 
improved access to high quality care in hospitals and that no matter where people live they should 
receive the same standards of care. Key to this success will be developing innovative models of care 
building on the work of the Working Together Acute Care Vanguard.

Following the publication of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw system plan the South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Health and Care Partnership, through its Partnership Board, voluntarily initiated an 
independent review of Hospital Services.  The Hospital Services Review (HSR) was published in May 
2018 and it made a number of recommendations including ways in which acute trusts could work 
together more effectively to meet the needs of patients and how services are designed across 
SYBMYND. 

Partners, including all health commissioners and acute providers across SYBMYND, have now 
considered the report and provided feedback on its recommendations.  The independent review 
together with its recommendations was well received and broad support was given from system 
partners to take the work to the next stage. 

This Strategic Outline Case (SOC) describes how SYBMYND partners will take the review and its 
recommendations forward to support realisation of shared ambitions set out in the System Plan 
published in November 2016.

Below is a summary of the key recommendations which will be taken forward and which the system 
will build on in the next stage.

1.1 SHARED WORKING BETWEEN ACUTE PROVIDERS 

 Acute, community and primary care providers should continue to work together, at Place 
level, to ensure that services are delivered as close to patients’ homes as possible. This 
should be supported by standardisation of which services are being provided nearer to 
where people live rather than in acute hospitals.

 The acute hospitals should work together more closely. ‘Hosted Networks’ should be 
established, initially for the 5 services included in the Independent Review. They will drive 
collaboration, improve workforce planning development and deployment, standardise 
clinical protocols to improve outcomes, and identify and roll-out cost-effective quality-
improving innovations across the system. 

Page 156



5

 System partners should establish a Health and Care Institute and an Innovation Hub to 
provide a system-wide central support for workforce and innovation across the system. 

1.2 TRANSFORMATION OF SERVICES

 Moving care into primary care and community care. The individual Places within SYB and 
ND are developing an Out of Hospital Strategy to enable people and patients to be cared for 
outside a hospital setting where this is appropriate, and as close to home as possible. To 
support this, the Clinical Working Groups will work jointly with colleagues in primary care 
and community care to identify care pathways and services which could be delivered in non-
acute settings.

 Transformation of clinical models and workforce roles. In order to ensure that we are 
making the best use of our staff, and providing care as efficiently as possible, we will ask the 
Clinical Working Groups to develop new workforce models and new clinical service models. 
The reconfiguration modelling will take account of these new clinical workforce and clinical 
service models, to ensure that reconfiguration options are fit for the future and sustainable.

1.3 RECONFIGURATION

 District General Hospitals will be maintained in every place, each with its own service 
portfolio comprising a core and specialist offer, working in a networked way across the 
region. 

 Providers and commissioners will consider consolidating some services onto fewer sites, in 
order to improve the quality of care that can be provided to patients and make the best use 
of available workforce:

o All Emergency Departments should remain open and continue to provide 24/7 care

o Paediatrics: The system will consider the consolidation of full-time inpatient 
paediatric units from six sites onto four or five, maintaining part-time short stay 
paediatric assessment units in those places that consolidate their paediatric 
inpatient units. 

o Maternity: the system will consider service models that can support changes to the 
paediatric services available onsite. This should include the possibility of maintaining 
standalone Midwifery Led Units on sites which do not have inpatient paediatrics. 
However we will also look at other options that can address the interdependencies 
between inpatient paediatrics and obstetric services.

o Gastrointestinal bleeds: Given the difficulty in sustaining out-of-hours rotas for GI 
bleeds, the system will model consolidating its services from five (currently not all 
full-time) rotas to three or four full-time out-of-hours rotas.

o Stroke: Hospitals should adopt a paired approach to collaborative working to deliver 
stroke services, whereby sites with a combination of Hyper Acute Stroke Unit (HASU) 
and Acute Stroke Unit (ASU) services work with sites that have only ASU/in-patient 
rehabilitation services, to allow rotation of staff and exposure to more development 
opportunities. 

 The system will establish a transport reference group with a remit to develop a system-wide 
transport strategy and the specific functions to support and deliver it

Page 157



6

1.4 GOVERNANCE

 Commissioners, providers, NHS England and NHS Improvement and the Arms-length-Bodies 
have being developing a collaborative approach to shared working which they will build on. 
Commissioners and providers recognise that the current arrangements for decision making 
will need to evolve to support the scale of change that is included in this report.  

 As the ICS develops, SYBMYND will review current governance arrangements in context of 
the existing legal framework and ensure these enable appropriate decision making to 
support the successful implementation of the recommendations in this report so that 
partners can improve outcomes and accessibility to services for people and patients. 

This report sets out the case for change behind these agreed directions of travel, and how the 
system will take them forward. 

Page 158



7

2 STRATEGIC CONTEXT

2.1 VISION

This Strategic Outline Case recognises that South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid-Yorkshire and North 
Derbyshire (SYBMYND) are on a journey, which began several years ago with providers and 
commissioners choosing to work collaboratively,  the publication of a system plan outlining the 
strategic ambition for health and care and which continues with the Hospital Service Review 
recommendations, We recognise that ways of working and approaches to collaboration will continue 
to evolve, as South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB) develops its role of becoming one of the first, and 
one of the largest, Integrated Care Systems (ICS) in the country. 

Our vision focuses on people staying well in their own neighbourhoods, by integrating health and 
care services and developing a workforce that best meets people’s needs. 

The SYB ICS brings together commissioners, and acute, mental health, community, social care and 
primary care providers from our five places to work together to improve health and care services 
and outcomes to benefit our population.  

Our vision for acute hospitals is to work together within networks rather than as individual, 
standalone providers. By working more closely together, we believe that we will provide better and 
more equitable care for our patients. We believe that we should have agreed standards and a shared 
way of doing things so that people can access the most appropriate care, no matter where they live.

In most cases, we anticipate that the majority of patients will continue to receive their care in their 
local hospital. We confirm our commitment to maintaining all of our local District General Hospitals. 

Where patients have more complex needs, we anticipate they may access specialist care and 
treatment at another site within the network.  

The networked approach will include Mid Yorkshire and Chesterfield hospitals, which are associate 
partners to the SYB ICS but have a long history of shared working with the SYB hospitals due to well 
established patient flows from the border areas of SYB. 

2.2 INTEGRATED CARE SYSTEMS

Integrated Care Systems (ICSs) are systems in which NHS commissioners, providers, NHS England 
and NHS Improvement and other Arm’s-Length-Bodies, working closely with GP networks, local 
authorities and other partners, agree to take shared responsibility (in ways that are consistent with 
their individual legal obligations) for how they use their collective resources to improve quality of 
care and health outcomes. ICSs are expected to make faster progress than other health systems in 
transforming the way care is delivered, to the benefit of the population they serve.  

2.2.1 The SYB ICS

The SYB system is large and complex, comprising of five places: Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, 
Rotherham and Sheffield. Within the SYB system are 208 GP practices, five local authorities, five 
clinical commissioning groups, five acute Foundation Trusts (two with integrated community 
services), four mental health providers and one ambulance service. The system is served by 72,000 
staff and a health and care budget of £3.9bn each year. There are also two associate partner trusts: 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust and Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust, and two 
associate CCGs: North Derbyshire CCG and Wakefield CCG.

2.2.2 The SYBMYND Collaborative
The five ‘core trusts’ are the members of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System: 

 Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust; 

Page 159



8

 Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust;
 Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust; 
 Sheffield Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust; and 
 The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust. 

In addition to this, the neighbouring acute trust of Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 
was fully included within the recommendations of the Review, and recommendations relating to 
shared working (though not to reconfiguration) also included the Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust. 

Their inclusion was due to a long history of joint working and clinical networks which support patient 
services, and the formal collaboration which has existed between the seven SYBMYND acute 
providers since 2014, when the Providers Working Together acute national Vanguard Programme 
was established. 

However, going forward, work with Chesterfield will need to take account of Chesterfield’s position 
within the Derbyshire Sustainability and Transformation Plan as well as its links to South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw.

2.3 THE HOSPITAL SERVICES REVIEW (HSR)
In 2017 the system commissioned a review of its acute services, recognising they faced significant 
sustainability challenges. 

The HSR was undertaken over a 10-month period phased in three stages:

 June – August 2017: Identifying the services in scope for the Review

 September – December 2017: Detailed analysis of the issues facing the 5 core services

 January – May 2018: Development of options for the core services. 

The Review was informed by a process of clinical engagement, through a series of Clinical Working 
Groups each of which met five times; and a public engagement programme which included both face 
to face and online communications. Concerted effort was made to engage seldom heard groups. 

The Review team has published the notes of the clinical meetings, the reports of all the public 
engagement events, the findings of the Review and the detailed evidence for these at each stage of 
the Review. The reports and the supporting annexes can be found, along with the full set of Review 
documentation, at: 

http://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-
proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services

This Strategic Outline Case outlines the system’s agreed way forward following the receipt of the 
HSR recommendations. It draws on the HSR report, and on the responses to that Report (attached at 
Annex A).

Page 160

http://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services
http://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services


9

3 CHALLENGES IN ACUTE SERVICES

A full case for change for the system is published as part of the HSR’s website online. An updated 
analysis of the performance metrics of the Trusts in the system, and an overview of the challenges 
identified in the five services in scope of the review can be found in Annex B – Case for Change.

3.1 INTRODUCTION

The partners and associates of the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw ICS commissioned the HSR in 
response to the challenges identified in the SYB Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) or 
System Plan.

SYBMYND has some of the best acute hospital services in the country, some of which have national 
and international reputations, including a specialist cancer centre, children’s hospital and numerous 
high quality services in many locations. It also has one of the country’s busiest accident and 
emergency departments. However, the system is under pressure from mounting demand and 
workforce pressures, both of which impact on the quality of care that patients receive. In addition 
there are inequalities of access and health outcomes across SYBMYND. 

The current and future context will continue to challenge the system, as Trusts continue to respond 
to increasing demand and to national requirements around quality of care, equity of access and 
efficiency. The Review offered a unique opportunity to fundamentally change the way care is 
delivered in the system, and to consider options to transform the way trusts work together to 
sustain services. 

Through tackling the challenges together, and considering the Report recommendations, SYBMYND 
aims to become one of the most innovative, safe, caring, responsive, effective, well led and efficient 
health and care systems in the country.

3.2 UNSUSTAINABLE SERVICES

The HSR spent the first three months of the Review assessing performance across all acute 
specialties in SYBMYND. 

The findings of the assessment are published in the Stage 1A Report of the HSR, available at:

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_
1a_Report.pdf

The HSR found that a number of acute services across SYBMYND were facing significant 
sustainability challenges. The HSR undertook a methodical prioritisation process to identify those 
services which were facing the most acute challenges, and from these it selected five significantly 
challenged services as the focus of the Review.

Details of how the services were identified are laid out in the 1A Report which is available on the 
website. In summary, the HSR considered a range of published metrics to provide an independent 
analysis; worked with Trusts to identify the services that they thought most unsustainable; and 
identified the level of interdependencies with other services.

The below table identifies the acute services identified as the most unsustainable. A high score 
indicates that not only was the service of high concern to individual Trusts across the system, but 
that this assessment was backed up by evidence, and that the service was critically interdependent 
in maintaining other hospital services. 

Page 161

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_1a_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_1a_Report.pdf


10

Rank Service Independent 
analysis

Trust self-
assessment

Degree of clinical 
co-dependencies

Sustainability 
Score

1
Emergency 
Medicine 13.6 16.0 16.0 15.2

2 Gastroenterology 10.8 13.0 15.0 12.9

3 Urology 13.5 12.0 13.0 12.8

4 Stroke - HASU 10.8 16.0 11.0 12.6

5 Critical Care 13.0 12.0 12.0 12.3

6 ENT 11.9 12.0 13.0 12.3

7 Cardiology 14.3 11.0 11.0 12.1

8 Radiology 11.8 12.0 12.0 11.9

9 Acute Medicine 11.2 11.0 12.0 11.4

10 Dermatology 14.3 18.0 0.0 10.8

11
Paediatric  
Medicine 9.4 11.0 11.0 10.5

12 Orthopaedics 14.3 8.0 8.0 10.1

13 Endoscopy 6.7 10.0 12.0 9.6

14 Ophthalmology 14.4 14.0 0.0 9.5

15 Neonatology 7.6 10.0 10.0 9.2

Table 1: Assessment of service sustainability. Services taken forward for inclusion in the Hospital Services Review are 
highlighted

In order to agree which of these very challenged services the Review should focus on, the HSR team 
invited input from the HSR Steering Group (including Medical Directors of all the trusts); patients and 
the public; and national organisations such as NHS England.

From the Steering Group, the following five services were identified for Review:

 Urgent and Emergency Care

 Acute Paediatrics (Care of the Acutely Ill Child)

 Maternity

 Stroke (the acute pathway, supporting HASU)

 Gastroenterology and Endoscopy

Four of these scored in the top fifteen most unsustainable services in SYBMYND (highlighted in 
orange in the table above). The fifth, maternity, was added because its interdependencies with 
paediatrics make it difficult to consider paediatrics in isolation, as well as its significance whilst 
considering the role of the District General Hospital (which was part of the HSR’s terms of 
reference). Endoscopy and Gastroenterology were included together for the same reason.

Page 162



11

3.3 THE MAIN CHALLENGES FACING THE FIVE CORE SERVICES

The main challenges facing each of the five services were identified through the Clinical Working 
Groups, engagement with patients and the public, and performance and workforce data provided by 
the Trusts.

The main challenges that emerged in relation to the five services are as follows:

 Workforce – As is the case across the country, SYBMYND has a significant shortfall in the 
number of substantive staff in the system, with problems in both the recruitment and 
retention staff. The remaining workforce is therefore overstretched and there is a significant 
reliance on costly agency staff. Gaps in the workforce mean that staffing levels can fall below 
those required to provide a safe service for patients. 

 Unwarranted Clinical Variation - Lack of standardised clinical protocols across the region 
means that patients with the same condition can receive different packages of care. This 
results in variation in clinical outcomes, both between and within Trusts. Reducing 
unwarranted variation is a key priority for the NHS nationally and was identified as a key 
challenge in the SYBMYND region. 

 Innovation – Technology and digital infrastructure were flagged as being problematic. 
Outdated systems that were incompatible with one another, and slow adoption of new 
technologies across the region were hindering progress that could support the work of 
clinical healthcare staff.

Further detail on the challenges faced by the system and those faced by the five services in question 
is provided in Annex B – Case for Change. 

A full report of the challenges identified by the HSR is available in the Stage 1B Report available at:

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_
Review_1b_report.pdf

3.4 FUTURE WORK ON OTHER SERVICES

The five services identified above have formed the first wave of services. In the work over the next 
twelve months, neonatology will be included in the work on paediatrics because its 
interdependencies with maternity and paediatrics mean that it needs to be considered as part of any 
potential reconfiguration. In South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire, most 
neonatologists also work in paediatric units. This point has been raised frequently in feedback from 
stakeholders across the system including the maternity and paediatric Clinical Working Groups.

Page 163

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_Review_1b_report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_Review_1b_report.pdf


12

4 RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE HOSPITAL SERVICES REVIEW

4.1 THE RECOMMENDATIONS IN THE FINAL REPORT

Following as assessment of the sustainability of acute services in the SYBMYND, which involved 
significant clinical and public engagement throughout, the HSR made the following 
recommendations:

 Acute, community and primary care providers should continue to work together, at Place 
level, to ensure that services are delivered as close to patients’ homes as possible. This 
should be supported by some standardisation across the acute services: there should be a 
defined range of services that will be moved out of an acute hospital setting, to be delivered 
in primary or community care, or patients’ own homes.

 All of the existing District General Hospitals should be maintained, each with its own 
service portfolio, working in a networked way across the region. 

 The acute hospitals should work together more closely. ‘Hosted Networks’ should be set 
up, initially for the 5 services included in the Review, with each capable provider taking the 
lead on one of the services.  There will be three tiers of Hosted Networks. At the minimum, 
they will aim to drive collaboration and improve workforce planning, development and 
deployment; standardise clinical protocols to improve outcomes; and identify and roll-out 
cost-effective, quality-improving innovations across the system. For some specialties, the 
Host of the Hosted Network will co-ordinate capacity and workforce; and in the most 
developed model the Host may potentially support delivery of a service on other site(s). 

 System partners should establish a Health and Care Institute and an Innovation Hub to 
provide a system-wide central support for workforce and innovation across the system. A 
Health and Care Institute should provide a central resource to support the recruitment, 
training and development of staff; the development of standardised clinical protocols; and 
the analysis and monitoring of trust performance, acting as a central intelligence function. 
An Innovation Hub should provide the capabilities to identify and roll-out cost-effective 
innovations across the system, working with local, regional and national partners. 

 Providers and commissioners should consider consolidating some services onto fewer 
sites. Given the magnitude of the workforce challenge, both now and forecast in the do-
nothing future scenario, collaborative working will not go far enough. As such, the HSR 
recommended that providers and commissioners should consider the consolidation of some 
services onto fewer sites, in order to make the most out of the available workforce and 
improve the quality of care that can be provided to patients. 

o All Emergency Departments should remain open and continue to provide 24/7 care

o Paediatrics: The system should consider the consolidation of full-time inpatient 
paediatric units from six sites onto four or five, maintaining part-time short stay 
paediatric assessment units in those places that consolidate their paediatric 
inpatient units. 

o Maternity: The system should consider the consolidation of consultant-led birthing 
units from six sites onto four or five, maintaining standalone midwifery-led birthing 
units in those places that consolidate their CLU.

o Gastrointestinal bleeds: Given the difficulty in sustaining out-of-hours rotas for GI 
bleeds, the system should consider consolidating its services from five (currently not 
all full-time) rotas to three or four full-time out-of-hours rotas.

Page 164



13

o Stroke: Hospitals should adopt a paired approach to collaborative working to deliver 
stroke services, whereby sites with a combination of Hyper Acute Stroke Unit (HASU) 
and Acute Stroke Unit (ASU) services work with sites that have only ASU/in-patient 
rehabilitation services, to allow rotation of staff and exposure to more development 
opportunities. 

o Elective: The system should develop models for the transformation and 
reconfiguration of elective services to support an improvement in quality of elective 
services, as well as to support changes to non-elective services, given 
unsustainability challenges in this area.

 Access: The system should establish a transport reference group with a remit to develop a 
system-wide transport strategy and the specific functions to support and deliver it

 Governance: Current arrangements between providers are unlikely to be fit for purpose 
when considering the scale of change that is included in this report. SYBMYND should review 
current governance arrangements and ensure these enable rapid decision making at pace to 
support the successful implementation of the recommendations in this report. 

Full details of how the HSR developed these options are available in previous Stage 1A, Stage 1B and 
Stage 2 HSR Reports.

Final recommendations themselves can be found at:

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2845/1016/25._HSR_Stage_2_
Report.pdf

4.2 RESPONSES TO THE HSR RECOMMENDATIONS

Since publication of the final HSR in May 2018, its recommendations have been shared with CCG 
Governing Bodies and Trust Boards. Public engagement has also been ongoing to inform the public 
of developments while continuing to capture their thoughts.

There was broad support for the findings and recommendations of the Review, and as such this 
Strategic Outline Case outlines the Governing Bodies’ intention to take on board the 
recommendations and commit to further work on the sustainability of acute services. 

The feedback received to the HSR proposals is detailed in Annex A – Responses to Feedback, along 
with detailed responses to the individual points raised. This document outlines the system’s agreed 
way forward following the receipt of these responses.

Page 165

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2845/1016/25._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2845/1016/25._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf


14

5 THE AGREED WAY FORWARD

CCGs, Trusts, Local Authorities and members of the public have given responses to the HSR 
recommendations (see Annex A – Responses to HSR Feedback), and as a system we have developed 
our agreed way forward.

Overall, the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with Mid Yorkshire and North 
Derbyshire, agrees with the recommendations of the HSR. However, as a health system, the most 
vital focus for us going forward will be around developing shared working across the trusts, and 
transforming services, including through developing new workforce models. Only when we have 
understood the impact of both of these things will we consider changing the configuration of our 
services. 

5.1 SHARED WORKING BETWEEN ACUTE PROVIDERS

Going forward, the acute providers will work together closely. We will set up Hosted Networks, as 
well as an infrastructure of a Health and Care Institute to support a shared approach to workforce 
and innovation.

5.1.1 Hosted Networks

 The system will work to establish a set of Hosted Networks across the five specialities 
identified in the HSR.

 The approach to Hosted Networks will consist of three tiers of Hosted Networks, with 
increasing levels of collaboration:

o A basic Hosted Network will be responsible for standardising the approach to 
workforce functions; reducing clinical variation through setting agreed protocols; 
and rollout of specific identified innovations. It will be backed by agreed delegated 
decision making powers, accountability and monitoring. 

o A Co-ordinated Delivery Network will have the functions of a basic Hosted Network, 
with the Host having an additional co-ordinating role in identifying shortfalls in 
capacity and staff, and allocating resources to meet demand. 

o A Single Service Model will be explored, for some trusts and some specialties, 
whereby the Host may play a role in supporting the delivery of services on other 
sites. This arrangement is unlikely to cover every site in the network and would only 
occur if the support was requested by the receiving site. 

 It is recognised that services are continually developing and evolving. As such, whilst we will 
work with service providers to determine the most appropriate level of network for each 
specialty, we acknowledge that this is dynamic and may change over time. 

 The first step will be to work with providers and commissioners to develop a central 
framework on the networks’ purpose, function and form that can be tailored to each 
service. The framework will outline the proposed form of the Hosted Networks and the lines 
of accountability between the Hosted Network, member trusts and the ICS.  This will also lay 
out the responsibilities of both Hosts, and network members. An implementation plan will 
be drawn up to support this.

 The programme will engage providers and commissioners in developing a robust approach 
to equitably assigning Host organisations for each of the Hosted Networks. This will include 
developing criteria around what a Host must be able to provide, and the requirements that 
it must meet, in order to be eligible to host a service. This will ensure that whilst lead roles 

Page 166



15

are shared across the system, all Hosts have the resources and ability to perform the role of 
Host.

 Engagement will also be conducted to ensure staff have the opportunity to get involved and 
shape ways of working across the various organisations.

 The development of Hosted Networks will be alongside that of the Health and Care Institute 
and Innovation Hub, which will provide centralised analytical and human resource expertise 
for the Hosted Networks. 

5.1.2 Health and Care Institute & Innovation Hub

 We will progress the work to establish a Health and Care Institute and Innovation Hub to 
support the transformation themes: workforce, unwarranted clinical variation and 
innovation. 

 We will engage with both NHS and non-NHS partners, such as local universities and industry, 
to develop the detail of the model. 

 We will also consider funding implications and any interdependencies or overlap with other 
ICS workstreams.

 We will work with Health Education England to develop the workforce function of the Health 
and Care Institute. The approach to developing the Health and Care Institute and Innovation 
Hub should also include social care and the third sector to enable the appropriate innovation 
in care pathways.

 The Institute and Hub are likely to be one organisation, rather than two separate structures, 
but this will be agreed in work going forward  

5.2 SERVICE TRANSFORMATION

We will ensure that services are working together as well as possible. 

In order to do this, we will ensure that care takes place in the right place, and that only care which 
needs to happen in acute hospitals is provided there. 

We will also look at ways in which we can use our existing workforce better, through different 
workforce models.  

5.2.1 Moving care out of hospital into primary care and community care
The NHS England Five Year Forward View, and subsequently the Sustainability and Transformation 
Plans of both SYB and North Derbyshire (SYBND), have focused on the importance of ensuring that 
care is delivered in the right place. In many cases, patients are currently receiving care in acute 
hospitals where this could be better and more efficiently provided in primary or community care, or 
in their own homes. 

The individual Places within SYBND are developing their own strategies for reducing admissions to 
hospital, and making sure that patients receive care outside hospital wherever possible. The six CCGs 
have agreed to develop this into a single strategy.

In order to support this, we will ask the Clinical Working Groups to look at care pathways, and 
identify from the services under review which would be better delivered in settings other than the 
acute settings. The CWGs will work with colleagues in primary care and community care to 
understand what workforce and investment in primary care and community care would be 
necessary to make this happen. The Clinical Working Groups have already had some discussions of 
this, and this will build on this work.

Page 167



16

5.2.2 Transformation of clinical models and workforce roles
The HSR describes the need to develop new workforce roles, in particular the roles of the alternative 
professions, such as Physicians’ Associates and Advanced Nurse Practitioners. The HSR envisages 
that developing the approach to these would be part of the role of the Hosted Networks.

Providers and commissioners, in responding to the HSR recommendations, have highlighted the 
importance of ensuring that we do not simply base reconfiguration options on current workforce 
models. Therefore, before we model the impact of reconfiguration on our workforce, we will ask the 
Clinical Working Groups to develop new workforce models and new clinical models to ensure that 
we are making the best use of our staff. 

The reconfiguration modelling will take account of these transformed approaches to the workforce, 
to ensure that the reconfiguration options are based on the new approach rather than simply 
replicating the status quo.

5.3 RECONFIGURATION

The HSR proposed that, where transformation options do not go far enough, we should consider 
reconfiguring services. 

Leaders in the healthcare organisations have agreed with the majority of the HSR proposals for 
further work. The exception is maternity, where a number of responses raised concerns about the 
sustainability of Standalone Midwifery Led Units. As a result, the work going forward will include 
SMLUs but will also investigate other ways to address the interdependencies with paediatrics. 

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, with North Derbyshire (SYBND) 1, have agreed to model the following 
options:

5.3.1 Urgent and Emergency Care

One member of the public asked for confirmation that the system intends to retain all 6 Accident 
and Emergency departments, plus the paediatric A&E at Sheffield. We confirm that we will do this.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will retain all 6 accident and emergency (A&E) departments plus the paediatric 
emergency department at Sheffield Children’s Hospital. This includes emergency 
departments staying open 24/7, with consultant coverage appropriate to the size of the unit, 
guided by Royal College of Emergency Medicine guidelines. 

 We will consider what staff presence is appropriate in A&Es at different times of the day and 
explore how we can use staff in different ways. Alternative staff roles, such as advanced 
nurse or medical practitioners, or support from GPs, could help to address workforce 
challenges in our A&E departments.

1 Note, Mid-Yorkshire has recent undergone reconfiguration with other trusts in its STP, as such is not a part of 
the reconfiguration proposals. Chesterfield is included within the scope of the reconfiguration proposals, but 
we will need to engage closely with Derbyshire commissioners to ensure consistency with the development of 
the Derbyshire Sustainability Plan, since Chesterfield sits within Derbyshire STP as well as having patient flows 
to SYB.

Page 168



17

5.3.2 Care of the Acutely Ill Child

Some concerns were raised around whether Short Stay Paediatric Assessment Units (SSPAU) were an 
appropriate way forward for system partners.

This concern is noted, and it is important to reiterate that any proposals for reconfiguration will be 
developed in close collaboration with clinicians to ensure they meet safety and quality 
requirements.

However, clinical evidence supports the safety of SSPAUs as an alternative to full-time inpatient 
units, particularly when there is not enough activity or resource to sustain a full paediatric inpatient 
unit, assuming appropriate transfer protocols are in place for those patients requiring overnight 
care. The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health support such a care model, stating that for 
many patients they are a more appropriate care setting than an inpatient unit, and are being 
increasingly used to deliver high quality paediatric care2. 

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will model the impact of changing one or two inpatient paediatric units (from the 
existing units in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire) into SSPAUs. 

 Where an SSPAU is proposed, we will ensure that it is supported by robust referral and 
patient transfer protocols to ensure children are able to access the care they need out-of-
hours.

 If changes are being proposed to paediatrics services, this will be mirrored by appropriate 
changes to maternity and neonatology services on the site. We will continue to test out a 
range of models that meet the required interdependencies between obstetrics and 
paediatrics, and will assure the safety of any such models with the Clinical Senate. 

 We will continue to model transformation options, such as using mid-grade staff, and 
advance nurse and medical practitioners in different ways, and changing job roles, to 
address workforce challenges. 

5.3.3 Maternity

The HSR focused on being able to expand the choice of services available to women, and being able 
to deliver high quality care at each of these care settings, given the current and projected constraints 
on consultant and midwife numbers in the system. 

The SYB system is working to deliver the recommendations of the Better Births report. This includes 
providing women with greater access to choice of where to have their babies, including home births 
and Midwifery Led Units.

The HSR recommended that the system should provide a MLU on every acute site, and that one or 
two sites should look at having Standalone Midwifery Led Units, supporting a a part-time Paediatric 
Assessment Unit, with obstetric, neonatology and specialist paediatric services being provided at 
another linked site. This is a model that is used in a number of places in the NHS.

Some respondents raised concerns about the safety and in particular the sustainability of Standalone 
Midwifery-Led Units (SMLUs). The hospital services programme will continue to work with local 
obstetricians, midwives, nurses, sonographers, neonatologists and other healthcare professionals in 
the development of any specific proposals in the next phase of work, and this will involve a thorough 
assessment of the clinical evidence on SMLUs. 

2 Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, Standards for Short-Stay Paediatric Assessment Units, March 
2017.
Available at: https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf 

Page 169

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf


18

In addition, the maternity workstrand will be asked to explore alternative clinical models, both 
locally and internationally, which allow of greater flexibility around the co-location of maternity and 
paediatric services, recognising the clinical interdependency that exists between these and 
neonatology services. We will test out other models that might allow for obstetric-led services 
remaining on a site without 24/7 paediatrics being present, and vice versa. 

Any such options will be developed in close collaboration with expert Clinical Working Groups and 
submitted to the Clinical Senate for scrutiny, to ensure that they are safe and appropriate. 

The system partners will also seek to engage with mothers and women of child bearing age to 
understand their thoughts and concerns on how and where they would like to give birth. 

The need to fully consider the interdependencies between maternity, neonatal and paediatric 
services was also flagged in responses from Boards and Governing Bodies. The system has agreed to 
add neonatologists to the Clinical Working Group on Care of the Acutely Ill Child, and to include 
neonatology in any reconfiguration modelling in order to address this.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will model the impact of a reduction in the number of obstetrics units by one or two 
units, from the existing units in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire.

 We will engage with the public on their preferences for midwifery-led care and we will 
continue to work with clinicians to understand if SMLUs can be delivered safely and 
efficiently. 

 For those Places which potentially would not have an obstetric unit, we will model the 
implications of offering choice through standalone midwifery-led units, supported by robust 
referral and patient transfer protocols if needed. 

 We will also explore alternative clinical models. Traditionally, if changes to the maternity 
services are being proposed on a site, this would be mirrored by changes in paediatric 
services. However we will also continue to explore alternative models that might allow the 
interdependency between maternity and paediatrics to be satisfied in other ways, and will 
assure the safety of any such models with the Clinical Senate. We will also engage with the 
public around these to ensure that the implications of any proposals are clear and to hear 
and consider their feedback.

 We will include neonatology in the modelling moving forward and involve neonatologists 
fully in the acute sustainability programme through the Care of the Acutely Ill Child Clinical 
Working Group. 

 We will continue to model transformation options, such as using mid-grade staff, and 
advance nurse and medical practitioners in different ways, and changing job roles, to 
address workforce challenges. 

5.3.4 Gastroenterology

Maintaining the quality, safety and sustainability of services are all key criteria taken into 
consideration throughout the development of any options and their evaluation, and in depth site-
specific modelling of options will be done to assess and evaluate future options before any are 
considered and taken further. 

One respondent raised concerns about the safety implications of moving to full out of hours services 
on three or four sites; however, we note that the system does not currently provide out of hours 
services on all of these sites. 

One respondent suggested that staff should move to the patient rather than vice versa. However, 
this was discussed in the Clinical Working Group and was thought to be a less safe option, given the 

Page 170



19

risk that a consultant called to an emergency on one site could not then support an emergency at 
another site.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 At present we do not have five full out-of-hours areas, therefore, going forward as a system 
we will model moving to three or four rotas, and engage with our clinicians to ensure the 
concerns raised above are covered. 

5.3.5 Stroke

The HSR did not propose any reconfiguration proposals for stroke services, as changes were already 
underway through the work on hyper-acute stroke units. The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 
Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will further develop proposals for the collaborative working of stroke services through 
paired sites, between sites with a HASU and an ASU. Such a collaborative way of working 
could be supported through the stroke Hosted Network.

 We will develop standardised commissioning specifications for early supported discharge, 
inpatient rehabilitation, and transient ischaemic attack services.    

5.4 CONSIDERATIONS IN RELATION TO RECONFIGURATION

5.4.1 Sites in Scope

The HSR’s reconfiguration recommendations were site agnostic, based on the collective availability 
of workforce and capacity across the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, and North Derbyshire 
(SDYBND) region relative to forecast activity levels and care quality requirements. Some 
organisations have wished to outline concerns about service change at an early stage. 

At this point, the principles around potential reconfiguration require that all the possible options 
must be considered equally. As an immediate next step, we will lay out the approach that the system 
will take to defining the sites and options which will be modelled, in line with national guidance and 
statutory requirements around options development and options appraisal. 

We confirm that the hospital sites included in the baseline for the reconfiguration modelling (i.e. 
sites where services might change) are:

 Barnsley Hospital

 Bassetlaw District General Hospital

 Chesterfield Royal Hospital

 Doncaster Royal Infirmary

 Northern General Hospital

 Royal Hallamshire Hospital

 Sheffield Children’s Hospital

 Rotherham General Hospital.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with North Derbyshire, agrees:

 As a priority, the acute sustainability programme will work with CCGs, Trusts and Clinical 
Working Groups to develop site-specific reconfiguration options to be taken forward for 
more detailed modelling and analysis. 

Page 171



20

 As we take the work forward, all Trusts will be considered in the context of the site-specific 
modelling; and we have an open mind in relation to how they are included. The system may 
wish to designate some fixed points, based on permissible criteria and in line with guidance 
and precedent. There would be an agreed approach to determining any fixed points, with 
full engagement from system leaders, patients and the public. 

 Refreshed hurdle and evaluation criteria will be used to assess these options to ensure that 
any proposals that are taken further meet robust quality and safety requirements, and 
provide equal access to care for patients across the region. We will engage with system 
leaders, patients and the public in refreshing and agreeing weightings for the evaluation 
criteria.

 We recognise the need to work closely with Derbyshire CCGs around the impact of any 
proposals affecting Chesterfield on the Derbyshire STP.

The options modelled will be in line with the approaches agreed above.

5.4.2 Trusts outside the ICS

It is possible that under some reconfiguration scenarios the nearest service for some of our patients 
will be outside of the SYBND footprint. 

Sites that could potentially receive additional patients from the SYBND region include, but are not 
limited to:

 Calderdale Royal Hospital

 Dewsbury and District Hospital

 Huddersfield Royal Infirmary

 King’s Mill Hospital

 Leeds General Infirmary

 Lincoln County Hospital

 Pinderfields Hospital

 Pontefract Hospital

 Scunthorpe General Hospital 

In addition, some STPs outside SYBND are undertaking reconfigurations or service changes of their 
own, so some of the hospitals on our borders may be making changes which could themselves 
impact on the SYBND sites. 

The system agrees the following:

Patients moving outside SYBND:

 We will model all the appropriate options, including those where patients might move to 
trusts outside SYBND. 

 However, as we do this we will undertake due diligence around understanding any quality, 
safety and capacity issues at the potential receiving sites. 

 In evaluating the options, one of the existing evaluation criteria is quality, and we will 
consider any implications of quality for patients receiving care from trusts outside SYBND. In 
the assessment of equalities, we will also consider the potential equality implications of 

Page 172



21

some patients receiving care at sites which are not signed up to the principles of the SYB 
Hosted Networks.

Proposed changes in neighbouring STPs

 The Review team is already in contact with the leads on reconfiguration in neighbouring 
STPs, and contacts with these leads will continue. 

 As we develop the modelling for the SYBND reconfiguration options, we will include the 
implications of potential patient flows into SYBND caused by potential reconfigurations in 
our neighbouring health economies, where these are known. 

5.4.3 Transport

Feedback from members of the public raised concerns around transport, and asked in particular that 
we ensure that we link to strategic planning around travel and transport across the footprint. We 
will invite the leads on transport issues in the key organisations responsible for designing transport 
across the region to our travel and transport group, so the transport strategy will be a focus going 
forward.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with Mid Yorkshire and North 
Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will model the potential impact on travel times due to reconfiguration. Within the travel 
time modelling we will look at blue-light emergency transport, and journeys through both 
private transport and public transport means. 

 We will also conduct a postcode-level analysis to look at the impact on different socio-
economic groups based on indices of deprivation data, to ensure that no groups are 
disproportionately affected by change. 

 We will engage local partners to set up a strategic travel group as a priority. This group will 
comprise representation from local acute trusts, commissioning bodies, ambulance services 
(both Yorkshire and East Midlands Ambulance services), local authorities, patients and the 
public, and other relevant local travel and transport stakeholders (such as local public 
transport providers). The programme will engage this group regularly as options are 
developed and assessed. Clinical Working Groups will be engaged in a similar capacity to 
understand the safety implications of increased travel times in emergencies. In such a way 
the acute sustainability programme will ensure that options taken forward seek to minimise 
and mitigate any increase in travel. It will consider the issues around public transport, in 
both urban and rural areas.

5.4.4 Equalities and the Equalities Impact Assessment

Ensuring equitable access to high quality care has been raised as an issue by patients and the public, 
and is a priority for the programme. A core aim of the Review was to address health inequalities, and 
this will be at the heart of modelling, and assessing our options, going forward.

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Integrated Care System, with Mid Yorkshire and North 
Derbyshire, agrees:

 We will ensure the completion of an equalities impact assessment to inform any future 
proposals. 

 This will be supported by quantitative modelling that seeks to identify any potential impact 
on patients, broken down into demographic groups, to understand and assess the impact on 
different groups in society. We will look at the impact on the protected groups (as identified 

Page 173



22

in the Equalities Act), as well as issues around socioeconomic inequalities which we will 
identify through postcode analysis.

 The programme will continue to engage with a wide range of stakeholders, including a 
particular focus on seldom heard groups, to hear and understand their views and concerns 
to ensure that their feedback is taken into consideration.  

 The evaluation of options against evaluation criteria will include an assessment of impact on 
equalities, through the access criterion, as well as the separate Equalities Impact 
Assessment.

5.4.5 Affordability

Financial analysis was undertaken to understand the cost-benefit and affordability of any of the 
high-level reconfiguration options. Consideration was made of both any impact on trust operating 
expenditure and any capital cost requirements. Transition costs were also taken into account. The 
financial impact of each option was considered as one of the evaluation criteria in the HSR, and will 
continue to be so in any future appraisal of site-specific options.

More detailed modelling to fully understand financial impacts on providers and commissioners of 
site-specific reconfiguration options will be conducted in the next phase of work. 

One response from the public raised concern about the level of modelling done to date querying 
whether data from all trusts had been used in the modelling, and cited the ‘limitations’ section in the 
financial annex of the report. We confirm that data from all trusts (reference costs and STP 
forecasts) was used to inform the analysis that underpins the HSR. The ‘limitations’ point relates 
specifically to the fact that at the time of writing only Barnsley had contributed service line reporting 
(SLR) data; not all trusts collect SLR data.  A detailed response to the concerns raised by the member 
of the public is provided in Annex A – Responses to HSR Feedback. 

The financial analysis published alongside the HSR used the data available at the time that the 
modelling was developed. Several trusts made more detailed data on activity available shortly 
before publication, and this was used to update workforce projections. However the updated data 
was made available too late to be included in the capacity and financial data, so an updated analysis 
is attached as an Annex to this Strategic Outline Case in Annex E – Addendum to HSR Financial 
Modelling. The changes are marginal (the greatest change to cost implications in any scenario is 
£1.3m, with most changes being £0 to £300,000) so the updated data made no impact on the final 
recommendations.

5.4.5.1 Operating costs analysis

Baseline trust provider costs for 2021/22, before any configuration changes, were taken from STP 
(now ICS) plans, which included assumptions around the impact of cost improvement programmes 
(CIPs), out-of-hospital schemes, and other service changes. 

Various financial impacts were analysed:

Workforce efficiencies were quantified, whereby savings could be realised from the reduction in 
locum usage, given the decreased requirement for certain groups of staff following consolidation. 
Another key source of workforce efficiencies was that it might be possible to increase service 
coverage with fewer additional full time equivalents, relative to the current configuration. Changes 
to service models might also result in financial impacts: for example, new delivery models such as 
urgent treatment centres could be used to take activity out of A&E. Shifting additional care out-of-
hospital, where appropriate, was another driver of cost impact. 

Fixed cost savings were quantified to recognise a partial offset for new build costs. This was linked to 
changes in bed capacity when any activity shift led to new build costs. 

Page 174



23

These reductions in operating expenditure were balanced against any increased capital expenditure, 
with the revenue cost of any required capex phased equally over a 10-year period. More detail on 
the approach to quantifying capital costs is set out below.

Future stages of modelling will use more accurate trust costing data and work with commissioners 
and providers to quantify any associated impact on operating income. 

5.4.5.2 Capital costs analysis

Capital costs were quantified on the basis of requirements for additional bed build at sites receiving 
additional activity. If the receiving site has no spare space, the incoming bed would be by necessity a 
new build. If the receiving site has spare space but not in the same department, the spare bed would 
need to be refurbished, for c. 50% of new build cost. If the receiving site has spare space in the same 
department, the incoming bed could be accommodated for no cost. 

Page 175



24

6 CAPITAL FUNDING

As part of the national process for prioritising STP/ICS capital, the ICS has completed a draft Estate 
Strategy and associated capital bids which include a range of schemes designed to deliver clinical, 
estate, patient quality and experience and workforce benefits across the system as a whole; 
including identifying an estimated future capital requirement associated with the final report of the 
HSR published on 9 May 2018. 

HSR modelling on capital costs focused on the cost of moving activity and associated bed build. 
However, more detailed modelling in the next phase of work may draw out more granular capital 
needs, such as for technology and digital infrastructure, costs of which were accounted for in the 
capital bid.  

At the point at which the system was required to submit bids for the next five years, HSR had not yet 
been fully considered by the system, and this Strategic Outline Case was still in development. On the 
advice of NHS England, therefore, South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw included a placeholder bid for 
capital related to the HSR, using a mid-range scenario from the modelling undertaken from the HSR. 
This bid will, obviously, only be pursued in the event that the system agrees to take forward 
reconfiguration, following public involvement and, if needed, consultation, and therefore the capital 
is required.

The ICS’s total capital bid is comprised of five component workstreams as follows. The HSR 
reconfiguration element is 1e below. Note that, rather than including either the highest or the 
lowest level of costs identified in the HSR modelling, the scenario used here is a middle range which 
involves changes to one large and one small site for maternity and paediatrics.

ICS Initiative/ Clinical 
Workstream

Physical assets obtained: Phasing of 
workstreams:

Capital 
Required:

1a System 
Sustainability – 

Primary and 
Community 
investment

Creation of additional capacity for 
delivering primary and community 
care services, training and 
development

£57m

1b – System 
Sustainability – 
Mental Health 
Investment

Creation of community crisis 
centre and reprovision of co-
located services into new 
community hubs

£43m

1c – System 
Sustainability – Digital 
Investment

Introduction of a single, SYB-wide 
shared digital platform across a 
number of key services

£35m

1d System 
Sustainability – Linked 
Acute Schemes

Range of updated and improved 
clinical facilities across all acute 
providers (including removal of 
Nightingale wards, co-location of 
emergency services and the 
expansion of critical diagnostic 
services and key acute services)

Phase 1: Primary Care, 
Community, Mental 
Health, Digital and 
Linked Acute schemes 
can be delivered ahead 
of the HSR Strategic 
investment. As 
schemes are worked 
up and where change is 
considered significant, 
the ICS would be 
subject to NHS 
assurance processes, 
including potential 
public consultation and 
we would carry out our 
statutory duties. £71m

Page 176



25

ICS Initiative/ Clinical 
Workstream

Physical assets obtained: Phasing of 
workstreams:

Capital 
Required:

1e System 
Sustainability – 
Strategic elements of 
HSR

Reprovision of 208 new beds 
across existing sites, to support 
the reconfiguration of key acute 
services across the ICS (subject to 
consultation).

The scenario of 208 beds was 
identified as a mid-point between 
the maximum and minimum 
scenarios identified within the 
Hospital Services Review. It is an 
indicative figure at this point.

Phase 2: the HSR 
implementation could 
be completed 
alongside the Phase 1 
workstreams. As the 
scheme is subject to 
NHS assurance 
processes, including 
potential public 
consultation, it is 
anticipated that a 
number of the Phase 1 
schemes would already 
be completed if the 
scheme went ahead.  

£99m

In addition, two further capital bids have been submitted around ensuring the sustainability of 
facilities that support acute services at Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals and an ICS-wide Cancer 
Strategy.

The Doncaster and Bassetlaw work predominantly looks at improvement of emergency care services 
and improvement of services at Doncaster Royal Infirmary. We will work with the Trust on any areas 
that might impact or be impacted by the hospital services workstream.  

In relation to the ICS-wide Cancer Strategy, the capital bid would cover potential improvements to 
sites and facilities across South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. As with the HSR, any changes would be 
subject to engagement and, if necessary consultation with the public.

Page 177



26

7 NEXT STEPS 

This Chapter outlines the next steps being undertaken by the system to deliver the 
recommendations of the HSR, as per the agreed way forward detailed earlier in this Strategic Outline 
Case. 

7.1 SERVICE LEVEL COLLABORATION

Developing Hosted Networks: 

 Agree a framework for all the Hosted Networks, at a system-wide level; 

 Establish criteria as to what responsibilities a trust must be able to meet in order to be a 
host;

 Define the responsibilities of the Hosts and Members;

 Agree how this links to the ICS structures; 

 Agree which trusts will lead on each of the Networks; and 

 Establish the Hosted Networks

7.2 SYSTEM LEVEL COLLABORATIVE WORKING

Develop Institute of Health and Care: covering Workforce

 Agree the objectives, structures, funding and governance of the Institute; and

 Agree how it will relate to the trusts and how it will support the work of the Hosted 
Networks 

 Establish the Institute of Health and Care

Develop Innovation Hub: covering Innovation

 Agree the geographical footprint of the innovation hub, who are its members, and how it 
relates to the Institute of Health and Care (whether it is part of the same organisation or a 
separate one);

 Agree the objectives, structures, funding and governance of the Institute; and

 Agree how it will relate to the trusts and how it will support the work of the Hosted 
Networks

 Establish the Innovation Hub

7.3 SERVICE TRANSFORMATION

Transformation of clinical models and workforce roles:

 Engage Clinical Working Groups and Health Education England, and other workforce 
committees, to develop new clinical models and new workforce models to ensure that we 
are making the best use of our staff; and

 Ensure that any reconfiguration modelling takes account of these new clinical models.

Supporting the out-of-hospital strategy:

 The strategy for Out of Hospital care is being developed in the ICS in partnership with its five 
places identifying pathways in the core acute areas which would shift into primary or 

Page 178



27

community care, and the workforce / capital / financial implications of this shift of activity 
whilst the acute sustainability work develops. 

7.4 RECONFIGURATION

Develop specification for modelling:

 Develop the specification of what the modelling needs to be able to model for financial, 
activity, workforce and access data; 

 Agree what data sources, at what levels, are required for this; and

 Agree how the modelling will relate to the requirements of the Equalities Impact 
Assessment.

Agree evaluation criteria:

 Refresh the existing evaluation criteria to ensure that they are still fit for purpose and to 
address any gaps; and

 Engage the public and stakeholders on the weighting of evaluation criteria 

Agree shortlist of options to be modelled:

 Develop the shortlist of options around the modelling, including identifying any ‘fixed points’ 
i.e. sites or services which would self-evidently not change, and all the possible combinations 
of the remaining sites. 

 Engage clinicians on the proposed shortlist of options for modelling; and

 Engage patients and the public on the proposed shortlist of options for modelling

Model shortlisted options:

 Collect the relevant data, build the model using information around the transformed 
workforce developed by the Clinical Working Groups, and run the agreed options through 
the model. This will be iterated multiple times to ensure that the data is genuinely robust 
and reliable.  

Agree preferred option(s) to be considered for consultation:

 Evaluate the outcomes of the modelling against the evaluation criteria: this will need to 
involve patients and the public as well as stakeholders across the system; and

 Identify a shortlist of preferred option(s) which are likely to be included within the Pre-
Consultation Business Case, based on the outcomes of the evaluation process

Produce Pre Consultation Business Case:

 Engage with the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee to confirm if any elements of 
the proposed changes require formal public consultation (see below); 

 Draft Pre-Consultation Business Case; 

 Submit to NHS England for assurance (see below)

7.5 PUBLIC CONSULTATION AND ENGAGEMENT

The development of the HSR has included a significant level of public and clinical engagement. Going 
forward, we will build on this to ensure that clinicians, members of staff, patients and the public 
have as many opportunities as possible to be involved. 

Page 179



28

Respondents acknowledged the engagement that had been done to date, with clinicians, nurses, 
midwives, other healthcare professionals, the public and patients.  However, several respondents 
felt more should have been done. Some respondents felt that the HSR had not yet engaged 
sufficiently with local authorities, and specifically their elected members.

Engagement with seldom heard groups was acknowledged as positive of the work to date and the 
acute sustainability programme will continue to do so in any future phases of work. 

Future next steps include:

 A detailed Engagement Plan, to include the approach to involvement, will be developed by 
the ICS Communications team, in collaboration with the PMO for the acute sustainability 
work. It will be shared with the SYB ICS Citizens’ Panel and Joint Health Overview Scrutiny 
Committee for comment and signed off by the Sustainable Acute Services Steering Group, 
and by the Collaborative Partnership Board. This will ensure that patients and the public 
have their say on proposals at all stages of development and will seek to engage people from 
all areas of the region. 

 Clinicians, other healthcare professionals and other staff groups within services will continue 
to be engaged through the reconstitution of the Clinical Working Groups (see below). These 
will meet on a regular, scheduled basis and will be a key forum in which the programme will 
shape and develop any options for modelling and evaluation, actively seeking their expertise 
in the subject and knowledge of SYBMYND and its population. 

 Engagement with patients and the public: The approach will be outlined in the engagement 
strategy. In summary, the acute sustainability programme will continue to engage regularly 
through the ICS Citizen’s Panel, CCG Engagement Groups (including Patient and Partnership 
Groups), provider Trust Engagement groups and other relevant forums, such as 
Healthwatch, voluntary sector groups, local Maternity Voices Partnerships. 

Several large engagement events will also be held throughout this next phase of the Review, 
which will be specific to this programme of work. As respondents have pointed out, as 
proposed modelling work progresses, the nature of engagement will become more 
specifically related to changes to individual sites and services, whereas it has tended thus far 
to relate to broader discussion of concepts. Involvement will be frequent and regular to 
ensure clarity and transparency around proposals as they develop. We will also build upon 
the learning from previous consultations undertaken by our and other systems, to ensure 
relevant experience informs our work.

 On travel and transport: a specific patient and public group will be convened to focus on the 
transport and travel implications of any service change proposals. This will support a clinical 
and operational group on transport and travel.

 Engagement with Local Authorities: Whilst the HSR engaged with the Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee, and will continue to do so, the programme will seek to strengthen 
moving forward. The Review team will engage with Directors of Public Health and Health 
and Wellbeing Boards on the hospital services workstreams, such as working with them as 
the modelling is developed to ensure that population data is accurate.  More generally, the 
system partners will engage with Local Authorities, including Leaders, around the 
development of shared working across the system.

 Formal Public Consultation: If required, a formal public consultation plan will be developed 
and published alongside any pre-consultation business case, detailing plans to consult with 
all of the stakeholders in the SYBMYND health economy. We will actively seek comment on 
proposals from commissioners, trusts, healthcare staff, patients and the public, local 
authorities and others in order to inform any service change decision.  

Page 180



29

7.6 ASSURANCE OF THE PROPOSALS

As well as significant engagement with system stakeholders, patients and the public, proposals will 
undergo regulatory assurance processes with national NHS bodies:

Clinical Senate sign-off of proposals:

 The North West Clinical Senate will be asked to formally review options which require 
clinical changes to ensure that they are robust 

NHS England assurance of proposals:

 The system will submit all proposals to NHS England for formal assurance as required

7.7 GOVERNANCE

The HSR was an independent review. Therefore, while its governance aimed to ensure that all the 
member organisations were closely involved in and sighted on the work, its governance reflected its 
Terms of Reference.

Going forward, the HSR ceases to be an independent review, and will become one of the 
workstreams of the ICS. The name of the programme, and its governance, need to reflect this.

Going forward, the health and care economy as a whole is going to need to develop appropriate 
governance to support the ICS and its partners. This will need to respect the existing statutory 
framework, while allowing for streamlined decision making in the integrated structure.

The HSR made a recommendation around ensuring that the governance is appropriately streamlined 
going forward, within the current statutory framework:

“The current arrangements between providers are unlikely to be fit for purpose when 
considering the scale of change that is included in this report. SYBMYND should review current 
governance arrangements and ensure these enable rapid decision making at pace to support the 
successful implementation of the recommendations in this report”

One member of the public raised a question around whether the governance was appropriate, and 
cited the point made in the review about the current arrangements between providers. They also 
expressed a query about the maintenance of statutory duties and lines of accountability in the any 
arrangements. It should be clarified that all commissioners will retain and perform their statutory 
duties, with providers and associated bodies held to account through any contracts held with the 
CCG(s).  

Going forward, the workstream taking forward the recommendations of the HSR will be known as 
the Hospital Services programme (subject to agreement from our Citizen’s Panel and other public 
stakeholders that this phrase is easily understood).

The governance will continue to recognise the need to involve all trusts and CCGs, and other core 
stakeholders, and the need for strong leadership. All relevant organisations should continue to be 
equitably and appropriately represented in the governance of the programme. 

The governance will be formally laid out in, and signed off as a part of the Terms of Reference for the 
sustainability of acute services work going forward. However in summary we propose the following 
arrangements.

Programme Governance:

 A  Hospital Services Steering Group. Stakeholder organisations agreed (in the Joint 
Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG) and Collaborative Partnership Board) 
that we should maintain and expand the HSR Steering Group. The Steering Group will be a 
dedicated clinical and operational group at executive level, which will oversee the 

Page 181



30

development of the hospital services work and be accountable for delivery of the work 
programme within organisations. It will play a key role in the evolution of Review process, 
including the development of reconfiguration options and robust evaluation and appraisal 
frameworks.

The Steering Group (SG) is likely to bring together Medical Directors and operations 
executives from acute trusts, CCG Accountable Officers, senior leads from the community 
and mental health trusts and the Yorkshire Ambulance Service, and NHS England.

Moving forward, it is proposed that there should be designated sub-committees under the 
SG, such as a strategic travel group and a data and modelling group. Respondents were keen 
to ensure that they were represented on these groups and the membership of these groups 
will be confirmed in the Terms of Reference.

 Clinical Working Groups (CWGs) will bring together clinicians, nurses, and operations 
directors, and other healthcare professionals from the acute trusts, to advise on the 
development and evaluation of any proposals. Community and mental health services, 
primary care and commissioning representatives will also sit on CWGs to ensure the 
perspectives of the different clinical sectors are heard. 

 The Collaborative Partnership Board (CPB) will have formal oversight of the programme for 
the ICS.

Statutory and Delegated powers:

 The Boards and Governing Bodies of the trusts and CCGs will be responsible for formal sign-
off of proposals, since at this point they are the organisations which are statutorily 
accountable. These groups include Non-Executive Directors. 

Ultimately, statutory powers around decision making on service change rest with the CCGs, 
who will sign off and lead any consultation on service change.

 The Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG), Committees in Common 
(CIC) for the acute trusts, and the ICS Executive Steering Group do not currently have any 
formal delegated powers around this workstream but will continue to oversee and advise on 
direction. 

However, as part of work to develop the Integrated Care System, we are seeking to develop 
the governance of the system, within the existing statutory framework. The arrangements 
above may therefore evolve during the course of the programme if any changes are agreed 
to the delegated powers of the JCCCG and CIC.

External scrutiny:

 The Joint Health Oversight and Scrutiny Committee (JHOSC) will continue to exercise its 
formal powers of scrutiny. Further governance arrangements involving Local Authorities may 
evolve. 

 NHS England: The programme is committed to adhering to formal NHS England Gateway 
processes, and will undertake these in a managed and scheduled way. There will continue to 
be NHS England representation at SG.  The ICS will also submit developing proposals to the 
Northern England Clinical Senate for feedback on emerging proposals at the appropriate 
time.

Page 182



31

8 TIMELINE FOR DELIVERY

The following section lays out the timeline for delivery of the work programme above, as well as the 
proposed arrangements for public engagement and governance.

8.1 HIGH LEVEL TIMELINE

The next phase of work, including the development and evaluation of site-specific options, will 
commence in earnest in October. Engagement with staff, patients and the public will be ongoing 
throughout the timeframe of the review, with plans aiming to launch a formal consultation on 
detailed, developed options in the early autumn of 2019 (if required).

Both Trust Boards and CCG Governing Bodies flagged the timeline of the next stage of work as 
something on which they would like further assurance. Organisations emphasised that decisions on 
change need to be made and delivered with enough pace to not prolong uncertainty for staff, while 
allowing sufficient time to fully consider the implications for staff, patients, and the public. 

8.1.1 Agreed way forward

The timeline for delivery will be partly dependent on external factors, over which the health system 
has limited control.  However, the intention is that we should follow the following timeline for 
reconfiguration work:

 September 2018: SOC discussed in public session at Trust Boards and CCG Governing Bodies. 
Governing Bodies sign off SOC under their statutory responsibilities for service change

 October 2018: Sign-off SOC at the Collaborative Partnership Board

 October – February 2018: prepare and model site-specific options; engagement with Clinical 
Senate and JHOSC, and ongoing public engagement

 February – October 2019: agree preferred option(s) for the pre consultation business case, if 
required, with public engagement; NHSE assurance process; engagement with JHOSC; draft 
PCBC; 

 October 2019 –January 2020: public consultation on options, if required

 December 2020 onwards: Develop a Decision Making Business Case if required

Shared working plans for the establishment of Hosted Networks will be advanced alongside 
reconfiguration works, with a proposed timetable as follows:

 September – October 2018: Set up a programme to design and oversee implementation; 
agree the framework for a Level 1 network, its priorities and scope

 November – December 2018: Agree principles of engagement; appoint leads / hosts for the 
networks

 December 2018 – January 2019: Agree detailed requirements (including SLAs) of the leads / 
host

 February – March 2019: Design accountability framework; design governance and 
contractual arrangements

 1st April 2019: Launch Hosted Networks

Alongside these streams of work there will be a parallel stream on transformation to develop new 
ways of working across the system, in conjunction with Health Education England, various groups of 
healthcare professionals, patients and the public.  

Page 183



32

An indicative timetable laying out the key milestones for the programme is detailed below. 

Page 184



33

Page 185



34

9 GLOSSARY

Term Definition

A

A&E An accident and emergency department provides acute care for patients who arrive 
without prior appointment either by their own means or by ambulance and who have 
medical or surgical conditions that are likely to need hospital admission. They are 
typically open 24 hours a day, seven days a week.

Acute Care Urgent short-term treatment - usually in a hospital - for patients with a new injury or 
illness or for patients with an existing condition that is worsening. 

Acute Stroke Unit (ASU) An acute neurological ward providing specialist services for people who have had a 
stroke. Patients are cared for in an intensive model of care with continuous monitoring 
and high nurse staffing levels. Typical length of stay may be up to 7 days. Patients are 
typically admitted to a Hyper-Acute Stroke Unit (HASU) for immediate emergency 
treatment before transfer for an ASU for ongoing care.

Acute Trust NHS acute trusts manage hospitals. Some are regional or national centres for specialisms. 
Others are attached to universities and help to train clinicians. Some may also provide 
community services.

Advanced clinical 
practitioner (ACP)

An experienced, registered health and care practitioner with a Master’s level award or 
equivalent that encompasses the four pillars of clinical practice, leadership and 
management, education and research, with demonstration of core capabilities and area 
specific clinical competence. ACPs undertake a level of practice characterised by a high 
degree of autonomy and complex decision making. Specific roles include Advanced Nurse 
Practitioner (ANP) and Advanced Therapy Practitioner (ATP). Delegating responsibilities 
to these roles reduces the burden on other clinicians. 

Alternative workforce This general term refers to roles for healthcare professionals that are ‘non-traditional’ 
and generally support or augment the work done by clinicians such as doctors and nurses. 
It encompasses Physician Associates, advanced clinical practitioners and support roles.

Antenatal Care Care of women during pregnancy up to their going into labour by various healthcare 
professionals to ensure that mother and baby are as healthy as possible during 
pregnancy. This care also includes education, advice and support to make sure the 
mother is ready for labour.

C

Care outside hospital Care that takes place in a community setting. This could be a patient’s home or 
community health centre.

Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (CCGs)

These are the health commissioning organisations that replaced primary care trusts 
(PCTs) in April 2013.  CCGs are led by GPs and represent a group of GP practices in a 
certain area. They are responsible for purchasing healthcare services in both community 
and hospital settings.

Page 186



35

Clinical governance A framework through which NHS organisations are accountable for continuously 
improving the quality of their services and safeguarding high standards of care by 
creating an environment in which excellence in clinical care will flourish.

Clinical 
interdependencies

Where some clinical services need other clinical services to be based on the same site for 
particular types of care to be successfully and safely delivered.

Clinical pathway A clinical pathway is a template or blueprint for a plan of care for a specific speciality or 
condition. It is a guide to best practice treatment patterns, but does not replace the need 
for clinical judgement in meeting an individual’s needs.

Clinical protocol The detailed outline of the steps to be followed in the treatment of a patient with a 
particular condition.

Clinical Reference Group 
(CRG)

A group of clinicians and healthcare professionals convened to agree on and develop a 
specific clinical process, protocol or standard. The group is typically governed by a Terms 
of Reference and is part of a wider framework such as a Hosted Network.

Clinical Working Group 
(CWG)

A group comprised of clinicians, nurses, allied health professionals and other healthcare 
professionals from a specific service in the scope of the HSR. The primary purpose of the 
CWGs was to bring together members of staff from across SYB(MYND) to discuss service 
challenges, best practice and potential solutions, as well as to provide input and feedback 
into the review process. 

Committees in Common 
(CiC)

A sub-committee of multiple committees with an agreed level of delegated decision-
making rights on behalf of each committee. There must be clear terms of reference and 
reporting lines back to each committee. 

Community Midwifery-
led Unit / Birth Centre

A form of standalone midwifery-led unit providing prenatal, midwifery and postnatal 
services to predominantly low-risk mothers (see SMLU). 

Community services A wide range of non-emergency services provided closer to home at community facilities 
including local health centres and GP practices. Some may be provided by social care 
services.

Consultant-led 
obstetrics units

An obstetric unit with consultant presence, providing maternity and obstetric care to 
mothers, with the capacity to deal with a broader range of complications and conditions 
than a midwifery-led unit.

D

District General Hospital 
(DGH)

Typically, the major healthcare facility in its locality with services that may include 
maternity, ED, acute medicine, surgery and a range of outpatient care. It may also 
provide some specialist facilities for care such as specialist surgery but does not cover all 
specialist services. 

E

Early supported 
discharge (ESD)

An intervention for adults after a stroke that allows their care to be transferred from an 
inpatient environment to a community setting. It enables people to continue their 
rehabilitation therapy at home, with the same intensity and expertise that they would 
receive in hospital.

Page 187



36

Elective care Treatment that is planned in advance because it does not involve a medical emergency.

Emergency care Treatment for acute medical and surgical emergencies that may need admission to 
hospital. This includes severe pneumonia, diabetic coma, bleeding from the gut, 
complicated fractures that need surgery, and other serious illnesses.

Emergency Department An acute hospital department responsible for the delivery of emergency medicine and 
care, providing treatment to patients arriving at hospital with an immediate care 
requirement. Accident and Emergency is a form of ED.

Engagement The measurable degree of a stakeholder or patient’s positive or negative involvement 
with the NHS, which influences their willingness to take part in NHS issues. In the context 
of the HSR, it refers to the involvement of different stakeholders to gather views, 
feedback and recommendations.

Evaluation criteria A series of questions and factors to test options against to determine whether they are 
suitable and optimal for their intended purpose. Evaluation criteria have been agreed 
and used in the HSR to test service reconfiguration options.

F

Facing the Future Facing the Future: Standards for children with ongoing health needs3 are a set of 
standards that focus on ensuring prompt and correct diagnosis, improving the long-term 
care and management of children in healthcare services. These standards were 
developed jointly by the Royal Colleges for Paediatrics and Child Health, General 
Practitioners, Nursing, Physicians and Psychiatrists.

Flexible working The ability for clinicians and other healthcare professionals to work across multiple sites 
in networked system of care.

Foundation Trusts NHS foundation trusts (FTs) are NHS organisations that run acute, community or mental 
health hospitals. They differ from non-foundation trusts in that they have greater 
financial autonomy and therefore more freedom to decide their own plans and the way 
local services are run.  Foundation trusts have members and a council of governors.

Function In the context of the HSR, ‘function’ refers to specific operational and management 
processes and is used as a generic term. It does not refer to statutory functions of NHS 
bodies (such as commissioners) unless explicitly stated.

H

Hospital Services Review 
(HSR)

The programme to review the shape and nature of acute hospital services across 
SYB(MYND), culminating in this report. The HSR was commissioned by SYB 
commissioners on behalf of the partners in the SYB STP. 

Hosted Network A clinical network between acute trusts where a host trust provides leadership and 
coordination to support a system-wide approach to: workforce deployment and 
development; the adoption of standardised clinical guidelines; and the spread and 
adoption of innovation and best practice.

3 Facing the Future, Royal College of Paediatric and Child Health, available online at 
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/page/Facing%20the%20Future%20Together%20for%20Child%20H
ealth%20final%20web%20version.pdf

Page 188

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/page/Facing%20the%20Future%20Together%20for%20Child%20Health%20final%20web%20version.pdf
https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/page/Facing%20the%20Future%20Together%20for%20Child%20Health%20final%20web%20version.pdf


37

Hub A setting for care outside hospital where patients are brought together for treatment 
also serving as a base for local healthcare teams. The services offered will vary depending 
on local needs and will range from bases for multidisciplinary teams to 'one-stop' centres 
for GP services, diagnostic and outpatient appointments.

Hyper Acute Stroke Unit 
(HASU)

Hospital wards that specialise in treating people who have had a stroke. A dedicated unit 
that gives all stroke patients access to the most up-to-date treatments and latest 
research breakthroughs during the first 72 hours after a stroke: swift action can reduce 
levels of disability and, in some cases, may even eradicate symptoms 
completely. Patients will typically be transported to a Hyper Acute Stoke Unit for initial 
emergency treatment before later being transferred to an ASU for ongoing care and 
therapy.

I

Integrated Care System 
(ICS)

A partnership of NHS organisations, including providers and commissioners that 
collaborate to provide healthcare in a region in a close and coordinated manner. Member 
organisations take collective responsibility for managing resources, delivering NHS 
standards and improving the health of the population they serve.

J

Joint Committee of 
Clinical Commissioning 
Groups (JCCCG)

 A collective committee made up of representation from clinical commissioning groups 
(CCGs) in SYB.

L

Lead / prime provider A trust within a Hosted Network from which services are commissioned, which then sub-
contracts service delivery to other trusts within the network. The lead / prime provider 
holds other providers to account for outcomes and for adoption of clinical protocols and 
pathways.

M

Midwifery The profession which leads on normal pregnancy and birth and provides expert care to 
mother and baby during pregnancy, childbirth and the postnatal period within a family 
centred environment.

Midwifery Led Units Units run by midwives that can either be run alongside a main hospital maternity unit 
(AMLU) or completely standalone from hospital (SMLU). MLUs are ideal for handling 
births with no complications. Women facing complications may be advised to give birth 
at a consultant-led maternity unit.

N

Neonatal Unit A unit of a hospital that provides care and treatment of new-born babies who are too 
sick to be cared for by their mothers.

Networked services The coordinated provision of care within a particular specialty across a number of 
providers or sites in a region. Different elements of care may be provided at different 
sites, requiring patient transfer to the appropriate care location.

Page 189



38

Nurse Practitioner An Advanced Practice Registered Nurse who has completed graduate-level education 
(either a Master of Nursing or Doctor of Nursing Practice degree). Nurse Practitioners 
treat both physical and mental conditions independently including prescription of select 
medications.

O

Obstetrics The medical speciality dealing with the care of pregnant women and their babies during 
pregnancy, childbirth and the postnatal period. 

P

Pairing Two trusts working closely together to deliver an agreed set of joint functions. This may 
include coordination of staff and resources across the two sites, supported by 
appropriate contractual arrangements.

Physician Associate (PA) Physician associates are medically trained, generalist healthcare professionals, who work 
alongside doctors and provide medical care as an integral part of the multidisciplinary 
team. Physician Associates work with a dedicated medical supervisor, but are able to 
work autonomously with appropriate support.

Place The term used in the SYB STP plan for the main areas and their healthcare organisations 
that make up the SYB footprint. These are Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, Rotherham 
and Sheffield. They encompass health and social care providers, in acute and community 
settings, as well as commissioners, local authorities and other key stakeholders in an area 
based around key population centres.

Place Plans Statements that set out the vision, ambitions and proposed direction of travel for the 
design and delivery of health and care services in a Place. These plans are generally 
produced by commissioners of health and care services, usually in cooperation with 
service providers.

Primary care Primary care services provide a first point of contact in the healthcare system for many 
patients, acting as the ‘front door’ of the NHS. Primary care includes general practice, 
community pharmacy, dental, and optometry (eye health) services. Patients may be 
treated in this setting or referred for onward treatment in a different setting (such as 
secondary or tertiary care).

R

Reconfiguration The rearrangement of the location and type of clinical service provided across a given 
area. It may include transferring the provision of different service components between 
acute providers, as well as transfer of some care to alternate settings such as the 
community.

Referral The process whereby a patient is transferred from one professional to another, usually 
for specialist advice and/or treatment.

Rotations The formalised process of organising for staff to work across multiple sites or services in 
a routine way. It may be used to facilitate provision of services in multiple locations or to 
support staff development and training.

Page 190



39

Royal Colleges The Royal Colleges are professional organisations for doctors, nurses and allied health 
professionals. In general, they have a vision of improving, maintaining and promoting 
standards of care within the specialist area which they cover. They work jointly to 
develop policy on some issues and work closely with other organisations and associations 
that have similar objectives. They promote education and research in their respective 
fields. 

S

Secondary care Specialist healthcare usually provided in hospital after a referral from a GP or other 
health professional.

Seldom heard groups ‘Seldom heard’ is a term used to describe groups who may experience barriers to 
accessing services or are under-represented in healthcare decision making. Traditionally, 
some of the groups identified in engagement activities include rural communities, black 
and minority ethnic (BME) groups, gypsies and travellers, lesbian, gay, bisexual and 
transgender, asylum seekers and refugees and young carers. However, teenagers, 
employees, people with mental health issues and many others may also be considered 
as seldom heard, since they may not find it easy to engage with traditional methods of 
public engagement.

Sentinel Stroke National 
Audit Programme 
(SSNAP)

The Sentinel Stroke National Audit Programme (SSNAP) aims to improve the quality of 
stroke care by measuring both the structure and processes of stroke care against 
evidence based standards. These standards are informed by the National Clinical 
Guideline for Stroke, and national and local benchmarks.

Short Stay Paediatric 
Assessment Unit 
(SSPAU)

A facility within which children with acute illnesses, injuries or other urgent referrals 
(from GPs, community nursing teams, walk-in centres, NHS Direct and emergency 
departments) can be assessed, investigated, observed for a short period of time and 
treated without recourse to in-patient areas. May be co-located with ED.

Single service model A network where care is delivered directly by the lead trusts and responsibility for patient 
care and clinical governance rests with that lead trust. Staff and resources are paid for 
and managed directly by the lead trust and activity is commissioned directly from the 
lead trust.

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw (SYB)

SYB refers to the more specific region within SYB(MYND) that covers acute trusts which 
will be members of the SYB shadow Integrated Care System, as well as the footprint of 
SYB Sustainability and Transformation Plan.

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw and North 
Derbyshire (SYB(ND))

SYB(ND) refers to the area within scope of this review (see SYB(MYND)), excluding Mid 
Yorkshire. It may be used to refer to recommendations on reconfiguration of services, in 
which Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust is not included. 

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw Integrated 
Care System (SYB ICS)

SYB is one of the first and largest Integrated Care Systems. An ICS brings partner 
organisations closer together, taking further responsibility for finances in return for 
greater flexibility in delivering NHS services. ICSs are in shadow form and due to go into 
operation at the beginning of 2018/19 financial year. The shadow period refers to the 
period before the full operation of the ICS, during which the system will develop and 
gradually implement the governance, structural and financial arrangements required to 
‘go live’ as an integrated care system.

Page 191



40

South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw, Mid 
Yorkshire and North 
Derbyshire (SYB(MYND))

SYB(MYND) refers to the area serviced by acute trusts within the scope of this review. 
There are seven acute trusts in SYB(MYND): Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Rotherham NHS Foundation 
Trust, Sheffield Children’s NHS Foundation Trust, Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust, Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, and Mid Yorkshire 
Hospitals NHS Trust.

Standalone Midwifery 
Led Units (SMLU)

Maternity units that are led and staffed by midwives without consultant presence, in a 
setting that is unattached to a hospital. They generally provide prenatal, midwifery and 
postnatal care to lower risk mothers. They may be in community settings and are 
sometimes called Community Birth Hubs or Centres.

Sustainability and 
Transformation Plan 
(STP)

Five-year plans covering all aspects of NHS spending within a given geographical 
footprint. STPs have a broad scope in planning healthcare, including: improving quality 
and developing new models of care; improving health and wellbeing; and improving 
efficiency of services. STPs are developed by Sustainability and Transformation 
Partnerships, made up of NHS organisations and local councils. The SYB STP has now 
become an Integrated Care System (see ICS).

T

Tertiary care Highly specialised treatment such as neurosurgery, transplants and secure forensic 
mental health services.

U

Unwarranted clinical 
variation

Variation that cannot be explained by the condition or the preference of the patient; it is 
variation that can only be explained by differences in health system performance

Urgent Treatment 
Centre (UTC)

Urgent care centres designed as an alternative to ED departments for patients with less 
severe, non-emergency conditions. Often co-located with EDs with patients triaged and 
streamed at the front door, and equipped to diagnose and deal with many of the most 
common patient conditions. May also be standalone at sites without an ED.

W

Whole-time equivalent 
(WTE)

Whole-time equivalent is a unit that indicates the workload of an employed person (or 
student) in a way that makes workloads or class loads comparable across various 
contexts. For medical staff, it generally refers to 10 programmable activities per week of 
resource.

Page 192



1

South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and 
North Derbyshire: Hospital Services Programme 

Strategic Outline Case Annex A: 

Response to stakeholder feedback on the 
recommendations of the Hospital Services Review 

Page 193



2

CONTENTS

1 Introduction.................................................................................................................................................3

1.1 Process of identifying responses to the Hospital Services Review Final Report..................................3

1.2 Engagement with patients and the public ...........................................................................................4

2 Responses from Clinical Commissioning Groups .........................................................................................5

2.1 Barnsley CCG........................................................................................................................................5

2.2 Bassetlaw CCG .....................................................................................................................................6

2.3 Doncaster CCG .....................................................................................................................................7

2.4 North Derbyshire CCG .........................................................................................................................8

2.5 Rotherham CCG .................................................................................................................................10

2.6 Sheffield CCG .....................................................................................................................................12

2.7 Wakefield CCG ...................................................................................................................................14

3 Responses from Acute Trusts ....................................................................................................................15

3.1 Barnsley Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust .........................................................................................15

3.2 Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust ...............................................20

3.3 Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust ...........................................................................22

3.4 Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust ....................................................................................................25

3.5 The Rotherham Hospital NHS Foundation Trust................................................................................25

3.6 Sheffield Children’s Hospital NHS Foundation Trust .........................................................................29

3.7 Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust..........................................................................30

4 Responses from Community and Mental Health Trusts ............................................................................31

4.1 Sheffield Health and Social Care NHS Foundation Trust....................................................................31

4.2 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust ................................................................31

5 Responses received from other provider organisations............................................................................32

5.1 East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust ....................................................................................32

5.2 Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust............................................................................................33

6 Responses received from Local Authorities...............................................................................................34

6.1 Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee................................................................................34

6.2 Rotherham Borough Council .............................................................................................................34

7 Responses received from patients and the public.....................................................................................38

7.1 Member of the public - 1 ...................................................................................................................38

7.2 Member of the public – 2 ..................................................................................................................54

7.3 Feedback from a survey conducted by members of Save Our NHS...................................................58

Page 194



3

1 INTRODUCTION

The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire (SYBMYND) Hospital Services 
Review was published on May 10th 2018. Stakeholders were asked to respond to the recommendations of 
the Review by 12th July 2018. 

The Boards of the acute trusts, and the Governing Bodies of the Clinical Commissioning Groups, discussed 
the document in their public meetings. The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee also discussed the 
document. Some other organisations also discussed the document and have submitted responses which are 
identified below.

In addition, although this was not a formal consultation, members of the public were invited to submit their 
views on the full report, and the submissions which were received are included in this document. 

This document includes all the responses received, from CCGs, Trusts, Local Authorities, and other 
stakeholders. It responds in detail to the individual points raised. A summary of the key themes, and the 
response to them, is included within the Strategic Outline Case, of which this is an annex. 

1.1 PROCESS OF IDENTIFYING RESPONSES TO THE HOSPITAL SERVICES REVIEW FINAL REPORT
The final report of the independent Hospital Services Review, with its recommendations, was published on 
9th May 2018. 

Following the publication of the Report, the partners involved in the HSR have been considering their 
response to the Review and its recommendations. A standard briefing paper and presentation were 
prepared which were made available to the Boards and Governing Bodies of the organisations represented 
on the CPB. Members of the CPB were invited to discuss the report, in public sessions of their Boards or 
Governing Bodies, and to submit their response to the recommendations in writing by 12th July 2018.  

The dates of the Board and Governing Body discussions in public are attached at Annex D. The minutes of 
these public discussions will be made available by the individual organisations through the usual processes. 

The organisations’ written responses to the Review, with a detailed response to each, are laid out in this 
separate report.

Other stakeholders including patients and the public were invited to respond with their views on the full 
report by 12th July1. The public feedback received, as well as our response, is also detailed in this report. 

The agreed way forward in the Strategic Outline Case is informed by feedback from all of the organisations 
and members of the public. 

1 Individuals and organisations who had expressed an interest in the Review, and who had responded to GDPR requests 
saying that they wished their details to continue to be included, were emailed directly to alert them of the timeline for 
comments (by 12th July).  Communication leads in CCGs also contacted Local Authorities and other key stakeholders to 
alert them to the deadline. An extension was given to one public stakeholder group who requested more time to 
respond.

Page 195



4

1.2 ENGAGEMENT WITH PATIENTS AND THE PUBLIC
The Integrated Care System is continuing to engage with members of the public around the work on hospital 
services. The first cross-system public session on the HSR was held in August 2017 and a programme of 
engagement has been ongoing ever since, and has shaped each stage of the work:

 The results of the engagement up to the publication of the HSR final report, including a focus on 
seldom heard groups, were published alongside the Review and helped to shape the 
recommendations in the review.

 The specific written responses to the HSR final report have been included in this document and have, 
along with the wide range of public views collected during 2017-18, helped to shape the drafting of 
the SOC.

 An engagement report covering all of the engagement that has taken place since the publication of 
the final report in May 2018 will be published to correspond with the final approval of the Strategic 
Outline Case. This will ensure each of the workstreams taking the work forward from October does 
so with full understanding of patient and public views on the work thus far.

Page 196



5

2 RESPONSES FROM CLINICAL COMMISSIONING GROUPS

2.1 BARNSLEY CCG

2.1.1 Response from Barnsley CCG
The following response was received:

Thank you for attending our Governing Body on 14 June to present the independent Hospital Services review 
report. The CCG welcomes the report and recognises the hard work that has gone into the review from all 
partners across the region. We remain committed to improving the health and wellbeing of the population of 
Barnsley and across the wider region, and as such are supportive of the aims of the review.

One issue we raised at Governing Body was the principle that underpins the ICS MOU, the JCCC MOU and the 
HSR, the “no worse off principle” which is that none of our population across SYB should be made worse off 
and that we should not inadvertently increase health inequalities through our joint working and collective 
decision making processes. This is very important in Barnsley as we border another ICS and could see 
increased patient flows out of the ICS geography from any reconfiguration proposals.

Therefore before we progress to site specific modelling there is some assurance that our Governing Body 
would request regarding the due diligence that will be undertaken in relation to the capacity and 
preparedness of providers who sit outside the ICS to receive our patients, work to SYB clinical network 
protocols and reconfiguration models, as well as any future network management and payment structures. 
Otherwise there is a danger that we model on the basis of assumptions about provider partners, their 
capacity and their ability to engage that are just not realistic or not agreed.

To commission consistent care and quality standards against agreed clinical protocols for all SYB patients, 
ensuring equality of access without unwarranted clinical variation we must ensure that all providers who sit 
outside SYB together with their lead commissioner are signed up to this aspiration. We will also need to 
assure ourselves that the lead commissioner is comfortable that the provider has the capacity to take on 
extra patients to these defined parameters, without any detrimental effect on their local populations.

I would welcome your views on how this due diligence can be carried with Mid Yorkshires Hospitals NHS 
Foundation Trust and the agreement of NHS Wakefield CCG secured in order to provide the assurance to 
Barnsley CCG and our partner commissioners that the principles we are working to and the options we 
evaluate will be consistent for all our SYB population.

2.1.2 Response to points raised by Barnsley CCG
The ICS has noted the response from Bassetlaw CCG, and the valid concerns raised about making sure that 
the SYB population are not worse off following any reconfiguration. The response to the key points is as 
follows:

Patients being worse off as a result of being sent out of area - It is the intent of the entirety of the joint 
working collaborative in SYB, to deliver the best care possible to patients in our region, working together to 
improve performance against the challenges we face. 

As the response from Barnsley CCG identifies, under some options, a patient’s ‘next nearest’ hospital for 
some services might become a hospital outside SYB(ND). The system cannot exclude particular options on 
this basis, but the SOC recognises the challenge this represents for commissioners in ensuring that they 
commission services to the same standard for patients inside and outside SYB(ND).

The SOC has addressed this point through the following proposed action points:

Page 197



6

 The hospital services programme will model all the appropriate options, including those where some 
patients’ next nearest trust might be outside SYB(ND). However, in parallel with undertaking the 
modelling, the team will undertake due diligence around understanding any quality, safety and 
capacity issues at the potential receiving sites. This will include dialogue with the receiving site and 
their commissioners, to understand the issues from their perspective, as well as consideration of 
publicly available data on quality, capacity etc. The team will engage with SYB commissioners in 
designing this process of due diligence.

 In evaluating the options, one of the existing evaluation criteria is quality, and the team will consider 
any implications of quality for patients receiving care from trusts outside SYB(ND). The assessment 
against the criterion around access will also consider the potential equality implications of some 
patients receiving care at sites which are not signed up to the principles of the SYB Hosted Network.  

Modelling will also consider the implications of changes happening in STPs outside South Yorkshire and 
Bassetlaw. The ICS is already in contact with the leads on reconfiguration in neighbouring STPs, and contacts 
with these groups will continue. 

2.2 BASSETLAW CCG

2.2.1 Response from Bassetlaw CCG
The following response was received:

Bassetlaw CCG’s Governing Body discussed the Hospital Service Review’s report in its public session on 12 
June 2018. This letter briefly summarises the outcome of the Governing Body’s discussion. 

Our Governing Body wishes to ensure that the services it commissions provide high quality care, are 
sustainable and are provided as locally as practically possible. Bassetlaw is the most rural area across South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, covering the largest geography but having the lowest population. For example, for 
most of the population of Bassetlaw the distance to the next nearest hospital (Doncaster Royal Infirmary) is 
over three times greater than the distance between Rotherham and Sheffield. In addition, public transport is 
limited and car ownership is relatively low. The model of acute care in a number of specialties in Bassetlaw 
has been designed to support the majority of care being provided locally but more specialist inpatient care 
being provided elsewhere. For example, hyper acute stroke has been provided at DRI for approximately 7 
years and acute paediatric admissions at night are transferred to DRI but the majority of patients are 
diagnosed and treated in Bassetlaw without the need to transfer them. We are therefore pleased to see that 
the Hospital Services Review has concluded that this type of arrangement can be a successful approach that 
could potentially be adopted elsewhere in some of the specialties that were covered by the review.

The Governing Body therefore welcomed the findings regarding maintaining district general hospitals and 
their A&E departments. We support the review of out-of-hours acute gastroenterology in the other DGHs. We 
are keen to support the proposed Hosted Networks and feel paediatrics in particular is a network that it 
would be very beneficial to establish as soon as possible. We also welcome the proposals for system 
collaboration rather than competition and the development of a Health and Care Institute and an Innovation 
Hub.

In summary our Governing Body welcomed the report, agreed to the recommendations and supported the 
proposal for this work to now be taken forward.

Page 198



7

2.2.2 Response to points raised by Bassetlaw CCG
The ICS has noted the response from Bassetlaw CCG, including the points made around the specific 
geography and population of Bassetlaw. The majority of the response is supportive of the HSR 
recommendations with the following points being raised that will be relevant to the next steps:

Access - “for most of the population of Bassetlaw the distance to the next nearest hospital (Doncaster Royal 
Infirmary) is over three times greater than the distance between Rotherham and Sheffield. In addition, public 
transport is limited and car ownership is relatively low.”

Access is one of the main themes that will be addressed in the site-specific modelling going forward. The 
modelling of options will include both the additional physical distance that patients and families would have 
to travel in the event of any reconfiguration, and the impact of this on travel times by ambulance, public 
transport and private transport.

The modelling will also look at the impact on communities of different socioeconomic status, by undertaking 
a postcode analysis. This should enable identification of to what degree communities where car ownership is 
likely to be low will be affected.  

2.3 DONCASTER CCG

2.3.1 Response from Doncaster CCG
The following response was received:

I am writing to provide feedback from the NHS Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group (DCCG) Governing 
Body (GB) in relation to the Independent Hospital Services Review that was published 9 May 2018.

Firstly, I would like to thank you for attending the DCCG GB on Thursday 21 June 2018 to present the key 
points of the review. GB members welcomed your presentation and wanted to feed back that it was helpful, 
provided clarity on a complex programme of work and promoted a positive discussion when considering the 
recommendations in the SYB ICS Briefing Paper.

In response to the recommendations, I can confirm that:

1. The DCCG GB noted the content of the paper including the process and next steps of the HSR. It was 
also noted that a process to identify funding for the next stage of the HSR is currently underway and 
that this is not yet agreed.

2. The following comments on the content of the HSR were also presented:
a. Any proposal in future would have to be affordable and would have to be within existing 

resources.
b. There is a need to review and potentially agree a different funding model.
c. Clinical Networks are supported and we would want to encourage a SY&B model across the 

wider system to avoid a centralist approach.
d. The group reflected that clinical variation and innovation are important factors but 

workforce is the key driver and we should be open and transparent about this.

In addition, the Governing Body asked for clarification on the reconfiguration recommendations for A&E. 
Could you please confirm that the report is recommending a 24 hour A&E service in each of the current sites 
across SY&B?

3. The DCCG confirmed acceptance of the Review recommendations and support further work to be 
undertaken.

Page 199



8

I hope this provides you with the information needed to support next steps. If you require anything further 
please do not hesitate to get in touch and I look forward to receiving your response on A&E in due course.

2.3.2 Response to points raised by Doncaster CCG
The ICS notes Doncaster CCG’s acceptance of the Review recommendations. In response to the specific 
comments raised by the CCG:

Funding - A capital bid has been submitted to NHS England requesting capital funding to support a range of 
programmes across the ICS to improve care in SYB; the acute sustainability programme is one of these 
workstreams. 

In relation to revenue funding, one of the evaluation criteria is that the running costs of future models of 
care should not cost more than current configurations. The costs of all options will be assessed in the 
modelling of the site-specific options. With regard to the need to review and potentially agree a different 
payment approach in the system, the hospital services programme team has noted this feedback. This will 
require discussion with commissioners going forward.

Hosted Networks - Support for Hosted Networks is welcomed, and moving forward the system will engage 
Trusts to develop a framework for the establishment of these for each of the services. The aim is for Host 
roles to be distributed equitably across the trusts in the region, provided that trusts are able to meet the 
criteria that will be developed around the requirements of a Host. The hospital services programme team 
will support providers and commissioners to develop a robust approach to assigning Hosts in an equitable 
fashion, whilst ensuring that potential Host providers are able to fully deliver against their roles and 
responsibilities. 

Workforce - workforce is the key driver behind the need for service change. In recognition of the point 
raised by Doncaster CCG here, the SOC says that design of workforce roles will be the first step in the work 
programme for the Clinical Working Groups. This will feed into the reconfiguration modelling and into the 
Hosted Networks. 

A&E – The SOC says that the system intends to retain all six emergency departments plus the paediatric 
emergency department at Sheffield Children’s Hospital. The SOC does not propose to close emergency 
departments overnight. The SOC states that emergency departments will keep their doors open 24/7, with 
consultant coverage appropriate to the size of the unit, guided by Royal College of Emergency Medicine 
guidelines. The Clinical Working Groups will consider what staff presence is appropriate in A&Es at different 
times of the day and explore how we can use staff in different ways. Alternative staff roles, such as advanced 
nurse or medical practitioners, or support from GPs, could help to address workforce challenges in urgent 
and emergency care services. 

2.4 NORTH DERBYSHIRE CCG

2.4.1 Response from North Derbyshire CCG
The following response was received, as an extract from the minutes of the North Derbyshire CCG Governing 
Body meeting.

Notes on the HSR from North Derbyshire CCG’s Governing Body.

Feedback on the Hospital Services Review is required by today. Feedback from Hardwick CCG has also been 
provided. Governing Body have been aware of the Hospital Services Review (HSR) for some time. The remit of 
the HSR is to identify ways in which the acute providers, working together, can improve the sustainability of 
acute services. 

Page 200



9

The areas being reconfigured are: Emergency Departments, Paediatrics, Maternity, Stroke and 
Gastroenterology. The timing of the reconfiguration is critical as staff migrate to bigger units. The plan will be 
formally published 8th May. The joint Committee will formally receive the plan on the 23rd May. Further 
conversations will need to take place at Governing Body in relation to our views of the implications.

Transport Services between hospitals are important and how do we get it right. The Derbyshire STP footprint 
also needs to be taken into account and how we connect.

Dr Milton confirmed that these issues have been raised on a regular basis and are being heard and 
understood more clearly. A separate governance group has been set up of which Dr Milton is a member, to 
ensure that the HSR is cognisant of the Derbyshire challenge.  Hardwick CCG is an Associate Member of the 
joint committee rather than a member. 

Dr Clayton took the action to write to the joint committee formally about Hardwick CCG, and the united 
commitment from a Derbyshire perspective.

Dr Spooner asked how much influence Chesterfield does have within the joint committee. Dr Clayton 
responded that we have significant influence and the terms of reference is very strong and together with 
Hardwick CCG is strengthened further. Conversations took place regarding the STP and addressing boundary 
issues.  The joint committee is the forum for addressing these issues for all borders beyond South Yorkshire 
and Bassetlaw.

NHSE regional reconfiguration will be led by the North of England and will be part of the assurance process 
but NHSE North Midlands will feed into this from a regulatory perspective. The Governing Body were 
delighted this has been recognised and very helpful.

Dr Clayton asked if there was any further feedback from the Governing Body in addition to Hardwick CCGs 
feedback.

Dr Austin added that she would like the consideration of as the HSR progresses how will it affect Chesterfield 
Royal Hospital and our patients and that a Derbyshire approach is required.

Governing Body DISCUSSED the Hospital Service Review Draft Report and identified concerns for the CCG.

CLARIFIED the CCG’s position within the South Yorkshire Joint Committee of CCGs as a member and 
Hardwick CCG as an Associate Member

2.4.2 Response to points raised by North Derbyshire CCG
The ICS notes North Derbyshire CCG’s comments around the importance of patient transport, and how any 
service change might impact on Chesterfield Royal Hospital and having a solution for Derbyshire and its 
patients. 

Transport - The response notes that it is important we consider and ensure that we get right the transport 
services for patients following any service change. 

To address any concerns, the ICS will establish a strategic transport group to bring together representatives 
from stakeholder groups in order to better understand the needs around transport and access. This will 
provide a forum to enable through discussion of travel implications across SYB and will identify best ways to 
mitigate them. 

Minimising the effects of travel on patient safety is paramount, so evidence from academic papers and 
learning from previous reconfigurations is being gathered to better understand this topic. This evidence base 

Page 201



10

will be discussed and reviewed by the strategic transport group and will inform the site specific modelling 
process to ensure any risks are mitigated and minimised.

A Solution for Derbyshire - The SYB stakeholders recognise the role that Derbyshire commissioners and 
Chesterfield play in networks more widely across the Derbyshire STP. The SOC commits to continued 
engagement with Derbyshire commissioners in discussions around the implications of the potential service 
change for the Derbyshire STP. Any potential impacts and mitigations will be explored.

It is an important principle to note, that in undertaking site-specific modelling on options, all sites will need 
to be treated equally and will need to be aware of the possibility that changes to their services could result 
from the work. Moving forward we will involve the Derbyshire CCGs and Chesterfield Royal Hospital in the 
development of proposals, through the various governance groups that oversee the work of the programme. 

2.5 ROTHERHAM CCG

2.5.1 Response received from Rotherham CCG
The following response was received:

Thank you coming to the Rotherham CCG Governing Body to present the HSR. Your presentation was helpful 
and allowed GB members to better understand the recommendations of the review. 

The GB welcomed the report and was very supportive of many of the recommendations. More specific 
comments were;

1. The GB particularly supported maintaining A&Es in each place.
2. The GB supported the principle of clinical networks between providers but raised concerns about 

provider buy–in.
3. The GB supported the recommendation for each acute provider to host one of the networks and 

would not wish to see all networks hosted by the specialist providers.
4. The GB raised concerns about 16 hour Paediatric units and how maternity, neonatal and A&E 

services would operate safely with reduced Paediatrics and were not assured that this approach 
would deliver safe and sustainable services.

5. The GB supported the implementation of Better Births and more choice of settings for births for 
parents.

6. The GB supported a central excellence hub but raised questions about how this would be funded and 
how it relates to the AHSN.

I hope this feedback is helpful. 

Please don’t hesitate to get in touch with us if you need any further information or if anything is unclear.

2.5.2 Response to points raised by Rotherham CCG
The ICS notes Rotherham CCG’s support of the HSR recommendations. The following response provides 
clarification with regard to the particular concerns raised in their feedback:

Hosted Networks – Support for Hosted Networks is welcomed, and moving forward the system will engage 
Trusts to develop a framework for the establishment of these for each of the services. The aim is for Host 
roles to be distributed equitably across the trusts in the region, provided that trusts are able to meet the 
criteria that providers and commissioners will develop around the requirements of a Host. 

Page 202



11

The hospital services programme team will support providers and commissioners to develop a robust 
approach to assigning Hosts in an equitable fashion, whilst ensuring that potential Host providers are able to 
fully deliver against their roles and responsibilities. 

The establishment of Hosted Networks will be driven by the Trusts, and supported by wide clinical 
engagement through the Clinical Working Groups, to ensure they fulfil requirements and gain provider and 
staff buy-in.  

Paediatric Assessment Units - The concern raised by Rotherham CCG is noted. It is important to reiterate 
that any proposals for reconfiguration will be developed in close collaboration with clinicians to ensure they 
meet safety and quality requirements. Clinical evidence supports the safety of SSPAUs as an alternative to 
full-time inpatient units, particularly when there is not enough activity or resource to sustain a full paediatric 
inpatient unit, assuming appropriate transfer protocols are in place for those patients requiring overnight 
care. The Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health support such a care model, stating that for many 
patients they are a more appropriate care setting than an inpatient unit, and these models are being 
increasingly used to deliver high quality paediatric care2. 

Moving forward, the SOC says that the system will model the impact of changing one or two inpatient 
paediatric units (from the existing units in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire) into 
SSPAUs. If an SSPAU is proposed, the Clinical Working Groups and ultimately the Hosted Network will be 
engaged to ensure that it is supported by robust referral and patient transfer protocols to ensure children 
are able to access the care they need out-of-hours. The ICS will also consider the close interdependencies 
between paediatric, maternity and neonatal care in this modelling to ensure that the provision of paediatric 
and paediatric-related services remain safe. 

Maternity services  - The ICS is aware that implementing an SSPAU model would impact on the type of 
maternity services that the same site could offer. Traditionally, changes to inpatient paediatric presence 
would result in changes to maternity services, meaning high-risk births (which require obstetrician presence) 
and neonatology services would not be provided on that site. Owing to the concerns raised by Rotherham 
CCG and other organisations in the system, the SOC says that the Clinical Working Groups will be asked to 
look at alternative models that might offer different ways to meet the requirements of this interdependency.

Neonatology - Concerns about the interdependencies between neonatology, paediatrics and maternity 
services are noted. In the light of this, the membership of the paediatric Clinical Working Group has been 
refreshed to include neonatologists, and SOC says that the implications for neonatology will be included 
within work on reconfiguration.

Central Health and Care Institute & Innovation Hub - As an ICS, SYB will need to consider how these Hubs 
will fit into an existing landscape of clinical networks, academia, Health Education England and the Academic 
Health Sciences Network. Moving forward, the system will engage both NHS and non-NHS partners to 
develop the detail of the model, considering carefully any overlap with existing networks, making sure that 
the right capabilities and organisations are represented in the Institute and Hub, and also considering any 
funding implications. 

2 Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, Standards for Short-Stay Paediatric Assessment Units, March 2017.
Available at: https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf 

Page 203

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf


12

2.6 SHEFFIELD CCG

2.6.1 Response received from Sheffield CCG
The following response was received, as an extract from the minutes of the Sheffield CCG public meeting to 
discuss the HSR final report:

The NHS Sheffield CCG Governing Body met in public on Thursday 5 July 2018 to discuss and consider the 
content and recommendations of the Hospital Services Review paper that had been published on 9 May 
2018. The HSR’s Programme Director attended the meeting for this discussion. She reminded Governing Body 
that the objective for them was to consider the HSR and the recommendations which were made within it, 
and to agree what their position was, as a Governing Body, in the process. She reported that feedback from 
all Governing Bodies on the report was required by 12 July and would be passed to a central team to form the 
development of a strategic outline case (SOC), and that a further final draft would be presented to Governing 
Bodies for approval by the end of July 2018.

Governing Body noted that, as part of the system response to the HSR, the SOC would be presented to the 
Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCGs) on 25 July 2018, and were reminded that as this 
committee was not constituted it meant that it had no delegation to agree, approve, or reject the 
recommendations, so the final decision would be taken by the CCGs.

Governing Body were reminded that the review had been launched in June 2017, with the objective of the 
review to look at how acute services could be put on a more objective footing, identifying vulnerable services 
that required a different model of delivery, and through an agreed methodology had identified five services 
as the focus of the review: paediatrics, maternity, urgent and emergency care, gastroenterology and 
endoscopy, and stroke, all services that were particularly challenged in areas such as workforce, clinical 
variation across the Trusts, and uptake of innovation, especially around IT systems

Governing Body members confirmed that they had considered the report and its recommendations following 
its publication in May. They agreed that the reconfiguration recommendations seemed sensible, given the 
environment in which the CCG was working. However, they questioned whether staff and members of the 
public had been asked to address specific issues during engagement or if it had been more of an open 
feedback, but noted that the reconfiguration options would be subject to further discussion and wider 
engagement with staff and members of the public at a later stage. They also suggested that, given the 
statutory responsibilities of the CCG to engage and consult with members of the public, it would be important 
to have an early discussion at the CCG’s Strategic Patient Experience, Engagement and Equality Committee’ 
(SPEEEC), to discuss and consider what resources would be required for the engagement and where they 
would come from, and in what form the consultation would take place. They noted that engagement had 
been a developing process as ideas had developed, and that consultation had been, and would still be, with 
patients, members of the public, staff, clinicians, and senior leadership teams around the main challenges of 
the five services. They noted that, going forward in terms of engagement, statutory consultation on a 
document that was well defined would take place from June to September 2019, along with ongoing 
engagement with Patient Participation Groups (PPGs), and the CCG’s SPEEEC.

Governing Body were pleased to note that some of the more difficult to reach and seldom heard groups had 
been included in the engagement process, which they acknowledged could sometimes be difficult, and 
suggested that for future consultation this could be co-ordinated through the South Yorkshire Community 
Foundation.

Governing Body were reminded that engagement with clinicians had been through the Clinical Working 
Groups (CWGS), one for each specialty, that had met to discuss and consider what the problems were and 

Page 204



13

what solutions might work, which they had turned into reconfiguration options for discussion at a large joint 
working group earlier in the year. The feedback from that workshop had been discussed with the above 
engagement groups and incorporated into the report prior to publication.

Governing Body asked if a transport to services group could be established, particularly to discuss what the 
impact level would be on travel and transport times following reconfiguration of services and what the main 
issues would be on wider communities.

Governing Body asked whether equality impact and health inequalities assessments would help to make the 
system better. They were advised that equality screening had been undertaken during public engagement, 
and that over the past few months a mapping exercise looking at age, disability, etc, had been undertaken 
against the five services. They were also advised that at this point the HSR team was looking at what sort of 
modelling would be needed, but at this stage it would not be site specific and would include looking at 
postcode and socio-deprivation need to access to services. They were advised that, going forward it was 
planned to use this for targeting engagement, and would also be something that would have to be submitted 
to NHS England as part of the assurance process prior to going out to public consultation in from June to 
September 2019.

Following our discussion and consideration of the report and recommendations at our meeting held in public 
on 5 July 2018, on behalf of the NHS Sheffield CCG, the Governing Body confirmed acceptance of the review 
recommendations, as set out in section 11 of the report presented to them the meeting.

2.6.2 Response to points raised by Sheffield CCG
The ICS thanks Sheffield CCG for its response. Their acceptance of the review recommendations is noted and 
the following concerns are addressed:

Engagement – Patient and public engagement, as well as engagement with the healthcare professionals in 
SYB, was a key part of the HSR. In relation to the specific point raised in this note, the HSR team has 
confirmed that members of the public were invited, at the third SYBMYND-wide event, to comment on the 
specific proposals that had been developed so far, and on the outcomes of the modelling.

Moving forward, the ICS will build on the engagement undertaken to date and ensure that the patient public 
voice feeds in to the development and evaluation of options, which will be co-developed with the expert 
healthcare staff in our system. 

The approach to engagement and communications will be outlined in the ICS’s engagement strategy. In 
summary, the acute sustainability programme will continue to engage regularly through the ICS Citizens’ 
Panel, with CCG Engagement Groups (including Patient and Partnership Groups), patient and citizen 
community groups, community forums and groups (with support from organisations such as the South 
Yorkshire Community Foundation and South Yorkshire Housing Association), and other relevant forums (such 
as local Maternity Voices Partnerships). The Hospital Services team has also given a commitment to bring the 
engagement approach to the Sheffield CCG SPEEEC.

The ICS will work with the Citizens’ Panel, Joint Health Overview Scrutiny Committee and communications 
and engagement colleagues to determine the best engagement approach throughout this next phase. As 
respondents have pointed out, as proposed modelling work progresses, the nature of engagement will 
become more specifically related to changes to individual sites and services, whereas it has tended thus far 
to relate to broader discussion of concepts. 

Engagement will be frequent and regular to ensure clarity and transparency around proposals as they 
develop. The communications team will also build upon the learning from previous consultations undertaken 
by the ICS and other systems, to ensure relevant experience informs the work going forward.

Page 205



14

Travel and Transport – Maintaining equitable and timely access services is an important tenet of the acute 
sustainability programme. The hospital services programme team will work with the ambulance services to 
model the potential impact of increased travel times both for ambulance and for private and public 
transport. The analysis will break this down by demographic to give a detailed view of implications for 
different groups of patients, and the team will work with transport experts when developing any proposals. 

The ICS will engage with local partners to set up a strategic travel group. This group will comprise 
representation from local acute trusts, commissioning bodies, ambulance services (both Yorkshire and East 
Midlands Ambulance services), local authorities, patients and the public, and other relevant local travel and 
transport stakeholders (such as local public transport providers). The programme will engage this group 
regularly as options are developed and assessed. 

Clinical Working Groups will review the national and international evidence base, to fully understand the 
safety implications of increased travel times for patients. In such a way the hospital services programme will 
ensure that options taken forward seek to minimise and mitigate any increase in travel. 

Equalities – Ensuring equitable access to high quality care is a key priority for the programme. Moving 
forward, the hospital services programme team will ensure that a robust equalities impact assessment is 
undertaken to assess and inform any future proposals. This will be supported by quantitative modelling and 
qualitative engagement that seeks to identify any potential impact on patients, broken down into 
demographic groups, to understand and assess the impact on different groups in society. In addition to this, 
the programme will continue to engage seldom heard groups, and other relevant groups of patients and the 
public, to hear and understand their views and concerns to ensure that voices heard are reflective of the 
entire patient cohort.  

2.7 WAKEFIELD CCG

2.7.1 Response received from Wakefield CCG
The following response was received:

Just to confirm that agenda item 11 ‘South Yorkshire Hospital Service Review – Stage 2’ was an agenda item 
with a covering paper, with a link to the report embedded in the paper (given the size of the report). The 
recommendation to discuss and support the recommendations within the report was approved by the 
Governing Body. 

2.7.2 Response to points raised by Wakefield CCG
The ICS notes Wakefield CCG’s support for the HSR recommendations. 

Page 206



15

3 RESPONSES FROM ACUTE TRUSTS

3.1 BARNSLEY HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.1.1 Response received from Barnsley Hospitals NHS FT
The following response was received:

Thank you for your letter dated 13 June 2018 in which you set out the next steps to implementing the 
changes described in the Hospital Services Review (HSR) for South Yorkshire, Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and 
North Derbyshire (SYBMYND). The Trust welcomes the report and recognises the hard work that has gone 
into the review from your team and all partners across the region. Barnsley Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
(BHNFT) remains committed to improving the healthcare and lives of patients with the local and wider 
region, and as such is broadly supportive of the aims of the review. There are a number of points raised in 
your letter and the following response takes each of these in order.

Since the letter was sent, Professor Chris Welsh has attended Trust Board and has given the Trust further 
clarity with regard to some of the aspects of the review and the detail within your letter. It is understood that 
the main emphasis of the response is to allow the development of a Business Case in the form of a Strategic 
Outline Case (SOC). It is further understood that this relates the potential reconfiguration options and the 
need to plan the capital implications of any potential reconfiguration. This letter summarises the Trust’s 
response on this and the broader outcome of the review, with respect the development of hosted networks 
and other transformation proposals.

Transformation proposals 

We generally support your recommendations around transformation of the five identified services. We agree 
the current arrangements around collaborative work which have been developed over the past few years 
under the ‘Working Together Programme’ are now at a stage where a new approach is needed. There was 
strong support for the ‘Hosted Network’ model with each SYB Trust hosting one of the five networks with a 
common framework that covers standard guidelines, standard job descriptions, potentially equipment 
procurement etc. The other two network models are more problematic from the Trust’s perspective. Whilst 
we recognise that some other SYB providers may be interested in a Lead Provider network model for 
paediatric services, this does not currently interest BHNFT and our clinical staff are not supportive. However, 
as long as the lead provider aspect was on a mutually voluntary basis, the Trust would be happy to work with 
other providers as part of a paediatric ‘Hosted Network’. BHNFT did not see the rationale for an UEC provider 
network other than as a ‘standard’ Hosted Network. We would have significant concerns about the feasibility 
of a centrally controlled UEC network moving staff from one Trust to another but we would welcome further 
exploration of more effective UEC partnership.

The Trust strongly welcomed the suggestions of a SYB Innovation Hub and Workforce Centre. The three tiers 
of hosted networks clearly need further discussion and refinement dependent upon the areas for which each 
is likely to be designated. BHNFT would welcome detailed discussions on this as part of the plans going 
forward.

Page 207



16

Potential Reconfiguration Options:

The table below describes the potential reconfiguration options and the Trusts response to these options 
in the fives services identified in the review.

Proposal Trust Response
Urgent and 
Emergency Care

Maintain six Consultant 
Led 
Emergency 
Departments.

The Trust continues to perform well against national targets overall and in particular the four 
hour standard (greater than 95% - June 2018). We are pleased that there is no suggestion to 
reduce the number of Emergency Departments and/or reconfigure within the report.

At this stage the Trust is assuming no change to its service - the Trust will continue to deliver 
Urgent and Emergency Care via a 24/7 Consultant Led Emergency Department.

The Trust’s view is that improvement efforts to deliver better UEC services have to be place-
based, focussed on whole system issues, driven by reducing breaches through optimised care 
pathways rather than counting additional activity and are best led through the local ‘A&E 
Delivery Boards’. A future Hosted Network in UEC would need to be carefully designed to be 
value adding to local arrangements and would likely obviate the need for the regional UEC ICS 
work stream.

Maternity

Replace one or two 
Obstetric Units with 
Midwifery Led Units 
(MLU).

The Trust has a sustainable Consultant led Maternity service and performs well against 
clinical indicators in this area. The reduction of one or two Obstetric Units in the region would 
have significant consequences for BHNFT. In addition there are a number of issues to 
consider, which would make BHNFT unsuitable for a ‘stand alone midwife led unit (MLU)’, 
these are:

Geography - a significant proportion of the local population live in the North of Barnsley. The 
impact of changing the designation of Barnsley to an MLU would have consequences on the 
flow of patients both within the region and outside of it. If there was no Consultant led 
service in Barnsley, it is likely that many patients in this part of the area would have travel to 
Pinderfields for Maternity services. It is known that Mid Yorkshire would have significant 
capacity issues should patients from Barnsley opt to travel to Pinderfields, given their recent 
reconfiguration. In addition, plans at Calderdale and Huddersfield are to centralise 
Consultant led services on the Calderdale site; this would leave the population in the North 
West of Barnsley with less choice overall and would necessitate investment in other STP areas 
to bolster their maternity capacity.

Risk – based on a recent audit the majority of pregnant women in Barnsley (circa 66%) are 
classed as ‘high risk’ and would therefore be unsuitable for delivery in an MLU. The Barnsley 
population therefore have a higher proportion of high risk women compared to national 
averages (circa 40% high risk).

Midwifery Led Units – local experience of stand alone MLUs would question the sustainability 
of such a service. The nearest MLUs at Pontefract and Dewsbury are known to be significantly 
underutilised. This questions the long term viability of such a unit both clinically and 
financially. This along with the risk profile described above, would reduce the potential for 
the use of this service.

At this stage the Trust is assuming no change to its service – the Trust anticipates that it will 
continue to deliver Consultant Led Obstetric and Maternity Services

Page 208



17

Paediatrics

Replace one or two 
Consultant Led units 
with Assessment Units.

The Trust continues to develop its Paediatric services, has recently received significant 
investments for paediatric A&E services and is upgrading the neonatal unit following a long-
standing fund raising project. The Trust performs well against clinical indicators in this area 
and delivers a sustainable service. We have recently increased our Consultant establishment 
to provide 12 hour onsite Consultant presence, seven days per week. We are currently fully 
established at Consultant level.

Key to any changes in this area is the co-dependency with Maternity services; the two services 
are intrinsically linked and in the Trusts opinion cannot be separated out and would be 
extremely difficult to disaggregate. Co-location of both Maternity and Paediatrics is required 
to deliver a safe and sustainable service. The Trust assumes that any reduction in the numbers 
of units in SYB would mean that a site losing a unit would likely lose both maternity and 
paediatric services – clarification on this point would be helpful.

At this stage the Trust is assuming no reconfiguration change to the service – the Trust 
delivers a successful Paediatric service to the local population and anticipates that this will 
continue.

Stroke

Sheffield, Doncaster and 
Pinderfields HASU units 
supporting other DGHs 
acute stroke units.

Following the Public Consultation on Hyper Acute Stroke Units (HASU) the Trust had to urgently 
cease provision of some aspects of HASU care as our medical consultant workforce did not wish 
to work within a non-HASU site. However, the Trust has continued to develop its Acute Stroke 
Unit and to work with the SWYPNFT delivered stroke rehabilitation service. It is important to 
note that we have recently been successful appointing a consultant to the ASU, albeit from 
another part of the stroke service in Barnsley. We recognise that following the recent 
agreement to reconfigure HASU services there will be challenges to deliver this model.

We are already well on with considering how the existing ASU and rehabilitation stroke 
services in Barnsley could be improved in partnership with BCCG and SWYPNFT.

At this stage the Trust is assuming no further externally mandated change to the remaining 
service following the recent reconfiguration. The Trust would welcome further collaborative 
work around the reconfigured HASU units and further discussions about the future of the 
service within and outside of the region.

Gastroenterology and 
Endoscopy

Consolidation of evening 
and weekend cover on 
three or four sites so all 
have access to 24/7 GI 
Bleed cover, if necessary 
on another site.

The Trust recognises the difficulties the region faces in delivering compliant cover across the 
region for acute GI bleed treatment. However, locally we deliver a high quality and well 
organised and compliant service to the population of Barnsley.

We feel that the Trust would be extremely well placed to take a leading role in this area as 
part of a hosted network. We are currently assisting another local provider with clinical 
support around Gastroenterology and would be prepared to enter into discussions around 
increasing support for GI Bleed on a larger footprint.

General points

I think it is also important, as the HSR moves into a site-specific modelling phase, to make some more general 
points about healthcare in Barnsley. Whilst deprivation and social inequality affect multiple parts of the SYB 
region, Barnsley is most severely affected. The comparative data shared by Greg Fell at a recent ICS meeting 
demonstrates that across a wide range of public health measures, Barnsley is an adverse outlier. Whilst these 
sorts of issues are best tackled through a coordinated place-based partnership of health and social care, it is 
essential that reconfiguration assessments factor in the need to maintain locally delivered healthcare (ideally 

Page 209



18

left-shifted) and to consider that any move to centralisation is likely to have a particularly detrimental impact 
on the ability of our more deprived citizens to access services.

The Board’s view is that any centralisation of services through reconfiguration must be based on a clear case 
that the reduction in local access is more than balanced by the safety and quality benefits that result. Whilst 
few would argue that some clinical services, such as primary angioplasty or neurosurgery, rightly can only be 
delivered in centralised hubs, it should not be argued by analogy that this is right across a wide range of 
other services – the case for each should be made based on the evidence and a carefully reasoned analysis. In 
fact, the Board would like to see the HSR focus on developing a more hub and spoke approach to some of the 
long-standing centralised specialist services; for many of these, once the initial phase of treatment has 
concluded, there should be strong consideration of delivering a more decentralised long-term follow up plan.

The Board would like the HSR to urgently clarify which hospital sites/Trusts are within the modelling scope – 
specifically, the status of Chesterfield hospital as we believe Mid Yorkshire Hospitals have already been 
excluded based on their prior local reconfiguration. Modelling 1 or 2 fewer paediatric or maternity units has a 
significantly different consequence dependant on whether Chesterfield is in or out of those numbers.

We hope this makes absolutely clear our current position with regard to the recommendations of the 
Hospital Services Review. We have and will continue to be well represented on all of the major groups 
involved in this work and see collaborative/partnership work across South Yorkshire as a potential major 
improvement for the care of all of our patients. We do hope our detailed response in each of the five areas 
above is helpful in development of the decision making process going forward.

We will provide active membership to the Clinical Working Groups as before and we will continue to provide 
support from a senior executive perspective (including any modelling work). In addition, we feel it is essential 
to be involved in the two groups described in your letter – Travel and Transport Reference Group and Data 
Stakeholder Group.

In Summary the above represents the distilled opinion from BHNFT based upon a) discussions at Executive 
and Trust Board, b) engagement with our Clinical Groups including Consultants, Nursing and AHPs from the 
five areas described and c) the wider group of stakeholders in the hospital including the Medical Staff 
Committee.

3.1.2 Response to points raised by Barnsley Hospitals NHS FT
The ICS has noted the response from Barnsley Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. The majority of the response 
is supportive of the HSR recommendations. 

The ICS responds to the specific concerns raised as follows: 

Hosted Networks - “Whilst we recognise that some other SYB providers may be interested in a Lead Provider 
network model for paediatric services, this does not currently interest BHNFT and our clinical staff are not 
supportive. BHNFT did not see the rationale for an UEC provider network other than as a ‘standard’ Hosted 
Network.”

As laid out in the HSR, the approach to Hosted Networks will consist of three tiers of Hosted Networks, with 
increasing levels of collaboration: a basic Hosted Network, a Co-ordinated Delivery Network, and a Single 
Service Model.

The Strategic Outline Case makes it clear that the ‘basic’ Hosted Network will be the starting point, and the 
first step in the work programme will be to develop the template around this. The decision around 
establishing any specialties at a level higher than this will be for providers to discuss and agree going 

Page 210



19

forward. The SOC is clear that participating in a ‘single service’ model would be entirely optional; it is likely 
that some trusts will be interested in a closer relationship to support delivery while others will not.  

The ICS notes Barnsley’s offer to lead a Gastroenterology network given their current role in networked 
gastroenterology services. Moving forward, the programme will engage Trusts and Commissioners in 
developing a robust approach to equitably assigning Host organisations for each of the Hosted Networks. 
This will include developing criteria around what requirements a Host must be able to meet. This will ensure 
that that whilst lead roles are shared across the system, all Hosts have the resources and ability to perform 
the role.

Local Risk Factors and Access to Services - The ICS notes Barnsley Hospital FT’s comments about the 
Barnsley’s higher than average patient risk profile, and concerns raised about equality of access for all 
population groups.

Risk factors and local population demography will be incorporated into modelling in the next steps. 

Access will be addressed in the site-specific modelling going forward. The modelling of options will include 
both the additional physical distance that patients and families would have to travel in the event of any 
reconfiguration, and the impact of this on travel times by ambulance, public transport and private transport.

The modelling will also look at the impact on communities of different socioeconomic status, by undertaking 
a postcode analysis. This should enable us to capture to what degree communities where car ownership is 
likely to be low will be affected. 

Paediatrics and Maternity Interdependencies - Comments made about the interdependencies between 
paediatrics, maternity and neonatal services are noted. The ICS is aware of these interdependencies and the 
indirect impact that reconfiguration of a paediatric inpatient unit may have on any co-located maternity and 
neonatal services. In recognition of this, the SOC says that neonatologists will be added to the paediatrics 
Clinical Working Group, and neonatology will be included in work on reconfiguration going forward. The ICS 
will consider the close interdependencies between paediatric, maternity and neonatal care in the modelling, 
and will work with the Clinical Senate to ensure that paediatric and paediatric-related services remain safe. 

Site-Specific Options - In their response Barnsley notes that: “At this stage the Trust is assuming no 
reconfiguration change to its service”

The HSR’s recommendations were site agnostic, based on the collective availability of workforce and 
capacity across the SYBND region relative to forecast activity levels and care quality requirements. 

As a priority, the acute sustainability programme will work with CCGs, Trusts and Clinical Working Groups to 
develop site-specific reconfiguration options to be taken forward for more detailed modelling and analysis. 

As the work is taken forward, all Trusts will be considered in the context of the site-specific modelling; and 
the hospital services programme has an open mind in relation to how they are included. At an early stage, 
the system may wish to designate some fixed points, based on permissible criteria and in line with guidance 
and precedence. There will be an agreed approach to determining any fixed points, with full engagement 
from system leaders, patients and the public. 

Refreshed hurdle and evaluation criteria will be used to assess all options to ensure that any proposals that 
are taken further meet robust quality and safety requirements, optimising care for the local population. We 
will engage with system leaders, patients and the public in refreshing and agreeing weightings for the 
evaluation criteria. 

Page 211



20

3.2 DONCASTER AND BASSETLAW TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.2.1 Response received from Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals
The following response was received:

Thank you for attending Doncaster and Bassetlaw's Board of Directors on 26 June 2018 to present us with an 
update on the Hospital Services Review. Our Board commends the amount of time and effort that has gone 
into producing the work and fully supports the direction of travel.

The Board considered the review's recommendations in detail during a special workshop we held on 19 June. 
During the session, the Board had an opportunity to consider plans for each of the five services and to ask 
questions of our Medical Director. A number of points were raised which we would like to feed in as part of 
your consultation.

1. The Hospital Services Review needs to describe the future for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB) 
and each of the areas that make it up. We need a compelling vision for how the future of hospital 
services will be delivered and the improvements it will bring in order to improve people's lives.

2. All proposed change should meet the following key principles: equity of access to services for all SYB 
residents; improvement of quality of healthcare; filling of skills gaps with employed rather than 
agency personnel; and reduction of the overall deficit facing acute trusts in SYB.

3. Decisions on change need to be made and delivered quickly to reduce anxiety for staff and patients. 
At the same time, they should be underpinned by robust equality impact assessments that assess the 
impacts on different groups of people.

4. As well as integrating services, it is important that the Review leads to further integration of staffing 
resource. One of the biggest issues we have as a Trust is moving staff between our two sites in 
Doncaster and Bassetlaw. It is vitally important that, in recruiting new people, we sell the vision of 
multi-site working.

5. Staff will only buy into multi-site working if they see their system leaders doing the same. We feel, 
therefore, that every time a very senior post becomes vacant Trusts should explore opportunities for a 
shared post in order to provide a guiding influence.

6. When public money is spent in reconfiguring services, it is crucial that governance arrangements 
include non-executive representation. Non-executives provide constructive challenge, give confidence 
and credibility that the process is fair, open and transparent and promote the vision to governors 
who are the link to our local communities.

7. All change needs to have a robust evaluation framework, within agreed timelines, to assure everyone 
that perceived benefits are being delivered. A performance framework for monitoring and measuring 
impact is also needed.

8. Finally, it goes without saying that the political ramifications of the Review will need to be managed 
carefully, especially with significant local elections next May. The Review commits to a District 
General Hospital in each area and that is a positive message we need to promote to our local 
representatives, alongside the need for greater specialisation.

I would be grateful if you would take the above comments into consideration as part of your consultation

3.2.2 Response to points raised by Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals
The ICS has noted the response from Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 
Specific concerns were raised over equality impacts, workforce integration difficulties and the importance of 
strong governance, to which the ICS responds as follows:

Page 212



21

Equality - “Decisions…should be underpinned by robust equality impact assessments that assess the impacts 
on different groups of people.”

Ensuring equitable access to high quality care is a priority for the programme. Moving forward, the hospital 
services team will ensure the completion of a robust equalities impact assessment to inform any future 
proposals. This will be supported by quantitative modelling that seeks to identify any potential impact on 
patients, broken down into demographic groups, to understand and assess the impact on different groups in 
society. 

The programme will also continue to engage with seldom heard groups, patients and the public to hear and 
understand their views and concerns to ensure that the voice of the patient is reflective of the entire patient 
cohort.  

Integration of Workforce - “As well as integrating services, it is important that the Review leads to further 
integration of staffing resource...Staff will only buy into multi-site working if they see their system leaders 
doing the same”

The SOC says that the system will establish Hosted Networks across each of the five specialties in the HSR as 
a vehicle to tackling workforce issues through more integrated working. As laid out in the HSR, the approach 
to Hosted Networks will consist of three tiers of Hosted Networks, with increasing levels of collaboration: a 
basic Hosted Network, a Co-ordinated Delivery Network, and a Single Service Model. The co-ordinated 
Delivery Network will have a role in integrating workforce across sites, within a speciality, identifying 
shortfalls in capacity and staff, and rotating resources to meet demand.

Broader engagement will also be conducted to ensure the buy-in of staff across the various organisations, 
with both senior management and front line staff. As the response from Doncaster and Bassetlaw suggests, 
leadership from senior clinicians will be vital to ensure that the new ways of working are taken forward 
within Trusts. The Clinical Working Groups will include senior representation, both consultants and nurses, 
from all trusts.

Further to this the development of Hosted Networks will be alongside that of the Health and Care Institute 
and Innovation Hub, which will provide another forum for the integration of workforce functions. 

Governance - “It is crucial that governance arrangements include non-executive representation. Non-
executives provide constructive challenge, give confidence and credibility that the process is fair, open and 
transparent”

The ICS is currently undertaking a review of governance arrangements, which will be ongoing during 
September. As the ICS develops, its governance will ensure rigorous scrutiny and ensure that Boards and 
Governing Bodies are discharging their statutory functions 

With regard to Non-Executive representation, major programme decisions will continue to be scrutinised 
through individual Boards and Governing Bodies, and so will receive NED scrutiny through this route.

Further detail on the approach to governance arrangements moving forward is available in the full Strategic 
Outline Case, and will emerge from the ICS governance review. 

Key principles and vision - “All proposed change should meet the following key principles: equity of access to 
services for all SYB residents; improvement of quality of healthcare; filling of skills gaps with employed rather 
than agency personnel; and reduction of the overall deficit facing acute trusts in SYB.”

Equity of access, improving quality of care, and addressing workforce and finance issues were all key 
principles of the original Hospital Services Review. 

Page 213



22

Going forward, these will continue to be key principles of the work of the acute services programme. When 
the implications of changes to patient flows is evaluated, the assessment will consider not just access issues, 
but the implications of quality for patients for patients receiving care from Trusts not signed up to the 
principles of the SYB Hosted Network. This work will include identifying capacity implications at the receiving 
sites, and due diligence on the quality and safety performance of the sites. 

The existing evaluation criteria will be refreshed going forward, with engagement with patients, the public, 
clinicians and system leaders. This will provide a further opportunity to ensure that the priorities that the 
Trust identifies here are fully addressed in the evaluation criteria.

3.3 CHESTERFIELD ROYAL HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.3.1 Response received from Chesterfield Royal Hospital
The following response was received:

Thank you for the opportunity to make final comments on the HSR proposals. The trust has already made a 
number of comments during the process demonstrating our support for the review but also recognising the 
unique position of Chesterfield on the border with SYB and sitting formally in the Derbyshire STP footprint.  
We offer the following comments on the report.

 We welcome the acknowledgement that Chesterfield is serviced by a different ambulance provider in 
the East Midlands.

 We note the point about equitable distribution of the network leads but would wish to have some 
assurance that the nominated host trust has the necessary capacity and capability to lead the 
network in the best interests of patients. For example, we understand our current relationship with 
STH as a tertiary provider but are unclear as to how it will work should a trust with less externally 
acknowledged expertise/specialist capacity be designated to lead the network. We recognise that 
CRH would not initially be considered to become a designated lead for a specific network 
acknowledging the position of CRH outside the SYB ICS footprint.

 With regard to the proposal for Lead Organisations to assume delegated responsibility for 
redeployment of staff between units at times of operational pressure, we seek acknowledgement  
while Trusts remains accountable for their individual performance to external regulators (in a 
different region) and for their governance and the delivery of safe care that clear and agreed 
minimum staffing standards would need to be in place to provide necessary assurance in relation to 
this and signed off by all trusts.

 Our maternity service has a mandate to deliver against the objectives of the Derbyshire LMS action 
plan and these pre-commitments will need to be taken account of in any future reconfiguration 
decisions. We do not support the proposal to establish stand – alone midwife-led care units.

 We agree that the acute pathways of our integrated Paediatric service will be part of the SY network 
as our patient pathways are integral to this system although account will need to be taken of 
Derbyshire STP acute care priorities where there is variation. Future decisions in relation to 
reconfiguration will need to take account of both the interdependency with the maternity service, the 
neonatal service and the importance of maintaining CRH status as a paediatric general paediatric 
and community training unit within the Health Education East Midlands network as well the views of 
Derbyshire commissioners. We will be looking to continue to ensure sustainability 

 Locally in Chesterfield with the establishment of a PAU and with a potential opportunity to step up to 
level 2 respiratory support in our HDU if a solution can be found for this to be commissioned and 
resourced. We hope this will represent an opportunity for further development of the service in a 
structured way and not to reduce the services we offer.

Page 214



23

 We have for many years provided an out of hours GI bleeding service. Our clinicians’ view is that 
should this be dis-established it would increase the clinical risk for the management of patients with 
GI bleeding as the proposed model is to transfer these high risk patients.  If patients required 
anaesthetic support during transfer, this would also impact adversely on anaesthetic cover.  

 We suggest it would be more appropriate to pool cover at weekend for stable GI bleeds to enable all 
the trusts to offer a seven day a week service for stable patients. Such lower risk patients could be 
transferred safely elsewhere with minimal supervision.

 With regard to stroke we welcome the network protocols that are being developed for thrombolysis, 
thrombectomy, management of mimics and repatriation and the opportunity to participate in the 
further development of the service so that all new stroke patients can reviewed within 14 hours of 
admission. 

 Chesterfield welcomes the opportunity to continue to participate in the SYB ICS while recognising that 
we remain outside many of the formal mechanisms of the ICS, for example, system control total, 
place development and capital bids etc. As we move towards consideration of the site specific 
recommendations it will be necessary to ensure that any proposals take clear account of the 
Derbyshire Commissioners view as more specific proposals are developed.

 With regard to partnership for elective work, the trust will continue to look to work both within the 
Derbyshire STP footprint and in collaboration with South Yorkshire ICS.

3.3.2 Response to points raised by Chesterfield Royal Hospital

The ICS notes that Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust supports the review and responds to 
the specific comments made as follows:

Site Specific Options - “Chesterfield welcomes the opportunity to continue to participate in the SYB ICS while 
recognising that we remain outside many of the formal mechanisms of the ICS, for example, system control 
total, place development and capital bids etc.”

The HSR’s recommendations were site agnostic, based on the collective availability of workforce and 
capacity across the SYBND region relative to forecast activity levels and care quality requirements. 

As a priority, the hospital services programme will work with CCGs, Trusts and Clinical Working Groups to 
develop site-specific reconfiguration options to be taken forward for more detailed modelling and analysis. 
The implications for Chesterfield, of any scenarios which involve it, will be worked through as the work 
progresses.

While Chesterfield has indicated in its response that it wishes to be within scope for the Review, it is also a 
member of the Derbyshire STP and proposals would need to be agreed with the other networks or which it is 
a member. The SOC commits that the SYB organisations will work with Derbyshire commissioners to identify 
and mitigate any potential implications for the Derbyshire STP.

Maternity - “We do not support the proposal to establish stand–alone midwife-led care units… Future 
decisions in relation to reconfiguration will need to take account of [interdependencies between maternity, 
neonatology and paediatrics]”

The HSR focused on being able to expand the choice of services available to women, and being able to 
deliver high quality care at each of these care settings, given the current constraints on consultant and 
midwife numbers in the system. 

In the interest of maintaining patient choice, the SOC says that SMLUs are not ruled out as an option for care 
delivery. However, moving forward the maternity and paediatric Clinical Working Groups will be asked to 
look at other models (national and international) to explore other alternative ways in which the 

Page 215



24

interdependencies between obstetrics and paediatrics may be met. The Clinical Senate will be engaged to 
assure any models which are proposed, to ensure that they are safe for patients. 

The ICS will seek to engage significantly with mothers and women of child bearing age to understand their 
thoughts and concerns on how and where they would like to give birth. 

The SOC identifies the following way forward on maternity services:
 We will model the impact of a reduction in the number of obstetrics units by one or two units, from 

the existing units in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire.

 We will engage with the public on their preferences for midwifery-led care and we will continue to 
work with clinicians to understand if SMLUs can be delivered safely and efficiently. 

 For those Places which potentially would not have an obstetric unit, we will model the implications 
of offering choice through standalone midwifery-led units, supported by robust referral and patient 
transfer protocols if needed. However we will also explore alternative clinical models. Traditionally, 
if changes to the maternity services are being proposed on a site, this would be mirrored by changes 
in paediatric services. We will explore alternative models that might allow the interdependency 
between maternity and paediatrics to be satisfied in other ways, and will assure the safety of any 
such models with the Clinical Senate. 

 We will include neonatology in the modelling moving forward and involve neonatologists fully in the 
acute sustainability programme through the Care of the Acutely Ill Child Clinical Working Group. 

 We will continue to model ‘transformation options’ e.g. using mid-grade staff and ANPs / AMPs in 
different ways, and changing job roles, to address workforce challenges. 

Gastroenterology and Endoscopy - “We have for many years provided an out of hours GI bleeding service.  
Our clinicians’ view is that should this be dis-established it would increase the clinical risk for the 
management of patients with GI bleeding as the proposed model is to transfer these high risk patients.”

Maintaining the quality, safety and sustainability of services are all key criteria taken into consideration 
throughout the development of any options and their evaluation. In depth site-specific modelling of options 
will be done to assess and evaluate future options before any are taken to public consultation. 

The alternative option of transferring consultants to the patient out of hours was discussed by the 
Gastroenterology Clinical Working Group during the first stage of the work, and was rejected on the grounds 
that it was less safe. Concerns were raised by clinicians that a consultant might travel to one site, and then 
be unable to provide support to a patient at another site. 

Any options for service change will be co-developed with local specialists through our Clinical Working 
Groups, and will be assured by the Clinical Senate, to ensure the clinical safety of any proposed models of 
care.

Hosted networks - “We would wish to have some assurance that the nominated host trust has the necessary 
capacity and capability to lead the network in the best interests of patients… We seek acknowledgement  
while Trusts remain accountable for their individual performance”

Part of the process of designing a Hosted Network will be for Trusts and Commissioners to develop criteria 
around the requirements that a Host must be able to fulfil. This will ensure that that whilst the aim is for 
lead roles to be shared across the system, all Hosts have the resources and ability to perform the role of 
Host.

Page 216



25

Under the basic Hosted Network model, all Trusts would remain accountable for their own individual 
performance. Potentially, two trusts might decide - under mutual agreement and in line with maintaining 
statutory responsibilities - to participate in a single service network, in which case one trust might support 
delivery at another site. Nationally, there are different models for this arrangement, and if any trusts wished 
to follow such a model the organisations would work with clinicians and lawyers to ensure that 
accountability requirements were appropriately met. Participation in a single service network would be 
entirely voluntary. 

3.4 MID YORKSHIRE HOSPITALS NHS TRUST

3.4.1 Response received from Mid Yorkshire Hospitals
The following response was received:

The paper went to our Trust Board today. There were no significant issues raised with the paper or any 
comments to provide back to the review team. 

3.4.2 Response to points raised by Mid Yorkshire Hospitals
The ICS notes Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Trust’s agreement to the HSR.

3.5 THE ROTHERHAM HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.5.1 Response received from The Rotherham Hospital 
The following response was received:

May we take this opportunity to thank you for coming to The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust (TRFT) on 
Tuesday 26th June to discuss the Hospital Services Review. Your presentation was very informative and 
allowed us to understand the recommendations more broadly.

We have also noted the request to receive comments back from Trust Board’s to inform the development of 
the Strategic Outline Case by 12th July, and therefore we are responding as outlined below.

The first section of our feedback addresses many of the recommendations made against the five specific 
services, and captured under the “service reconfiguration” concept within the report.

As a Trust Board:

 We welcome and support the recommendation to keep all hospitals open and have a District General 
Hospital (DGH) in every place

 We welcome and support the recommendation to retain all existing Emergency Departments (ED) 
within South Yorkshire & Bassetlaw (SYB)

 We would expect this to be supported with emergency access on a 24/7 basis for both adults and 
children and to be supported by a 24/7 emergency medical and surgical take

 We note the recommendation to consider a reduction in the number of paediatric inpatient units and 
we are concerned about the impact such a move would have on the provision of safe and sustainable 
services within a DGH

 We are very concerned about the concept of Short-Stay Paediatric Assessment Units (SSPAU’s) and 
how this allows for the safe and sustainable provision of maternity, neonatal and ED services within 
the DGH

Page 217



26

 We also believe that the provision of inpatient paediatric wards needs to be explicitly taken in the 
context of both the local population and provision of services and the wider impact across SYB 
partners

 We welcome the recognition and acknowledgement that the high level of risk in the population of 
SYB makes a higher level of consultant-led obstetric services appropriate and that this needs to be 
factored in to future models

 We support the recognition given in the report to the interdependencies between obstetric led 
maternity services, paediatric services and neonatology and believe this is a critical aspect in any 
future modelling and recommendations

 We support the recommendation that the configuration of maternity services should support and 
enable sustainable paediatric services

 We support the recommendation to adopt a pairing approach between sites with HASU’s (Hyper 
Acute Stroke Units) and those with ASU-only (Acute Stroke Unit) services.

 We agree with the benefits to be had in co-location of ASU’s and Inpatient rehabilitation. However, 
we feel that more clarity is required on future model configurations in order to comment further

 We support the recommendation to consolidate overnight GI bleed services onto 3 or 4 sites, 
provided they are supported by robust patient transfer protocols and appropriately available, 
qualified and experienced medical staff

 We support the recommendation that all sites that currently provide daytime GI bleeds and (full 
diagnostic and therapeutic) elective endoscopy services continue to do so

 We would also welcome a recommendation for partners to work together across SYB to maximise all 
day-time capacity across the various sites as well as just additional weekend capacity

We also welcome the “service transformation” approaches outlined within the HSR, and have further 
comments against some of the recommendations and proposal as follows:

 We welcome the recognition and importance of integration at Place, and whilst acknowledging it 
was outside the scope of the review, we strongly support the concept that Place-based integration 
needs to be a key consideration for any work taken forward

 We also support the concept of treating as many patients as possible in the most appropriate care 
setting and that this may mean patients who currently attend acute hospitals are better treated in 
the community and that this move is in line with existing Place Plans

 We support the recommendation for service specific Hosted Networks and for each DGH / 
Organisation to host one of the networks. We also strongly support the recommendation that there 
is a fair and equitable distribution of hosts across SYB organisations

 We support the recommendation to develop a Health and Care Institute, particularly to help address 
some of the workforce challenges all organisations are experiencing and anticipate to continue, and 
to also address issues such as clinical variation, which are often inherent within the workforce

 We also support the development of an Innovation hub in principle to take forward system-wide 
innovation and how this will interface and work with existing institutions such as universities and 
colleges, to maximise the opportunity and avoid duplication

One area of particular concern that we do need further assurance on, is around the associated timescales 
and next steps. The recent experience around the consultation on hyper-acute stroke services and the 
destabilising effect that this process had on the local clinical teams and the subsequent impact on services 
within Rotherham, from what was a reasonably strong service overall, is something that needs to be 
considered and learnt from. Any further de-stabilisation of services, particularly those under review within 
the report, needs to be avoided and where appropriate, system-wide mitigation plans put in place to help 

Page 218



27

avoid this from happening. We would welcome a discussion as a Board on how this could be addressed 
moving forward. 

A final area of particular note is around the principle that “service transformation is the first stage, and the 
opportunities identified would be taken into consideration as to their impact before service reconfiguration is 
adopted. On this basis, we would like to understand more around the timescales for working this impact 
through and the rationale for addressing reconfiguration in advance of transformation schemes being 
developed and impact assessed. This is of particular importance given the concerns we have as a Trust Board 
around the potential destabilisation effect of any reconfiguration. 

Overall, we support the review process and its aims to provide sustainable services across SYB whilst also 
providing a commitment to retain the majority of services within the local DGH.

3.5.2 Response to points raised by The Rotherham Hospital
The ICS notes The Rotherham Foundation Trust ‘s support of the HSR recommendations. 

In response to the specific points raised by the Trust on paediatric assessment units, transformation themes 
and timescales:

Urgent and Emergency Care - The ICS welcomes Rotherham’s support for the maintenance of all existing 
Emergency Departments within the scope of the Review, and in response to comments around opening 
hours can confirm that these EDs will remain open 24/7. To support better care at ED we will be exploring 
how we might better use our staff, such as through expanding alternative roles, within Royal College staffing 
guidelines

Paediatric Assessment Units - “We are very concerned about the concept of Short-Stay Paediatric 
Assessment Units (SSPAU’s) and how this allows for the safe and sustainable provision of maternity, neonatal 
and ED services within the DGH”

This concern is noted, and it is important to reiterate that any proposals for reconfiguration will be 
developed in close collaboration with clinicians to ensure they meet safety and quality requirements.

Clinical evidence supports the safety of SSPAUs as an alternative to full-time inpatient units, particularly 
when there is not enough activity or resource to sustain a full paediatric inpatient unit, assuming appropriate 
transfer protocols are in place for those patients requiring overnight care. The Royal College of Paediatrics 
and Child Health support such a care model, stating that for many patients they are a more appropriate care 
setting than an inpatient unit, and are being increasingly used to deliver high quality paediatric care3. 

Moving forward, the SOC says that the system will model the impact of changing one or two inpatient 
paediatric units (from the existing units in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire) into 
SSPAUs. If an SSPAU model is proposed, the Clinical Working Group will be involved to ensure that it is 
supported by robust referral and patient transfer protocols to ensure children are able to access the care 
they need out-of-hours. Any proposed changes will also be referred to the Clinical Senate to ensure that they 
are safe for patients. 

The ICS will also consider the close interdependencies between paediatric, maternity and neonatal care in 
this modelling to ensure that the provision of paediatric and paediatric-related services remain safe. 
Neonatologists will be added to the Clinical Working Group on paediatrics, and neonatology will be included 
in the development of reconfiguration options going forward. 

3 Royal College of Paediatrics and Child Health, Standards for Short-Stay Paediatric Assessment Units, March 2017.
Available at: https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf 

Page 219

https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/SSPAU_College_Standards_21.03.2017_final.pdf


28

Modelling will also look at the impact that service change has on the sustainability of sites following 
reconfiguration, and maintaining quality and sustainability will be a key evaluation criteria in assessment 
options. The expectation is that modelling will be done using detailed data which will allow the model to 
capture nuances in local population demographics. 

Transformation - Feedback from Rotherham emphasised the importance of the transformation workstrand, 
before any reconfiguration takes place. In response to this, the Strategic Outline Case has restructured the 
workstreams and work programme as laid out in the Hospital Services Review, to give a clearer emphasis to 
transformation elements before options are modelled in relation to reconfiguration. The SOC says that 
Clinical Working Groups will be asked to focus on transformation of the workforce and developing the shift 
out of hospital in the first months of their work programme, and this work will inform reconfiguration 
modelling so that reconfiguration is assessed on the basis of a transformed workforce rather than the status 
quo. 

Hosted Networks - “We support the recommendation for service specific Hosted Networks and for each DGH 
/ Organisation to host one of the networks. We also strongly support the recommendation that there is a fair 
and equitable distribution of hosts across SYB organisations“

The ICS notes Rotherham’s support for the establishment of Hosted Networks, a Health and Care Institute 
and an Innovation Hub, to address the three key issues of workforce, unwarranted clinical variation and 
innovation. 

Moving forward, the first step will be to work with Trusts and Commissioners to develop a framework that 
outlines the proposed form of the Hosted Networks and the lines of accountability between the Hosted 
Network, member trusts and the ICS.  This will also lay out the responsibilities of both Hosts, and network 
members.

Trusts and Commissioners will work together to develop a robust approach to equitably assigning Host 
organisations for each of the Hosted Networks. This will include developing criteria around the 
responsibilities that a Host must be able to meet in order to act as a Host. This will ensure that that whilst 
lead roles are shared across the system as far as possible, all Hosts have the resources and ability to perform 
the role of Host.

Timescales - The ICS notes the recent destabilising effect experienced by the Trust following the hyper acute 
stroke service change proposals. 

Some workstrands, such as those around the Hosted Networks, can proceed more quickly and we will aim to 
take these forward as quickly as possible.

Others such as reconfiguration will be longer and more complex. The Strategic Outline Case recognises that 
decisions on change need to be made and delivered with enough pace to not create undue uncertainty for 
staff while allowing sufficient time allowed to consider the implications for staff, patients, and the public, 
and for all organisations to discharge their statutory responsibilities. The timeline laid out in the full Strategic 
Outline Case aims to balance this.

3.6 SHEFFIELD CHILDREN’S HOSPITAL NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.6.1 Response received from Sheffield Children’s Hospital
The following response was received:

Page 220



29

Thank you for sharing with us a copy of the Stage 2 Report for the Hospital Services Review and the 
accompanying presentation that went to the Steering Group last week. A number of the team have reviewed 
this, as well as attended the most recent Clinical Working Groups.

As an organisation we are very supportive of the approach proposed and are keen to work with you and lead 
the paediatric elements of the programme going forward. At this stage there are obviously many possible 
variants to the models detailed that will require further work, but having discussed these with clinical 
colleagues, we wanted to raise the following two points that will require additional discussion and 
agreement:

1. At this stage we are unclear whether our paediatric emergency department would best sit under      
the remit of the Co-coordinated Delivery Network for UEC or the single service model for Paediatrics. 
The exact nature of the models proposed will determine this and we can see both advantages and 
disadvantages of either option.

2. Similarly, whilst maternity is proposed to be part of a hosted network and paediatrics part of a single 
service model, we feel that further conversations need to occur as to how neonatal services will 
interact with both parts of this overall system. This is not clearly defined in the documentation at this 
stage.

Neither of these two points are insurmountable but we would just like them to be noted at this point.

We look forward to working with you and the wider team in the future.

Addendum – further response from Sheffield Children’s Hospital

1. Capital funding drawn down from the ICS should be prioritised to support the outcome of HSR.
2. Sheffield Children’s Hospital, as the specialist provider in the region, is happy to take a leading role in 

developing the networked approach.

3.6.2 Response to points raised by Sheffield Children’s Hospital
The ICS has noted the response from Sheffield Children’s Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, including the 
points made around the need to find the best fit for neonatology within the maternity and paediatric service 
models. The response is supportive of the HSR recommendations, with the following points being raised that 
will be relevant to the next steps: 

Paediatric Hosted Network - “…we are unclear whether our paediatric emergency department would best sit 
under the remit of the Co-coordinated Delivery Network for UEC or the single service model for Paediatrics.” 

Moving forward, Trusts and Commissioners will be working together to develop the model for Hosted 
Networks. Establishing a framework for their development, and identifying Hosts and member trusts/sites 
for each of the networks will be a priority.

It will be for providers to agree, during this process, which Hosted Network SCH’s paediatric A&E will be a 
part of. The hospital services programme team will support this process to ensure close engagement and 
thorough discussion to develop the most appropriate approach. 

The ICS notes SCH’s offer to take a leading role in developing the networked approach to paediatrics. Over 
the coming months the programme will engage Trusts and Commissioners in developing a robust approach 
to equitably assigning Host organisations for each of the Hosted Networks. This will include developing 
criteria around what requirements a Host must be able to meet. This will ensure that that whilst lead roles 
are shared across the system, all Hosts have the resources and ability to perform the role of Host.

Page 221



30

Neonatology:   “Whilst maternity is proposed to be part of a hosted network and paediatrics part of a single 
service model, we feel that further conversations need to occur as to how neonatal services will interact with 
both parts of this overall system.”

Consideration has been given to the interaction of neonatology with the two differing service models 
suggested for maternity and paediatrics. Neonatologists have been added to the membership of the Care of 
the Acutely Ill Child Clinical Working Group and neonatology will be included in work on reconfiguration 
going forward. 

Funding - The ICS notes SCH’s comments on the capital funding within the ICS. As outlined in the Strategic 
Outline Case, a capital bid for funding to support the various ICS workstreams has been submitted to NHS 
England. A breakdown of the existing workstreams and funding requested for each is included in the SOC. 
Acute services improvement comprises a significant amount of the funding requested.

3.7 SHEFFIELD TEACHING HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

3.7.1 Response received from Sheffield Teaching Hospitals
The following response was received:

I am writing to you in your capacity as the lead of the shadow integrated Care System (sICS) for South 
Yorkshire and Bassetlaw on behalf of the Board of Directors of Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust (STH).

Following the presentation by Chris Welsh to the private Board of Directors meeting on 26 June 2018, I am 
writing to confirm that Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust accept, in principle, the proposals 
outlined in the Hospital Services Review.

3.7.2 Response to points raised by Sheffield Teaching Hospitals
The ICS notes Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust’s support for the recommendations put 
forward in the HSR.

Page 222



31

4 RESPONSES FROM COMMUNITY AND MENTAL HEALTH TRUSTS

4.1 SHEFFIELD HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

4.1.1 Response received from Sheffield Health and Social Care
The following response was received: 

Further to the email below and following discussions at the Board of Sheffield Health and Social Care Trust on 
Wednesday 11 July 2018, SHSC FT Trust, note the content of the paper including the significant engagement 
undertaken and confirm acceptance of the Review recommendations.

4.1.2 Response to points raised by Sheffield Health and Social Care
The ICS notes Sheffield Health and Social Care Trust’s support for the recommendations in the HSR. 

4.2 SOUTH WEST YORKSHIRE PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

4.2.1 Response received from South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
The following response was received:

The Board has discussed the HSR in public and there has been general support for it. The Trust does provide 
the rehabilitation stroke service in Barnsley and we have been working with the Acute Trust on a stronger 
integrated approach on the care pathway. We would expect this joint work to support the direction of travel 
of the HSR. 

4.2.2 Response to points raised by South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust
The ICS notes South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust’s support for the HSR 
recommendations 

We note the Trust’s provision of stroke rehabilitation services in Barnsley and their work with the Acute 
Trust and expect this joint working to be aligned with the direction of travel of the HSR. 

Page 223



32

5 RESPONSES RECEIVED FROM OTHER PROVIDER ORGANISATIONS

5.1 EAST MIDLANDS AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST

5.1.1 Response received from East Midlands Ambulance
The following response was received:

Further to your briefing paper June 2018, I am writing with our response to the Hospital Services Review as 
requested. We welcome the opportunity to be involved in this important piece of work. 

You will be aware that our involvement with the SYB sICS partnership is in the management and 
transportation of patients and service users via urgent and emergency ambulance services in North 
Derbyshire and Bassetlaw, using South Yorkshire, Bassetlaw and Chesterfield hospitals. In addition, we 
currently hold the contract for the majority of non-emergency patient transport for Derbyshire, linking 
primarily to Chesterfield and Sheffield Hospitals. We have therefore considered the impact of outcomes of the 
review with respect to both of these services, and across both our Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire divisions. 

Following discussion, our views can be summarised as follows: 

 We regard the findings of the review, in general, as a positive step for patient care. 
 The maintenance of six consultant led emergency departments across the footprint, plus paediatric 

services at Sheffield is welcomed and we expect to see a minimal impact on travel and turnaround 
times or patient safety as a result. 

 We believe that the consolidation and networking of other services as described within the review 
will benefit patient care, and similarly overall, will not have a significant impact on our ability to 
transport patients safely. 

 We are aware that whilst plans have progressed to consultation/engagement in some areas (stroke), 
further pathways continue to be developed. We will remain appropriately engaged with this work, in 
particular major trauma, stroke and PCCI, in order to understand the implications for our services 
more completely, and drive a comprehensive response to any proposed changes in service delivery. 

 The review suggests the establishment of a strategic transport group and we welcome membership 
of that as discussed with you. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries and I will be happy to discuss these at our 
mutual convenience.

5.1.2 Response to points raised by East Midlands Ambulance
The ICS has noted the response from East Midlands Ambulance Trust. Overall, the response supports the 
recommendations of the HSR with specific comments raised about any potential transport and travel 
implications:

Transport - “The review suggests the establishment of a strategic transport group and we welcome 
membership of that as discussed with you.”

The SOC says that the ICS will form a strategic transport group to bring together representatives from all 
stakeholder groups in order to better understand the issues around transport and access. This will provide a 
forum to enable through discussion of travel implications across SYB and will identify best ways to mitigate 
them. 

Page 224



33

The ICS welcomes EMAS’ membership, and will communicate the next steps of the formation of this group 
as it progresses. 

The ICS is committed to minimising the effects of travel on patient safety, and a review of academic papers 
and learning from previous reconfigurations is being undertaken to better understand this topic. The 
strategic transport group and the Clinical Working Groups will be asked to review this work, and this 
evidence base will inform the site specific modelling process to ensure any risks are mitigated and 
minimised.

5.2 YORKSHIRE AMBULANCE SERVICE NHS TRUST

5.2.1 Response received from Yorkshire Ambulance Service
The following response was received:

Our Board had a briefing on the work of the ICS and Hospital Services Review in May 2018.

The Board welcomed the clear approach and the potential implications for the ambulance service as plans 
progress.

We are generally supportive of the approach being taken and have no further comments at this time.

5.2.2 Response to points raised by Yorkshire Ambulance Service
The ICS notes Yorkshire Ambulance Service’s support for the HSR recommendations. 

Moving forward, the implications of service change on travel times, for both ambulance and non-ambulance 
travel, will be a key criterion in the evaluation of options. As such, we plan to continue our significant 
engagement with Yorkshire Ambulance Service, through the Clinical Working Groups and the soon to be 
formed strategic transport group. 

Page 225



34

6 RESPONSES RECEIVED FROM LOCAL AUTHORITIES

6.1 JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

6.1.1 Action points from the JHOSC
On 12th June 2018, the HSR team and the ICS presented the HSR recommendations to the South Yorkshire, 
Derbyshire, Nottinghamshire and Wakefield Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

The formal minutes of that meeting will be published by the JHOSC in due course. However, the key action 
points which the ICS identified during the meeting were as follows:

 Public engagement: the JHOSC asked that an easy read version of the HSR be made available, and 
that in future easy read versions be included alongside the publication of major documents. 

An easy read version of the HSR report has been produced by SpeakUp, a social enterprise which 
specialises in advocacy for and communication with people with learning disabilities. This has been 
submitted to the JHOSC and will be published shortly. Going forward, we will produce easy read 
versions of major documents in parallel with the full versions. 

 The JHOSC also asked that the team ensure that the deadline of 12th July 2018 for responses to the 
HSR document be publicised to stakeholders.

The communications team emailed stakeholders, including those groups and individual members of 
the public who have asked to be kept informed about the Hospital Services Review and who had 
confirmed their details under the General Data Protection Regulation, to make them aware of the 
12th July deadline.

 

6.2 ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL

6.2.1 Response received from Rotherham Borough Council
The following response was received:

We note this independent review of hospital services within SYB footprint and welcome the commitment that 
the majority of services should remain in local hospitals. Our priority is to ensure that Rotherham residents 
retain access to high quality services within easy access and acknowledge the report’s commitment to 
maintaining most locally provided services. We acknowledge and are supportive of the concept of the hub 
model and whilst we would welcome further details, if indeed this proposal does seem to offer a cost 
effective way of retaining local services. However it is important that the “hubs” are distributed across the 
geographic area and not entirely based in Sheffield, we would be concerned if this signalled a shift to simply 
place more services within the city of Sheffield.  We appreciate the issue regarding shortages of key staff and 
as a general principal agree with the hub model but would want to see Rotherham play a key role in at least 
one of the hubs

We do support the concept of excellence in health care so see the setting up of a Health and Care Institute 
(pleasing bearing in mind the move towards further integration we welcome that care is mentioned as well 
as health) and an innovation hub, developing closer links with universities, colleges and schools.  It is also a 

Page 226



35

positive step that future workforce planning is included especially bearing in mind current medical staff 
shortages. 

The concept of shared working and collaboration in terms of strengthening the workforce, reducing 
unwarranted variation and introducing innovation to tackle complex challenges is supported however we will 
await further detail on how this may operate and the local impacts before making any specific comments.    

We are pleased that all existing A and E Departments in the area are proposed to stay open and there is a 
commitment to keep all the hospitals open as District General hospitals with the range of services one would 
expect.  We would oppose any move towards “cottage hospitals”.

In terms of Children’s wards we support that the children’s wards in local hospitals are proposed to stay open 
and fully support where appropriate care being provided in the community which is exactly the stance many 
of the services such as Adult Social Services at the Council where this is in the interests of patients. However 
we have concerns that further reviews may well lead to fewer units and a concentration into a smaller 
number of hospitals. Linked to this is that whilst we welcome having Sheffield Children’s hospital a centre of 
good practice in the ICS area, traffic to it including parking is extremely difficult whether you are attending as 
a visitor or patient and we would expect to see proposals brought forward which would address such 
practical considerations.  

Whilst we can support in principle the concept of specialist units, we do have concerns that overnight and 
weekend gastroenterology services will only be provided in three or four hospitals. Clearly it remains 
important that appropriately qualified and experienced medical staff are readily available “out of hours”, 
further detail is needed on this aspect to understand the clinical benefits and any impacts on residents.

We support the concept of more choice being given to mothers in terms of delivery options as long as these 
are real options within each borough and that adequate information is given to the expectant mother in 
order to make the right choice. We note that the current model does not meet the requirements as laid out in 
Better Births to give a wide range of choices to women and are very supportive of improving the local offer. 

We are aware that the report stresses the need for consultation but have concerns regarding the type and 
level of consultation in the development of this report and would stress the need for further engagement and 
consultation with residents and stakeholders as proposals are developed.   

One of the biggest concerns in Rotherham in relation to recent experience of consultation related to the 
acute stroke units and the issues of distance to Sheffield. This aspect featured in all the preliminary reports 
and is featured in the review, but we feel very strongly that the timescale and consultation on this was poor.  
Likewise in terms of consultation with the Council and the communities it represents, up to this point on the 
Hospital Services Review, we do not feel that overall there has been adequate communication and 
consultation with communities and local Councils and would strongly urge the regional ICS to take this point 
on board. We are aware of local public meetings in New York Stadium and elsewhere but we strongly believe 
that Council’s and Councillors as democratically elected representatives of their communities should be 
consulted separately. 

6.2.2 Response to points raised by Rotherham Borough Council
The ICS notes the response from Rotherham Borough Council, including the points made around the need 
for much clearer communication and consultation, the need to assure appropriate levels of access to sites, 
and the need to provide equitable access to hubs to all patients in SYB through the even distribution of sites. 
The response is supportive of the HSR recommendations, and the ICS would like to provide the following 
response to the particular concerns raised: 

Page 227



36

Engagement - “…we feel very strongly that the timescale and consultation on [stroke] was poor… we do not 
feel that overall there has been adequate communication and consultation with communities and local 
Councils and would strongly urge the regional ICS to take this point on board.”

The ICS is in the process of developing an engagement strategy for the work on hospital services going 
forwards. This will draw on learning from the consultation on Hyper Acute Stroke Units. The engagement 
strategy will be published in due course.

With regard to engagement with Councils, ICS acknowledge these comments and will endeavour to improve 
the communication and engagement with local councils during the next stages of the work on hospital 
services. The Hospital Services Review has engaged both with the Collaborative Partnership group and with 
the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, and the hospital services programme will continue to do 
so. More generally, the Integrated Care System will engage with Local Authorities, including Leaders, around 
the development of shared working across the system. Leads in individual CCGs will continue to maintain 
close links to Local Authority colleagues in their areas.

The ICS will engage with Directors of Public Health, and with Health and Wellbeing Boards as the modelling is 
developed, to ensure that population health implications are understood. 

Hosted Networks - “It is important that the “hubs” are distributed across the geographic area and not 
entirely based in Sheffield”

The intention for the Hosted Networks is that the role of Host will be distributed equitably across the Trusts, 
provided that a Trust is able to meet the criteria necessary to act as a Host. It should be noted that the 
Hosted Networks approach is not a ‘hub’ model as it does not involve moving services between sites.

Some of the reconfiguration models that the SOC proposes to explore would involve a ‘hub and spoke’ 
model, with for example a concentration of paediatric inpatient activity on a smaller number of sites. The 
trusts which act as ‘hubs’ will be identified through the site-specific modelling.

Access - “whilst we welcome having Sheffield Children’s hospital a centre of good practice in the ICS area, 
traffic to it including parking is extremely difficult whether you are attending as a visitor or patient and we 
would expect to see proposals brought forward which would address such practical considerations”. 

The SOC states that the ICS will set up a strategic transport group which will bring together different 
stakeholder groups to provide a forum for thorough discussion on how to best mitigate concerns around 
access issues, such as travel and parking. 

This group will comprise representation from local acute trusts, commissioning bodies, ambulance services 
(both Yorkshire and East Midlands Ambulance services), local authorities, patients and the public, and other 
relevant local travel and transport stakeholders (such as local public transport providers) who can share their 
expertise on how to best address any potential impact for patients following reconfiguration. 

Gastroenterology - “Whilst we can support in principle the concept of specialist units, we do have concerns 
that overnight and weekend gastroenterology services will only be provided in 3 or 4 hospitals…, further 
detail is needed on this aspect to understand the clinical benefits and any impacts on residents”. 

Maintaining the quality, safety and sustainability of services are all key criteria taken into consideration 
throughout the development of any options and their evaluation, and in depth site-specific modelling of 
options will be done to assess and evaluate future options before any are taken to public consultation. 

Page 228



37

Any options for service change will be co-developed with local clinicians through our Clinical Working 
Groups, to ensure the clinical safety of any proposed models of care, and will be reviewed by the Clinical 
Senate.

The ICS notes the Council’s concerns about the safety implications of moving to full out of hours services on 
three or four sites rather than on all sites; however, the system does not currently provide out of hours 
services on all sites. At present, some sites provide some cover on some nights and not others; or not at all. 
The aim of this approach is to provide a consistent and standardised level of cover for SYB(ND) patients.

Page 229



38

7 RESPONSES RECEIVED FROM PATIENTS AND THE PUBLIC 

7.1 MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC - 1
The following response was received from a member of the public, writing in an individual capacity. 

7.1.1 Response received from a member of the public

This is a response to four documents, listed below 4, published on 9 May 2018, together with videos on the 
same website and slides presented at the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 12 June 2018.  

1 Issues of geography
There is a slippage from SYB to SYB-MYND, evident on the website, Health and Care Working Together SYB, 
and in the report, entitled Hospital Services Review South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, North Derbyshire and Mid 
Yorkshire:  Stage 2 Report, but with the logo of South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Working Together.  This raises 
questions such as:  Whose money?  Which patients?  Who is in charge?  

2 Governance, transparency and pace of change
Issues of governance arise in a series of increasingly impatient statements throughout the report:

The current arrangements between providers are unlikely to be fit for purpose when considering the 
scale of change that is included in this report. It is not the role of the HSR to design the future 
working arrangements of the provider and commissioner sectors in SYB(MYND). However, the 
effectiveness of these arrangements will impact how successfully the HSR recommendations are 
implemented. (Doc 1, page 11, italics added) 

These comments are echoed, with progressively less reserve on later pages:
The current arrangements between providers are unlikely to be fit for purpose when considering the 
scale of change that is included in this report. SYB(MYND) should review current governance 
arrangements and ensure these enable rapid decision making at pace to support the successful 
implementation of the recommendations in this report. (p 18) 

Arrangements are still “unlikely to be fit for purpose”, but the review now states that they should be 
reviewed, to enable “rapid decision making” and, in case that was not understood, “at pace” is added.

The current arrangements between providers are not fit for purpose when considering the scale of 
change that is included in this report. SYB(MYND) should review current governance arrangements 
and ensure these enable rapid decision making at pace to support the successful implementation of 
the recommendations in this report. (p 160) 

By page 160, nearing the conclusion, any doubt about unfitness for purpose has gone.  Even more 
disquietingly, the reviewers are urging ways around the lack of legislation provision to enable the rapid 
change they want to see:

4 Doc 1 Hospital Services Review South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, North Derbyshire and Mid Yorkshire:  Stage 2 Report 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf 
Doc 2 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Hospital Services Review – Annexes 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pd
f 
Doc 3 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Accountable Care System The Hospital Services Review Technical Annex: Financial 
Analysis
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_A
nnex.pdf  
Doc 4 Hospital Services Review Report Question and Answer sheet – May 2018
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6615/2639/7198/4._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Questions_
and_Answers.pdf  

Page 230

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6615/2639/7198/4._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Questions_and_Answers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6615/2639/7198/4._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Questions_and_Answers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6615/2639/7198/4._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Questions_and_Answers.pdf


39

Current governance arrangements do not go far enough to give the system the level of control 
required to effect change. Any future model will require all organisations to cede some sovereignty to 
the system – this will be difficult, particularly without legislative change and while the end-state 
clinical model is not yet fully defined. We would therefore expect that there would be a number of 
interim milestones along this journey.  (p 160) 

This impatience to achieve control regardless of legislative change seems worryingly undemocratic and may 
not enable the best decisions to be made.  It sits oddly with a proclaimed “long history of collaborative 
working” (Doc 1, page 157), despite which there appears to be a lack of trust evident here and also in the 
paucity of financial data made available for the HSR, which is discussed in section 7 below. 

The £571m cuts target in the STP makes a mockery of the idea of local decision-making, since local managers 
are rushing to meet deadlines and receive transformation money from government.

3 Rationale for the review
Apparently, there are always two reasons for doing something: a good reason and the real reason.  The 
Summary of proposals for public engagement lists these challenges for hospitals in SYB-MYND:

 The population is ageing
 Demand is increasing
 Our workforce is increasingly overstretched
 People’s needs are changing
 The types of healthcare that we can provide are changing

However, they say, the NHS has not changed to keep up.  As each of these premises can be challenged, the 
real reasons for the review may lie elsewhere – in the financial and policy constraints imposed centrally.  

The population is ageing
Victim blaming and the idea that burdensome older people are to blame for increasing pressures on health 
and care services has been challenged elsewhere5.  For example, many pensioners remain active, contribute 
to society and do all kinds of work, paid and unpaid.  At the same time, many younger people are also 
suffering from deteriorating health. Given this, the focus on one age group seems misplaced and ageist.  It 
masks the crisis in social care, which has been underfunded and undermined by successive governments, and 
underplays chronic ill health, both mental and physical, in other age groups and simplistically juxtaposes 
ageing and complex needs:

As people live longer, chronic diseases such as type II diabetes, or illnesses associated with ageing 
such as dementia, are replacing traditional morbidities. Frail and elderly people make up an 
increasing proportion of patients. At the same time, healthcare can now treat increasingly complex 
acute illnesses with ever more personalised and intensive therapies.  (Doc 1, page 20) 

Demand is increasing
The so-called increase in demand has existed since the early days of the NHS and is driven by many factors, 
including air pollution6, poverty, benefit ‘reforms’, failed housing policy and austerity cuts.  The Director of 
Public Health for Sheffield, Greg Fell, stated in his 2017 report:

Demand for health and social care in England is currently increasing by about 4% per year, faster 
than the ageing population.  Moreover, there is now consistent evidence from a macro perspective 
that the key drivers of cost growth are: disease incidence (prevention); lack of attention to primary 
care, high cost technology (manufacturer pressure & patient expectation)’ and over diagnosis 
(clinical culture and system pressure).7

5 http://www.nhsbill2015.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/Myth-of-Ageing-fact-sheet.pdf 
6 https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/hospital-blamed-over-intolerable-air-quality-in-sheffield-suburb-where-pollution-is-
nearly-twice-the-legal-limit-1-9220793 
7 Director of Public Health Report for Sheffield 2017 https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/dam/sheffield/docs/public-
health/health-wellbeing/Director%20of%20Public%20Health%20Report%202017.pdf 

Page 231

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
http://www.nhsbill2015.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/03/Myth-of-Ageing-fact-sheet.pdf
https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/hospital-blamed-over-intolerable-air-quality-in-sheffield-suburb-where-pollution-is-nearly-twice-the-legal-limit-1-9220793
https://www.thestar.co.uk/news/hospital-blamed-over-intolerable-air-quality-in-sheffield-suburb-where-pollution-is-nearly-twice-the-legal-limit-1-9220793
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/dam/sheffield/docs/public-health/health-wellbeing/Director%20of%20Public%20Health%20Report%202017.pdf
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/content/dam/sheffield/docs/public-health/health-wellbeing/Director%20of%20Public%20Health%20Report%202017.pdf


40

In the same report, he also listed risk factors for mental wellbeing, including housing insecurity, 
homelessness, poverty, debt problems, low wages, insecure employment, long-term unemployment, ongoing 
consequences of welfare reform and austerity.  However, where the HSR touches on public health, it 
overlooks root causes and risks to health.  It also refers in a limited fashion to health inequalities:

There are significant inequalities in health outcomes in the population of SYB. Part of addressing 
these inequalities is ensuring that all patients, wherever they live, can access the highest quality 
specialist care.  (Doc 1, page 20) 

There is just one passing reference to “existing inequalities in population health”  (Doc 1, page 28), which 
surely merit more attention.

Our workforce is increasingly overstretched
This is a strangely impersonal way to refer to overwhelming pressures on staff, which have been thoroughly 
documented, most movingly by the Royal College of Nursing in two reports on Safe and Effective Staffing 
published in 2017 8. These make heart-breaking reading, and nothing in the HSR reports comes anywhere 
near addressing the concerns of the RCN or of NHS Providers, who described the challenges facing our NHS in 
2017 as Mission Impossible, risking patient safety and creating unfair and unsustainable burdens on staff9.  
We have heard similar concerns from local union reps, dismayed by the pressures on their members. Yet the 
review blithely proclaims that our region will be transformed into “a place where people want to come and 
work”.  (Doc 1, page 19)

People’s needs are changing
The changing health needs of local people are barely addressed in this HSR, appearing only in a section of the 
annexes entitled Place Definitions (Doc 2, pages 88-147) where common issues across the five towns appear 
to be cancer and cardio-vascular deaths, alcohol, smoking, diabetes and obesity. There is nothing to indicate 
how needs have changed in South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, nor how they should be addressed.

The types of healthcare that we can provide are changing
Changing types of healthcare  are not spelt out, nor are the ways that our NHS has changed, noted elsewhere 
as related to repeated reorganisations, privatisations, outsourcing and the hollowing out of the state, losing 
experts and their skills to private enterprises.10

4 Purpose of the Review
The real purpose of the review is evident in its approach. Five services were identified as “facing significant 
difficulties with workforce and quality”. These difficulties were to do with staff shortages, clinical variation 
despite national standards, and not making the most of new technologies. The services were:

 Maternity
 Care of the Acutely Ill Child
 Urgent and Emergency Care
 Gastroenterology and Endoscopy
 Stroke

 
The choice of services does not appear to be related to the health needs of the population set out in the 
Review Annexes (Doc 2), but to system pressures.

8 RCN (May 2017) Safe and Effective Staffing: The Real Picture  https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-
development/publications/pub-006195 
RCN (December 2017) Safe and Effective Staffing: Nursing Against the Odds https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-
development/publications/pub-006415
9 NHS Providers (2017) Mission Impossible?  The Task for NHS Providers in 2017-18 http://nhsproviders.org/mission-
impossible 
10 http://www.oxfordscholarship.com/view/10.1093/oso/9780198786108.001.0001/oso-9780198786108-chapter-8 

Page 232

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
http://nhsproviders.org/mission-impossible
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-006195
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-006195
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-006415
https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-006415
http://nhsproviders.org/mission-impossible
http://nhsproviders.org/mission-impossible
http://www.oxfordscholarship.com/view/10.1093/oso/9780198786108.001.0001/oso-9780198786108-chapter-8


41

For each service a Clinical Working Group was set up. These met five times, were sporadically attended and 
seem to have involved managers rather than frontline staff (see Doc 2, pages 154 onwards). These groups 
considered two types of solutions: hospitals working together better or reconfiguring services.  They use 
terms such as streamlining, standardising, shared approaches, interoperable systems, standards and 
protocols. They concluded that there would be three different levels of networks with different degrees of 
shared working: hosted networks, coordinated delivery and single service model.  

Although there is a glossary, it is not very helpful for people unfamiliar with this kind of management-speak. 
As yet, there is no clear indication of where responsibilities for hosting networks, coordinating delivery or 
driving single service models will be located.  

5 Lack of staff involvement
Few frontline staff were involved in the Clinical Working Groups set up to discuss the challenges of workforce, 
clinical variation and innovation, and the possible restructuring of various services.  Strangely, a comment on 
stakeholder engagement states: “It will be essential to the programme that financial and clinical leads 
continue to be engaged.”  (Doc 3, slide 63).  Since when were such people the only stakeholders?  Staff were 
apparently included in consultations with patients and the public through paper-based surveys made 
available in “areas convenient for staff” (Doc 1, page 16).  How many staff encountered these conveniently 
scattered surveys or had time to fill them in is not stated.

There is only one reference to staff unions being involved in any way, and this was only in response to a 
question published on the website in Doc 4 Hospital Services Review Report Question and Answer sheet – 
May 2018:

As part of the work of Health and Care Working Together, a Staff Partnership Forum has been set up 
with key union representatives involved. This group meets regularly and is kept up to date with all 
developments. This group will continue to meet and will be involved in further work should any of the 
recommendations be taken forward. (response to question 25)

Thus, there has clearly been no formal consultation with unions related to the Hospital Services Review.  

We know from many conversations that staff are scared to speak out about the stress they face at work, 
their misery at not being able to deliver care as they would like to and their frustration with shifts that never 
finish on time, and that are not allocated in accordance with their needs and preferences.  There is a palpable 
climate of fear that suggests a culture of bullying.  None of this supports the claim that “The HSR has worked 
extensively with patients, the public and clinicians.”   (Doc 1, page 26)

6 Staffing shortages
Here is the HSR vision for addressing staffing issues: 

By working together, the acute trusts will strengthen their workforce, building on existing expertise 
to improve quality of care for patients, enhancing the reputation of our hospitals. We will work 
creatively with schools and universities to attract new entrants to healthcare professions, as well as 
those who wish to return to clinical practice. We will become a leading innovative system, identifying 
and adopting new approaches to healthcare to solve some of our most complex challenges. We will 
make SYB(MYND) into a place where people want to come and work.  (Doc 1, page 19)

This suggests glamorous advertising campaigns, with competition across the country replacing real solutions 
to staffing problems.  

The Review talks about how to “attract interested talent” (page 30), which has to undergo “thorough and 
effective induction and on-boarding” (page 26). The section on retention of staff begins with “improved 
professional support, supervision and guidance” and reflects a management culture of control, rather than 
development. It also mentions issues such as “pastoral support and other benefits to support staff health and 

Page 233

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6615/2639/7198/4._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Questions_and_Answers.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf


42

wellbeing, such as through the provision of healthy food and snacks in any staff canteens” (page 29), rather 
than tackling underlying causes of low morale.  In contrast, Sarah Wollaston told the House of Lords Select 
Committee on the Long-Term Sustainability of the NHS: 

It is not only about recruiting them but about the ongoing, continuing professional development that 
you give people that allows them to feel valued and retained within the service… 
Also, as people get towards the end of their careers, rather than retiring, encouraging people to be 
retaining their skills within the system, within management and training is a very positive thing. 
There is much more we could learn from other systems about morale more generally and how other 
systems maintain that.11

Similarly, two Royal College of Nursing reports, published in 2017 and cited earlier, argued that there are too 
few nurses, which means terrible working conditions, which mean that the workforce is shrinking even 
further. Their solutions lie in funding, coherent planning and training in order to meet patient needs.   

There have been many reports of students approaching graduation who are looking for work abroad, taking 
their expensive training and skills away from our NHS, and of staff leaving in droves, unable to stand the 
pressures any longer, unable to provide the quality of care they would like to, to work the shifts they have 
requested to fit in with family commitments, or even to make ends meet. All this suggests that recruitment is 
not the main issue, as staff are working in desperate conditions that are driving them to leave our NHS.  
While the HSR acknowledges that staff shortages mean that staff work long and sometimes unpredictable 
hours, lack time for training and are leaving because of the pressures, their main emphasis seems to be on 
sharing HR management to end competition for staff within SYB, whatever that means.  

Another cause for concern is the willingness to go below safe staffing levels as defined by the Royal Colleges 
when considering how to reorganise services, treating safe levels as “aspirational” (Doc 1, page 113).  
Ignoring threats to patient safety is unacceptable. The shortage of 150 midwives in SYB-ND is mentioned on 
page 141, along with shortages of neonatology nurses, radiologists, sonographers, paramedics and 
anaesthetists.  Much of the report is about coping with staff shortages by cutting services: this does not seem 
a sustainable, long-term solution.

7 Lack of public voice
Members of the public were invited to comment only in very controlled ways at meetings held at Meadowhall 
in 2017. For instance, we were asked to rank criteria that were not ours, and to comment on staffing levels 
with no explanations about their implications.

A Citizens Panel has been set up, but the membership is unknown; it is said to provide an independent view 
and critical friendship12, aims which seem difficult to reconcile.

The presentation of the key points of the review simplifies the issues beyond belief, no doubt in an attempt to 
reassure the general public, rather than invite serious comment:

11 http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/nhs-sustainability-committee/longterm-
sustainability-of-the-nhs/oral/44553.html  December 2018, Q 288
12 Citizens Panel information https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/about-us/whychange/latest-
news/could-you-be-part-our-citizens-panel 

Page 234

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/nhs-sustainability-committee/longterm-sustainability-of-the-nhs/oral/44553.html
http://data.parliament.uk/writtenevidence/committeeevidence.svc/evidencedocument/nhs-sustainability-committee/longterm-sustainability-of-the-nhs/oral/44553.html
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/about-us/whychange/latest-news/could-you-be-part-our-citizens-panel
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/about-us/whychange/latest-news/could-you-be-part-our-citizens-panel


43

1 The majority of services should remain in all local hospitals. We have already been asked whether this 
means that 51% of services will remain and 49% be cut, which may seem flippant, but highlights the 
mistrust provoked by the lack of transparency around the review. The above slide does not include the 
reconfiguration recommendations for stroke, which was understandable as a legal decision was pending.  
However, it also omits proposed cuts in obstetrics units and gastroenterology services.  The 
technical/financial annex includes the possibility of cutting beds from 5,178 to 4,637 by 2021/22 (Doc 3 
slide 25). This raises concerns about premature discharge as well as the possible rationing of admissions.

2 All seven emergency departments should remain. Should does not mean that they will remain.  Perhaps 
in the end only some emergency services will remain. Already there is huge concern in Sheffield about 
proposals to shift facilities from the Minor Injuries Unit and the Walk-in Centre to an Urgent Treatment 
Centre at the overstretched and inaccessible Northern General Hospital.

3 Hospitals should develop “networks of care” with each taking responsibility for one of the reviewed 
services. Details of these responsibilities remain unclear, and much of the discussion about hosted 
networks, single service models or coordinated delivery to manage flows of resources and patients treats 
people are treated as units to be shifted around the system, omitting impacts on quality.

4 There should be an expansion of services for children in the community and short stay units, meaning less 
need for longer stay inpatient wards and partners should consider further work to consider a small 

Page 235

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf


44

reduction in the number of inpatient paediatric units. In fact, the proposal is to convert one or two 
children’s wards into paediatric assessment units, but the implications are not spelt out.

5 Women should have more choice over their maternity care and healthcare partners should explore 
further options for delivering maternity care. ‘Choices’ refers to a document called Better Births13, which 
promotes women’s choices, including the choice to give birth at home. The possible over-medicalisation 
of childbirth by (male) consultants is one issue, but ‘choosing’ home births might be inadvisable, since a 
higher proportion of women in SYB are at high risk than the national average and only 23% of births 
might be eligible for safe treatment in standalone midwifery led units (pages 137-138 of HSR Doc 1).  
Even with the positive spin, this recommendation has begun to alarm local people: after all, ‘low risk’ 
does not mean there is no risk. Moreover, the focus on ‘choice’ may exacerbate existing health 
inequalities.
 

6 A Health and Care Institute and an Innovation Hub should be developed, linked with universities, colleges 
and schools to develop and support the workforce while also researching new developments and 
technologies. Details of the proposed Institute are tucked away in chapter 9 of the main report, with 
functions and faculties illustrated on pages 56-7. This seems an expensive way to address the £17m cost 
of temporary staff in the past year, the staffing gaps required to meet Royal College guidelines (17% in 
paediatrics and 18% in maternity, slide 25 of Doc 3), let alone cope with the demoralisation of staff 
reported by the Royal College of Nursing, nurses’ recourse to food banks, the PTSD reported to us, and so 
on. Professor Welsh casually suggests in his video that the proposed South Yorkshire Health and Care 
Institute would encourage young people not in education, employment or training to join the health 
service.  He seems unaware that many young people are not in education or training because of high 
student fees and debt burdens, the abolition of EMAs and nursing bursaries, though bursaries are 
mentioned several times in the report. How would an HCI overcome these problems? Where would it find 
staff and on what terms and conditions would they be employed? 

Of the Innovation Hub, Prof Welsh says in his video that this is to find gizmos to meet needs, rather than 
to benefit the gizmos. The main report refers to Care 205014,  a University of Sheffield proposal:

The Sheffield City Region has today (22 January 2016) been announced as one of seven national Test 
Bed innovation centres to take part in a major new drive to modernise how the NHS delivers care.

On 28 June 2018, the Sheffield Telegraph reported Richard Caborn’s plans for two further facilities at the 
Olympic Legacy Park (an Orthopaedic and Rehabilitation Research and Innovation Centre and Sheffield 
Children’s Hospital’s proposed Centre for Child Health Technology). How far have all these projects been 
thought through?

6 Lack of resources and lack of adequate data
The Technical Annex: Financial Analysis considers the capacity challenge and the workforce challenge. Aims 
include how to cut beds and reduce the £17million spent on temps in the past year. 

The system needs more ambitious out-of-hospital shifts to reduce the number of beds over the next 
five years. There are currently c. 5,178 beds in the system at an average bed utilisation of 89%. If no 
other changes were made apart from activity growth, to achieve a target utilisation of 85%, 6,048 
beds would be required in 2021/22.  (Doc 3 slide 26)

They claim that saving money is not the issue, despite the £571m cuts required by the STP. The reason for 
closing beds, when the population and complex needs are growing, is unclear.  Moreover, the report states 
that there is limited spare capacity in all of the services reviewed except paediatrics, so that new bed capacity 

13 https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/national-maternity-review-report.pdf 
14 https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/news/nr/leading-the-way-with-new-test-beds-1.543143 

Page 236

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2016/02/national-maternity-review-report.pdf
https://www.sheffield.ac.uk/news/nr/leading-the-way-with-new-test-beds-1.543143


45

would generally be required.  References to “more ambitious out-of-hospital plans”, in order to free up 
capacity (slides 57, and 59-61)  are also worrying.

Financial data are incomplete, having been obtained only from Barnsley, meaning that the review is based on 
unwarranted assumptions. This is admitted in the technical annexe (Doc 3, slide 65), which gives a list of 13 
limitations:
 

Briefly, not all Trusts provided the information. Thus, some costs were estimated based on the latest trend or 
data from Barnsley or on publicly available information. Finally, as if all those limitations were not enough, 
“the analysis has received limited QA.” Even without specialised knowledge, the financial assumptions and 
data can be seen to be questionable, if not useless.

The shakiness of data admitted here does not inspire confidence in how public money is being spent. Nor 
does it augur well for “collaborative working” if data cannot be collected.

Moreover, finance is not the only area in which data were incomplete. Other sections of the technical analysis 
state that figures were drawn only from one or two trusts, or that trusts did not always update their data.  
(See, for instance, slides 27, 37, 38, 39 in Doc 3).

7 Transport issues
Chapter 22 is devoted to Transport because:

Clinicians, patients and the public consistently told the HSR that transport is one of the most crucial 
factors to consider. This includes transport from patients’ homes to hospitals and transport between 
hospitals.  (Doc 1, page 161)

The report also states:

Page 237

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/6715/2577/3840/3._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Technical_Annex.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf


46

In order to consolidate work to date and develop a consistent transport strategy for SYB(MYND), a 
Transport Reference Group (TRG) should be created, with representation from acute trusts, 
commissioners, Yorkshire Ambulance Service and East Midlands Ambulance Service, local transport 
authorities, as well as patients and the public. Increased collaboration with transport stakeholders is 
already underway, such as through the regional Chambers of Commerce. This should be expanded to 
develop closer relationships between SYB(MYND) health and care providers and local public transport 
operators.  The TRG should have a remit for developing the SYB(MYND) transport strategy, as well as 
developing and implementing specific functions to deliver on it. In this way, it should act with 
comparable governance, delegated decision-making rights and scope to the service-specific clinical 
reference groups proposed by the HSR to address unwarranted clinical variation.  (Doc 1, page 162)

Apart from the governance and decision-making issues reviewed earlier, all this might be easier said than 
done, given the woeful and continually changing state of public transport in the area and the detailed 
knowledge of timetables and bus stops required in order to assess accessibility. Elsewhere, the review seems 
to suggest that transport will not be an issue in most of the towns, as car ownership is around the national 
average. Sheffield has a high proportion of households without cars, but “public transport within the city is 
assumed to be effective.” (of Doc 2, page 94). Sheffielders might dispute this assumption. Doncaster fares 
even worse. It is reported to have low car ownership but plenty of motorways, with no further explanation.  
In fact, in the Sheffield Urgent Care Review process, it has become evident that public transport and parking 
issues are very important and have been underestimated by NHS managers. The same seems to apply here. 

Conclusion  
To conclude, the HSR raises a number of concerns, including issues of governance and transparency, lack of 
public and staff involvement, and weak data. Staff and patients risk being let down and real questions about 
what makes good hospital services have been ignored.

7.1.2 Response to points raised by member of the public
The ICS thanks the member of the public for their response. 

Responses to the specific points raised are laid out below:

1. Geography 

The different geographies referenced in the report reflect the fact that different local health economies are 
involved in different recommendations for the Review. In light of the response from the member of the 
public the SOC has been drafted to make it very clear which recommendations refer to which organisations. 

In summary:

 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw: the organisations in the Sustainability and Transformation Partnership 
for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw (SYB) are now members of the Integrated Care System (ICS). For CCGs, 
this is Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, Rotherham and Sheffield. For acute hospitals, it is the Foundation 
Trusts of Barnsley, Doncaster and Bassetlaw, Rotherham, Sheffield Children’s, and Sheffield Teaching. 
For mental health organisations it is the Foundation Trusts of Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber 
and Sheffield Health and Social Care.

 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw and North Derbyshire: these are the organisations above, plus 
Chesterfield Royal Hospital Foundation Trust, and North Derbyshire CCG (Hardwick CCG is engaged 
through North Derbyshire CCG). This area covers the Trusts which are included within scope for potential 
reconfiguration options. 

Page 238

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/2515/2579/1881/1._HSR_Stage_2_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/3315/2577/3849/2._HSR_Stage_2_Report_Annexes.pdf


47

North Derbyshire is included because a significant number of patients who live in North Derbyshire 
travel in to SYB for some of their care. Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust is not included in 
reconfiguration options because it has already been through a reconfiguration. 

 South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire and North Derbyshire. SYBMYND refers to the 
geography of the organisations in the Joint Commitee of Clinical Commissioning Groups (JCCCG) which 
has seven members. These are Barnsley, Bassetlaw, Doncaster, North Derbyshire, Rotherham, Sheffield 
and Wakefield. Hardwick CCG is not a member of the Joint Committee but has taken decisions in parallel 
with the JCCCG. 

For providers, in parallel to the JCCCG, there is the Provider Working Together partnership, which is 
made up of seven acute hospital Trusts. These are Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust, Chesterfield 
Royal NHS Foundation Trust, Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust, Mid 
Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust, The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust, Sheffield Children’s Hospital NHS 
Foundation Trust, Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. 

The organisations in this area have historically worked together because of natural patient flows 
between the areas. 

These seven Trusts are included within the scope of recommendations on the hosted network, ie they 
will be building on their collaborative history to develop shared working on clinical services.

2. Governance

Accountability for decision making - The member of the public asks about accountability for decisions made 
in relation to the HSR.

The legislative framework of the 2012 Act means that statutory accountability and decision making remains 
with NHS Foundation Trust Boards or NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Governing Bodies, except where 
they have formally delegated powers. Statutory responsibility for decision making on service change rests 
with CCG Governing Bodies.

SYBMYND commissioners have established a Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups, and 
providers have established a Committees in Common, to which decision making powers may legally be 
delegated. 

At present the Trust Boards and CCG Governing Bodies have not delegated any decision making powers 
related to the hospital services programme to the JCCCG or CIC. Joint discussion between commissioner and 
provider organisations from across SYBMYND takes place in a number of forums. None of these holds 
statutory accountability or decision making powers, so key decisions are referred to CCG Governing Bodies 
and Trust Boards as required to be made by them as required by statute. 

Recommendations in the HSR - As the response from the member of the public highlights, the HSR suggests 
that collaborative working is difficult within the current legislative framework. There is a recognition at 
national level that the current legislative framework is not suited to delivering the level of collaboration 
between organisation that is the basis of shared working going forward. The Health Select Committee into 
integrated care (published 11 June 2018) recognised this, saying

Page 239



48

The existing legal context does not necessarily enable the collaborative relationships local leaders 
are building, and in places adds significant complexities.15 

The committee concluded that 

The law will need to change to fully realise the move to more integrated, collaborative, place-based 
care. … The purpose of legislative change should be to address problems which have been identified 
at a local level which act as barriers to integration in the best interest of patients. We wish to stress 
again that proposals should be led by the health and care community.16 

Within the existing legal framework, a number of opportunities exist (e.g. through JCCCG and CIC) for shared 
working. The HSR suggests that, going forward, the partners needs to continue to explore these approaches 
and develop ways, within the existing statutory framework, to allow organisations to work together when 
needed to deliver high quality, safe services for patients. 

The ICS is undertaking a review of governance and the HSR analysis will be considered during this review. 

3. The rationale for the Review 

The response from the member of the public questions the pressures that are identified within the Review. 

The main pressures that the HSR is aiming to address (the ageing population, rising demand etc) are well 
evidenced in a number of national reports. See for example Gareth Iacocobucci writing in the British Medical 
Journal17 and a recent report by the Health Foundation and the Institute of Fiscal Studies18.

Changes in the nature of healthcare - The member of the public asks what is meant by references to 
changes in the way that care can be provided. This refers to the significant changes that have been made in 
medical care over recent decades. This can mean changes to the type of care, where care can be delivered, 
or how long it takes to recover. Many conditions which were once incurable can now be prevented 
altogether through vaccinations, or cured through new drugs or medical procedures. Changes in medical 
techniques, such as the shift to laparascopic surgery, means that many patients face much shorter recovery 
times and do not need to stay in hospital. Many chronic conditions such as childhood asthma can now be 
largely managed at home. 

4. Purpose of the review

The member of the public asks about the rationale behind choosing the five services within the HSR. In order 
to provide clarity around this question, the SOC includes a short summary of how the five services were 
selected and prioritised. A more detailed account is published in the Section 1A report of the HSR, available 
on the website 
(https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_1a_Re
port.pdf) 

In selecting five core services, the review followed the key priorities outlined in its Terms of Reference. This 
included defining and agreeing a set of criteria for what constitutes ‘Sustainable Hospital Services’ for each 

15 https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmhealth/650/650.pdf p.75
16 https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmhealth/650/650.pdf p.78
17 https://www.bmj.com/content/356/bmj.i6691.full
18 https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/R143.pdf 

Page 240

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_1a_Report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/7515/0903/4254/Hospital_Services_1a_Report.pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmhealth/650/650.pdf
https://publications.parliament.uk/pa/cm201719/cmselect/cmhealth/650/650.pdf
https://www.ifs.org.uk/uploads/R143.pdf


49

Place and for SYBMYND; and identifying any services that are unsustainable against these criteria, in the 
short, medium and long-term. 

A ‘sustainable’ service was defined as one where:

 There are enough patients to operate a safe and efficient service;

 There is an appropriate workforce to meet staffing needs; 

 There are interdependent clinical services in place, and in reach, to operate core clinical services safely 
and effectively; and,

 The service is likely to be deliverable within the resource envelope that is likely to be available.

The Hospital Services Review assessed acute services across SYBMYND against these criteria, in order to 
select some significantly challenged services.

Hosted Networks - The respondent points out that there is as yet no clear indication of where 
responsibilities for Hosted Networks will sit. This point has been addressed in the Strategic Outline Case, 
which describes the process for developing the Hosted Networks and agreeing which Trust will become the 
Host.

Lack of staff engagement - The respondent queries the degree of engagement with staff that has taken 
place so far. Engagement with staff is a key priority for the ICS. There has been a significant level of 
engagement to date, and, in line with the concerns raised by the respondent, the ICS team will continue and 
intensify this engagement going forward.

Engagement so far – the HSR team and the ICS communications team engaged with the following groups of 
staff during the development of the HSR:

 Lead clinicians and nurses from the five specialties: The HSR established five Clinical Working 
Groups, which engaged clinicians and nurses from across the specialties. Each Trust was asked to 
nominate clinicians and other staff, such as nurses and midwives, as members of the Clinical 
Working Groups. Five workshops were held for each CWG.

 Wider engagement with staff in the five core specialties: CWG members were asked to act as the 
leads to engage with their wider team of colleagues across their home Trusts. After each meeting, 
the HSR team provided CWG members with a short summary of the points that had been made 
(these summaries are available on the website). CWG members were asked to discuss these points 
with colleagues, and to bring back feedback from the wider staff groups to a session at the beginning 
of the following meeting. 

 Wider engagement with frontline staff: In addition to this, the HSR team engaged with frontline 
staff from across the Trusts, more widely than the five core specialties. 

o Trusts were provided with regular updates on the HSR, which they were asked to share with 
staff across the organisation. Staff briefings, as well as ICS organised nurse forums, were 
held in many sites, and staff communications with links to the online survey shared through 
all partners’ regular communications mechanisms.

Page 241



50

o The ICS communications team attended a number of events at healthcare sites across the 
footprints, including some open sessions with nurses. Some of the hospitals invited 
members of the team to set up a stall in their reception areas, and the team also attended 
some GP surgeries. This gave an opportunity to talk directly with both patients and staff at 
the sites, and to distribute surveys to get their views on the issues. Copies of the survey 
were left at the sites for any staff who were interested and had not been able to attend. 

o A number of staff were also interviewed in the telephone surveys.

 Trades unions: SYB ICS meets with regional union representatives in the Staff Partnership Forum 
every two months. Members of the Forum have been kept up to date with the Review throughout 
the process and have discussed the findings of the Hospital Services Review.  Comments from the 
group have informed the development of the next stage: for example, junior doctors will be invited 
to become members of the Clinical Working Groups at the request of union representatives.

Engagement going forward - The ICS is developing an engagement strategy for the next stage of work, with 
advice from the Citizens’ Panel. In developing the strategy the communications team will engage with the 
issues picked up in the response from the member of the public, including engagement with staff, clinicians 
and trades unions. 

5. Staff shortages

The response from the member of the public notes pressures on staff and notes recent reports from the 
Royal College of Nursing and NHS Providers. The member of the public asks how the ICS can be sure that the 
proposals in the HSR report, particularly around Hosted Networks, will solve the workforce challenges that 
providers are facing. 

HSR recommendations - The pressures on workforce that the respondent identifies were one of the main 
issues raised by nurses and clinicians in the Clinical Working Groups. The challenges that they raised, and the 
groups’ suggestions as to possible solutions, are recorded in the summaries of the CWGs that are published 
on the website. The proposals outlined in the HSR report recommendations are what staff told the HSR team 
would help tackle the challenges of recruitment and retention, improve the quality of care, and reduce the 
burden on NHS staff. Thus, the proposals in the Strategic Outline Case around shared working on 
recruitment and retention, standardised job roles and support for workforce planning have been designed to 
address the concerns of staff within the system.

Royal College guidelines - The member of the public asks about the system’s ability to meet the Royal 
College guidelines on staffing, and what was considered an acceptable level of staffing.

The review chose to use the relevant Royal College guidelines as standards for the levels of workforce 
services should be aiming for. All options were modelled against the Royal College guidelines and will 
continue to be so in the next stage of the review. 

Royal College guidelines are not statutory, and are designed to allow a level of resilience within the 
workforce. In addition, the Royal College guidelines have historically been focused on consultant presence. 
The development of new job roles such as Physicians’ Associates, Advanced Nurse Practitioners and Nurse 
Endoscopists can change the requirements for numbers of consultants, if a role can be carried out by a 
different, appropriately trained member of staff. For this reason, going forward, the assessment of 
workforce will look not just at compliance with Royal College guidelines but at the possibilities for workforce 
transformation. The Clinical Working Groups will be asked to identify appropriate approaches to workforce 

Page 242



51

roles, and will work with the Clinical Senate to ensure that any proposed models meet requirements for 
patient safety. 

Reconfiguration - The response suggests that the report is about addressing staff shortages by cutting 
services. The HSR recommended reconfiguration only when clinical engagement and modelling suggested 
either that services cannot be maintained through transformation alone (for example through the Hosted 
Networks, Workforce Institute or Innovation Hub); or that they are closely linked to another unsustainable 
service. The HSR recognises that while reconfiguration can have positive outcomes, it also carries risks, and 
so recommends reconfiguration only as a last resort. This approach has been carried forward into the 
Strategic Outline Case.

8.    Lack of public voice

The member of the public raises concerns about a lack of public voice in the development of the HSR. The 
ICS has focused on engagement with the public as a key priority and will continue to do so during the next 
stage of the work, including engaging with the Citizens’ Panel, a group of members of the public who advise 
SYB on public engagement.

Public engagement to date -  
 Face to face engagement: Three large public events were held which were open to any member of 

the public, in addition to individual meetings in specific Places. Further events were held in the 
foyers of some of the acute hospitals, and members of the team also visited other healthcare spaces 
such as GP surgeries to raise awareness. Patient Participation Groups in some of the Places also ran 
sessions on the HSR.

 Public survey: In addition, the HSR published a public survey, which received 1,849 responses. 1,000 
of these were from people, chosen to mirror the demographic makeup of the health economy, who 
took part in a telephone survey. 

 Targeted engagement with seldom heard groups: The engagement work also includes in-depth 
sessions with 96 representatives of seldom heard groups (including for example BME groups, young 
carers, the Deaf community, older people, asylum seekers, and the LGBT community).

The results of this public engagement were used to inform the drafting of the HSR. The engagement is 
summarised in a report at: 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/4815/2231/8192/15._HSR_Stage_1b_Engag
ement_Report.pdf

The detailed responses, including the responses to the surveys, the write-ups of the public sessions, and the 
analysis of the engagement with seldom heard groups, are all available on the website. 
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-
services/looking-at-hospital-services

Citizens’ Panel - The respondent is unclear about the membership of the Citizens’ Panel. The Citizens’ Panel 
has been developed and set up to provide an independent view and critical friendship on matters relating to 
our Integrated Care System and is not a replacement for wider public engagement and consultation. For its 
purpose, aims, and background see: https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/get-
involved/meet-citizens-panel. Membership of the Panel will be published in due course.

Summary slide - The slide that the member of the public analyses in the response was developed at the 
request of, and with input from, the Citizens’ Panel, as a way to simply convey the main points of the 
Hospital Services Review recommendations in a single slide. 

Page 243

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/get-involved/meet-citizens-panel
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/index.php/get-involved/meet-citizens-panel


52

In addition to this, the ICS is producing an Easy Read version of the HSR. This has been submitted to the Joint 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (at their request) for comments and will be published shortly.

The messages included in these documents were intentionally simplified. Should any member of the public 
require more detail on the specifics of any proposal the detailed reports can be downloaded from the 
review’s website (https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-future-
proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services). Hard copies of the reports have also been made available when 
requested.

Regarding some of the specific comments raised on the proposals:

 The majority of services should remain in all local hospitals. This was a principle of the HSR and also 
underpins the Strategic Outline Case. District General Hospitals provide services along a spectrum from 
low acuity and complexity through to higher acuity and complexity. The SOC is based on the principle that 
the majority of services should remain on the sites of local DGHs or be moved closer to home if possible. 
Some higher complexity services (for example inpatient paediatrics) may benefit from consolidation 
within a network, due to concentrations of workforce and expertise. 

 The reduction in bed numbers. It is the aim of SYBICS and its individual Places to prevent people from 
getting ill, and to provide care as close to home as possible, with people only staying in hospital if it is 
necessary. It is in this context that each Place is anticipating a shift to support closer to home wherever 
possible. This does not mean patients will be prematurely discharged from hospital, or that people who 
need to be in hospital will not be cared for there. 

 Changes to emergency departments. The SOC says that the system will retain all six emergency 
departments plus the paediatric emergency department at Sheffield Children’s Hospital. In response to 
the feedback from the respondent we have made this statement very clear in the SOC. The SOC states 
that emergency departments will keep their doors open 24/7, with consultant coverage appropriate to 
the size of the unit, guided by Royal College of Emergency Medicine guidelines. Clinical Working Groups 
will be asked to consider what staff presence is appropriate in A&Es at different times of the day and 
explore how we can use staff in different ways. Alternative staff roles, such as advanced nurse or medical 
practitioners, or support from GPs, could help to address workforce challenges in our urgent and 
emergency care services.

 Home births. Better Births laid out a strategy to increase the choices available to women, including more 
midwifery-led services and more home births for mothers who are at low risk of complications. Home 
births and Midwifery Led Units were discussed by the public at public events, with members of the public 
expressing different views on how the system should balance patient choice with patient risk. Some 
people were in favour of home births and midwifery led units, and some were concerned that they 
exposed women to higher levels of risk. 

The risk profile of women across SYB will continue to be considered into the work on maternity services 
going forward. Any changes to services would be modelled through an Equalities Impact Assessment to 
understand the impact increased choice may have on health inequalities.   

 The Health and Care Institute. The respondent asks for clarity around the role of the Health and Care 
Institute. Many of the workforce and quality issues raised by staff and the public were to do with the 
significant differences in care patients receive from one site to another. The Health and Care Institute is 
intended to create cross-system working in order to eliminate these differences, through delivering a 
comprehensive workforce strategy in a consistent way across each Place, and assuring the system-wide 
adherence to a standardised approach to developing and implementing shared clinical protocols. The 

Page 244

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/what-we-do/working-together-future-proof-services/looking-at-hospital-services


53

Institute will be designed going forward. Before any investment is made, all change proposals would be 
subject to a robust business case which included a cost benefit analysis. 

The respondent raised questions around sourcing staff, terms and conditions, student fees and the 
availability of bursaries. Some of these factors are nationally determined and outside the control of SYB. 
Others will be addressed as more detailed planning on the Institute is undertaken in the next phase of 
work.

 Olympic Legacy Park. The respondent queries how far the Orthopaedic and Rehabilitation Research and 
Innovation Centre and Sheffield Children’s Hospital’s proposed Centre for Child Health Technology has 
been thought through. The HSR and the SOC cannot comment on programmes outside the scope of the 
hospital services work.    

Engagement going forward – The ICS is developing an Engagement Plan for the next stage of work, with 
advice from the Citizens’ Panel and the Consultation Institute. 

In summary, all the next phases of work will continue to have significant public and patient engagement to 
ensure public views are captured and inform the development of options and proposals. The hospital 
services programme will continue to engage regularly through the ICS Citizen’s Panel, CCG Engagement 
Groups (including Patient and Partnership Groups), provider Trust Engagement groups and other relevant 
forums (such as local Maternity Voices Partnerships). 

Several large engagement events will also be held throughout this next phase of the Review, which will be 
specific to this programme of work. As respondents have pointed out, as proposed modelling work 
progresses, the nature of engagement will become more specifically related to changes to individual sites 
and services, whereas it has tended thus far to relate to broader discussion of concepts. 

Engagement will be frequent and regular to ensure clarity and transparency around proposals as they 
develop, and for the views of patients and the public to be incorporated into the work. We will also build 
upon the learning from previous involvement and consultations undertaken by the ICS and other systems, to 
ensure relevant experience informs our work.

9. Lack of resources and a lack of data
Limitations slide - The member of the public expresses concerns about some limitations to the modelling 
which are identified in the financial annex. The limitations slides in the financial annex are a standard feature 
that is presented alongside modelling, to outline the technical limitations of the modelling. Modelling, by its 
very nature, is theoretical, and the assumptions which make up the model, and their limitations, must be 
transparent and well understood.  

The HSR modelling was designed as a high level assessment of the impact of some core elements of possible 
models, in particular the upper and lower limits of activity shifts, and capital costs. At this stage of work, the 
findings were intended to be indicative and non-site specific. 

Quality assurance was conducted on the modelling and included:

 A quality check of the data file and its functionality.
 Reconfirmation of all baseline data used in the model through validation with each trust
 A quality check of all assumptions inputted into the model, through one-to-one conversations with each 

trust.
 Review of the outputs of the model by the Directors of Finance group. 

Provision of data - The respondent queries in particular a statement in one of the ‘limitations’ slides in the 
Review, stating that not all trusts provided SLR data to the HSR. To clarify, this does not mean that the 

Page 245



54

Review did not include data from all trusts. Publicly available Reference Cost data was used for all trusts, in 
addition to the system-wide STP assumptions.

The comment in question relates to SLR – Service Line Reporting – data. This is more granular cost data that 
was not essential to the high level analysis conducted in the HSR. In the next phase, which will be more 
granular and site specific, detailed data will be collected from all trusts. 

Some updated activity data for three trusts was made available to the modelling team shortly before 
publication of the HSR. This was used to update the workforce modelling in the HSR final report but there 
was not time to update the capacity and finance modelling with the most up to date numbers. The modelling 
was therefore updated subsequent to publication, and is published as Annex E of the SOC. The marginal 
changes to the activity data had very marginal impact (in most cases costs increased by around £0-£0.3m 
with a maximum cost increase of £1.3m) and therefore did not change the conclusions of the work.

Modelling going forward - For the next stage of modelling, the respondent’s emphasis on the importance of 
rigorous modelling is being taken into account. A specification for the model, and a template for data 
collection, are being co-developed by representatives from across the system including clinicians and HR, 
estates, finance and operational directors. All trusts will complete the data request in a uniform way to 
deliver a consistent set of data, at a granular level of detail.

10. Transport

The respondent notes the challenges with modelling changes to transport due to the complexities with 
public transport and changes to timetables and bus stops. As the respondent requests, the ICS will ensure 
that the Transport Advisory Group which is being set up will include representatives from the main travel 
and transport organisations across the area, so that transport issues can be discussed at a strategic level. The 
ICS will also set up a public group specifically to focus on transport and access issues.

7.2 MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC – 2
The following response was also received from a member of the public, writing in an individual capacity. The 
comments relate mainly to governance and accountability arrangements in the HSR.

7.2.1 Response received from a member of the public
GOVERNANCE

1. At Barnsley CCG Board meeting (14/6/18) Professor Welch (Independent Review Team Lead) accepted, 
when asked by a public question, that the financial section in the Technical Annex was estimated and 
based on the information given by only one hospital, no data being received from the other hospitals.  He 
said further work was needed over the next nine months which would require data from all the hospitals 
to allow a full financial analysis.
Both Professor Welch and Lesley Smith (System Reform Lead and Barnsley CCG Chief Officer) stated that 
none of the HSR recommendations are driven by the financial analysis.
It is disturbing to hear that:
a) The recommendations cannot be said to ‘not make the financial situation worse’ which was the 

agreed position of the review as a full financial analysis has not been possible.
b) The answer to Q.9 in the Question and Answer Sheet part of the report is therefore not true.
c) That only one hospital provided the data required in the ten months since the Review began and 

before the Report was published, despite the claim that these hospitals had worked together in a 
collaborative partnership for about five years.

Page 246



55

d) This non-co-operation does not demonstrate a strong collaborative or bode well for future 
partnership working.

e) That a decision will be made to approve a review’s recommendations that cannot be guaranteed as 
cost neutral, as required.

f) This is not sound business practice and is not ethical given the business is a public service funded 
from the public purse.

2. The Report states that each public body partner will retain their responsibility for meeting their own 
statutory duties should the Hospital Service Review Report recommendations be implemented.  However 
the Report assumes that individual statutory duties can be delegated to the Integrated Care System, 
when statutory duties cannot legally be delegated. Also to do so would not be compatible with the 
statement that each public body partner retains responsibility for their statutory duties.  
Some examples include:
a) The duties of CCGs for commissioning functions, including service specifications, and protocols, 

cannot just be assumed by the Hosted Networks that are managed by a Trust as implied in Section B 
Transformation.

b) The duty of each Trust to develop, support and recruit its own workforce cannot just be assumed by 
the hosted networks that are managed by another Trust.

c) There is an assumption that responsibilities that are laid down in statute can just be transferred 
across organisational boundaries without affecting staff employment status, and individual 
organisational statutory responsibilities.

ACCOUNTABILITY

1. The Report assumes the statutory duties of the CCGs and the Trusts are the same for Public Involvement, 
which is not the case.  It assumes that the changes proposed by the transformation recommendations 
can be implemented quickly and no public involvement would be required.  This is because the Report 
authors appear to be unaware that CCGs have a Public Involvement Duty requiring the public to be 
involved in commissioning arrangements, as described in Section 26 14Z2 of the Health and Social Care 
Act 2012:

 “14Z2 Public involvement and consultation by clinical commissioning groups 

(1) This section applies in relation to any health services which are, or are to be, provided 
pursuant to arrangements made by a clinical commissioning group in the exercise of its functions 
(“commissioning arrangements”). 

(2) The clinical commissioning group must make arrangements to secure that  individuals to whom 
the services are being or may be provided are involved (whether by being consulted or provided with 
information or in other ways)— 

(a) in the planning of the commissioning arrangements by the group, 
(b) in the development and consideration of proposals by the group for changes in the 
      commissioning arrangements where the implementation of the proposals would have  
      an impact on the manner in which the services are delivered to the individuals or the 

               range of health services available to them, 
          and 
          (c) in decisions of the group affecting the operation of the commissioning arrangements 

Page 247



56

               where the implementation of the decisions would (if made) have such an impact. 

(3) The clinical commissioning group must include in its constitution— 
(a) a description of the arrangements made by it under subsection (2), 

          and 
         (b) a statement of the principles which it will follow in implementing those arrangements. 

(4) The Board may publish guidance for clinical commissioning groups on the discharge of  
their functions under this section. 

(5) A clinical commissioning group must have regard to any guidance published by the Board    
      under subsection (4). 

(6) The reference in subsection (2)(b) to the delivery of services is a reference “

    In all the plans for transforming services 14Z2 CCG Public Involvement Duty applies. This is  
    clarified by the Statutory Guidance for Patient and Public Participation in Commissioning 
    published in April 2017 by NHS England (the Board).

     Whereas the Public Involvement Duty of Trusts remains the same as in Section 242 the   
     2006 Health and Social Care Act and requires them to involve patients and potential patients  
     in service planning and delivery, and proposals to change these – but not in commissioning  
     arrangements.

2. The Hosted Networks are described, in Section B as being monitored and accountable to the ICS which 
has no statutory status and is not a public body with no public accountability for the public funds it uses.  
The Hosted Networks should be accountable to the public and to the commissioners (CCGs) who carry the 
statutory duty, responsibility and risk for all that the ICS does. 

7.2.2 Response to points raised by member of the public
1. Governance

Cost neutrality - The respondent raises comments about whether the HSR proposals are cost neutral, and 
why the numbers are estimates at this stage.

The modelling done for the HSR was designed as a series of indicative scenarios, providing a maximum and 
minimum range of activity shifts, capacity availability, and financial costs. Detailed costings will only be 
possible once the work moves to the point of developing site-specific analysis and will be taken forward in 
the next stage of the analysis. However the modelling done so far gives an indication of the likely costs 
associated with capital investment, while the workforce modelling gives an indication of the degree of 
quality improvement that would be possible by getting closer to meeting Royal College standards. 

It was a criterion for the HSR that proposals should not cost more, in terms of day-to-day running costs, than 
current service provision. There would be some transitional costs. For this reason, the HSR modelling looked 
at which options would be closest to achieving the Royal College quality standards within the current 
available staff and the funded establishment, as well as future available staff, with the aim of avoiding locum 
costs.   

The financial implication of proposals will continue to be a key evaluation criterion when assessing options 
to make sure that the system is not to be made worse off.

Page 248

https://www.england.nhs.uk/publication/patient-and-public-participation-in-commissioning-health-and-care-statutory-guidance-for-ccgs-and-nhs-england/
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/41/section/242/enacted
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2006/41/section/242/enacted


57

Financial data -  The respondent queries a statement in one of the ‘limitations’ slides in the Review, stating 
that not all trusts provided SLR data to the HSR. To clarify, this does not mean that the Review did not 
include data from all trusts. Publicly available Reference Cost data was used for all trusts, in addition to the 
system-wide STP assumptions. The comment in question relates to Service Line Reporting (SLR) data. This is 
more granular cost data that was not essential to the high level analysis conducted in the HSR. In the next 
phase, which will be more granular and site specific, detailed data will be collected from all trusts. 

Joint working – The respondent asks about the level of joint working between the Trusts around the 
Hospital Services Review. All of the work of the HSR, and the development of the SOC, has been done 
through shared working across the partner organisations, and all Trusts and commissioners have 
participated actively in the development of the work. This is supported by formal governance arrangements 
(such as the Collaborative Partnership Board, the Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups, and the 
Committees in Common) as well as by regular shared working. 

2. Statutory duties

The respondent comments about the legal status of an Integrated Care System and the delegation of 
statutory duties. 

Legal accountability - The legislative framework of the 2012 Act means that statutory accountability and 
decision making remains with NHS Foundation Trust Boards or NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Governing 
Bodies, except where they have formally delegated powers. Statutory responsibility for decision making on 
service change rests with CCG Governing Bodies.

SYBMYND commissioners have established a Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Group, and 
SYBMYND providers have established a Committees in Common, to which decision making powers may 
legally be delegated. 

At present the Trust Boards and CCG Governing Bodies have not delegated any decision making powers 
related to the hospital services programme to the JCCCG or CIC. Joint discussion between commissioner and 
provider organisations from across SYBMYND takes place in a number of forums. None of these holds 
statutory accountability or decision making powers, so key decisions are referred to CCG Governing Bodies 
and Trust Boards as relevant to be made by them as required by statute. 

Accountability and statutory functions in Hosted Networks - The respondent is concerned that Hosted 
Networks will assume commissioning functions and workforce planning functions that could undermine the 
statutory responsibilities of Trust Boards and CCG Governing Bodies. 

The Hosted Networks are a proposed approach to allow shared working between providers; they build on 
established practice and existing legal frameworks. For example, service specifications and protocols will be 
co-designed between commissioners and providers, as has been the case for many years. Similarly, it is 
common practice for staff employed by one Trust to work in another Trust under formal agreements. 

The concerns raised by the respondent will be addressed throughout the development of the Hosted 
Networks. As the Hosted Networks are developed, statutory responsibilities of organisations will be 
respected and legal advice will be obtained to ensure that all proposals are in line with the current legal 
framework. 

Commissioners will be involved in the Hosted Network governance and will maintain responsibility for 
contracting care from providers, holding them to account through the CCG contract. 

Page 249



58

The respondent asks about how Hosted Networks relate to the role of the ICS. The ICS has an emerging remit 
to support performance across the system moving forward. It is this role that could support Hosted 
Networks. This does not replace the legal accountabilities and statutory duties of Trust Boards and CCG 
Governing Bodies. 

Public Accountability – As the respondent points out, Trusts and CCGs have different statutory duties 
around public involvement in change programmes and in public engagement and consultation. CCG 
Governing Bodies have the statutory power to agree service change, and have statutory responsibilities to 
ensure that public engagement and consultation takes place. The work of the hospital services programme 
will continue to reflect the different statutory roles of CCG Governing Bodies and Trust Boards, with 
Governing Bodies being asked to formally make decisions under their statutory powers.  However, public 
involvement activities will continue to be coordinated across organisations with messages remaining 
consistent. 

Public engagement – The respondent is concerned that the transformation workstream might be taken 
forward without public engagement. To provide reassurance on this, the Strategic Outline Case lays out how 
public engagement will underpin all the workstrands in the hospital services programme. 

7.3 FEEDBACK FROM A SURVEY CONDUCTED BY MEMBERS OF SAVE OUR NHS
Some members of Save Our NHS undertook a short survey to ask the views of some people about the 
recommendations of the Review. It is included here as it was submitted as a response to the Review. 
However it does not represent a response to the full Report of the HSR which is the purpose of the current 
document. It will therefore be considered alongside other public engagement responses which are being 
gathered by the ICS team and will inform the workstreams going forward from October.

7.3.1 Response received from Save Our NHS
We talked to people on street stalls and showed them these proposals:

Page 250



59

We also sent an online questionnaire which included the above proposals and these ideas as well:

We asked a series of questions, as below, and report the comments we received, spelling mistakes and all.

What do you think is good about hospitals?

1 When admitted at 9 years old, it was good they let my mum stay overnight.
2 Whenever I’ve needed the NHS, they’ve been there.
3 Access for acute patients to therapeutic services, i.e. activities that are engaging, creative and 

promote physical activity.  Well done, Occupational Therapy!!
4 Commitment of staff.
5 Blood testing service at the Hallamshire is speedy and efficient.
6 Great care and repair for my grandson (cleft lip and palate).
7 Been in hospital at Hallamshire and everything was good, from surgeon to cleaning staff!
8 Friendly, helpful nurses – how do they do it when they’re so overworked?
9 It’s good to see some welcoming entrances and child-friendly waiting areas.
10 Congrats NH’s70’s.  Its good service and maintenance.
11  They are good because they are local to communities
12 Quality of some of the services.  Range of specialist services.  Their apparent willingness to work 

together.  
13 Sheffield hospitals are linked to the medical school, which is good.
14 SY - outpatients / theatre /
15 Sheffield hospitals are linked to the medical school, which is good.

Page 251



60

16 The care
17 A good spread of hospitals
18 Their capability of excellence is often compromised by the capacity of funds and the corrosive nature 

of targets and paperwork foisted in clinical staff
19 Acute medical Care and A&E
20 The dedicated staff working against the odds to look after us 
21 they try their best
22 Free ate the point of need
23 Re eye clinic: fast appointments; good service and follow-up 
24 SY&B hospitals seem to have been fairly resilient so far in the face of continuous de-funding by 

Conservative-led governments.  
25 the expertise and specialism they all have
26 Excellent surgery.  
27 Good for preventative care, e.g. mammograms
28 Patients helping each other bath meals, due to shortages of nursing staff
29 Its free at point of service
30 They provide equipment for impaired people

What could be better?

1 More funding.
2 Give admin staff time to look up and smile when I go into reception.
3 Nurses and professionals try hard but it is hard – no pay rises, not valued.  It’s all about computers 

rather than care.
4 Look after our staff!
5 Take care to employ the cleaning staff in-house to improve everyone’s chances.
6 Shorter waits for transport home after treatment.
7 Wrong to send somebody home poorly.
8 Must respect DNR wishes.
9 Ask frontline staff this question!
10 Make main entrances to hospital more welcoming and waiting areas child friendly.
11 Better signage would help at Northern General.
12 Police treat the Northern General as a violence hot spot!  No more pressure please.
13 Take away the paper work and let nurses do the job they love and are good at doing.
14 Divide the tasks differently: senior staff doing breakfast and meds in one round takes longer and 

wastes their valuable time.
15 Improve the hospital environment on acute wards: give patients access to more gardens and green 

spaces.  Hospital wards are claustrophobic and oppressive.
16 In-source cleaners and reduce hospital infections.
17 Eliminating private participation 
18 More actual sharing (of specialist staff) and networking of key services.  Involvement of patients and 

public in decision-making.  Better quality buildings (e.g. DRI).  Reform of out-patients services - e.g. 
better use of local facilities, linked to the hospitals.  Intelligent use of GIRFT - with patient 
involvement.

19 Reversal of the privatisation of services
20 several answers - seeing in-patients more as people not just bodies                                                                                                                            
21 Reversal of the privatisation of services
22 A solution to the parking problem, particularly own-transport to A&E (on GP advice).

Page 252



61

23 Better funding, more staffing and better support for staff, better liaison with social care, less 
overcrowding so that winter pressures can be coped with, stop closing beds and services

24 Obviously a massive increase in capacity/funding; to reintroduce training bursaries better pay and 
shift arrangements for clinical staff; awareness and ability to take advantage of the changes and 
improvements to treatments brought about by new technology and governments prepared to invest 
in these and train personnel to make best use of them  to have ancillary staff who are employed in 
House and in permanent positions to increase the numbers of regular workers who are attached to 
wards, rather than workers who work to an outside private company with other priorities than 
patients comfort and service.

25 Stopping the reorganisations. Waste of money and resources.
26 "22.1.3 Public transport: I am very glad that you have highlighted this issue.  The ongoing 

concentration of services at the Northern General Hospital has led to increasingly high illegal levels of 
nitrogen dioxide in the streets around the hospital.  We have been monitoring this pollutant at three 
local sites on a monthly basis. This constitutes a health emergency for those of us living near the 
hospital, and is a particular threat to the health of local children.  It is also a health risk to those 
within the hospital and those travelling there. The irony of this situation of the hospital causing ill 
health is not wasted on us.  A number of local residents have formed the Burngreave Clean Air 
Campaign and have expressed our concerns on local TV, radio and the press.  There seems to be an 
unwillingness by various authorities to improve transport to within the hospital campus.  The current 
bus stops involve long and sometimes steep and dark walks, often along unsafe pedestrian routes, to 
the clinical areas of the hospital.  This poor public transport results in many staff, out patients and 
hospital visitors being forced to take cars or taxis, further increasing local pollution and congestion. 
The hospital is already at breaking point with the number of cars coming to the site. There is a rolling 
out of low emission buses by local bus companies which would make this an opportune time to allow 
regular services from the city centre/Hillsborough and Firth Park through the hospital grounds to the 
central buildings.  In the longer term, we share the hospital’s view that the extension of the 
Supertram to the hospital would solve some of these problems and would help reduce local levels of 
pollution.  The hospital authorities claim that there is a courtesy bus within the hospital but this is 
infrequent and does not connect with local bus stops. The inter hospital (RHH/NGH) link does not 
connect with other transport hubs or centres of population.  The Burngreave Clean Air Campaign 
would be pleased to cooperate with you in working on these issues to the benefit of those using and 
working at the hospital and local residents alike.  [name and email address supplied]

27 More beds wards & staff 
28 targeted increased resources to restore service levels
29 more investment of staff and properties and the removal of private firms
30 Staff are over stretched. The "good service” provided is because they work over and beyond their 

contracts - which puts pressure on them and their health 
31 Stop wasting money on buying in services that could be provided by the NHS
32 Re-open the A&E at the Royal Hallamshire AND open a MIU at the Northern General. A city of 

600,000 population plus outlying communities needs more than just one northerly located facility.
33 Stop giving over beds to private facilities within NHS hospitals."
34 more staff
35 different specialisms need to be better at talking to each other, rather than just saying “nothing to do 

with us – see your GP” when it was more than 1 problem caused by the anaesthetic
36 Meeting an elderly female patient who was on the same ward as my mother who had been there for 

12 months, as there wasn’t anyone to care for her at home and there wasn’t any social care facilities 
for her

37 1 nurse able to administer a particular treatment for over 7 wards.  Grossly under supported.

Page 253



62

38 No cuts
39 Commitment to staff recruitment and retention
40 Do outpatients need to be at the hospital?
41 Easier access to hospitals and cheaper parking
42 Nurses doing their best under extreme underfunding and lack of support

What do you think about A&E Services?

1 Keep Minor Injuries at RHH. Closing it = madness.
2 Sae our Minor Injuries Unit at the Hallamshire where we can get to it.
3 A must.  Minor injuries clinic. Keep it open!
4 Any changes should be evidenced based.
5 Our Children’s A+E is a lifesaver – please let us keep it!
6 They should not be cut
7 Needs a proper 'front-end', sifting out and dealing with in some other way, of people who should not 

be in A&E in the first place.  Also, 24/7 service for genuine emergencies.  Proper arrangement 
between YAS and EMAS - Bassetlaw gets a poor service from EMAS.

8 Waiting times at A&E are too long
9 Waiting times at A&E are too long
10 Excellent, apart from the transport problem.
11 Agree with proper minor injuries support in appropriate locations - especially in Sheffield
12 Once again it’s a question of capacity. There is no slack in the provision, which means that in the case 

of an emergency that affects significant numbers the services would be under extreme pressure. This 
is not satisfactory for patients or workers.  There are also known times when numbers increase 
dramatically and it should be possible to manage these more effectively. Walk in clinics and minor 
injury units play a crucial part ~ but they are (or have) disappearing. the problem often is that 
because some people have difficulty accessing health centres or GPs so everything becomes an 
Emergency  

13 No experience
14 NGH A&E needs better public transport access.
15 Should have more staff, equipment & beds
16 DO NOT CHANGE
17 Essential that these are strengthened to improve the service given as more and more people have 

need of them
18 Yes to all services remaining 
19 A&E services are just about adequate, but would be better if there were 2 UTC locations in Sheffield 

(i.e. A&E plus MIU plus Out-Of-Hours GP at BOTH Northern General and Royal Hallamshire.
20 should all remain where they are to treat the patients that use them
21 Sheffield cannot afford to lose Walk In Centre – services at NGH not adequate to cope.
22 Minor Injuries Unit Excellent service when I broke my wrist (2017).  MUCH better than queuing in A+E 

at NGH.  It should stay open to enable A+E to deal with serious illness and injuries.

What do you think about maternity services and proposals?

1 Ethnic minority women and cultural issues.  Listen to what women are saying.  Respect birth plans.
2 More midwives.
3 Get Tory thieving hands off!!
4 ‘Home choice’ is not a choice.  Deliver a baby in a safe environment. i.e. hospital is better and the 

reason why we have a low death rate.  In case of sudden emergency, home is a bad idea.
5 No the resources are not there this is just a way to let in private providers

Page 254



63

6 Seems sensible - but have we got enough midwives?
7 Not sure as maternity is not relevant to me personally
8 Good idea, though the facilities at HH are lovely
9 Not sure as maternity is not relevant to me personally
10 I don't know.
11 Although women may be classed as low risk things can change during labour.  It's bad enough with 

current arrangements where senior and expert help may be delayed.  It will be much worse if midwife 
levels remains low, if midwives are subjected to tick box procedures and if units are closed.  MLUs 
should only be instituted when there are adequate levels of trained and experienced midwives and 
medical advice and assistance are quickly available if necessary.

12 I have been very disappointed that some of the specialist services that supported young and possibly 
single mothers, have closed. These were crucial in their ability to support individuals and also to refer 
or signpost them on to other services where young parents can find longer term personal support 

13 Excellent
14 Our mat services are fine as they are. Leave them alone. 
15 "Choice" = code for privatisation
16 The MLUs should be in addition to existing services which also need to be improved
17 No current knowledge 
18 Encouraging less use of hospitals / maternity units and more home births is NOT "increasing choice 

for women". It is a deeply irresponsible path to take, and surely just a cover for reducing maternity 
beds across the region, when capacity is already overstretched (Barnsley closed its doors only last 
week, and has frequently reported women giving birth in inappropriate circumstances).

19 Not much knowledge on these services so would go with those in the know.   It may be that all are 
useful in the right place and at the right time

What do you think about Services for Acutely Ill Children?

1 ‘More care for children at home/in community’.  Translation.  This means more parents looking after 
sick children.

2 ‘Explore focusing 24/7 paediatric units on few sites.’  This means further away from families.
3 Children’s ward @ Bassetlaw!  Now moving ill children to Doncaster as no overnight facilities!  JUST 

WRONG!
4 No disagree with proposal
5 Sounds unconvincing.  Has a proper review actually happened?
6 It sounds like a cop out and less care overall
7 agreed
8 It sounds like a cop out and less care overall
9 In the community' can mean almost anything.
10 Nobody wants their children to be in hospital but I feel this proposal is driven by staffing issues and 

cost issues, not by need. There is a real risk of overcrowding specialist facilities if IP units close.  
11 Sheffield Children’s Hospital has a fine reputation locally ~ people tend to trust them. Whilst the case 

for more community services is a good, we mustn’t assume it’s a cheap one. So once again how these 
are funded and whether they are then classed as ‘social care’ responsibilities is critical to their 
success. We cannot see the problems associated with the elderly replicated within children's health 
needs  

12 Sheffield Children's Hospital wonderful
13 They should be treated in their own local hospital whenever possible
14 Why proposals - should not need to be asked, just done!

Page 255



64

15 I support increases of services in the community, short stay units and long stay units. We need to 
excel in all areas

16 Let's see the expansion demonstrate its effectiveness before removing in-patient beds 
17 I don't think we can lose any hospital provision and retain patient safety.
18 Short stay units is a good idea as are community but would not like to see a reduction in the number 

of inpatient beds.  This would not alleviate the issues as more children are being treated as inpatient 
because of their complex needs

What do you think about Stroke Services?

1 There should be a drive to staff these services in every day
2 Much of this depends on good and fast diagnosis; and provision of good rehab services locally.  Have 

they looked at the whole pathway?  And do we have enough vascular nurses to help with the rehab 
locally?

3 I am worried that the acute stroke unit in Rotherham looks like closing. Stroke victims need to be 
seen as soon as possible, not transported miles to Sheffield or Doncaster. Irreversible brain damage is 
more likely with delays.

4 n/a
5 I am worried that the acute stroke unit in Rotherham looks like closing. Stroke victims need to be 

seen as soon as possible, not transported miles to Sheffield or Doncaster. Irreversible brain damage is 
more likely with delays.

6 What exactly is the 'standardised approach'. Discharge should be timely and patient-appropriate, not 
'early' (too early?).

7 Centralising Hyperacute stroke unit services makes sense but acute stroke units must not be blighted.  
Consultant presence and support is important at these sites as well.  If acute stroke units fail, then 
the hyperacute service will get blocked up and people will spend longer further away from home with 
all the difficulties that causes.

8 I’m always suspicious of anything labelled ‘standardised’, it has to be responsive to local conditions. 
Having said that there have been significant advance in understanding and responses to Strokes, and 
certainly these need to be ‘standard’ in every area.  If paramedics can receive the appropriate 
training so treatment can be given with as little delay as possible , this has to be a good thing 

9 excellent
10 Hyper Acute should not be centralised, they should remain local. I disagree with early discharge. It is 

a cost cutting exercise & I don’t know what you mean by 'support services on... Acute Stroke Unit'. Do 
you mean there will be no doctors? If so, I disagree. 

11 personal experience was of a lacklustre service under pressure
12 Sounds sensible
13 No current knowledge 
14 Stroke patients and their families should be absolutely ready for discharge, never pushed or hurried 

into it. DO NOT CLOSE the HASUs at Barnsley or Rotherham: lives and post-stroke quality of life will 
be risked.

15 all units should give the best, specialist treatment possible to enable quicker recovery times

What do you think about Gastroenterology Services?

1 Which sites?  Is this a review or half a review?
2 Not sure. It may be ok
3 n/a
4 Not sure. It may be ok

Page 256



65

5 How will the public know which hospital to go to? Will this result in relying on the 999 service to 
know?  Will patients always be discharged by ambulance? What arrangements have been made for 
inter-hospital transport (for visitors)? Has the proposed inter-hospital bus service been implemented? 

6 Seems fair enough if gastroenterologists are happy with it and can staff it.
7 I am unsure of the reasons for or practicality of this
8 no experience
9 Keep them local. 
10 n / a 
11 We should extend the availability of emergency services to all A&E departments
12 No current knowledge 
13 All hospitals with A&E departments should be treating emergency GI cases. Reducing provision in any 

location risks patient safety. It is a faulty mentality to be referring to "out of hours" in relation to any 
kind of emergency; provision should be consistently available at all 7 hospitals.

14 not sure how this differs from current but think at least 1 in each area

What do you think about creating a Health and Care Institute?

1 What is this?
2 Yes, but this will take 10 years to impact on workforce shortages.  There needs to be actions on 

workforce that impact quicker than that.
3 It could be a good idea but I don't know enough about it
4 Good
5 It could be a good idea but I don't know enough about it
6 What is it? Is it public and within the NHS? What would it do? Who would fund it?
7 Money should only be spent on this if it offers a genuine step forward and is welcome by those 

already providing workforce training
8 Sounds like a good plan. However my recent experience in setting up an institute in a professional 

workforce is that although everyone says great, employers say excellent idea, the only people who 
will pay for it will workers themselves. It could be the neoliberal answer to Unions, and  it is hard to 
see an institute being able or willing to mount the challenge to government that  has been seen over 
the last few years 

9 NO MORE REORGANISING!
10 The workforce have been kicked around for years, underpaid and pushed to the limits.  You must 

reduce staff stress which causes massive amounts of sickness and loss of valuable and experienced 
staff.  It also leads people to retire at the earliest opportunity.  For example, dear person reading this, 
when would you like to retire? Point proved! Never mind bursaries, student nurses should be paid like 
they used to be.  I worked on a ward where the majority of the nursing staff were mature entrants.  
How can these people get in now?  In my NHS years 1972- 2000, I didn't know of one person being 
sacked but 2000- 2013, I saw dozens being sacked. A little more human understanding would reduce 
a climate of management intimidation. Please don't bleat about staffing issues unless you are 
prepared to treat your workers properly.

11 I have no idea what this is but no doubt it will involve private companies so I am against it
12 Stop sabotaging the NHS at a structural level designed for privatisation
13 Keen that it supplements existing services
14 Yes
15 Only if it does not divert money from NHS services or Social Care provision. Underfunding is now so 

severe, and money is wasted in costly private contracts - we simply can't afford to lose another 
penny. There are already very strong links with the universities in Sheffield; can this be extended to 
encompass the SY&B region more effectively?

Page 257



66

16 Quite a good idea.  

What do you think about creating an Innovation Hub?

1 Should not duplicate stuff elsewhere bad not from clinical resourced
2 good idea, but every hospital should also practice innovation as part of their job too.
3 Again, it sounds like a good idea
4 Good
5 Another one? What is wrong with the existing one?  What influence/pressure would it have on 

persuading consultants, GPs and CCGs to accept any new innovations?
6 I'd rather see money spent on getting our existing services right than on developments which may 

only have small effects despite costing quite a lot to develop. Not convinced by the claimed outcomes 
of the Perfect Pathway testbed

7 Sounds like a plan~ obviously publically funded and nit left to ‘the market’ that will sell new 
technologies and innovation to highest bidder 

8 NOT NEEDED
9 What the Dickens is that? 
10 not with power and resources - not the current sham
11 It should supplement existing services
12 Yes please 
13 is this not already in place via HEE?

Do you have any more comments?

1 The review has involved only 20% of hospital services - we need to be saying more about the other 
80% too.  And there needs to be much more staff and public engagement.  The over-riding impression 
of the review is it is primarily about cutting costs.  May be necessary, but we need to be more open 
and honest about the impact on the quality of services.

2 No more privatisation and reverse it. No Accountable Care Organisation (Integrated Care Systems) as 
these are just back door privatisation.

3 No more privatisation and reverse it. No Accountable Care Organisation (Integrated Care Systems) as 
these are just back door privatisation.

4 I'm worried by the review.  It hasn't come out with some of the recommendations I feared (e.g. new 
closures) but it is not really clear how problems will be solved.  I don't understand the specialist 
networks proposed for hospitals and how they will work or how each network established will affect 
work in hospitals providing the service but not leading.

5 ICS is the devil's child of that monster FYFV
6 Please put the hospital back in the local community, for staff recruitment and respect for local 

residents. Look after your own people too!
7 the nhs is being hollowed out so as to create space for privatisation
8 Need to target corporations to fund the health of their workforce
9 In Sheffield we have a lot to be very proud of in our hospital services. Let's protect it all and keep it 

working free, for all, with no downgrading of provision. Work as effectively as possible with 
community and volunteer groups to improve out-of-hospital care - I would prioritise this, and ensure 
that it is well integrated in a Health and Care Institute should that go ahead.

7.3.2 Response to the survey conducted by Save Our NHS

Page 258



67

The review thanks the respondent for collecting further patient feedback regarding the proposed changes to 
services. 

The Integrated Care System has been undertaking a survey of patient and the public views around the HSR 
recommendations. When the feedback is independently analysed for this work, we will include responses 
from your survey, which will ensure all the key themes from conversations with the public are taken into 
consideration.

 

Page 259



This page is intentionally left blank



South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire 
and North Derbyshire: Hospital Services 
Programme 

Strategic Outline Case Annex B:

Case for Change  

This annex provides an outline of the Case for Change using performance metrics from the most 
recently available data, an update of the original analysis performed by the Hospital Services Review. 
A more detailed review of the Case for Change can be found in the Hospital Services Review Stage 1B 
report:  

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_
Review_1b_report.pdf   

 

Page 261

https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_Review_1b_report.pdf
https://www.healthandcaretogethersyb.co.uk/application/files/9615/1809/8702/Hospital_Services_Review_1b_report.pdf


CONTENTS

1 Challenges with whole-system performance .................................................................................3

1.1 Performance against national standards................................................................................3

1.1.1 A&E Performance ...........................................................................................................3

1.1.2 18 Week Consultant-Led Referral to Treatment Target .................................................3

1.1.3 Cancer 62-Day Wait Target.............................................................................................4

1.2 CQC feedback..........................................................................................................................5

2 Analysing the 5 core services..........................................................................................................7

2.1 Workforce challenges .............................................................................................................7

2.2 Clinical variation .....................................................................................................................9

2.3 Innovation.............................................................................................................................10

Page 262



1 CHALLENGES WITH WHOLE-SYSTEM PERFORMANCE

1.1 PERFORMANCE AGAINST NATIONAL STANDARDS
Since the HSR’s initial assessment of performance, there continues to be variation in performance in 
some trusts. 

1.1.1 A&E Performance
The national standard requires 95 per cent of patients who attend Type 1 A&E to be discharged, 
admitted or transferred within four hours of arrival. 

In line with national trends, the hospitals in SYBMYND have struggled to meet this target for some 
time, with many not having achieved this target since Q2 2015/16. The graph below shows declining 
performance against this target across the trusts since 2015/161.

Figure 1: Per cent of Type 1 A&E attendances admitted, discharged or transferred within four hours of arrival, by trust

1.1.2 18 Week Consultant-Led Referral to Treatment Target
The NHS Constitution states that patients should wait no longer than 18 weeks from GP referral to 
treatment for consultant-led services. The national standard is for at least 92 per cent of patients to 
be seen within this time frame. As with A&E performance, hospitals across the country have been 
struggling to meet this.

Performance against this metric varies across the SYBMYND trusts, from 85.1 per cent in Q4 2017/18 
at Mid-Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust to 94.8 per cent at Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS FT. The 
below chart shows this2. 

1 NHS Statistics, A&E attendances and emergency admissions, 2015/16 – 2017/18
2 NHS Statistics, Consultant-led referral to treatment (RTT) waiting times, 2015/16 – 2017/18

Page 263



Figure 2: Per cent of referral to consultant-led treatment waiting times for incomplete pathways within 18 weeks, by trust

1.1.3 Cancer 62-Day Wait Target
NHS guidelines stipulate a target of at least 85 per cent of patients waiting no longer than two 
months (62 days) from GP urgent referral to first definitive treatment for cancer. 

Performance in SYBMYND against this target again is varied, ranging from 78.8 per cent at Sheffield 
Teaching Hospitals NHS FT to 90.5 per cent at Barnsley Hospital NHS FT3.

Figure 3: Per cent of patients who start cancer treatment within 62 days following urgent GP referral, by trust

3 NHS Statistics, Cancer waiting times, 2015/16 – 2017/18

Page 264



1.2 CQC FEEDBACK
Several clinical services across the SYBMYND trusts are now less resilient to pressures. Shortages in 
key workforce are undermining the ability to provide consistently high quality care in every hospital.

The Care Quality Commission observed this in their latest inspections, and their findings for each 
service area and trust are summarised below4. The Care Quality Commission reports looks at each 
core service area within a hospital and provides a summary of its current position against 5 criteria, 
judging whether a service is safe, effective, caring, responsive and well-led. The scores from these 5 
criteria produce a score per service, and the scores per service feed into an overall hospital score. 

Three of the seven trusts in the SYBMYND footprint are rated overall as Requires Improvement. This 
is an improvement upon the previous position with Barnsley Hospital NHS FT having been 
reclassified as Good in March 2018. Within these trusts, seven out of 13 individual hospital sites are 
also classified as Required Improvement. With regards to the HSR core services, several sites are 
flagged as Requires Improvement in their urgent and emergency care, as well as maternity and 
gynaecology. 

4 Care Quality Commission

Page 265



Figure 4: CQC rating by site, service area and trust

Page 266



2 ANALYSING THE 5 CORE SERVICES

The Hospital Services Review focused on five core specialties, following a prioritisation exercise with 
the system. These services are:

 Urgent and Emergency Care
 Acute Paediatrics (Care of the Acutely Ill Child)
 Maternity
 Stroke
 Gastroenterology and Endoscopy

Five Clinical Working Groups, one for each of the core services, were convened and invited to take 
part in a series of workshops to identify the challenges in their service and ideate potential solutions: 

 Workshop 1 asked attendees to identify the main challenges facing their respective services;
 Workshop 2 asked attendees to identify possible solutions to the challenges;
 Workshop 3 asked attendees to reflect on whether the solutions suggested so far would 

meet the scale of the challenge; and if not, to consider more radical options;
 Workshop 4 brought together all the 5 CWGs in a shared session. The HSR team fed back the 

options which they had developed using the input from workshops 1-3. They shared an early 
draft of the recommendations for the HSR, with attendees being asked to comment on the 
proposed recommendations for their service;

 Workshop 5 was a short session shortly before the publication of the independent report, to 
give the CWGs early sight of the likely recommendations in the final Report.

Summary notes of workshops 1-4 were produced, capturing the key points, and were shared with 
staff in trusts. Members of the CWGs were asked to lead discussions on the key points that had 
emerged from the workshops, and to relay these views back to the CWGs at the beginning of the 
next meeting. 

Many of the key themes emerging from discussions were common across all of the CWGs. Themes 
which were mentioned in most or all of the groups included workforce, innovation and clinical 
variation. These three themes were selected as being three of the most frequently mentioned 
themes, and ones which the HSR was likely to be able to address. 

Other issues were raised during the sessions and these are outlined in the notes of the meetings 
published online (available via the links in section Error! Reference source not found..) Some of 
these, such as the increasing complexity and acuity of patients, were identified as very important 
across multiple specialties but were excluded from the HSR because they were outside the direct 
ability of the HSR to address them.

2.1 WORKFORCE CHALLENGES 
Workforce was the issue most frequently mentioned across all five of the Clinical Working Groups. 

Specific issues that were mentioned included:

 Difficulties with recruiting staff:  A number of different causes were cited, including national 
shortages; a failure to capitalise on those strengths that SYB does have in attracting 
applicants (such as the brand value of Sheffield Children’s Hospital); for nurses, the end of 

Page 267



the nursing bursary; for junior doctors, the requirement for junior doctors to apply to the 
wider Yorkshire and the Humber region which was thought to put applicants off. There were 
also specific issues that were believed to make particular services unattractive, such as the 
physically hard nature of stroke nursing, or the high pressure and long hours in A&E units.

 Difficulties with retaining staff: Causes identified included workloads, particularly in units 
which were heavily understaffed; working conditions (e.g. lack of car parking); limited access 
to flexible working or planned rotas. Clinicians flagged that attrition rates amongst junior 
doctors can be particularly high, as high as 40 per cent for specialist trainees in obstetrics.

 Retirement: Upcoming retirement of large numbers of staff was flagged as a future 
challenge in particular areas of the workforce. Over 30 per cent of midwives are over 50, 
implying that over the coming decade a large number will retire, leaving significant gaps in 
the workforce should recruitment not be increased.

 Training and development: There was perceived to be significant variation in the breadth 
and scope of training received at different sites in SYB, leading to a variation in the relative 
attractiveness of each site as a workplace. Smaller DGHs are perceived to offer a less varied 
case mix of patients, limiting the exposure to complex cases; they also tend to offer fewer 
opportunities to participate in research. 

 Competition for workforce between sites: Variation in staff contracting arrangements 
between sites was reported, for example around pay and benefits, affecting the relative 
attractiveness of trusts as a workplace. This, compounded by an overall shortage of 
specialists in the system, was perceived to have led to competition for the same workforce 
between trusts, leading to escalating costs and grade inflation to attract talent. Such issues 
were reported both for substantive and locum positions. Competition between public and 
private sector organisations was also reported as an issue.

These difficulties were reported as affecting the majority of the grades, in most of the specialties, 
although the CWGs did identify a few professional groups, such as obstetricians, which were under 
less pressure. 

Following the CWGs, the HSR team undertook more detailed modelling of current and projected 
staff availability, and found that in general the empirical evidence supported the self-reported 
staffing issues.

The two tables below summarise the workforce challenge insights garnered from the engagement 
with CWGs and workforce data analysis. Note, due to data limitations, not all staffing groups and 
services were modelled.

Table 1: CWG observations on current and projected staff availability by service and staff type

Page 268



Table 2: Insights from quantitative modelling on current and projected workforce availability relative 
to forecast requirements by service and staff type.

2.2 CLINICAL VARIATION 
The Clinical Working Groups also raised concerns around clinical variation. This manifested itself in a 
number of different ways:

Page 269



 Variation in transfer protocols: CWGs raised concerns around the variation in transfer 
protocols, with no consistent, unified approach taken by trusts. There was a concern about 
lack of communication between trusts, which often led to lengthy waits for patients being 
transferred, with staff having to negotiate with receiving trusts on behalf of their patients. 
Clinicians expressed a desire for clear “rules of engagement” to align behaviours regarding 
patient transfers.

 Variation in clinical protocols: The adoption of different standards and clinical protocols at 
different trusts, and different approaches to implementing national guidance, has led to 
different patients receiving different care at different hospitals for the same condition. Each 
CWG flagged multiple conditions and pathways for which treatment protocols varied 
between trusts and Places. Variation in approaches taken also impedes the flexible working 
of staff across sites, given often significant differences in ways of working. 

 Variation in commissioning specifications: Clinicians raised concerns around certain 
conditions for which the commissioning specifications varied significantly. For example post-
acute rehabilitation services packages ranged from 3 to 12 months across SYBMYND. 
Available of pre- and post-natal support for mothers was also reported as being subject to 
variation across the region. This reinforced perceptions of a “postcode lottery” for certain 
services across the different Places in SYB.

 Variation in equipment: CWG attendees flagged the variation in medical devices and 
equipment found at different sites. For example, variation in endoscopy equipment between 
trusts limits clinicians’ ability to work across multiple sites with ease, as additional training is 
required for them to operate the different equipment found on each site. 

2.3 INNOVATION
A further theme was around innovation. Key points raised were:

 Incompatible information technology: CWGs raised concerns around the variation in 
electronic health record technologies. SystemOne, Rio, Lorenzo and Meditech are just some 
of the examples of software used across the region. In places there were different systems 
being used in different specialties in the same trust. Even where trusts were nominally on 
the same system, there was variation in the functionality and deployment of the same 
software packages. This amounts to barriers to the ease in patient record transfer and 
continuity of care, sometimes within the same hospital. Systems were also said to be 
different across secondary and primary care, again making shared working more difficult. 

 Outdated IT systems: As well as systems not being interoperable between sites, clinicians 
flagged that many systems were outdated, slow to use and were not fit-for-purpose, 
requiring updating or replacing.

 Slow adoption of new technologies across the region: CWG attendees flagged that best 
practice and innovation was not always shared across the SYB trusts. Opportunities for 
improvement were identified where innovations in one trust could usefully have been rolled 
out across others in the system, sharing learning and advancements; but this was rarely the 
case. 

Page 270



South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire 
and North Derbyshire: Hospital Services 
Programme 

Strategic Outline Case Annex C: 

Organisations Represented at the SYB ICS 
Collaborative Partnership Board
This annex lays out the organisations represented at the Collaborative Partnership Board which 
commissioned and oversaw the Health Services Review (HSR). 

Page 271



ORGANISATIONS REPRESENTED AT THE SYB ICS COLLABORATIVE 

PARTNERSHIP BOARD:
 NHS Barnsley Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council 

 NHS Bassetlaw Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Bassetlaw District Council 

 Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHS Foundation Trust 

 Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 

 NHS Doncaster Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Doncaster Metropolitan Borough Council 

 East Midlands Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

 NHS England 

 Nottinghamshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust 

 Nottinghamshire County Council 

 The Rotherham NHS Foundation Trust 

 NHS Rotherham Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Rotherham, Doncaster and South Humber NHS Foundation Trust 

 Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council 

 Sheffield Children’s NHS Foundation Trust 

 Sheffield City Council 

 NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group 

 Sheffield Health and Social Care NHS Foundation Trust 

 Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust

 Yorkshire Ambulance Service NHS Trust 

Page 272



OTHER STATUTORY ORGANISATIONS WITH WHOM THE REVIEW WORKS:
 Bolsover District Council

 Chesterfield Borough Council

 Derbyshire Community Health Services NHS Foundation Trust

 Derbyshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust

 Doncaster Children’s Services Trust 

 NHS Hardwick Clinical Commissioning Group

 The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals NHS Trust

 NHS North Derbyshire Clinical Commissioning Group

 North East Derbyshire District Council

 South West Yorkshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust 

 NHS Wakefield Clinical Commissioning Group

 Wakefield Metropolitan Borough Council 

Page 273



This page is intentionally left blank



South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, Mid Yorkshire 
and North Derbyshire: Hospital Services 
Programme 

Strategic Outline Case Annex D: 

Dates of CCG Governing Body and Trust Board 
Discussions on HSR, Post-Publication 
This annex lays out the dates of the meetings at which the Hospital Services Review 
recommendations were formally received and discussed by CCG Governing Bodies and Trust Boards. 

Page 275



DATES OF HOSPITAL TRUST BOARD AND CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 

GROUP GOVERNING BODY DISCUSSIONS ON HSR, POST-PUBLICATION

All dates 2018

ICS Collaborative Partnership Board 8 June

Bassetlaw CCG GB 12 June

Barnsley CCG GB 14 June

The Mid Yorkshire Hospitals Board 14 June

Doncaster CCG GB 21 June

Sheffield Children’s NHSFT  Board 26 June

Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHSFT Board 26 June

The Rotherham NHSFT Board 26 June

Doncaster & Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHSFT Board 26 June

Wakefield CCG GB 26 June

JCCCG (in public) 26 June

Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHSFT Board 27 June

Barnsley Hospital NHSFT Board 28 June

North Derbyshire CCG GB 28 June

ICS Hospital Committees in Common 2 July

Rotherham CCG GB 4 July

Sheffield CCG GB 5 July

ICS Executive Steering Group 17 July

JCCCG 25 July 

CPB FINAL AGREEMENT TBC

Note: “ICS” = Integrated Care System; “GB” = Governing Body; “CCG” = Clinical Commissioning 
Group; “JCCCG” = Joint Committee of Clinical Commissioning Groups; “NHSFT” = NHS 
Foundation Trust

Page 276



1

South Yorkshire and BassetlawIntegrated Care System 

Hospital Services Programme
Strategic Outline Case

Annex E: Addendum to HSR Financial Modelling

P
age 277



2

Changes to the financial analysis in the HSR

P
age 278



3

Changes to figures in the financial analysis: technical annex
In the last few days before publication of the Hospital Services Review, some Trusts provided the Review team with updated activity data. This supplemented the Reference Cost data which the Review team had used during the analysis as it was the most consistent source of publicly available data.

Owing to time constraints, the new activity data was used to inform the workforce analysis, but could not be used to update the financial and capacity analysis. 

For purposes of consistency the financial and capacity analysis was updated following publication to incorporate the new data. The revised activity data, and the changes to the numbers that this contributed to, are summarised in the following 2 slides.

The changes were marginal and did not alter the recommendations of the Review. 

Slides 6 onwards lay out an updated version of the Technical Annex including the revised activity data for all areas.

P
age 279



4

Clarification of changes 
Activity summary

The table below shows the
• Activity values, based on reference costs, that were used throughout the HSR analysis and which inform the finance and capacity modelling published in the HSR Final Report (blue columns)
• Revised activity values (green columns) that were supplied by three trusts shortly before publication. These were used to inform the workforce analysis in the Final Report, but owing to time constraints were not used to re-model the finance and capacity modelling at that stage.
• The changes can be seen to be marginal in most cases, with the greatest change relating to paediatrics activity at Rotherham hospital.

Activity figures used in finance/capacity modelling published 9th May Updated activity figures Activity figures used in finance/capacity modelling published 9th May Updated activity figures

Maternity activity Care of Acutely Ill  Child  activity
BH 2,949 3,012 3,134 3,217 

DON 3,391 3,391 4,277 4,277 
BAS 1,507 1,507 1,493 1,493 
MON
SCH 10,043 10,043 
STH 6,745 6,924 
RH 2,562 2,678 2,089 3,833 
CRH 2,845 2,845 4,838 4,838
Total 19,999 20,357 25,874 27,701

P
age 280



5

Financial impact
Following publication of the HSR Final Report, the HSR team has, for purposes of consistency, re-run the financial analysis (and the capacity analysis that sits behind it) based on the new activity figures. 
The updates have had limited impact. The majority of costs changed by no more than £300,000 from previous estimates, with the greatest impact being an increase of c.£1m in the upper range of certain scenarios. As a result, the changed financial data did not affect on the recommendations put forward by the HSR.

Absolute change from figures published on the 9th of May UEC Care of the acutely ill child Maternity Gastroenterology and endoscopy
Option 1(1 site fewer)

Current out-of-hospital plans £0.1m to £0.1m £0.1m to £0.1m £0.1m to £0.7m £0.0m to £0.0m
More ambitious out-of-hospital plans £0.0m to £0.9m £0.0m to £0.0m £0.0m to £1.3m £0.0m to £0.0m

Option 2(2 sites fewer)
Current out-of-hospital plans £0.0m to £0.2m £0.1m to £0.7m £0.1m to £0.6m £0.0m to £0.0m
More ambitious out-of-hospital plans £0.0m to £0.8m £0.0m to £1.1m £0.0m to £1.4m £0.0m to £0.0m

Option 3(3 sites fewer)
Current out-of-hospital plans £0.1m to £0.1m £0.7m to £0.4m £0.3m to £0.6m £0.0m to £0m
More ambitious out-of-hospital plans £0.0m to £0.2m £0.3m to £1.1m £0.1m to £1.3m £0.0m to £0.0m

P
age 281



6

Updated version of the 
Technical annex: financial analysis
for the Hospital Services Review

P
age 282



7

Contents

• Executive Summary
• Introduction
• Our approach to the analysis
• Scope and limitations
• Findings
• Next steps

P
age 283



8

Executive Summary

P
age 284



9

Executive Summary (1/5)
Introduction 

South Yorkshire, Bassetlaw, and North Derbyshire (SYB(ND)) is facing significant sustainability problems which are laid out in the Hospital Service Review’s (HSR) Stage 1A, Stage 1B and Stage 2 reports. 

A number of reconfiguration scenarios have been modelled that consolidate senior consultant presence and middle grade doctors onto fewer sites in order to increase quality and consistency of care through meeting the Royal College guidelines. Each option has been assessed against the HSR’s five evaluation criteria, and this report focusses on the workforce and affordability aspects of this evaluation. 

A number of transformational solutions have been proposed by the HSR to tackle workforce challenges, reduce unwarranted clinical variation and solve the problems of tomorrow through innovation. The HSR has not modelled the financial impact of these transformational solutions, in order to avoid the risk of double counting with provider cost improvement programmes (CIPs) and commissioner QIPP schemes. 

Despite these solutions, with growing workforce shortages and constrained resources, all five advisory Clinical Working Groups took the view that it is not possible to continue to provide all the services that are currently provided, on all the sites that currently provide them. In some areas, the scale of the challenge is so great that the HSR team do not consider that they can be met by transformation alone (e.g. solely through new workforce models)

The analysis was undertaken at a high-level, with workforce, activity, capacity and financial modelling targeted at providing greater clarity around the cost and benefits related to the different configuration scenarios. Six scenarios have been modelled, to test the impact of the removing the smallest and largest 1, 2 and 3 sites. 

P
age 285



10

Executive Summary (2/5)
Reconfiguration scenarios 

The reconfiguration scenarios we have looked at include the following:Stroke options were not modelled, in the context of an ongoing challenge to the hyper-acute stroke unit (HASU) business case. 
. 

6 CLUs + 2 AMLUs + Home births service
6 CLUs + 2 AMLUs + Home births service

5 CLUs + 5 AMLUs + 1 SMLU + Home births service
5 CLUs + 5 AMLUs + 1 SMLU + Home births service

4 CLUs + 4 AMLUs + 2 SMLUs + Home births service
4 CLUs + 4 AMLUs + 2 SMLUs + Home births service

3 CLUs + 3 AMLUs + 3 SMLUs + Home births service
3 CLUs + 3 AMLUs + 3 SMLUs + Home births service

Care of the acutely ill child Care of the acutely ill child 
6 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part time SSPAUs
6 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part time SSPAUs

5 IP Units + 5 24/7 SSPAUs + 1 part-time SSPAU
5 IP Units + 5 24/7 SSPAUs + 1 part-time SSPAU

4 IP Units + 4 24/7 SSPAUs + 2 part-time SSPAUs
4 IP Units + 4 24/7 SSPAUs + 2 part-time SSPAUs

MaternityMaternity

6 Emergency Departments + 7 MIUs (or equivalent) 

6 Emergency Departments + 7 MIUs (or equivalent) 
5 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
5 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

4 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
4 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

3 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
3 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

Gastroenterology and endoscopyGastroenterology and endoscopy 5 independent Out-of-Hours (OOH) rota5 independent Out-of-Hours (OOH) rota
4 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
4 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

3 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
3 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

2 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
2 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

Urgent and emergency careUrgent and emergency care

Option 0 – status quo Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

3 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part-time SSPAUs
3 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part-time SSPAUs

 Scenarios definition
• In order to assess the range of potential impacts resulting from the configuration scenarios, site specific scenarios were required (i.e. defined activity shifts from one site to another). 
• Given that the analysis is meant to be non-site specific, these site specific scenarios were developed by the HSR using high-level rules based on service size (defined by level of activity). 
• While the scenarios used data from actual sites (the smallest and largest units in the system for each service) in order to generate a realistic range of potential impacts, data from these sites are used for illustrative purposes and do not imply that any specific sites are being considered for reconfiguration. 

Inte
rdep

end
entP

age 286



11

Executive Summary (3/5)
The capacity challenge
There are currently c.5,198 beds in the system with an average bed occupancy rate of 89%. The STP’s current assumptions around the impact of out-of-hospital schemes means that additional capacity would be required in five years time to meet growing levels of demand. To avoid this, while achieving an average bed occupancy of 85% and freeing up some space to allow for potential services changes, the HSR has considered the potential impact of more ambitious out-of-hospital schemes.

The workforce challenge
• For three of the services considered by the HSR – urgent and emergency care, care of the acutely ill child, and maternity – high-level workforce analysis was undertaken to inform the overall cost-benefit assessment.
• Based on the information returned from the trusts, the system has spent c.£17m on temporary staff (including bank and agency) in the previous year, and many trusts are not meeting the suggested staffing levels outlined by Royal College guidelines. 
• Expected growth in workforce based on numbers supplied by Health Education England (HEE) will help trusts to reduce reliance on temporary staff and support trusts in bridging the gap with Royal College Guidelines where these are not currently met. However in some cases this is not sufficient to bridge the gap.

Urgent and Emergency Care
A very small investment in ED consultants would be required to meet the Royal College guidelines under the status quo option, although we recognise these are aspirational in nature. 
A gap in Middle Grade doctors persists, and would need to be rectified by alternative workforce models.

c. 5,198 beds
89% occupancy

Growing demand

Maternity
Further work is required to understand the direct clinical care PAs in addition to those covering the delivery suite across each DGH. Three scenarios have been considered in this analysis for units between 2500-4000 deliveries per year, depending on the specific specialties covered by the unit. which show that consultant numbers are projected to be sufficient to staff 6 units with lower levels of consultant presence. 
Should commissioners wish to move units up to a minimum of 98 hours of consultant presence to reflect the high levels of complex births in SYB(ND)’s population, this could be achieved by converting two obstetric units into Standalone Midwifery Led Units.

An investment in midwives is required in order to meet Royal College guidelines around the ratio of midwives to births.
There are important interdependencies between maternity and paediatrics, and neonatology. Therefore solutions for maternity and paediatrics will need to be considered jointly.

Care of the acutely ill child
An investment in paediatric consultants would be required to meet the Royal College guidelines under the status quo option. 

Converting up to two inpatient sites into Short Stay Paediatric Assessment Units (SSPAUs) would enable SYB(ND) to better meet the consultant requirements. Commissioners may wish to consider changing 24/7 SSPAUs to part-time SSPAUs to further reduce the consultant requirement.  

c. £17M
Temporary staffing costs

P
age 287



12

Executive Summary (4/5)

The analysis was not prepared at business case level at this stage; and does not constitute level of detail that would be required for consultation. As such further refinements and analysis will be needed to inform the final decision on a proposed option for each of the services under consideration. 

Due to the limited spare capacity estimated to be available in the system in 2021/22, most configuration scenarios would require additional investment to be undertaken. This investment is in the form of capital for additional new build beds or refurbished beds. 
This could be partially offset by assuming a greater impact of out-of-hospital schemes, which would free up capacity at existing sites and reduce the requirement for additional beds.
When reconfiguration occurs from a small ‘donor’ site to a ‘receiving’ site with spare capacity, the overall capacity change and associated capital investment is low.

Capital costs of replacing an ED with a GP-led UTC can become very large. This is because a significant amount of non elective activity can no longer be treated on the site and has to be moved elsewhere. Removing consultant led services at the ED significantly reduces the services that a site can provide. However, better use of primary care onsite (through the UTCs) and the expected impact of out of hospital schemes can help to prevent unnecessary A&E attendances and admissions. 
Small workforce savings are possible with the replacement of two small EDs (due to fewer ED doctors being required), however, Commissioners may wish to consider if these are sufficiently large to warrant significant disruption for staff and the public. UTCs on all sites will also reduce the ED workforce requirement, notwithstanding that more GPs would be required. 

Capital costs depend on the size of the ‘donor’ site and the spare capacity of the ‘receiving’ site. For example, if one site is running below 85% bed utilisation, capital costs are lower in scenarios involving transferring activity to this site. 
Some capital investment is required across all options and this should be seen in the context of meeting the Royal College guidelines around safer staffing levels. Capital would also need to be found to expand neonatology on the receiving site.
Workforce savings may not be possible given there is a consultant gap currently, however consultant locum usage may be mitigated as the IP units across the system are consolidated. However, Health Education England anticipates a reduction in the number of other medical grades.

Capital costs can be significant. At present there is little spare capacity across SYB(ND) in maternity, which creates the requirement to build additional capacity upon reconfiguration. 
Greater levels of out-of-hospital shift could create additional capacity, however, this spare capacity would need to be refurbished. In addition, capital would need to be found to expand neonatology on the receiving site, which is expensive.

 Capital investment should be seen in the context of achieving greater levels of consultant presence for the high risk births across SYB(ND).
 Workforce savings may not be possible given an apparent gap in midwives.

Urgent and emergency care Care of the acutely ill child Maternity

Next Steps

Financial Impacts

P
age 288



13

Executive Summary (5/5)
Recommendations

The below recommendations have been developed through the careful consideration across all the HSR’s evaluation criteria (workforce, affordability, access, quality and interdependencies). Based on all these factors, the HSR recommends: 

Urgent and Emergency Care (Emergency Departments): 
• The HSR recommends maintaining all 6 consultant-led EDs with the proposition that these would be the front door to different ranges of services on different sites. 
• The sustainability of other medical grades should be supported through new and alternative workforce roles
• Commissioners should note this model needs to be supported by a strong and effective model for Urgent Treatment Centres and out-of-hospital care. 

02
01

03
04
05

Care of the acutely ill child:
• The HSR recommends further site-specific modelling to understand the implications of closing 1 or 2 inpatient paediatric units across SYB(ND), to meet the Royal College guidelines for consultant staffing. 
• Commissioners may wish to consider if the shortfall in consultant numbers could be mitigated to some degree by converting full-time SSPAUs into part-time SSPAUs on sites that have an inpatient unit. 

Maternity:
• The HSR considers that the current range of provision does not meet the aims of patient choice laid out in Better Births, nor does it account for the high degree of complex births for the population of SYB(ND). 
• The HSR recommends this is not an area where gaps in consultant numbers is driving reconfiguration, however, the HSR heard from clinicians that the pressure in some units of delivering high and medium risk births with only 60 hours of consultant presence was putting significant pressure on staff.
• Commissioners may wish to consider moving to a minimum of 98 hours of consultant presence, which would only become sustainable if 2 obstetric units were to convert to a midwifery-led unit across SYB(ND). 
• Further work is required to understand the impact of additional clinical care PAs not relating to the delivery suite across each DGH in SYB(ND). For example, PAs allocated to gynaecology and other non-delivery suite related obstetrics activity.
• There are important interdependencies between maternity, paediatrics, and neonatology. Therefore solutions for maternity and paediatrics will need to be considered jointly. In addition, capacity would need to be found to expand neonatology on the receiving site.

Stroke:
• No reconfiguration options have been proposed; it is believed that services can be made sustainable through shared working.

Gastroenterology and Endoscopy
• The HSR recommends consolidating services for urgent gastrointestinal bleeds out-of-hours onto a smaller number of sites, with elective endoscopy services maximised on each site where possible.

P
age 289



14

Introduction

P
age 290



15

Aims and objectives of the Hospital Services Review
The Hospital Services Review (HSR) has the following aims and objectives.

Define and agree a set of criteria for what constitutes ‘Sustainable Hospital Services’ for each Place and for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw, North Derbyshire and Mid Yorkshire
. 

Identify any services (or parts of services) that are unsustainable, short, medium and long-term including tertiary services delivered within and beyond the STP

Put forward future service delivery model or models which will deliver sustainable hospital services

Consider what the future role of a District General Hospital is in the context of the aspirations outlined in the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Sustainability and Transformation Plan (STP) and emergent models of sustainable service provision1 2 3 4

P
age 291



16

Rationale for the final choice of services

The services identified by the HSR are those which:
Are facing significant difficulties with workforce and / or quality of care.
Have a significant number of interdependencies: setting these services on a more sustainable footing will significantly help to improve the service as a whole.
Have a significant impact on the service as a whole.

The services chosen focus largely on the emergency, 24/7 services. The HSR team anticipate that the 
review will also consider how elective services might be located across the system in order to support any 

proposals in these services 

Urgent and 
Emergency Care 

(UEC)
Urgent and 

Emergency Care 
(UEC)

Care of the 
Acutely Ill Child 

Care of the 
Acutely Ill Child 

MaternityMaternity

Gastroenterology 
(Upper GI Bleed) 

and Elective 
endoscopy 

Gastroenterology 
(Upper GI Bleed) 

and Elective 
endoscopy 

StrokeStrokeP
age 292



17

3
Financial, workforce, activity, travel time and capacity modelling should be refined and undertaken to provide greater clarity around the cost and benefits of each site specific option.

Site specific  option analysis

After publication of the Report

HSR analysis
The analysis to support this review will be developed through 3 stages

High-level non site specific scenario analysis
Non site specific scenario analysis

1 2
We have undertaken high-level workforce and capacity modelling targeted at understanding the feasibility of ‘extreme’ scenarios to provide a range. The analysis is non site specific.

We have undertaken high-level financial, workforce activity and capacity modelling targeted at providing greater clarity around the cost and benefits related to the different scenarios. The analysis is presented in a non site specific way.

Early- to mid-February Mid-February to mid-April

We are here!

P
age 293



18

Our approach to the analysis

P
age 294



19

HSR analysis overview (1/4)

.

The purpose of the analysis is to inform a view of which reconfiguration options are most likely to address the scale of existing challenges

 The Hospital Services Review analysis was undertaken at a high-level, with financial, workforce, activity and capacity modelling targeted at providing greater clarity around the cost and benefits related to the different configuration scenarios. 

 The analysis is used to inform a view of which reconfiguration scenarios are most likely to mitigate the scale of the existing challenges. It seeks to enable the system to rule out scenarios at this stage rather than providing recommendations on a preferred way forward. 

P
age 295



20

HSR analysis overview (2/4)
Collecting and validating data 

Data request Sense-checking Quantitative 
analysis

Validation of 
workforce data

Validation of other 
specific data sets

 The following process was followed in terms of collecting and validating data:

 A data request on workforce, activity, service components and other key performance indicators was sent to all the trusts in  September 2017 and data was received throughout Q4 of 2017.

 A process of discussing and sense-checking the data as it was received was followed.

 The HSR used this data to quantitatively assess the service challenges and summarised findings in service-specific data packs which were circulated to all trusts for sign-off in December 2017. Where incomplete data was received from trusts, the HSR drew on publicly available 2016/17 Reference Costs data to supplement it. Reference Costs data was used for the capacity analysis.

 The trusts were asked to reconfirm workforce figures in February 2017 to ensure they were still valid and up to date. More detail was requested on the workforce split within the specialties (e.g. detailed assumptions around workforce split / time spent for e.g. obstetrics and gynaecology; and paediatrics and neonatology care).

 Further requests were made to trusts to validate specific areas of data:
• Service definitions in February 2018 (email sent on 20 February);
• Staff in post FTEs (email sent on 20 February); 
• Locum expenditure and FTEs in April 2018; and
• Staff in post and establishment FTEs, as well as activity in April/May 2018.

P
age 296



21

Discussions were held with clinical leads and clinicians in the system in March and April 2018 (following an email sent on 20 March) to discuss and refine assumptions used in the workforce analysis.

Key financial assumptions, for example the costs of capital, were discussed with Directors of Finance on 19 March and 11 April. 

Assumptions around workforce, e.g. the use of Royal College Guidelines, were discussed with the HSR Steering Group and the AOs / CEOs throughout January and February 2018.

Detailed data and assumptions pack sent to the steering group on 31st April and discussed individually with Medical Directors.

HSR analysis overview (3/4)
Validating the assumptions behind the modelling

The modelling is intended to be high level and non site specific. As such it is based on a number of assumptions, which are described in detail in this document.

These assumptions were discussed in the following forums:

P
age 297



22

The HSR has identified a range of services which are currently facing sustainability challenges. The Clinical Working Groups set out a range of reconfiguration scenarios that would potentially improve service sustainability by moving services between sites.
The aim of the analysis was to identify the maximum and minimum potential impact of any reconfiguration scenario for South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw. In order to do this realistically, the analysis used a set of rules to identify the largest and smallest sites in each service, and modelled the potential maximum and minimum impacts using scenarios and data from these sites. 

The use of this real data does not indicate that a site is being considered for reconfiguration. The modelling is illustrative and the data has been presented in a non site-specific way to show the maximum and minimum potential impacts. This is intended to allow the system and the public the opportunity to comment on the proposed approach before modelling is carried out for all the potential combinations of potential sites.
Site-specific modelling will need to be taken forward in the next stage of the work to understand the detailed implications of the different scenarios for all the possible combinations of SYB(ND) sites.

HSR analysis overview (4/4)
Key assumptions used in the HSR analysis

Activity shifts

Workforce

Capital

The purpose of the workforce analysis is to inform the cost-benefit analysis and provide an indication of the scale of the current workforce challenge, spend on locums, and potential gap in medical workforce in 5 years’ time based on HEE projections.
The analysis is based on Royal College standards for consultant numbers, acknowledging their aspirational nature, but using themto give an indication of how close a particular option takes the system to guidelines.

The modelling of capital costs is intended to give a range of smallest to largest impacts of any changes within the system. The analysis is based on activity shifts, on the basis of which bed requirements are estimated across sites.  As mentioned above, the results are presented in a non site specific way.
Capital requirements for interdependent services have been considered at a high-level. Capital expenditure for some of these might be higher than the general rule of thumb used.

P
age 298



23

Scope and limitations

P
age 299



24

Example

100% of 
service

This illustrative example is a high-level description of service 
relocation rules:
• The targeted sites are progressively identified based on 

size (i.e. smallest and largest). This is because size is one 
of the key drivers of reconfiguration impacts (such as 
capacity and economies of scale). As such, this enables 
the analysis to reflect the widest possible range of impacts 
on most metrics. 

• Each service moves individually, based on service size.
• For example, in the 1 site fewer scenario, the activity 

covered by the service is relocated to the nearest hospital 
within the system currently providing the same service, 
identified by the shortest drive time from the hospital site 
rather than patients’ homes. 

As described in the previous slide, data from the largest and smallest sites in the system, and those with the largest and smallest travel times, were used to create an illustrative range of the maximum and minimum potential impacts. The analysis is presented in a non site specific way and cannot be used to draw any conclusions about sites.
This is in order to give the public and stakeholders the opportunity to comment on the proposed approach before it is applied topotential sites. These discussions will occur in the period following April 2018.
For the purposes of this analysis, specific scenarios were developed by the HSR using a range of high-level rules based on size (defined as activity) and travel distance across different sites. This is described in more detail in the example below.

HSR analysis
The scenarios were developed by the HSR based on high level rules to provide a wide range of potential reconfiguration impacts

P
age 300



25

HSR analysis
The capacity and workforce analysis has been developed to identify how far the scenario meets the evaluation criterion of costing no more than the current system

Workforce

Capacity

Activity

Is the scenario likely 
to deliver workforce 
standards without 

increasing workforce 
costs?

Is additional 
capacity required to 

accommodate 
services? How much 

spare capacity is 
generated?

What is the scale of 
consolidation across 

the different 
scenarios?

Is the scenario cost-
neutral?

Finance

P
age 301



26

HSR analysis
There are limitations to this initial analysis that would need to be addressed in the next stage of modelling

Summary limitations
Data sources. To ensure consistency between trusts, the capacity and hence the financial analysis were developed using Reference Costs data rather than more detailed HES/SUS data. In the next stage of modelling we would ask trusts to complete all original data returns. For the workforce analysis, data on FTEs provided by trusts was used.
Information gaps. The analysis was developed using the information provided by the system. Gaps have been noted and addressed through assumptions which are clearly reported in the Appendices.
Scenario development. The scenarios were developed using simplistic rules to give an indication of the range of potential impact. As such, these will need to be revisited at an operational level of detail with real life costs when the reconfiguration scenarios and options are developed in the next stage of modelling.
Travel time and catchment areas. The analysis currently assumes that as a service is reconfigured, all activity moves to the site closest to the original service provider. This does not take into account that activity may go to different sites based on different patient travel times and patient choice. 
Quality Assurance and level of detail. Due to the high number of scenarios considered the analysis has currently been conducted at a relatively high-level. This has included engagement with clinical leads, Medical Directors and the Directors of Finance, and this will need to be revisited with more detailed engagement as the HSR conducts the next stage of site specific modelling. 
Interdependencies and flow backs. The analysis provides an initial account of the potential clinical interdependencies and additional changes that could be implemented to free up capacity. This would need to be revisited in further detail in the next stage of modelling. 

A more detailed description of the limitations related to the finance, workforce and capacity analysis, and the assumptions behind them, is provided in the Appendices. 
Notwithstanding the limitations above, the data is necessarily high level and represents in principle scenarios at this stage. However, it provides an indication of the potential workforce and capital implications to enable us to assess the relative impacts of the different options and advance to the next stage of identifying and modelling high level options. 

P
age 302



27

Findings

P
age 303



28

HSR analysis
Summary of HSR analysis

This rest of this section is structured as follows:
• Baseline 

o Capacity challenge
o Workforce challenge

• Reconfiguration impacts
o Scenario definition
o Workforce impacts
o Financial impacts

1

2

P
age 304



29

1. Baseline

P
age 305



30

Summary
1. Baseline

The capacity challenge
• There are currently c.5,198 beds in the system with an average bed occupancy rate of 89%. 
• The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw STP assumes that activity reductions of c.12% on average could be achieved by 2021/22 (STP plan assumption extended by one year) as a result of investing in out-of-hospital (OOH) schemes. This, alongside expected activity growth, would generate a capacity requirement of c. 5,364 beds in 21/22.
• However, because the current STP assumption on the impact of OOH schemes does not free up any capacity across the system, the HSR has considered the potential impact of more ambitious OOH schemes (working assumption of 24% activity reduction). 
• This would lead to a requirement of c.4,658 beds in 2021/22, with c.540 free beds compared to today. It should be noted that the system would need to consider the incremental transformation funding required to deliver these more ambitious schemes.

The workforce challenge
• For three of the services considered by the HSR – maternity, paediatrics (care of the acutely ill child) and UEC – high-level workforce analysis was undertaken to inform the overall cost-benefit assessment.
• Based on the information returned from the trusts, the system has spent c.£17m on temporary staff (including bank and agency) in the previous year, and many trusts are not meeting the suggested staffing levels outlined by Royal College guidelines. 
• Analysis across consultants, other medical grades, and registered midwives bands 5 and 6 was conducted to understand the gap between current FTEs in post and FTEs required to meet Royal College guidelines. This gap was 15% in urgent and emergency care, 17% in paediatrics and 18% in maternity across all grades.  

P
age 306



31

1.HSR analysis – capacity challenge
The system needs more ambitious out-of-hospital shifts to reduce the number of beds over the next five years

4,658
5,364

7066,070648
2255,198

0
1,000
2,000
3,000
4,000
5,000
6,000
7,000

 STP assumption of impact of OOH schemes
 Do nothing beds requirements in 2021/22

 Revised beds requirement in 2021/22 after OOH

 Other changes (e.g. LOS improvement)
 Activity growth

 Nu
mb

er 
of 

bed
s

 Estimated beds in the system  Additional beds required to achieve a 85% utilisation rate

 706

 Increased level of ambition for the OOH programme (doubling the STP assumption)

 Revised beds requirement in 2021/22 after stretch OOH

166 beds may be 
required in the future 

to accommodate 
demand 

Activity growth is assumed to be c.2.3% per 
year (Source: South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw 

STP plans)

Activity reductions of c.12% on 
average (“base-case OOH”). Note 

that some of these beds could be re-
provided in the community. (Source: 
SYB(ND) STP, extended by one year)

Average bed utilisation across 
the patch is c. 89% (Source: 
NHS Digital, Oct-Dec 2016-
17)

TBC

Source: HSR Analysis

There are currently c. 5198 beds in the system at an average bed utilisation of 89%. If no other changes were made apart fromactivity growth, to achieve a target utilisation of 85%, 6,070 beds would be required in 2021/22.  

Current STP(ND) estimates (extended by one year) for out-of-hospital schemes (c. 12% reduction) would reduce the number of beds to c. 5,364 beds in 5 years time. At the next stage of the analysis, the HSR will further consider the deliverability of the 12%, given evidence from other systems across the NHS.
The HSR has considered the impact of a more ambitious OOH impact (working assumption of 24% activity reduction). This would result in the system requiring c. 4,658 beds. 
Note that the system would need to consider the potential impact on transformation funding required to deliver these more ambitious schemes.

Given there appears to be no reduction 
in beds compared to the current 

number, a more ambitious (“stretch”) 
OOH scenario was applied (an 

additional 12% reduction assumed)

P
age 307



32

1. HSR analysis – workforce challenge
The services considered as part of the review are also facing workforce challenges

Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018. 
Notes: 2016/17 workforce data was collected from Trusts in September 2017. Some but not all Trusts subsequently updated their data with 2017/18 numbers. For locum FTEs 2017/18 data was used.
The FTE values above include consultants and other medical grades, and registered midwives bands 5 and 6. Other categories of staff not included. Maternity numbers are consistent with Scenario A, as described on the following slides.
Workforce analysis was conducted for Maternity, Paediatrics and UEC as reconfiguration on these services is more likely to yield direct workforce efficiencies. Reconfiguration for Stroke was not included in the context of the ongoing challenge to the HASU business case. Reconfiguration analysis for GI Bleeds services was not undertaken given the extremely low volumes of activity; and the fact that the major driver behind reconfiguration is to remove inequalities in access across SYB(ND) by ensuring that all patients can access emergency services overnight.
For further details on workings and assumptions refer to Appendix: Workforce data pack and assumptions. 

69
47

60
73

6462
75

 0

 40
 60

 20

 80  69

 Paediatrics

 55

 UEC

 -7%
 +26%

 +32%

 Maternity

 Guidelines staffing FTEs

 Staff in post FTEs
 Staff in post + temporary staff FTEs

For three of the services considered by the HSR – maternity, paediatrics (care of the acutely ill child) and UEC – workforce analysis has been undertaken. Current staff in post FTEs have been compared against Royal College Guidelines FTEs. Royal College Guidelines have been used as they represent good practice and as an indication of how close different options take the system to the guideline level, although in some cases clinicians have noted these are aspirational in nature. 
Based on the information returned from the trusts, the system has spent c. £17m on temporary staff (including bank and agency) in the past year. The equivalent number of FTEs was estimated to be c. 145, although in some cases this may be distorted by exceptionally high rates charged by some locums for some shifts.
FTE gap analysis between staff in post and FTEs required to meet Royal College Guidelines: Consultants and other medical grades, and registered midwives bands 5 and 6

121
95

124 134111127
183

 100

 0

 150
 200

 50

 -8% +33%

 Maternity Paediatrics

 101

 +48%

 151

 UEC

552

170
390

560 702

176
401

 800

 400
 600

 200
 0

 422

 +27%

 +4%
 +3%

 Maternity Paediatrics

 180

 UEC

Consultants Other medical grades Nurses/midwives Bands 5 and 6

P
age 308



33

2. Reconfiguration impacts

A. Scenario definition
B. Workforce
C. Financial impacts

P
age 309



34

2. Reconfiguration impacts

A. Scenario definitionP
age 310



35

Summary 
2. Workforce growth and reconfiguration scenarios

Scenarios definition
• The aim of the modelling is to present the maximum and minimum potential impacts resulting from the configuration scenarios (i.e. defined activity shifts from one site to another). 
• Given that we are presenting hypothetical options rather than site-specific analysis at this stage, data was used from the largest and smallest sites (defined on the basis of activity). For each service, trusts were ranked in terms of size and the scenarios considered the impact of shifting the smallest and largest service to provide an indicative range.
• As mentioned previously, while the scenarios had to use data from actual sites, they do not imply that those sites are being considered for reconfiguration. 

P
age 311



36

2.HSR analysis – reconfiguration scenarios 
Reconfiguration impacts have been estimated for a range of scenarios

The reconfiguration scenarios we have looked at include the following: Stroke options were not modelled, in the context of the ongoing challenge to the HASU business case. 

6 CLUs + 2 AMLUs + Home births service
6 CLUs + 2 AMLUs + Home births service

5 CLUs + 5 AMLUs + 1 SMLU + Home births service
5 CLUs + 5 AMLUs + 1 SMLU + Home births service

4 CLUs + 4 AMLUs + 2 SMLUs + Home births service
4 CLUs + 4 AMLUs + 2 SMLUs + Home births service

3 CLUs + 3 AMLUs + 3 SMLUs + Home births service
3 CLUs + 3 AMLUs + 3 SMLUs + Home births service

Care of the acutely ill child Care of the acutely ill child 
6 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part time SSPAUs
6 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part time SSPAUs

5 IP Units + 5 24/7 SSPAUs + 1 part-time SSPAU
5 IP Units + 5 24/7 SSPAUs + 1 part-time SSPAU

4 IP Units + 4 24/7 SSPAUs + 2 part-time SSPAUs
4 IP Units + 4 24/7 SSPAUs + 2 part-time SSPAUs

MaternityMaternity

6 Emergency Departments + 7 MIUs (or equivalent) 

6 Emergency Departments + 7 MIUs (or equivalent) 
5 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
5 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

4 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
4 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

3 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC
3 Emergency Departments + 7 UTC

Gastroenterology and endoscopyGastroenterology and endoscopy
5 independent Out-of-Hours (OOH) rota
5 independent Out-of-Hours (OOH) rota

4 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
4 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

3 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
3 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

2 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements
2 full OOH rotas & formal network arrangements

Urgent and emergency careUrgent and emergency care

Option 0 – status quo Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

3 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part-time SSPAUs
3 IP Units + 3 24/7 SSPAUs + 3 part-time SSPAUs

Inte
rdep

end
ent

P
age 312



37

2.HSR analysis – reconfiguration scenarios 
We have provided a range of reconfiguration impacts with the range being driven off the smallest and largest sites

1 site fewer - Small: activity from the site with the lowest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site. Consolidation results in one fewer site offering the element of the service in the system

1 site fewer - Large: activity from the site with the largest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site. Consolidation results in one fewer site offering element of the service in the system.

2 sites fewer - Small: activity from the two sites with the lowest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site(s). Consolidation results in two fewer sites offering the element of the service in the system. 

2 sites fewer - Large: activity from the two sites with the largest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site(s). Consolidation results in two fewer site offering the element of the service in the system. 

3 sites fewer - Small: activity from the three sites with the lowest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site(s). Consolidation results in three fewer sites offering the element of the service in the system

3 sites fewer - Large: activity from the three sites with the largest level of activity for the element of the service in question is moved to the nearest site(s). Consolidation results in three fewer sites offering the element of the service in the system. 

P
age 313



38

2. Reconfiguration impacts

B.  WorkforceP
age 314



39

Workforce Summary 
2. Reconfiguration impact

Care of the acutely ill child:
• Consultants: There are 47 consultant WTEs attributed to acute paediatrics now and this is anticipated to rise to 53 in 2021/2022. In order to meet Royal College guidelines an additional 10 WTEs are required under the status quo option. Converting services on two sites from inpatients to SSPAUs would enable SYB(ND) to better meet the consultant requirement; or alternatively, commissioners may wish to consider changing 24/7 SSPAUs to part-time SSPAUs to reduce the consultant requirement. 
• Other medical grades : Middle grade numbers have not been modelled in the same way, as no comparable Royal College guidelines could be found. 
• Nursing: Since nursing numbers are based on activity ratios; the consolidation of emergency departments does not affect the numbers of nurses, and has not been modelled. 

Maternity
• Consultants: There are 69 consultant obstetrician and gynaecologist WTEs in SYB(ND) and this is anticipated to rise to 72 in 2021/2022. Royal College guidelines suggest a range of possible standards depending on how services are designed; further work is needed, but we have looked at three scenarios. Under the lowest of these, we have sufficient consultant numbers to staff the current 60 hour units. 
• Should commissioners wish to move units up to a minimum of 98 hours of consultant presence to reflect the high levels of complex births in SYB(ND)’s population, then there would be a shortfall in consultant numbers. This could be offset through converting 2 obstetric units into SMLUs.
• Other medical grades: other medical grade numbers have not been modelled in the same way, as no comparable Royal College guidelines could be found.
• Nursing: There are 552 nurses at present across SYB(ND). Using the assumption of 1 midwife to 29 births, which was ratified through engagement with clinical leads, SYB(ND) would require an additional 150 band 5 and 6 midwives to meet Royal College guidelines. Since midwife numbers are based on activity ratios, and each option maintains midwifery-led care in each place; consolidation of obstetric-led care does not affect the numbers of midwives. 
• There are important interdependencies between maternity and paediatrics, and neonatology. Therefore solutions for maternity and paediatrics will need to be considered jointly.

UEC:
• Consultants: There are 60 consultant WTEs now and this is anticipated to rise to 70 in 2021/2022. Based on this growth, there appears to be a gap of 5 FTEs compared to the Royal College guidelines for emergency medicine under the status quo option.
• Other medical grades: There are 124 middle grade WTEs now and this is anticipated to decrease to 119 in 2021/2022. In order to meet the Royal College Guidelines in 2021/22 an additional 64 Middle Grade WTEs would be required; or new and alternative roles (e.g. PAs, ENP, ANPs) could reduce this gap. 
• Nursing: Since nursing numbers are based on activity ratios; the consolidation of emergency departments does not affect the numbers of nurses, and has not been modelled. 

P
age 315



40

1. HSR analysis – notes on HEE projections
Future growth in consultants could improve service sustainability if the expected decrease in other medical grades is mitigated effectively 

*Notes from HEE:These numbers have been formulated using the Forecast function in Excel and do not account for trainee supply currently in the system or the current demographics of current staff (i.e. age and expected retirements). Due to the limited numbers of staff in each area, estimates could be made more robust by having a greater sample.

There are a number of factors to consider when utilising HEE projections:*
• Comparison to establishment. Where growth rates suggest consultant numbers are above current establishment rates, the system 

would need to decide whether to hire the additional staff or maintain establishment rates. According to Health Education England
(HEE), consultant numbers could grow by 2021/22 (compared to current numbers) for all three services considered. This growth in 
consultant numbers could help reduce reliance on temporary staff and support trusts in bridging the gap with Royal College Guidelines 
where these are not currently met.

• Reduction in other medical grades. However, other medical grades FTEs are projected to decrease. This will increase either the 
gap to the Royal College Guidelines or reliance on locums for these roles. This could potentially be mitigated by  training / employing 
more ANPs or ENPs to fill the middle grade rota, or by substituting consultants or nurses to fill these roles where available.

• Configuration impact on nursing. The HSR has focussed closely on how nurse and midwife numbers can be supported. However, 
nurse numbers are linked to the absolute number of patients much more closely than consultants or other medical grades. Number of 
nurses needed would only be marginally impacted by the configuration scenarios and, as such, were not considered in this stage of 
quantitative analysis. Royal College guidelines around midwifery ratios have been analysed and are included in this report.

• Growth in nursing. The impact on nursing staff has not been estimated by HEE at this stage. If there are insufficient nurses in the 
future, this would make role substitution more of a challenge (e.g. there may be less ANPs/ENPs to assist with the middle grade rota).

• Retirement rates. HEE numbers do not include retirement rates. Therefore the estimated projections may be on the high side and 
should be treated with caution. 

Workforce growth estimates provided by HEE will factor in historic trends on retirement profiles; however, we have not included trust-
specific projections on retirement as these are difficult to predict given changes to the retirement age, and data was not available at trust 
and service level.
As the analysis becomes site-specific, and service models are further defined, workforce modelling will need to be updated regularly to 
respond and take into account flows into and out of the workforce. 

HEE projectionsHEE projections

P
age 316



41

2. HSR analysis – workforce growth
HEE is anticipating a growth across all services, with strong growth in UEC, and lower growth in maternity and paediatrics

According to Health Education England (HEE), consultant numbers could grow by 2021/22 for all three services considered. This
growth in consultant numbers could help reduce issues around the reliance on temporary staff and help trusts meet the Royal 
College Guidelines for consultants.
• For urgent and emergency care, this represents a 17% increase from the current base of 60 to 70 consultants in 2021/22. 
• For care of the acutely ill child, this represents a 12% increase from the current base of 47 to 53 consultants in 2021/22. 
• For maternity, this represents only a 4% increase from the current base of 69 to 72 consultants in 2021/22.  
However, some of the projected growth might be outweighed by retirement rates. The system will need to engage in more 
detailed profiling of the workforce and the scale of the retirement risk in the next stage. 

694760 725370
0

100

 Maternity Care of the acutely ill child UEC

 +12%  +4% +17%
 Future WTE Consultants 2021/22
 Current WTE Consultants

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. SCH FTEs not included in UEC analysis, as SCH is not part of UEC reconfiguration due to its specialised nature (paediatrics A&E). Trust / Staff Grade doctors, middle grade doctors and junior doctors are included in this middle grade category.

Consultant WTEs, by service, Current vs 2021/22

The same analysis for other medical grades suggests that the position will worsen across all services. Role substitution (e.g. 
consultants, nurses) could potentially mitigate this reduction in trainee grades. Another alternative could be to train or employ 
more ANPs or ENPs to address this.  

12195124 11692119 200
 100

 0

 -4%  -3%

 Care of the acutely ill child

 -4%

 UEC  Maternity

 Future WTE Middle Grades 2021/22
 Current WTE Middle GradesMiddle Grade WTEs, by service, Current vs 2021/22

P
age 317



42

3.HSR analysis – UEC 
Consultant numbers

Key findings:
There are 58 consultant WTEs now and this is anticipated to rise to 76 in 2021/2022. Based on this growth, there is a small gap of 5 consultant FTEs in order for all six emergency departments to meet the Royal College guidelines for emergency medicine under thestatus quo option. Given the guidelines are anticipated to be aspirational in nature, the HSR deems this gap sufficiently small to retain all 6 EDs. This analysis is based on two main assumptions:
1. That trusts in SYB(ND) are able to retain their consultant workforce through making SYB(ND) a more attractive place to work. Should retention continue to be a problem and consultant numbers subsequently decrease, further consolidation may have to be considered.
2. That the Urgent Treatment Centres reduce activity that flows into each Emergency Department, reducing the requirement for a greater number of Consultants in the Emergency Department. An assumption of 6 GPs per UTC has been made by the HSR at this stage. Whilst this has been included in the cost-benefit analysis, it is not shown on these slides. The future service model, which will be defined at the next stage of the analysis, will need to balance the workforce across GPs and ED consultants, given the difficulties in recruiting GPs, and taking into account growth in both workforces and the use of ENPs in the UTCs.

66
1660

475359
7570

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

 10

 -16%  -33% +7%

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (1)

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (3)

2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer Consultants required after reconfiguration (2)

 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 5

 Consultant complement 2021/22
 Gap to guidelines for consultants

Consultants in post FTEs  Consultants required to meet guidelines (status quo)

 -25%

 1 site fewer

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. SCH FTEs not included in UEC analysis, as SCH is not part of UEC reconfiguration due to its specialised nature (paediatrics A&E). 6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented

Consultant WTEs, UEC, Current vs 2021/22 vs Option 1, 2, 3
Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 318



43

3.HSR analysis – UEC 
Other medical grades numbers

118131144
183

119124 3964

0
50

100
150
200

 5

 +22%

 Other medical grades required after reconfiguration (3)

 Other medical grades in post FTEs
 Other medical grades complement 2021/22

 Other medical grades required after reconfiguration (2)

2 sites fewer

 13

 -1%

 Other medical grades required after reconfiguration (1)

 13

 Other medical grades required to meet guidelines

 1 site fewer Growth in other medical grades to 2021/22

 Gap to guidelines for other medical grades

 3 sites fewer

 +54%  +11%

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. SCH FTEs not included in UEC analysis, as SCH is not part of UEC reconfiguration due to its specialised nature (paediatrics A&E). Trust / Staff Grade doctors, middle grade doctors and junior doctors are included in this other medical grades category.6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented

Key findings:
There are 124 other medical grades WTEs now and if current trends continue this is anticipated to decrease to 119 in 2021/2022. These trends could be reversed by the workforce recommendations outlined in the HSR Report around workforce recruitment and retention. In order to meet the Royal College Guidelines in 2021/22 an additional 59 Middle Grade WTEs would be required. This gap in Middle Grade doctors is consistent with the clinical opinion in the UEC Clinical Working Group which cited the key issue around middle grade sustainability in particular. There two options to reduce this significant gap in other medical grades:
• Role substitution (for example, consultants or nurses) could partially mitigate this reduction in other medical grades. Another alternative could be to train or employ more Physician Associates, Advanced Nurse Practitioners or Emergency Nurse Practitioners to address this (for example the training of c. 20 ENPs could address a third of this gap, but this would risk creating a shortage in nurses in the absence of creating a truly incremental workforce). The CWGs recognised this alternative workforce could be used to provide support although time would be needed for the appropriate training. 
• If the above workforce solution does not go far enough, then SYB(ND) might need to consider the reconfiguration to two fewer Emergency Departments in the longer term to allow for the sustainable staffing of Middle Grade doctors. However this would be a significant step given the level of public concern that is likely, and the significant capital costs that would be involved, so the HSR does not recommend it. 
The challenges around other medical grades represent a long term sustainability challenge that must be addressed through making SYB(ND) an attractive place to work. Since nursing numbers are based on activity ratios; the consolidation of emergency departments does not affect the numbers of nurses, and has not been modelled. 
Other medical grades WTEs, UEC, Current vs 2021/22 vs Option 1, 2, 3

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 319



44

3.HSR analysis – workforce challenge
UEC locum expenditure could be mitigated in the future if the consultant workforce grows in line with HEE projections

Source: Based on HSR data returns, with assumptions where data was inconsistently filled in or not provided.Notes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. Locum expenditure is based on 2017/18 data provided by the Trusts in April 2018.

Projected consultant FTEs

Current consultant FTEs

7570
60

0
20
40
60
80

 Consultant FTEs required to meet guidelines
 Gap to guidelines for consultant FTEs

 Consultant FTEs in 2021/22 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 Current consultants FTEs in post

 5 10

7569
60

 30
 20
 10

 0

 70
 60
 50
 40

 80

 Locum consultants Current consultants FTEs in post

 6 9

 Gap to guidelines for consultant FTEs
 Consultants in post plus locum FTEs

 Consultant FTEs required to meet guidelines

• Currently the system spends c. £1.7m on 
consultant locums, equivalent to c. 9 FTEs.

• The agency premium rate appears to be c. 
20%. This has been calculated based on HSR 
data returns submitted in April 2018.

• In the future, if HEE projections materialise, 
the system will have 10 more consultants in 
post, however there would still be a gap to 
guidelines of c. 5 FTEs, which may need to be 
filled with locums if the system intends to 
meet the guidelines in full.

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 320



45

Key findings:
There are 47 consultant WTEs attributed to acute paediatrics now and this is anticipated to rise to 53 in 2021/2022. There is currently a 10 WTE shortfall against the number of consultants that would be required to meet Royal College guidelines under the status quo option. While the guidelines are aspirational, the HSR considers that they represent a sustainable workforce, and the system should aim to get closer to them. 
One way to reduce the number of consultants needed is to consolidate inpatient paediatric units (although as the size of units increase upon consolidation, so does the requirement for additional consultant presence on both larger inpatient units and co-located 24/7 SSPAUs.) 
Changing two or three inpatient units into SSPAUs would allow SYB(ND) to get closer to or meet the Royal College guidelines, and reduce the reliance on locum staff which is explored overleaf.  A further option would be to convert the 3 current 24/7 SSPAUs to part-time SSPAUs. This would reduce the overall consultant requirement across SYB(ND) by 4 consultant FTEs under the Status Quo option. 
Given the guidelines are aspirational in nature and the significant disruption that could be caused by converting 3 inpatient units into SSPAUs, the HSR recommends commissioners further explore the converting 1 or 2 inpatient units into SSPAUs in the site-specific stage of modelling. 
Other medical grades numbers have not been modelled in the same way, as no comparable Royal College guidelines could be found. Since nursing numbers are based on activity ratios; the consolidation of inpatient units does not affect the numbers of nurses, and has not been modelled.  

3.HSR analysis – Care of the acutely ill child 
Consultant numbers

48556162
5347 610

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

 3 sites fewer Consultants required after reconfiguration (2)

 2 sites fewer Consultants required after reconfiguration (1)

 2

 +18%  +15%  +3%  -8%

 6

 Consultants in post FTEs  Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

1 site fewer Consultant complement 2021/22
 Consultants required to meet guidelines (status quo)

 Gap to guidelines for consultants

 6

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (3)
Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. Staff WTEs exclude estimated time commitment for neonatology services, and are for acute paediatrics only. Only hospital sites with Level 1 Neonatology units have workforce that covers both the paediatrics and neonatology rotas. 6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented.

Consultant WTEs, Care of the Acutely Ill Child, Current vs Option 1, 2, 3
Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 321



46

3.HSR analysis – workforce challenge
Paediatrics locum expenditure could be partially mitigated in the future if the consultant workforce grows in line with HEE projections, however there may still be a need for locum consultants

Source: Based on HSR data returns, with assumptions where data was inconsistently filled in or not provided.Notes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. Locum expenditure is based on 2017/18 data provided by the Trusts in April 2018.

Projected consultant FTEs
62

5347

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

 6

 Current consultants FTEs in post

 10

 Consultant FTEs in 2021/22 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 Consultant FTEs required to meet guidelines
 Gap to guidelines for consultant FTEs

6255
47

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

 8

 Current consultants FTEs in post
 Locum consultants  Gap to guidelines for consultant FTEs

 7

 Consultants in post plus locum FTEs
 Consultant FTEs required to meet guidelines

• Currently the system spends c. £1.7m on 
consultant locums, equivalent to c. 8 FTEs.

• The agency premium rate appears to be c. 
29%. This has been calculated based on HSR 
data returns submitted in April 2018.

• In the future, if HEE projections materialise, 
the system will have 6 more consultants in 
post. However the growth in workforce does 
not appear sufficiently high to entirely 
mitigate the need for locums, if the system 
retains 6 inpatient sites. 

Current consultant FTEs
Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 322



47

3.HSR analysis – Maternity
Consultant numbers (1/3)

There are 69 consultant obstetrician and gynaecologist WTEs in SYB(ND) and this is anticipated to rise to 72 in 2021/2022. The HSR team has used RCOG 2009 Guidelines, The future workforce in obstetrics and gynaecology, to estimate the number of consultant WTEs that are required according to the size of unit (the guidelines are attached in the appendix). The HSR recognises these are aspirational in nature, so have been used as a target to understand the potential shortfall in consultants and how to potentially address this.
The RCOG guidelines allow of a wide range of consultant presence, depending on the specific specialties covered by the unit. TheHSR team have modelled three scenarios for units between 2500-4000 deliveries per year:Scenario A: a total of 8 consultants are required across obstetrics and gynaecology combined; andScenario B: 10 consultants are required. These two scenarios reflect the advice in the guidelines that each hospital should have a range of direct clinical care PAs in addition to those covering the delivery suite (that is, for maternal and foetal medicine, antenatal clinic, gynaecology theatre or outpatient clinics). Further analysis would need to be undertaken in the next stage of the HSR to understand the relative requirements across the trusts in SYB(ND). Scenario C: involves all units that are currently operating at 60 hours of consultant presence increase to 98 hours of consultant presence to account for the high levels of medium or high complex births across the SYB(ND) population.  
In order to meet Royal College guidelines an additional 0.3 WTEs would be required under the status quo option for Scenario Band a decrease in 7.7 WTEs for Scenario A. Under both scenarios, consultant numbers does not appear to be driving the need for reconfiguration although further work is required to test the appropriate number of direct clinical care PAs that are required in addition to the delivery suite (that is, for maternal and foetal medicine, antenatal clinic, gynaecology theatre or outpatient clinics). 

Whilst the consultant workforce for maternity may not be a driving a requirement for change, the interdependency with paediatrics mean that if there is a change in the number of IP paediatric units there will ned to be a change in the number of obstetric units and neonatal units. There is also a quality driver, as members of the Clinical Working Groups have said that workload pressures led to significant amounts of unplanned overtime. Moving to a 98 hour unit would potentially reduce the pressures on staff. 
All three scenarios are presented on the following two pages. 

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: 2016/17 workforce data was collected from Trusts in September 2017. Some but not all Trusts subsequently updated their data with 2017/18 numbersWTEs are for both obstetrics and gynaecology to mirror how the RCOG 2009 guidelines have been stated.  

Key findings

P
age 323



48

3.HSR analysis – Maternity
Consultant numbers (2/3)

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. WTEs are for both obstetrics and gynaecology to mirror how the RCOG 2009 guidelines have been stated.  Interdependencies with paediatrics and neonatology have not been considered at this stage. 6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented

Consultant WTEs, Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, Current vs 2021/22 vs Option 1, 2, 3 – Scenario A

Consultant WTEs, Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, Current vs 2021/22 vs Option 1, 2, 3 – Scenario B

625960647269 8

0
20
40
60
80

 Consultants required to meet guidelines (status quo)

 Consultants in post FTEs  Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 3
 -11%

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (3)

 3 sites fewer

 -18%

 3

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (2)

 -16%

 2 sites fewer

 2

 -14%

 Gap to guidelines for consultants

 4

 1 site fewer  Consultants required after reconfiguration (1)

646467727269

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

 0

 3 sites fewer

 -7%  -11%

 3

 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 Consultants in post FTEs  Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 1 site fewer

 5

 Consultants required to meet guidelines (status quo)

 Gap to guidelines for consultants

 4

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (1)

 2 sites fewer

 0

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (2)

 0%  -11%

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (3)

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 324



49

3.HSR analysis – Maternity
Consultant numbers (3/3)

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. WTEs are for both obstetrics and gynaecology to mirror how the RCOG 2009 guidelines have been stated. 6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented.

Consultant WTEs, Obstetricians and Gynaecologists, Current vs 2021/22 vs Option 1, 2, 3 – Scenario C

67717884
7269

0
20
40
60
80

100

 7

 +8%

 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/2

 2 sites fewer

 12

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (2)

 -1%

 1 site fewer  Consultants required after reconfiguration (3)

 7

 +17%

 Consultants required after reconfiguration (1)

 5

 Consultants required to meet guidelines (status quo)

 Gap to guidelines for consultants

 -7%

 Consultants in post FTEs

 3

 Growth in consultant workforce to 2021/22

 3 sites fewer

Key findings:
Currently there are 69 consultant obstetrician and gynaecologist WTEs in SYB(ND) and this is anticipated to rise to 72 in 2012/22. The average proportion of low risk births across SYB(ND) is 29% of total deliveries, which represents a relatively complex population compared to the national average, with 71% of all deliveries being medium or high risk.
This translates into a high intensity role for obstetricians, and during the Clinical Working Groups, we were told that the current consultants encounter high levels of overtime. 
In the context of a higher risk population, we have therefore modelled a Scenario C which increases the levels of consultant presence on sites that are currently offering 60 hours of consultant presence to 98 hours of consultant presence. Under this scenario, there is a 12 consultant FTE gap between the predicted consultant complement in 2021/22 and the number of consultants required to meet 98 hours of consultant presence. 
The consolidation of two obstetric units offsets this additional requirement and allows SYB(ND) to meet Royal College guidelines of greater consultant presence, which is in keeping with the relatively high risk population across SYB(ND). 

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 325



50

3.HSR analysis – Maternity
Midwife numbers

702702702702
552 150

0
100
200
300
400
500
600
700
800

 Midwives required after reconfiguration (3)

3 sites fewer

 0

 Midwives required to meet guidelines (status quo)

Midwives in post FTEs  Gap to guidelines for midwives
 1 site fewer  2 sites fewer

 0

 Midwives required after reconfiguration (2)

 0

 Midwives required after reconfiguration (1)

Midwives Bands 5 and 6 WTEs, Maternity, Current vs Option 1, 2, 3

Source: Trust data returns, Health Education England, HSR analysisNotes: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts received in April/May 2018. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017 were used, with updates received in April/May 2018. 6 scenarios have been modelled, for simplicity the average impact for the 1 site fewer, 2 sites fewer and 3 sites fewer is presented

Key findings:
There are 552 midwives (Bands 5 and 6) across SYB(ND). No growth projections have been supplied by Health Education and as such all modelling has occurred off the current baseline. Clinicians in the Maternity Clinical Working Group cited theremoval of the bursary as having a significant negative impact on the number of midwives being trained. 
Standards for midwifery range from 1:28 to 1:30. For the purposes of this analysis, an average of 1 midwife to 29 births, which was ratified through engagement with clinicians, was used. Based on this, SYB(ND) would require an additional 150 band 5 and 6 midwives to ensure appropriate care during labour. Any growth in the number of midwives over the next five years would reduce the size of the gap. 
Since midwife numbers are based on activity ratios, and each option maintains midwifery-led care in each place, the consolidation of obstetric-led care does not affect the numbers of midwives. The Clinical Working Group noted that many midwives are now approaching retirement age, and there was a risk that they might decide to retire early rather than move to a new model of working. However the timeline for reconfiguration would be likely to be long enough that there would be limited impact.

Numbers may not add up due to rounding.

P
age 326



51

4. HSR analysis – further notes
In addition, future transformation focused on new workforce models and technologies could further mitigate existing workforce challenges

The analysis is based on 2016/17 activity levels, as taken from Reference Costs 2016/17. Growth in activity for 
paediatrics and UEC was assumed to be mitigated by the impact of OOH schemes. For maternity growth in activity is 
estimated to be c. 1.6% over 5 years, 2022 compared to 2017 (ONS, 2014-based Subnational population projections, 
Table 5). 
See Appendix: Workforce data pack and assumptions for further details.

Growth in activityGrowth in activity

The HSR is exploring a wide range of additional transformation benefits, for example as a result of new workforce 
models or increased use of technology such as Robotic Process Automation (‘RPA’). These could be represented by the 
“frontier shift” in efficiency which has been estimated as part of the National Tariff development. This term captures 
increases in efficiency over time, as new technologies and processes enable lower service delivery costs.
The frontier shift can lead to up to 1% savings on costs p.a. However, given the level of risk in the existing Cost 
Improvement Plans (CIPs) developed by each Trust, these benefits have not been incorporated into the analysis.
2017/18 and 2018/19 National Tariff Payment System. NHS England and NHS Improvement. 
https://nhsicorporatesite.blob.core.windows.net/green/uploads/documents/2017-18_and_2018-
19_National_Tariff_Payment_System.pdf

Transformation benefitsTransformation benefits

P
age 327



52

2. Reconfiguration impacts

C.  Financial impactsP
age 328



53

Financial impact summary
2. Reconfiguration impact

Financial impacts
• Due to the limited spare capacity estimated to be available in the system in 2021/22, most configuration scenarios would require additional investment to be undertaken. This investment is in the form of capital for additional new build beds. 
• This could be partially offset by assuming a greater impact of out-of-hospital schemes, which would free up capacity at existing sites and reduce the requirement for additional beds.
• The range of financial impacts which includes both workforce efficiencies and annualised capital costs are shown below: 

Range of finance impacts (with annualised capital costs) UEC Care of the acutely ill child Maternity Gastroenterology and endoscopy
Option 1(1 site fewer)

Current out-of-hospital plans -£0.3m to
£62.9m

£0.3m to 
£3.3m

£1.2m to
£12.2m GI: £0.1m to £0.2mEL: £0.4m to £1.8m

More ambitious out-of-hospital plans -£1.2m to 
£48.1m

£0.1m to 
£2.6m £0.6m to£10.9m GI: £0.0m to £0.0mEL: £0.0m to £0.8m

Option 2(2 sites fewer)
Current out-of-hospital plans £8.1m to

£84.3m
£0.3m to 
£4.6m

£2.4m to
£15.9m GI: £0.2m to £0.4mEL: £0.5m to £2.6m

More ambitious out-of-hospital plans £2.3m to
£65.7m

£0.1m to 
£4.2m £1.7m to£14.6m GI: £0.0 to £0.1mEL: £0.0m to £1.2m

Option 3(3 sites fewer)
Current out-of-hospital plans £22.7m to

£103.9m
£0.8m to 
£5.0m

£4.3m to
£18.8m GI: £0.2m to £0.5mEL: £1.2m to £3.2m

More ambitious out-of-hospital plans £15.2m to 
£76.9m

£0.3m to
£4.6m £3.0m to£17.4m GI: £0.0m to £0.2mEL: £0.3m to £1.5m

Cost impact <= 
£1m

Cost impact > 
£1mFinancial savingLegend

P
age 329



54

3. Financial impacts
The following analysis looks at the below finance areas. 

Descriptions are expanded overleaf

Baseline expenditure Capital expenditure

Workforce efficiencies

Service model benefits

Impact before capacity changes
(baseline expenditure minus total benefits)

Annualised capital expenditure

Expenditure after reconfiguration
(baseline expenditure minus total benefits and 

total capacity impact)

Fixed cost savingsTot
al b

ene
fits

Tot
al c

apa
city

 
im

pac
t

Impact of reconfiguration(expenditure after reconfiguration minus baseline expenditure)

P
age 330



55

HSR analysis

Finance area Description

Baseline expenditure
Total provider costs in 2021/22 before any configuration changes. This was taken from the STP plans and includes the impacts of Cost Improvement Programmes (CIPs), out-of-hospital schemes and other service changes.

Workforce efficiencies
These are benefits resulting from reductions in locum usage and from economies of scale as you consolidate. 

These benefits combined are realised when configuration changes take the required workforce below the estimated workforce available in 2021/22 as presented in the workforce analysis. These are generated only for UEC whilst care of the acutely ill child and maternity require investment to meet standards.
Service model benefits

These are benefits from new delivery models such as UTCs which take out activity out of A&Es and have lower costs (as not staffed by ED medics, but by GPs and nurses). These service benefits can also be qualitative.

Total benefits The combination of workforce efficiencies and service model benefits.

Impact before capacity changes Baseline expenditure minus total benefits.

Note that the level of activity and costs that would potentially move out of the system has not been modelled at this stage, since the scale of this and the sites affected would be dependent on site-specific modelling. This will be assessed in the next stage of the analysis'. 

The table below presents a description of the different areas considered in the financial cost-benefit analysis

P
age 331



56

Finance area Description

Capital expenditure

Costs required to accommodate the reconfigured service on another site. These are developed based on the additional number of beds required. If the receiving site has no spare space, the incoming bed would be a new build and cost £750k. If the receiving site has spare space but not in the same department, the spare bed would need to be refurbished for £375k (50% of new build cost). If the receiving site has spare space in the same department, the incoming bed could be accommodated for no cost. 
Annualised capital expenditure

Revenue cost of the capital expenditure required to accommodate the reconfigured service on another site. These are equally phased over a 10-year period.

Fixed cost savings
Savings generated by spare capacity when activity is shifted out of a site. This has been estimated on the basis of a percentage reduction in beds associated with the activity that is shifted out. The % reduction is quantified only for the spare capacity that generated the requirement for a new build bed at the receiving site. Note that fixed costs are typically around 20% of total costs.

Total capacity impact The combination of annualised capital expenditure and fixed cost savings.
Expenditure after reconfiguration Baseline expenditure minus total benefits and capacity impact.

Impact of reconfiguration Expenditure after reconfiguration minus baseline expenditure.
Transition costs Estimated as 6 months of double-running for the reconfigured service.

HSR analysis
The table below presents a description of the different areas considered in the financial cost-benefit analysis

P
age 332



57

3.HSR analysis – Financial analysis
The financial analysis focuses on the cost impacts of the different scenarios
The following slides show the impacts of the different scenarios considered (1,2 or 3 sites fewer*) under three lenses:

• Activity reductions of c.12% on average, based on the SYB(ND) STP assumptions.
Base-case out-of-hospital shifts 

• HSR sensitivity: doubling the impact of the base-case out-of-hospital assumptions c. 24%. 
Stretch out-of-hospital shifts  

P
age 333



58

3.HSR analysis – Bed impacts
Given limited spare capacity in the system, most scenarios would result in additional capacity being required…

Source: HSR Analysis

Amount of additional inpatient capacity, after using up any spare capacity
UEC

1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
Comments
• After accounting for 

growth, changes in bed 
utilisation and the impact 
of out-of-hospital 
schemes the system 
requires additional 
inpatient capacity.

• This limits the ability to 
accommodate additional 
services at any particular 
site without having to 
incur capital expenditure.

11-1,074 
beds

164 – 1,428 
beds

410-1,746 
beds

Care of the Acutely Ill Child 
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
3-76 beds 3-98 beds 9-99 beds

Maternity
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

16-199 beds 43-260 beds 56-307 beds

GI bleed
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
0-3 beds 1-4 beds 2-6 beds

Elective endoscopy
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
3-25 beds 7-38 beds 12-48 beds

These beds represent activity related to Type 1 and 
Type 2 admissions. Due to limited spare capacity in 

the system, most of the activity shifted would 
generate a requirement for additional capacity at the 

receiving site. 

These beds represent activity related to long-stay 
paediatrics beds. Due to limited spare capacity in 

the system, most of the activity shifted would 
generate a requirement for additional capacity at the 

receiving site.

These beds represent activity related to consultant 
led births and neonatology. Due to limited spare 

capacity in the system, most of the activity shifted 
would generate a requirement for additional capacity 

at the receiving site.

These beds represent activity related to out-of-hours 
GI bleed and 

Endoscopy/Colonoscopy/Sigmoidoscopy. Due to 
limited spare capacity in the system, most of the 
activity shifted would generate a requirement for 
additional capacity at the receiving site, although 

volumes are extremely small.

Note: the activity figures use data from 16/17 Reference Costs. 

P
age 334



59

3.HSR analysis – Bed impacts
….this could be partially offset by a greater impact of OOH schemes…

Source: HSR Analysis

UEC
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

Comments
• Greater impacts of out-of-hospital schemes (c.24% 

vs c.12%)* could contribute to generating spare 
capacity – reducing capital expenditure required

• Capacity modelling for UEC considers the beds which 
would be impacted if an ED would be changed into an 
UTC. Therefore the bed numbers reflect the activity 
associated with admissions via the ED (non-elective 
activity).

• *The South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw STP assumes 
that activity reductions of c.12% on average could be 
achieved by 2021/22 as a result of investing in out-
of-hospital (OOH) schemes. However, because the 
current STP assumption on the impact of OOH 
schemes does not free up any capacity across the 
system, the HSR has considered the potential impact 
of more ambitious OOH schemes (working 
assumption of 24% activity reduction). 

0-835 beds 54 – 1,135 
beds

263-1,330 
beds

Care of the Acutely Ill Child 
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

0 beds 0-23 beds 0-23 beds

Maternity
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
0-124 beds 0-185 beds 0-232 beds

GI bleed
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

0 beds 0 beds 0 beds

Elective endoscopy
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

0 beds 0 beds 0 beds

Amount of additional inpatient capacity, after using up any spare capacity

Note: the activity figures use data from 16/17 Reference Costs. 

P
age 335



60

3.HSR analysis – Financial impacts
With limited spare capacity in the system, most scenarios would require additional investment to be undertaken…

Source: HSR Analysis

Summary impacts (with annualised cost of capital)
UEC

1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
Comments
• After accounting for 

growth, changes in bed 
utilisation and the impact 
of out-of-hospital 
schemes the system 
requires additional 
inpatient capacity

• This limits the ability to 
accommodate additional 
services at any particular 
site without having to 
incur capital expenditure

• Note these assessments 
do not account for 
transition costs 
(assumption of 6 months 
of double-running across 
sites) – these are 
reported in the Appendix

• Note that these tables 
include the annualised 
cost of capital.

-£0.3m to
£62.9m

£8.1m to
£84.3m

£22.7m to
£103.9m

Care of the Acutely Ill Child 
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.3m to 
£3.3m

£0.3m to 
£4.6m

£0.8m to 
£5.0m

Maternity
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£1.2m to
£12.2m

£2.4m to
£15.9m

£4.3m to
£18.8m

GI bleed
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.1m to 
£0.2m

£0.2m to 
£0.4m

£0.2m to 
£0.5m

Elective endoscopy
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.4m to
£1.8m

£0.5m to
£2.6m

£1.2m to
£3.2m

The workforce analysis identified the potential to achieve an 
average c.20% workforce efficiencies and service model benefits 
on Type 1 and Type 2 activity. This offsets a proportion of the 
capital requirement to build new capacity. In addition, more 

ambitious out-of-hospital impacts could further reduce capital 
expenditure required.

There is limited scope for workforce efficiencies and service 
model benefits for this service due to the high levels of 

consultant requirements in inpatient units and SSPAUs. Capital 
requirements are slightly mitigated by the spare capacity 

available at one of the providers. In addition, more ambitious 
out-of-hospital impacts could further reduce capital expenditure.

There is limited scope for workforce efficiencies and service 
model benefits for this service due to the investment in midwives 
required and the growing levels of consultant presence as units 

sizes grow. The finance impact is largely driven by the 
requirement to build new capacity and, if out-of-hospital services 

delivered more ambitious targets, refurbish existing beds. 

There is limited scope for workforce efficiencies and service 
model benefits for this service given the low levels of activity 

that moves. The finance impact is largely driven by the 
requirement to build new capacity and, if out-of-hospital services 

delivered more ambitious targets, refurbish existing beds. 

Cost impact <= 
£1m

Cost impact > 
£1mFinancial savingLegend

P
age 336



61

3.HSR analysis – Financial impacts
….this could be partially offset by a greater impact of OOH schemes…

Source: HSR Analysis

UEC
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer

Comments
• Greater impacts of out-of-hospital schemes (c.24% 

vs c.12%)* could contribute to generating spare 
capacity – reducing capital expenditure required

• Note these assessments do not account for transition 
costs (assumption of 6 months of double-running 
across sites) – these are reported in the Appendix

• Note that these tables include the annualised cost of 
capital.

• * See note on previous slide

-£1.2m to
£48.1m

£2.3m to
£65.7m

£15.2m to 
£76.9m

Care of the Acutely Ill Child 
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.1m to
£2.6m

£0.1m to
£4.2m

£0.3m to
£4.6m

Maternity
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.6m to
£10.9m

£1.7m to
£14.6m

£3.0m to
£17.4m

GI bleed
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.0m to
£0.0m

£0.0 to
£0.1m

£0.0 to
£0.2m

Elective endoscopy
1 site fewer 2 sites fewer 3 sites fewer
£0.0m to
£0.8m

£0.0m to
£1.2m

£0.3m to
£1.5m

Cost impact <= 
£1m

Cost impact > 
£1mFinancial savingLegend

Summary impacts (with annualised cost of capital)

P
age 337



62

3. HSR analysis
UEC – base case

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large Comment
Baseline expenditure £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 The workforce analysisidentified the potential toachieve an average c.20%workforce efficiencies andservice model benefits onType 1 and Type 2 activity.This offsets a proportion ofthe capital requirement tobuild new capacity. Inaddition, more ambitious out-of-hospital impacts couldfurther reduce capitalexpenditure required.

Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits -£1.3 -£1.3 -£2.0 -£2.2 -£2.7 -£2.9

Total benefits -£1.3 -£1.3 -£2.0 -£2.2 -£2.7 -£2.9
Impact before capacity changes £2,303.0 £2,302.9 £2,302.3 £2,302.0 £2,301.5 £2,301.3

Due to limited spare capacityin the system, most of theactivity shifted would need anew build bed. Moreambitious out-of-hospitalplans would free up capacityin non-elective wards,lowering overall capital
requirements.

Capital expenditure £9.8 £807.0 £124.5 £1,071.8 £309.0 £1,311.0
Annualised capital expenditure £1.0 £80.7 £12.5 £107.2 £30.9 £131.1
Fixed cost savings £0.0 -£16.5 -£2.4 -£20.7 -£5.5 -£24.3
Total capacity impact £1.0 £64.2 £10.1 £86.5 £25.4 £106.8

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,303.9 £2,367.1 £2,312.4 £2,388.5 £2,326.9 £2,408.1
Impact of reconfiguration -£0.3 £62.9 £8.1 £84.3 £22.7 £103.9
Transition costs £15.9 £207.5 £40.4 £261.1 £80.2 £306.1

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

P
age 338



63

3. HSR analysis
Care of the Acutely Ill Child – base case

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large Comment
Baseline expenditure £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 There is limited scope forworkforce efficiencies andservice model benefits for thisservice due to the high levelsof consultant requirements ininpatient units and SSPAUs.Capital requirements areslightly mitigated by thespare capacity available atone of the providers. Inaddition, more ambitious out-of-hospital impacts couldfurther reduce capitalexpenditure required.

Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

One provider is currentlyoperating at bed utilisationlevels below 85%. Thisenables it to accommodate adegree of paediatrics capacityat no capital expenditure.More ambitious out-of-hospital plans would free upcapacity, lowering capitalrequirements.

Capital expenditure £3.0 £58.5 £3.0 £74.3 £7.5 £80.3
Annualised capital expenditure £0.3 £5.9 £0.3 £7.4 £0.8 £8.0
Fixed cost savings £0.0 -£2.6 £0.0 -£2.9 £0.0 -£3.0
Total capacity impact £0.3 £3.3 £0.3 £4.6 £0.8 £5.0

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,304.5 £2,307.5 £2,304.5 £2,308.8 £2,305.0 £2,309.2
Impact of reconfiguration £0.3 £3.3 £0.3 £4.6 £0.8 £5.0
Transition costs £0.5 £33.1 £1.4 £35.4 £3.6 £36.7

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

P
age 339



64

3. HSR analysis
Maternity – base case

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large Comment
Baseline expenditure £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 There is limited scope forworkforce efficiencies andservice model benefits for thisservice due to the investmentin midwives required and thegrowing levels of consultantpresence as units sizes grow.The finance impact is largelydriven by the requirement tobuild new capacity and, ifout-of-hospital servicesdelivered more ambitioustargets, refurbish existingbeds.

Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

Due to limited spare capacityin the system, most of theactivity shifted would need anew build bed. Moreambitious out-of-hospitalplans would free up capacitybut not on maternity wards,lowering capital requirementsat refurbishment levels.

Capital expenditure £13.5 £150.8 £33.8 £195.8 £52.5 £231.0
Annualised capital expenditure £1.4 £15.1 £3.4 £19.6 £5.3 £23.1
Fixed cost savings -£0.2 -£2.9 -£1.0 -£3.6 -£0.9 -£4.3
Total capacity impact £1.2 £12.2 £2.4 £15.9 £4.3 £18.8

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,305.4 £2,316.4 £2,306.7 £2,320.2 £2,308.6 £2,323.1
Impact of reconfiguration £1.2 £12.2 £2.4 £15.9 £4.3 £18.8
Transition costs £1.8 £29.0 £6.8 £40.2 £14.1 £46.6

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

P
age 340



65

3. HSR analysis
GI bleed – base case

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large Comment
Baseline expenditure £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

There is limited scope forworkforce efficiencies andservice model benefits for thisservice. The finance impact islargely driven by therequirement to build newcapacity and, if out-of-hospital services deliveredmore ambitious targets,refurbish existing beds.

Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

Due to limited spare capacityin the system, most of theactivity shifted would need anew build bed. Moreambitious out-of-hospitalplans would free up capacity,lowering overall capitalrequirements.

Capital expenditure £0.8 £2.3 £1.5 £3.8 £1.5 £4.5
Annualised capital expenditure £0.1 £0.2 £0.2 £0.4 £0.2 £0.5
Fixed cost savings £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Total capacity impact £0.1 £0.2 £0.2 £0.4 £0.2 £0.5

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,304.3 £2,304.5 £2,304.4 £2,304.6 £2,304.4 £2,304.7
Impact of reconfiguration £0.1 £0.2 £0.2 £0.4 £0.2 £0.5
Transition costs £0.1 £0.8 £0.3 £1.2 £0.5 £1.5

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

P
age 341



66

3. HSR analysis
Elective Endoscopy – base case

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large Comment
Baseline expenditure £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

There is limited scope forworkforce efficiencies andservice model benefits for thisservice. The finance impact islargely driven by therequirement to build newcapacity and, if out-of-hospital services deliveredmore ambitious targets,refurbish existing beds.

Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2 £2,304.2

Due to limited spare capacityin the system, most of theactivity shifted would need anew build bed. Moreambitious out-of-hospitalplans would free up capacity,lowering overall capitalrequirements.

Capital expenditure £3.8 £20.3 £6.8 £30.0 £11.6 £36.8
Annualised capital expenditure £0.4 £2.0 £0.7 £3.0 £1.2 £3.7
Fixed cost savings £0.0 -£0.2 -£0.2 -£0.4 £0.0 -£0.5
Total capacity impact £0.4 £1.8 £0.5 £2.6 £1.2 £3.2

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,304.6 £2,306.1 £2,304.8 £2,306.9 £2,305.4 £2,307.4
Impact of reconfiguration £0.4 £1.8 £0.5 £2.6 £1.2 £3.2
Transition costs £2.4 £10.0 £3.1 £12.6 £6.2 £15.4

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

P
age 342



67

Next steps required to develop site-specific analysis

P
age 343



68

HSR analysis
The following next steps need to be undertaken in order to finalise the analysis and reach pre-consultation stage

Baseline finance and activity. A financial gap baselining exercise would need be undertaken, to revise and confirm the assumptions used in the first stage of the analysis and align these across the system. This would result in a revised Year 0 and Year 5 position, to use as a basis for analysing the impact of the solutions.

Baseline workforce. Understanding the critical workforce gaps and challenges will be a key part of the programme. A set of recommended staffing levels for each service under consideration should be agreed by the system, and revised consolidation benefits estimated on this basis. Such analysis would need to be undertaken at PCBC stage where the scenarios become site-specific. 

Solutions modelling. At this stage it will be important to understand the financial, activity and clinical impacts of the overall model of care at the health economy level, taking into account opex and capex, and assumptions about phasing of impacts and transition costs.  Organisational level impacts could also be developed if organisations agree on pricing models.

Stakeholder engagement. It will be essential to the programme that financial and clinical leads continue to be engaged throughout, to sense-check the methodology and any outputs of the analysis, as well as provide guidance in their areas of expertise. 
Key interdependencies. The system will need to agree a list of options and a set of evaluation criteria. It may be best to focus the modelling and analysis on a short list of options (and the do nothing scenario) rather than the long list. The analysis at the next stage needs to look at complete and coherent sets of potential solutions, taking into account the interdependencies across each site, rather than seeking to model impacts of services individually.

Defining solutions. At this stage it will be important to agree on the level of CIPs, out-of-hospital models of care, as well as the service reconfiguration options in more detail, specific to each site. For the latter it will be important to understand the proposed model for each service, the options for each service, as well as overall options across all services. 

P
age 344



69

Appendix: Additional finance assumptions

P
age 345



70

HSR analysis
There are currently significant limitations to this initial financial analysis
1. Data sources. The analysis was developed using reference cost data, STP financial forecasts and SLR information where provided (Barnsley). HES/SUS/wider SLR data could not be used as not all Trusts provided the information.
2. Financial challenge. The estimates of the 5-year financial challenge were taken from the model developed as part of the STP process. Information was available solely for overall income and expenditure under a do-nothing and a ‘do-something’ scenarios (after CIPs and out-of-hospital schemes). 21/22 was not estimated as part of the STP process and has been projected based on the latest trend.
3. Stretch out-of-hospital impact. The impact of the stretch out-of-hospital scenario on the provider cost base has been estimated by proportionately increasing the impact of these solutions (x2).
4. Split of Doncaster, Bassetlaw and Montague cost base. The Trust-level financial projections and service-level reference costs have been apportioned to the different sites using planned capacity figures.
5. Apportionment to HSR services. The STP provider financial projections have been apportioned to the services considered as part of the HSR by using Reference Costs dataset. 
6. Split of total cost across fixed, semi-fixed and variable. Barnsley SLR was used to estimate the proportion of each service costs.
7. Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits application. The workforce efficiencies and service model benefits derived from the workforce analysis have been applied to the proportion of semi-fixed costs related to staffing of the impacted providers. This has been done after having normalised the system-wide impacts to capture the impacted sites and having taken the average of the three scenarios considered. 
8. Split of A&E Type 1, 2 and 3 costs. The split of total costs identified through Reference Costs dataset has been adjusted to reflect activity volumes weighted by cost as the costs.
9. Alignment of workforce and finance analysis. It has been assumed that the STP baseline finance analysis has incorporated similar assumptions in terms of workforce growth as the ones presented in the pack. 
10. Fixed costs savings. Fixed cost savings have been estimated only when leaving capacity/beds generated a new build at the receiving site.
11. New build and refurbishment costs. New build and refurbishment costs have been developed based on publically available information (examples below) on business cases and capital development programmes and stakeholder engagement. 
12. Capital expenditure. Estimates capture the capital costs related to areas such as cubicles, theatres, equipment etc. through the number of beds and new build/refurb costs associated with that. These additional areas have not been assessed separately as part of this analysis.
13. Alignment of financial and workforce pay assumptions. The financial analysis uses Reference Costs, STP financial projections and SLR information provided. The costs identified through these datasets have been sense-checked against workforce figures, high-level pay assumptions (publically available) and locum/substantive pay provided by Trusts in April 2018. A full reconciliation of these different estimates has not been undertaken.
14. Reviews. Whilst the results have been shared with Directors of Finance, the analysis has received limited QA.

Limitations and assumptions of this initial analysis

https://www.healthiernorthwestlondon.nhs.uk/sites/nhsnwlondon/files/documents/PAPER%203_3%2020120610_Estates_Strategy_Programme_%20Board_Presentation_v1.0_final.pdfhttps://www.stgeorges.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/11/TBR-27.11.14-Paper-10-Adult-Critical-Care-Expansion-Plan-OBC.pdfhttp://hertsvalleysccg.nhs.uk/publications/your-care-your-futurehttps://www.northhampshireccg.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2017/12/PRESENTATION-Transforming-Care-Services-in-North-and-Mid-Hampshire-Joint-Governing-Bodies-Meeting.pdfhttps://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/144106/Healthcare_premises_cost_guides.pdf

P
age 346



71

3. HSR analysis
UEC – out-of-hospital stretch assumption

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large
Baseline expenditure £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4
Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits -£1.2 -£1.3 -£1.9 -£2.1 -£2.6 -£2.8

Total benefits -£1.2 -£1.3 -£1.9 -£2.1 -£2.6 -£2.8
Impact before capacity changes £2,188.2 £2,188.1 £2,187.5 £2,187.2 £2,186.8 £2,186.6

Capital expenditure £0.0 £626.3 £41.3 £851.3 £197.3 £999.0
Annualised capital expenditure £0.0 £62.6 £4.1 £85.1 £19.7 £99.9
Fixed cost savings £0.0 -£13.3 £0.0 -£17.3 -£2.0 -£20.2
Total capacity impact £0.0 £49.4 £4.1 £67.9 £17.8 £79.7

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,188.2 £2,237.5 £2,191.6 £2,255.1 £2,204.6 £2,266.2
Impact of reconfiguration -£1.2 £48.1 £2.3 £65.7 £15.2 £76.9
Transition costs £15.0 £196.9 £38.3 £247.7 £76.0 £291.0

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

P
age 347



72

3. HSR analysis
Care of the Acutely Ill Child – out-of-hospital stretch assumption

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large
Baseline expenditure £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4
Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4

Capital expenditure £0.8 £25.9 £0.8 £42.0 £2.6 £46.1
Annualised capital expenditure £0.1 £2.6 £0.1 £4.2 £0.3 £4.6
Fixed cost savings £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Total capacity impact £0.1 £2.6 £0.1 £4.2 £0.3 £4.6

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,189.5 £2,192.0 £2,189.5 £2,193.6 £2,189.6 £2,194.0
Impact of reconfiguration £0.1 £2.6 £0.1 £4.2 £0.3 £4.6
Transition costs £0.5 £31.4 £1.4 £33.6 £3.4 £34.8

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

P
age 348



73

3. HSR analysis
Maternity – out-of-hospital stretch assumption

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large
Baseline expenditure £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4
Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4

Capital expenditure £6.4 £121.5 £16.5 £167.3 £30.4 £202.5
Annualised capital expenditure £0.6 £12.2 £1.7 £16.7 £3.0 £20.3
Fixed cost savings £0.0 -£1.2 £0.0 -£2.1 £0.0 -£2.8
Total capacity impact £0.6 £10.9 £1.7 £14.6 £3.0 £17.4

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,190.0 £2,200.3 £2,191.0 £2,204.0 £2,192.4 £2,206.8
Impact of reconfiguration £0.6 £10.9 £1.7 £14.6 £3.0 £17.4
Transition costs £1.7 £27.5 £6.4 £38.1 £13.5 £44.2

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

P
age 349



74

3. HSR analysis
GI bleed – out-of-hospital stretch assumption

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large
Baseline expenditure £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4
Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4

Capital expenditure £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.8 £0.0 £1.5
Annualised capital expenditure £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.1 £0.0 £0.2
Fixed cost savings £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Total capacity impact £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.1 £0.0 £0.2

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.5 £2,189.4 £2,189.5
Impact of reconfiguration £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.1 £0.0 £0.2
Transition costs £0.1 £0.8 £0.3 £1.2 £0.5 £1.5

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

P
age 350



75

3. HSR analysis
Elective Endoscopy – out-of-hospital stretch assumption

£m 1 site - small 1 site - large 2 site - small 2 site - large 3 site - small 3 site - large
Baseline expenditure £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4
Leakage £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Workforce efficiencies & service model benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0

Total benefits £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Impact before capacity changes £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4 £2,189.4

Capital expenditure £0.0 £7.5 £0.0 £11.6 £3.0 £14.6
Annualised capital expenditure £0.0 £0.8 £0.0 £1.2 £0.3 £1.5
Fixed cost savings £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0 £0.0
Total capacity impact £0.0 £0.8 £0.0 £1.2 £0.3 £1.5

Expenditure after reconfiguration £2,189.4 £2,190.1 £2,189.4 £2,190.5 £2,189.7 £2,190.8
Impact of reconfiguration £0.0 £0.8 £0.0 £1.2 £0.3 £1.5
Transition costs £2.3 £9.5 £3.0 £11.9 £5.9 £14.6

This analysis considers the impact (which is derived from workforce efficiencies and service model benefits) and compares that against expenditure (which is largely made up of capital expenditure and any applicable transition costs). 

Ca
pe

x r
eq

uir
em

en
t

To be modelled in next stage

P
age 351



76

Appendix: Additional capacity workings and assumptions

P
age 352



77

HSR analysis – capacity assumptions
There are currently limitations to this initial analysis
1. Data sources. The analysis was developed using Reference Costs 2016-17 data and capacity. The trusts included in the analysis are: Doncaster and Bassetlaw, Rotherham, Sheffield Children’s, Sheffield Teaching, Chesterfield and Barnsley. HES/SUS data was provided for some trusts but not all, as such it could not be used consistently for all organisations. Some Trusts provided revised activity estimates in April/May 2018, as such Reference Costs admissions were updated in line with these new estimates, and bed days were uplifted on the basis of the same length of stay as derived initially from Reference Costs.
2. Activity and capacity reconciliation. We have not reconciled activity and capacity data due to the limited information available within Reference Costs (e.g. no OPCS codes). 
3. Services captured. The capacity (and finance) analysis captures a wider range of activity (e.g. all of paediatrics) and some interdependencies between services (e.g. neonatology) that has been accounted for in the workforce analysis. This was done to ensure a broader range of capital expenditure estimates.
4. Non-elective beds. We have identified the proportion of non-elective beds related to Type 1 and 2 A&E admissions using publically available data. This proportion has been used to estimate the number of beds related to these admissions without recognising the likely differential in length of stay (LoS). Type 1 and Type 2 generated admissions are likely to have longer LoS. This assumption can be improved by using SUS/HES data at the next stage of the analysis.
5. Service definition. The activity related to the services in the scope of this review has been identified through a combination of rules based on HRGs and LoS. These rules have been tested with the HSR Steering Group and would need to be refined and ideally updated through the use of a more suitable rule-set (e.g. based on diagnosis and OPCS codes).
6. Utilisation levels. These assumptions were identified through publicly available data rather than data supplied by the Trusts and do not reflect any potential differences in utilisation rates across departments within the Trusts.
7. Leakage. The analysis currently does not assume any activity leakage to out-of-area providers. This would be included as modelling becomes site-specific in the next stage of the analysis.
8. Out-of-hospital (OOH) impacts. Assumptions on the impact of out-of-hospital schemes have been mapped at point of delivery level to the services in scope of this review.
9. Trust level. The analysis is currently undertaken at Trust rather than site level (except Doncaster and Bassetlaw which has been split into sites based on high-level assumptions provided by the Trust).
10. Activity flows. Whenever a provider sends out its activity, 100% of it is assumed to flow to the nearest site which currently provides this service. This assumption does not account for a difference in the travel time from patient’s homes and as such the receiving provider is the closest destination only for a fraction of shifted activity. As such, modelled beds are likely to overestimate the impact on the receiving provider and underestimate capacity requirement for other sites in the system.
11. Travel times. In some instances there may be more than one equally-distant provider from the site shifting its activity away. In such cases, 100% of shifted activity was assumed to flow to the largest of the equally-distant providers for the reasons of consistency with overall rule on activity moving to the single nearest provider. This may result in overestimation of capacity requirement for the receiving site and underestimate the impact on other providers.
12. Activity leakage out of system. This initial analysis treats the system in isolation and does not account for the fact that for some patients the next closest provider might be outside the system in consideration. Assuming 0% leakage from the system is likely to result in overestimation of capacity requirement for the receiving sites.
13. Scenario ranking. The non-site specific nature of this analysis and the travel time rules to the nearest site from the smallest / largest provider(s) may result in a situation where the capacity requirement is non-linear across scenarios. For example, it may be possible for a “3 less sites” scenario to result in a smaller overall capacity requirement for the system relative to the “2 less sites”. This is because the activity flows to the nearest provider currently offering the service even if there is another eligible site in the system with more spare capacity.

Limitations of this initial analysis

P
age 353



78

HSR analysis – capacity assumptions
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis – these will need to be refined at a later stage of the analysis
1. The service definitions were revised and circulated to HSR stakeholders. These expand on the initial definitions and some clinical dependencies were also assumed to be in scope (e.g. maternity and neonatology were assumed to be clinically dependent).
2. Activity captured under the following departments in Reference Costs 2016-17 has been included: EL, NEL, EL_XS, NEL_XS, DC, NES, CC, REHABL1, REHABL2, REHABL3. 
3. Activity recorded within EL_XS, NEL_XS, CC, REHABL1, REHABL2, REHABL3 was interpretad as bed days. 
4. Activity shifted out of one site has been assumed to move to the next nearest site (as opposed to it being distributed equally to all other sites). The nearest site was estimated based on Google Maps driving travel times, at around 2-3pm on a Monday. This does not take into account travel times at peak times during the day, which may influence the designation of the closest site.
5. Only the sites that currently provide a service are assumed to be able to receive activity for that particular service. For example, SCH is assumed to be able to receive paediatric activity only, but no stroke, maternity, gastro or A&E activity. However, no assumptions/restrictions were applied to activity being sent out of any particular sites. For example SCH can send out paediatric inpatient activity to other sites and no assumption is made about the percentage of activity that is specialised. These assumptions would need to be refined at a later stage, once the reconfiguration scenarios are made site specific.
6. In terms of activity shifts, the following assumptions were used:

a) Elective endoscopy was treated separately to non-elective endoscopy, a subset of the latter being captured under urgent GI bleeds (which are further assumed to the non-elective). This subset is the out of hours (OOH) activity, assumed to be 28% of total activity. This figure is an average of OOH A&E attendances across the 6 trusts, with OOH taken to mean activity between 8pm and 8am. A&E attendances are used as a proxy for urgent GI bleeds admissions, as patients are likely to present themselves to A&E before being admitted to hospital. The underlying assumption is that admissions from A&E are distributed evenly at all hours of the day, any day of the week.
b) For maternity, activity deemed to be low-risk (and thus attributed to an MLU according to the service definition) is not shifted between sites. The CLU activity (medium or high risk) will move to wherever the closest CLU is; the MLU activity remains to be addressed in each site - either in MLU alongside CLU or if there is no CLU, the assumption is that there will be a stand-alone MLU.
c) Other NEL indirectly in scope is 73% of total Other NEL bed days. This is based on the average share of emergency admissions from Type 1 and Type 2 A&E at an average Trust in England.

7. Assumptions provided by Doncaster & Bassetlaw NHS FT on bed capacity by site and service were used to split Reference Cost data, which is only available at trust level. Activity at Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS FT was not split by site. 
8. MLU activity was revised to 22.5% of total activity, based on conversations with clinicians in March-May 2018. Literature suggests a two-thirds in general are a lower risk, and so there may be other changes to clinical models that increases the share of MLU births that could be factored into analysis at later stage.
9. Alignment of scenarios between capacity and workforce modelling. In some cases, due to service definition and/or Reference Costs data anomalies, the scenarios picked up in the capacity analysis are not fully aligned to the workforce modelling scenarios. 

Further assumptions

P
age 354



79

HSR analysis
Baseline capacity is activity-based and derived from Reference Costs 2016-17 data

Service Group Service
GI bleed GI bleed, Colonoscopy, Sigmoidoscopy
Paediatrics Paeds SS, Paeds LS, Paediatric CC, 
Stroke HASU / ASU, Stroke Rehab, TIA
Maternity CLU, MLU, Neonatology, Neonatology CC, 
Elective Endoscopy EL Endoscopy
Other NEL 73% of other NEL activity including Adult CC

Services in scope

Operational assumptions
Metric BAR ROT DON CHE STH SCH BAS MON
Utilisation rate 87.1% 88.3% 83% 91.9% 92.6% 73.5% 83% 83%
Target utilisation 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85% 85%
Throughput 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40 1.40

P
age 355



80

HSR analysis
Activity shift assumptions inform reconfiguration scenarios

Service HRG codes defining the service

Endoscopy All HRG codes within Subchapters FE and GB, excluding Colonoscopy and Sigmoidoscopy
Neonatology - CLU dependency All HRG codes within Subchapter PB

Other All Other HRG codes within NEL, EL, NEL_XS, EL_XS, NES, DC, CC, REHABL1, REHABL2, REHABL3 which do not fall into definitions of any other service in this table
PaedSS All HRG codes within Subchapter PC-PX within NES or DC departments or with average LOS<2
PaedLS All HRG codes within Subchapter PC-PX with average length of stay of at least 2
Neonatology CC - CLU dependency All HRG codes within Subchapter XA
Paediatric CC All HRG codes within Subchapter XB
CLU dependency All HRG codes within NZ17-26 (A,B) and NZ27Z, NZ71Z, NZ72Z, MA18D, MA20Z, MB08A, MB08B 
Colonoscopy/Sigmoidoscopy All HRG codes referring to “Colonoscopy” or “Sigmoidoscopy”
GI bleed All HRG codes referring to “Gastrointestinal Bleed”
MLU / CLU NZ16Z, NZ21Z, NZ25Z
HASU /ASU if required All AA22, AA23 and AA35 HRG codes
Adult CC All HRG codes within Subchapter XC 
High/Medium risk (CLU) All NZ31 – NZ51 HRG codes
Low risk (MLU) All NZ30 HRG codes
TIA All AA29 HRG codes
Stroke rehab All VC04 HRG codes

These assumptions were tested with the Steering Group and have been used to categorise activity

P
age 356



81

Appendix: Workforce data pack and assumptions

P
age 357



82

HSR analysis – UEC (1/3)
A number of key assumptions were required for this analysis

1. The HSR assumes that each of the Urgent Treatment Centres (UTCs) are staffed by 6 GPs each, in addition to nurses, recognising this will 
depend on the service model and further recognising difficulties in recruiting GPs. This is a working assumption based on discussions with the 
trusts. The range provided by the trusts was 4 to 8, depending on the model of care, in particular support from ENPs, further depending on 
whether a service is co-located or on a different site, and further depending on activity (e.g. for co-located UTCs the requirement could be 
higher). The future service model will further need to balance out GPs against ED consultants, taking into account growth in workforce and the 
use of ENPs in the UTCs. The GP staffing assumptions will be refined at the next stage of the analysis, when the service model for the UTCs is 
further defined by the NHS England and SYB(ND).

2. SCH is not in scope of the A&E (adults) reconfiguration and remains a fixed point. As such SCH’s UEC workforce and activity were not considered in the analysis.
3. Feedback from the trusts cite total budgeted FTE numbers might look small compared to guidelines because of difficulties in recruitment. The service has been tailored to match the staffing structure. 
4. At this stage in the analysis, is no consideration of ambulance journeys. This will need to be factored in at the next stage of the analysis.
5. A&E attendances (incl. UTC type attendances) were taken from Reference Costs 2016/17 and updated activity numbers were provided by Barnsley Hospital NHSFT and Chesterfield Royal Hospital NHSFT. The proportion of patients that could be seen in an UTC varies significantly, depending on the service model or local factors. The range of values provided by the trusts was generally within 20 to 25%, therefore an average of 22.5% was taken. This assumption will be refined at the next stage of the analysis when the UTC service model is further defined by the NHS England and SYB(ND).
6. Attendances deemed to be minor/low-risk (and thus could be treated in UTCs) are not shifted between sites. The A&E activity (major/high risk) will move to wherever the next closest A&E is; the UTC activity remains to be addressed in each site.
7. FTE rules were taken from the Royal College of Emergency Medicine (RCEM), 2015 (https://www.rcem.ac.uk/docs/Workforce/RCEM%20Rules%20of%20Thumb%20for%20Medical%20and%20Practitioner%20Staffing%20in%20EDs.pdf). Relationships for consultant workforce and other medical grades were inferred based on the examples given in the document.
8. Nursing requirements were not estimated at this stage of the analysis because growth assumptions were not provided by Health Education England (HEE), and because nurse numbers are linked to activity (and not a fixed FTE requirement) – no efficiencies can be gained upon reconfiguration. This would need to be refined in the future, as scenarios become site-specific. Note RH did not provide FTEs for nursing; the nursing FTEs were estimated using the average consultant to nurse ratio in the system (7 nurses for one consultant). 

Key assumptions

P
age 358



83

HSR analysis – UEC (2/3) 
Staffing and activity assumptions
Assumptions

Source: RCEM, 2015. "Rules of Thumb" for Medical and Practitioner Staffing in Emergency Departments. (https://www.rcem.ac.uk/docs/Workforce/RCEM%20Rules%20of%20Thumb%20for%20Medical%20and%20Practitioner%20Staffing%20in%20EDs.pdf).
Notes: 1Combined and used as a proxy for “other medical grades”. 2Based on the two data points given (60k and 120k attendances), the activity to FTE relationships were estimated as per the last column in this table). 

Table: Staffing “rules of thumb”

Site Total A&E attendances (incl. UTC type) in 16/17 A&E type activity in the scenarios1
UTC type activity in the scenarios1

ConsultantsEstablishment FTEs Other medical grades2
Establishment FTEs Nursing3

Establishment FTEsBH 83,545 64,747 18,798 11.8 18.7 53.2DON 106,812 82,779 24,033 12.0 19.0 76.5BAS 59,616 46,202 13,414 6.0 8.0 39.3MONSCHSTH 147,147 114,039 33,108 18.0 36.4 91.9RH 76,970 59,652 17,318 10.0 20.0 88.44
CRH 80,431 62,334 18,097 10.0 23.0 51.3
Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018. No A&E at MON and SCH out of scope for A&E reconfiguration.
Notes: 1Assuming 22.5% of current activity could be seen in UTCs, as per the previous slide. This reflects the scenarios rather than the status quo. 2Other medical grades include trainee grades and staff grades. 3Nursing FTEs presented for bands 5 and 6 (registered nurses). 4RH did not provide numbers for budgeted nursing FTEs –the staff in post number was assumed to hold instead.

Table: Current establishment FTEs

60k ED - FTEs 100-120k ED - FTEs 100% increase in activity2 results in x% FTE increaseConsultants 10 14 (12 to 16) 40%Tier 3/4 12 15 (14 to 16) 25%Tier 2 doctors/ANPs 12 20 (16-24) 67%Tier 2 and tier 3/4 combined1 24 35 46%ENPs 5 (4 to 6) 10 (8 to 12) 100%

P
age 359



84

HSR analysis – UEC (3/3) 
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis
Assumptions
Table: Current establishment consultant FTEs compared RCEM, 2015 "Rules of Thumb" for Medical and Practitioner Staffing in Emergency Departments

Site Total A&E attendances (incl. UTC type) in 16/17 Consultantsstaff-in-post FTEs Consultantsestablishment FTEs Consultants recommended FTEsBH 83,545 13.0 11.8 11.6DON 106,812 9.0 12.0 13.1BAS 59,616 4.0 6.0 10.0MON
SCH
STH 147,147 16.0 18.0 18.0RH 76,970 10.0 10.0 11.1CRH 80,431 7.7 10.0 11.4Total 554,521 59.7 67.8 75.2

Site Other medical gradesstaff-in post FTEs Other medical grades establishment FTEs Nursing staff-in post FTEs2 Nursing establishment FTEs3
BH 19.0 18.7 53.2 53.2DON 16.0 19.0 72.9 76.5BAS 8.9 8.0 37.3 39.3MONSCHSTH 33.7 36.4 91.2 91.9RH 20.0 20.0 88.4 88.41
CRH 26.0 23.0 47.3 51.3Total 123.6 125.0 390.2 400.5

Table: Current other medical grades and nursing FTEs

Source: Trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018. 
Notes: 1Not provided – assumed same as staff-in-post. 2Other medical grades include trainee grades and staff grades. 3This includes only bands 5 and 6 nurses (registered nurses).

Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018.

P
age 360



85

HSR analysis – Paediatrics (1/4)
Activity and staffing assumptions

1. Inpatient admissions (long and short stay) were taken from Reference Costs 2016/17 and updated activity numbers were provided by Barnsley Hospital NHSFT and The Rotherham NHS FT.
2. For SCH, an assumption of 60-40% was applied to split activity between general paediatric (60%) and specialist paediatric services (40%), the latter being out of scope. This is based on discussions with SCH clinicians.
3. Assumptions on activity split between Doncaster Royal Infirmary and Bassetlaw DGH were based on assumptions provided by Doncaster and Bassetlaw Teaching Hospitals NHS FT.
4. The assumption in the reconfiguration scenarios is that only IP activity is shifted across sites – each site keeps its SSPAU activity. 
5. A consultant delivered SSPAU model, given the more senior input in clinical decisions, may result in lower inpatient admissions than what is currently reflected in the data. 
6. Given the medical workforce may also cover neonatology rotas, and the data returns provided by the Trusts were unclear as to whether neonatology cover was included, the following assumptions were applied: if a site has a Level 1 Neonatology unit (Bassetlaw DGH), the medical workforce complement was assumed to provide a 70-30% split between paediatric services and neonatology cover. Chesterfield Royal provided updated FTE data separating acute paediatrics from community paediatrics and neonatology, and this updated data was used in the analysis. For all other trusts, with Level 2 or 3 Neonatology units, 100% of the workforce complement was assumed to be for paediatric cover. This is based on discussions with the clinical lead. 
7. Consultant FTE example requirements as per the guidance produced by the RCPCH, 2011 "Facing the Future: A Review of Paediatric Services. https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/page/FTF%20Full.pdf (Table 7).
8. In the absence of specific guidelines, the same proportion of consultant FTE impacts were assumed to apply to all other medical grades (staff grades, middle grade and junior doctors). Note however that the impact on FTE requirements could be even higher than for consultants because of guidelines requiring a patient to be seen within 4 hours. Other medical grades are the ones who typically see patients first, therefore the 4hour standard would affect them primarily, whereas consultants need to meet a 12h standard. Therefore once a threshold of activity is reached, there will be a requirement for another middle grade rota. This should be considered in more detail at the next stage of the analysis.
9. Where a site provided both IP and SSPAU, the recommended staffing complement was estimated based on the requirements of the different units separately accounting for synergies of c. 20% across an IP unit and a co-located SSPAU. This level of synergies will be investigated further at the next stage of the analysis. 

Key assumptions

P
age 361



86

HSR analysis – Paediatrics (2/4)
Activity and staffing assumptions

1. The requirements for nursing staff complements is in line with activity and/or beds. 
1. In an SSPAU the children’s nurse staffing for example should be a minimum of two children’s nurses for every six to eight beds, with regular audit of patient acuity using appropriate tools to ensure that levels are appropriate for the number, dependency and case mix of infants, children and young people normally cared for by the service (RCPCH, 2017 “Standards for Short-Stay Paediatric Assessment Units”. https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/system/files/protected/news/SSPAU%20College%20Standards%2021.03.2017%20final.pdf
2. There should be a minimum of two registered children’s nurses at all times in all inpatient and day care areas. In general children’s wards and departments, bedside, deliverable hands-on care for children < 2 years of age 1:3 registered nurse:child, day and night; for children > 2 years of age 1:4 registered nurse:child, day and night (RCN, 2013 “Defining staffing levels for children and young people’s” –currently under review). https://www.rcn.org.uk/professional-development/publications/pub-002172

2. There could be consolidation savings not accounted for in the analysis at this stage, depending on type of patients (their acuity/dependency level) and on whether the rotas are fully staffed currently. For example for nursing staff consolidation could lead to a higher number of nurses being required, depending on the number of high dependency patients at the receiving sites.
3. Whilst the analysis has not assumed any change in nursing requirements at this stage, note that this assumptions would only hold true under the following assumptions:

• All trusts apply the same standards, incl. bed occupancy rate; and
• Nurses are willing to move with the inpatient units where these are moved.

This will be considered further in the next stage of the analysis.

Key assumptions

P
age 362



87

HSR analysis – Paediatrics (3/4) 
Activity and staffing assumptions
Assumptions

Source: RCPCH, 2011 "Facing the Future: A Review of Paediatric Services. https://www.rcpch.ac.uk/sites/default/files/page/FTF%20Full.pdf (Table 7). 
Notes: From the same document, Table 3, the trainee paediatric workforce requirements are listed as 10 general tier 1 and 10 general tier 2 trainees per cell. It was assumed that this applied to medium size unit, with consultant FTE requirements of 9.3. As such the consultant to trainee medical grades ratio was estimated to be c. 1 to 2.2. This ratio was used for “other medical grades”. Note that in practice for other medical grades the relationship requires local consideration, for example the middle grade rota could be partly staffed by nurse practitioners, as such the implications require further analysis. 

Table: Staffing requirements

Site Total activity in 16/17 Long-stay (IP) activity1 Short-stay (SSPAU)activity1
ConsultantsEstablishment FTEs4

Other medical gradesEstablishment FTEs4
NursingEstablishment FTEs5

BH 3,217 507 2,710 8.0 19.3 26.8DON 4,277 1,1072 3,1703 13.5 23.7 36.8BAS 1,493 2602 1,2333 4.7 8.3 12.9MONSCH 10,043 2,059 7,985 7.2 13.0 46.4STHRH 3,833 1,675 2,158 7.7 18.0 27.3CRH 4838 883 3,955 11.5 21.0 26.3
Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018. No paediatric activity at STH and MON.
Notes: 1Estimated from Reference Costs 2016/17. Short stay activity was defined as activity recorded under NES and NEL with LoS <2. Long-stay activity was defined as activity recorded under NEL with LoS >2. 2FTEs apportioned on the basis of beds capacity at Bassetlaw and Doncaster Royal Infirmary. 3FTEs apportioned on the basis of beds capacity at Bassetlaw and Doncaster Royal Infirmary. 4Other medical grades include trainee grades and staff grades. 5Nursing FTEs assumed to be bands 5 and 6 (registered nurses).

Table: Current establishment FTEs, paediatrics including neonatology at Barnsley and Chesterfield, and community paediatrics at Chesterfield

8 till late SSPAU with cons cover 24 / 7 Cons led SSPAU Small / v. small Medium Large
Admissions per year n/a n/a 0-2500 2501-5000 >5000
WTE Consultants required 4.4 6.2 7.7 9.3 10.9

P
age 363



88

HSR analysis – Paediatrics (4/4) 
Staffing assumptions
Assumptions

Site Total activity16/17
ConsultantsStaff-in-post FTEs (not adjusted for Neonatology)

ConsultantsEstablishment FTEs (not adjusted for Neonatology)
ConsultantsStaff-in-post FTEs (adjusted to exclude Neonatology)1

Consultants Recommended FTEs (excluding Neonatology)
BH 3,217 8.0 8.0 8.0 9.7DON 4,277 9.0 13.5 9.0 11.1BAS 1,493 5.0 4.7 3.5 9.7MONSCH 10,043 12.0 7.2 12.0 11.1STHRH 3,833 5.7 7.7 5.7 9.7CRH 4,838 12.0 11.5 9.0 11.1Total 27,701 51.7 52.6 47.2 62.4

Table: Current Consultant FTEs compared to RCPCH, 2011 "Facing the Future: A Review of Paediatric Services 

Site Other medical grades1 staff-in post FTEs(not adjusted for Neonatology)
Other medical grades1

establishment FTEs (not adjusted for Neonatology)
Other medical grades1,2Staff-in-post FTEs (adjusted to exclude Neonatology)

Nursing staff-in post FTEs3 Nursing establishment FTEs3

BH 19.0 19.3 19.0 24.9 26.8DON 20.8 23.7 20.8 34.8 36.8BAS 7.2 8.3 5.1 12.2 12.9MONSCH 17.3 13.0 17.3 46.4 46.4STHRH 15.5 18.0 15.5 26.7 27.3CRH 21.0 21.0 17.7 25.2 26.3Total 100.8 103.3 95.4 170.2 176.5

Table: Current other medical grades and nursing FTEs

Source: Trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018.
Notes: 1Other medical grades include trainee grades and staff grades. 2As above, neonatology and community paediatrics were taken out for the medical workforce. No such adjustments required for nursing however. 3This includes only bands 5 and 6 nurses (registered nurses).

Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018.
Notes: 1There are 12 consultant FTEs working in paediatrics in Chesterfield, however this includes neonatology rota cover and community paediatrics. To make it comparable to other trusts, only 9 FTEs were attributed to acute paediatrics. This number was provided by the trust. For Bassetlaw, it was assumed that 70% of the medical workforce covers acute paediatrics, therefore 3.5 of the 4.7 FTE staff complement was attributed to acute paediatrics. The 47 FTEs are thus comparable to the 62 FTE guideline figure.

P
age 364



89

HSR analysis – Maternity (1/4)
Key assumptions
1. The number of deliveries were taken from Reference Costs 2016/17 and updated activity numbers were provided by Barnsley Hospital NHSFT, Sheffield Teaching Hospitals NHS FT, and The Rotherham NHS FT.
2. The primary drivers for the consolidation of delivery units would be quality and safety of care, and the need to deliver greater levels of consultant presence for high risk births. 
3. The analysis has only considered deliveries (excluding the ante-natal and post-natal activity). 
4. MLUs are staffed by midwives only. No medical presence.
5. The analysis focused on FTE requirements for obstetrics and gynaecology, recognising that the medical workforce typically covers both specialities. Neonatology, an important clinical dependency, has been excluded. Further exclusions include anaesthetics and theatres.
6. For maternity, activity deemed to be low-risk (and thus attributed to an MLU according to the service definition) is not shifted between sites but is retained in a midwifery-led unit. The CLU activity (medium or high risk) will move to wherever the closest CLU is; the MLU activity remains to be addressed in each site - either in MLU alongside CLU or if there is no CLU, the assumption is that of a stand-alone MLU.
7. From Reference Costs 2016/17, the average proportion of low-risk births is 29% of total deliveries. Discussions with a clinician in the system have resulted in a value of 22.5% (average of 20-25%) being used instead, as 29% was deemed to be on the high side. This is assumed to be the proportion of activity that stays on all sites.
8. Consultant cover guidelines were taken from the RCOG (https://www.rcog.org.uk/globalassets/documents/guidelines/rcogfutureworkforcefull.pdf). 
9. Midwifery guidelines were also taken from the RCOG (https://www.rcog.org.uk/globalassets/documents/guidelines/wprsaferchildbirthreport2007.pdf) and other sources such as (https://www.rcm.org.uk/sites/default/files/Birthrate%20Plus%20Report_1.pdf). The assumed minimum midwife-to-woman ratio is 1:29 for safe level of service to ensure the capacity to achieve one-to-one care in labour (average of 1:28 and 1:30, which has been quoted in the literature). This assumption would need revisiting at the next stage of the analysis to take into account the level of low risk births in the system.  
10. In the absence of specific guidelines, the same proportion of consultant FTE impacts were assumed to apply to all other medical grades (staff grades, middle grade and junior doctors). 
11. If as a result of reconfiguration activity at the receiving site(s) becomes greater than 7000, two units are assumed instead. This may result in diseconomies of scale. The next stage of the analysis would need to consider the practical implications in more detail.

Key assumptions

P
age 365



90

HSR analysis – Maternity (2/4) 
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis
Assumptions
Table: Current establishment FTEs
Site Total deliveries 16/17 ConsultantsEstablishment FTEs Other medical gradesEstablishment FTEs2

Midwifery establishment FTEs3
BH 3,012 8.0 19.0 71.3DON 3,391 9.7 21.5 136.7BAS 1,507 4.3 9.5 60.7MONSCHSTH 6,924 29.0 30.6 213.1RH 2,678 11.0 15.0 90.6CRH 2,845 9.0 18.0 91.0
Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018. No deliveries at MON or SCH.
Notes: 1WTEs apportioned on the basis of activity at Bassetlaw and Doncaster Royal Infirmary. 2Junior grades, middle grades and junior doctors are included in this category. 3This includes only bands 5 and 6 midwives (registered).

P
age 366



91

HSR analysis – Maternity (3/4) 
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis
Assumptions

Type of CLU Consultant-led Unit A Consultant-led Unit B Consultant-led Unit C1 Consultant-led Unit C2 Consultant-led Unit C3Deliveries per year (1) <2,500 2,500 – 4,000 4,000 – 5,000 5,000 – 6,000 >6,0000# of hours of consultant presence recommended Based on local need but at least 40 hrs 60 hours 98 hours 168 hours 168 hours
≈ 9/7 consultant presence 14/7 consultant presence 24/7 consultant presence two separate rotas required# of WTEs directly related to delivery suite presence* 2 3 6 12 **

# of WTEs which are related to non-delivery suite direct clinical care (NB – these figures account for and include prospective cover)

1 WTE(HSR assumption)
5 – 7 WTE(assume 30-40 additional PAs)

7 WTE(assume 40 additional PAs) 
5-13 WTE(assume 30-80 additional PAs) **

# of total consultant WTEs required for each type of CLU 3 8 - 10 13 17-25 **

Source: RCOG, 2009. The future workforce in obstetrics and gynaecology. *Table 2.17, breaks included. **Note that the workforce guidelines are not explicit for CLUs with more than 6000 births, as units of this size are rare and in reality the number of births in any one unit would be capped by geography (i.e. population size within the catchment area of the hospital site on which the unit is located). In the analysis, if as a result of reconfiguration activity at the receiving site(s) becomes greater than 7000, two units are assumed instead. ** The RCOG guidelines are open to interpretation regarding units greater than 6,000 deliveries, and this is primarily due to the range in the number of direct clinical care PAs that are in addition to delivery suite activities. As such we are unable to credible assume a ‘guideline’ figure for STH, and whilst not consistent with the other trusts we have assumed this to be the establishment rate. We recognise that at this stage modelling is not site specific and that modelling has occurred in aggregate across the system. As modelling becomes site specific, we will engage further with clinicians to understand the appropriate guideline for STH including the amount of clinical care PAs that relate to activities other than the delivery suite. 
https://www.rcog.org.uk/globalassets/documents/guidelines/rcogfutureworkforcefull.pdf

Table: Staffing guidelines

P
age 367



92

HSR analysis – Maternity (4/4) 
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis
Assumptions
Table: Current establishment consultant FTEs compared to RCOG, 2009 “The future workforce in obstetrics and gynaecology”

Site Total deliveries 16/17
ConsultantsObstetrics & Gynaecology staff-in-post FTEs

Consultants Obstetrics & Gynaecologyestablishment FTEs
Consultants Obstetrics & Gynaecologyrecommended FTEs1

BH 3,012 9.0 8.0 8-10DON 3,391 8.3 9.7 8-10BAS 1,507 3.7 4.3 3MONSCHSTH 6,924 28.9 29.0 292
RH 2,678 9.7 11.0 8-10CRH 2,845 9.0 9.0 8-10Total 20,357 68.6 71.0 64-72

Site Other medical gradesstaff-in post FTEs Other medical grades establishment FTEs Midwifery staff-in post FTEs1 Midwifery establishment FTEs2
BH 18.0 19.0 69.0 71.3DON 21.5 21.5 94.8 136.7BAS 9.5 9.5 42.2 60.7MONSCHSTH 38.0 30.6 197.7 213.1RH 16.5 15.0 65.4 90.6CRH 17.0 18.0 83.0 91.0Total 120.5 113.6 552.2 663.3

Table: Current other medical grades and midwifery FTEs

Source: Reference Costs for activity data, with updated figures from some of the trusts. For FTE values, trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018.
Notes: 1This does not account for the scenario where BH, DON, RH and CRH increase consultant presence to 98h hours/week. 2Given the advisory nature of the guidelines, which further specify that recommended FTEs should be determined at a local level, the establishment rate of 29 FTEs at STH was taken as the recommended staffing level for a unit of that size.

Source: Trust returns from September 2017, with updates received in April/May 2018.
Notes: 1Other medical grades include trainee grades and staff grades. 2This includes only bands 5 and 6 midwives (registered nurses).

P
age 368



93

HSR analysis – temporary spend
A number of additional assumptions have been used in order to undertake the analysis
Assumptions
Table: Temporary staff expenditure, 2017/18

Source: HSR data returns received from trusts in April 2018, supplemented with HSR returns from September 2016/17. Note not all trusts have provided all of the data, as such the values in the table above may not be an accurate refection of the level of temporary staff expenditure. For SCH, 60% of the temporary expenditure was included based on discussions with SCH clinicians. This is based on the share of general paediatric activity (c. 60%), therefore excluding specialised activity. 
The number of locum FTEs was provided by most trusts in April 2018 and assumptions were made were the number of FTEs was not provided, based on average pay cost per locum FTE as implied from the data received from Trusts which supplied both sets of data.
Note that the numbers above will need to be reviewed and reconciled at the next stage of the analysis to ensure they are reflective of the service definitions. 
Further notes:
• Maternity: The temporary staff expenditure may not include the additional work undertaken by current staff.
• UEC: Locum expenditure may not be additional to budgeted expenditure – a proportion of it might be included in the budgeted figures.

Maternity UEC Paediatrics
Consultants £708,573 £1,733,053 £1,699,536
Other medical grades £1,853,458 £4,929,113 £958,677
Nursing/midwifery (bands 5 and 6) £425,018 £2,349,626 £783,073
Other categories of staff not included above £291,905 £947,180 £137,674
Table: Locum FTEs, 2017/18

Maternity UEC Paediatrics
Consultants 5 9 8 
Other medical grades 14 27 6 
Nursing/midwifery (bands 5 and 6) 8 31 10 
Other categories of staff not included above 7 19 2 

P
age 369



T
his page is intentionally left blank



1

 REPORT TO HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

2ND OCTOBER 2018

EXCESS WINTER DEATHS & COLD RELATED ILLNESSES

Report Sponsor: Julia Burrows
Report Author: Julie Tolhurst
Received by SSDG: 03 September 2018
Date of Report: 19 September 2018

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide an opportunity for Health & Wellbeing Board to review the multi-
agency progress to tackle Excess Winter Deaths (EWD’s) and cold related 
illnesses in Barnsley and prepare for winter 2018-19 and beyond. 

2. Recommendations

2.1 Health & Wellbeing Board members are asked to:-

 Provide feedback on the content of the paper and draft high level action plan 
2018-21 

 Support proposed calls to action for Health and Wellbeing Board including:
- Identification of vulnerable adults at risk from EWD’s and cold 

related illness
- Support commissioning arrangements for the Warm Homes single 

point of access
- Ensure planning includes identifying relevant local interventions and 

providers across integrated care, including assessment, admission 
and discharge arrangements

- Support the joint communication plan for tackling EWD’s

 Agree next steps for action and communication amongst stakeholders

3. Background

3.1 Excess winter deaths are a statistical measure to quantify the effect of winter 
months for a given population. It can be expressed as the number of extra 
people who have died, or as an index comparing winter deaths to the number 
of deaths that occur at other times of the year.

3.2 During the 2016-2017 winter period, there were an estimated 34,300 excess 
winter deaths (EWD’s) in England and Wales, which represents an excess 
winter mortality (EWM) index of 20.9%

Page 371

HWB.02.10.2018/14



2

3.3 As the EWM index varies each year, we use a 3 year average.  The most 
recent figures for Barnsley ( 3 year average 2013-2016, all person, all ages) is 
24.3% (indicative number = 529), compared to the Yorkshire average (17.8%) 
and England average (17.9%).  The next release of the data will be in 
November 2018.   

3.4 Most excess winter deaths in Barnsley occur in the 65-84 year age group. 
Given that the over 65 population of Barnsley is expected to increase by 
17.2% between 2012 and 2020, it is reasonable to expect that the number of 
excess winter deaths will also increase substantially if action is not taken to 
address the causal factors.

3.5 Flu & Pneumonia and respiratory diseases were the main underlying causes 
of excess winter deaths in Barnsley between 2008 and 2015. 

3.6 There is no clear cut explanation for excess winter mortality & morbidity and is 
due to a variety of wider factors, such as temperature, socio-economic 
circumstances, underlying health conditions, Influenza and other viral 
infections, falls, dementia & Alzheimer’s, fuel poverty, housing tenure & 
housing conditions, and personal and social behaviours.  

3.7 Certain groups are most at greater risk of harm from cold weather:

 older people (in particular those over 75 years old, otherwise frail, and 
or socially isolated) 

 people with pre-existing chronic medical conditions such as heart 
disease, stroke or TIA, asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease 
or diabetes 

 people with mental ill-health that reduces individual’s ability to self-care 
(including dementia) 

 pregnant women (in view of potential impact of cold on fetus) 
 children under the age of five 
 people with learning difficulties 
 people assessed as being at risk of, or having had, recurrent falls 
 people who are housebound or otherwise low mobility 
 people living in deprived circumstances 
 people living in houses with mould 
 people who are fuel poor 
 homeless or people sleeping rough 
 other marginalised or socially isolated individuals or groups 

3.8 There are a range of effective measures that reduce the likelihood of cold 
related illness and excess winter deaths including: home insulation and 
adequate heating; protective behaviours (adequate clothing, eating well, 
staying active); flu vaccination; falls prevention and early help & access to 
medical assistance and support. 

Page 372



3

 
4. Tackling EWD’s in Barnsley 

4.1 Last year, a task and finish group involving representatives from Barnsley 
Council, Barnsley CCG, Housing & VCF produced a high level action plan 
2017-18, outlining outcomes, key tasks and timescales to address the main 
contributory factors of EWDs.

4.2 Available data, national guidance (including NICE guidance NG6 on Excess 
winter deaths and illness and the health risks associated with cold homes 
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6, Cold Weather plan for England 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-
england), and good practice locally has informed the development of the plan. 

4.3 In July 2018, a stakeholder event involving over 70 attendees from key 
organisations, reviewed progress from last year’s winter and planned forward 
to this winter and beyond. 

4.4 The themes informed a high level action plan 2018-2021 to prepare for this 
winter and future winters.  The focus will be on system wide changes and 
integrated working, in particular to implement a single point of access for 
housing & health.  This service will address cold homes & fuel poverty aligned 
with hospital discharge and as part of the wider Assisted Living Review.  The 
plan will also set out actions to improve uptake of flu vaccinations; falls 
prevention; and develop a cross partnership communication plan.

 
5. Conclusion/ Next Steps

5.1 To review the Tackling EWD’s action plan 2018-21and agree next steps for 
action.  

6. Financial Implications

6.1 The financial implications for implementing the Warm Homes Fund single
           point of access was approved at cabinet on 5th Sept 2018.

7. Consultation with stakeholders

7.1 The report has been drafted in consultation with Cllr Miller/Cllr Andrews, 
stakeholders including colleagues from the BMBC People, Place, 
Communities Directorates, Bernslai Homes, Barnsley CCG, SY Fire & Rescue 
service, and Community& voluntary sector.

8. Appendices

8.1 Appendix 1 – Tackling Excess Winter Deaths Action Plan 2018-21

Officer: Julie Tolhurst Contact: 01226 774737 Date: 19/09/18

Page 373

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england


This page is intentionally left blank



1

Tackling Excess Winter Deaths and cold 

related illnesses in Barnsley 2018-2021 

P
age 375



2

Excess winter deaths (EWD’s) are a statistical measure to quantify the effect of winter months for a given population. It can be expressed as the 
number of extra people who have died, or as an index comparing winter deaths to the number of deaths that occur at other times of the year. 

As the Excess Winter Mortality (EWM) index varies each year, we use a 3 year average.  The most recent figures for Barnsley, (3 year average 2013-
2016 all person, all ages) is 24.3% (indicative number = 529), compared to the Yorkshire average (17.8%) and England average (17.9%).  The next 
release of the data will be in November 2018.   

Most excess winter deaths in Barnsley occur in the 65-84 year age group.  Flu & Pneumonia and respiratory diseases were the main underlying causes 
of excess winter deaths in Barnsley between 2008 and 2015. 

There is no clear cut explanation for excess winter mortality and is due to a variety of wider factors, such as temperature, socio-economic 
circumstances, underlying health conditions, influenza and other viral infections, fuel poverty, housing tenure & housing conditions, and personal & 
social behaviours.  

Progress to tackle EWDs in Barnsley 
Last year, a task and finish group involving representatives from Barnsley Council, Barnsley CCG and voluntary &community sector produced a high 
level action plan 2017-18, outlining outcomes, key tasks and timescales to address the main contributory factors of EWDs.

Available data, national guidance (including NICE guidance NG6 to address EWD’s and cold related illnesses https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6), 
and good practice locally, has informed the development of the plan.  This includes targeted approaches with a range of vulnerable/at risk groups e.g. 
older people, people living with respiratory conditions/cardiovascular disease, homeless people, children under 5 years 

Key achievements during winter 2017-8:

Cold homes & energy efficiency:

 A new cold homes referral pathway was implemented with SYHA My Best Life.  
 Successful Warm Homes Fund bid (2nd round) – subject to contract.   The funding will establish a single point of access and improve identification of 

residents vulnerable to fuel poverty and EWD’s 
 39 energy efficiency events ( July and March 2018)-  face to face advice & potential saving through energy  switching 
 Better Homes Barnsley installed 114 energy efficiency measures (July2017- March 2018).  Annual target for Better Homes Barnsley exceeded.

P
age 376

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6


3

 Promotional resources and social media campaign (Jan- Feb) to promote energy efficiency grants.  1,400 leaflets given out promoting service 
available to address EWDs. Social media campaign generated 1492 unique page views  and 2930 total engagements 

Flu vaccination uptake (Sept – Jan 18):

 High uptake for all eligible children exceeding regional and national averages.
 For other groups - achieved or exceeded the England average for 2017/18
 The 2017/18 uptake is higher in all groups than the 2016/17 uptake

Falls prevention: 

 ‘Back on Your Feet in Barnsley’ workstreams developed. 
 First training sessions delivered for Care Homes in January 2018
 Delivery of Red bag scheme in Care homes, with further engagement across the system 
 BHNFT and Acute Frailty Network
 Plans underway for urgent care of frail people within the first 72 hours in hospital

In July 2018, a stakeholder event involving a broad range of commissioners and providers from key organisations, reviewed progress from last year’s 
winter and planned forward to this winter and beyond. 

The themes have informed this high level action plan for Barnsley 2018-2021 to prepare for this winter and future winters.  Using the Cold Weather 
Plan for England (2017) https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england , the focus will be level 0 and 1 levels of winter 
preparedness, to align with existing local adverse weather plans and winter emergency & system resilience planning.   This plan will address system 
wide changes and integrated working, in particular to implement a single point of access for housing & health.  The service will address cold homes & 
fuel poverty aligned with hospital discharge and as part of the wider Assisted Living Review.  The plan will also set out actions to improve uptake of flu 
vaccinations; falls prevention; and develop a communication plan.  The progress in Barnsley will feed into a wider South Yorkshire approach driven 
forward by the mayor as part of his manifesto to address Excess Winter Deaths and cold homes, raising the profile of this critical public health issue at 
a national level.  

  

P
age 377

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england


4

System wide delivery 

Overarching target for Excess Winter Deaths (Barnsley Council corporate indicator) Reduce EWD’s to at least 15% by 2020

Objectives Actions Outcomes
Timescales- 

Winter or 
year round?

Lead 
organisation/ 

group

Link to local/ 
national plans and 

guidance

Identify people at risk of  
excess winter morbidity and 

mortality

 Identify and utilise key data sources and 
wider intelligence to identify people

 Work collaboratively to address any barriers 
for sharing data, including consent, data 
sharing agreements and GDPR compliance

 Move towards a database with housing and 
health issues to help with targeting and 
service planning

 Use existing data sources and statistics to 
prioritise areas and cohorts, including the use 
of risk stratification and geographical 
mapping information

 Continue data analysis using qualitative and 
qualitative sources to understand more about 
EWDs and cold related illness, to inform the 
action plan through to hyper local levels, 
(including those not currently accessing 
services and how to support those who are 
not eligible for formal care).

Improved identification 
of areas and cohorts 
that need additional 
targeting

Year round
Early Help Adults 
Group

NICE quality 
standard QS117 
quality statement 2 

https://www.nice.org.
uk/guidance/qs117

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

https://www.gov.uk/g
overnment/publicatio
ns/cold-weather-
plan-cwp-for-england

Excess Seasonal 
Deaths Toolkit

https://lpbcc.files.wor
dpress.com/2012/02/
ref-11-seasonal-
access-deaths.pdf

Implement a borough wide 
assessment of people at risk 

of excess winter morbidity 
and mortality

 Work with key health & social care agencies, 
include housing tenure and conditions within 
assessments to identify risk and take action

 Key questions developed around falls, 
housing & flu and shared with practitioners to 
identify individuals at risk and support 

Clear processes for 
identifying and taking 
action for people at 
risk

Year round Early Help Adults 
Group

Excess Seasonal 
Deaths Toolkit

NICE quality 
standard QS117 

P
age 378

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs117
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/qs117
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/cold-weather-plan-cwp-for-england
https://lpbcc.files.wordpress.com/2012/02/ref-11-seasonal-access-deaths.pdf
https://lpbcc.files.wordpress.com/2012/02/ref-11-seasonal-access-deaths.pdf
https://lpbcc.files.wordpress.com/2012/02/ref-11-seasonal-access-deaths.pdf
https://lpbcc.files.wordpress.com/2012/02/ref-11-seasonal-access-deaths.pdf


5

available to address EWD’s
 Building on “making every contact count” –

ensuring a systematic approach across the 
borough and across different sectors 

 Identify those who may require additional 
support during the winter period and ensure 
they are contacted if alerts are issued.

quality statement 4 

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 6

https://www.nice.org.
uk/guidance/ng6

Implementation or 
signposting to interventions 
to address winter morbidity 

and mortality

 Agree collaborative referral pathways for 
actions that address EWD and EWM

 Develop an asset based model and 
encourage resilience within local communities

 Work closely with Area Councils to build 
capacity within communities to support those 
most vulnerable to cold weather during high 
alert levels e.g. Tackling Excess Winter 
Deaths service in Worsborough  

 Consider cross cutting practical support for 
communities including cold weather packs

Clear referral 
pathways for actions 
that address EWD and 
EWM

Year round Early Help Adults 
Group

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

Monitor and evaluate Impact 
of actions to address  winter 

morbidity and mortality

 Monitor outputs and track interventions to 
understand better that is having an impact on 
addressing excess winter morbidity and 
mortality down to a hyper local level

 Undertake a stakeholder analysis and 
equality impact assessment to review and 
monitor three year plan

 Consider completing a health needs 
assessment for those at risk of excess winter 
morbidity and mortality

Evaluation plan agreed Year round
Excess Winter 
Death Reduction 
Task Group

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

System wide communication 
plan for the public and 

stakeholders

 Collaborate across the borough on a winter 
campaign including a calendar of events aimed 
at addressing causes of EWD, calls to action, 
key resources, encouraging behaviour change, 
key messages and “myth busting”

 Raise awareness of EWD prevention and 
impacts including  social isolation, to the public 

Collaborative 
engagement plan

Clear shared 
messages to key 
partners and public

Winter 2018, 
2019, 2020

Excess Winter 
Deaths 
Communication 
Group

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 11

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

P
age 379

https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6
https://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng6


6

and  across all agencies
 Promotion of local and national support 

available to local residents all year round
 Work closely with area councils to target those 

who do not engage with services (using 
techniques such as peer to peer engagement, 
MOSAIC and areas with large footfall e.g. 
shopping centres and local markets)

Evaluation of plan and 
key messages to 
inform future plans

Engage and integrate with 
key partners aligned to the 

Integrated Care Partnership 
across Barnsley to address 

EWDs and EWM

Key partners to include:
 Hospital discharge and  Right Care Barnsley

o Ensure vulnerable people are discharged in 
to a safe, warm home

o To be identified as part of the admission 
process as part of their discharge plan

 Primary care
o Links to frailty index
o Links to annual patient review
o Links to practice delivery agreement

 My Best Life social prescribing
 Housing providers
 Private rented sector
 Area Councils
 Domiciliary Care
 Early help- 0-19 providers and services
 Pharmacy
 Carers strategy
 Voluntary, Community and Faith sector
 Commission joined up interventions that take 

consideration of EWD impact and focus on the 
prevention agenda

Key partners fully 
engaged Year Round

Barnsley Health 
and Social Care 
Together

Children Young 
People and 
Families 

Early Help and 
Adults Early Help

NICE quality 
standard QS117 
quality statement 5 & 
6

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 11

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

Raise the profile of issues 
influencing EWDs and cold 
related illness locally, South 

Yorkshire wide and 
nationally.

 Continue to engage with government 
consultation on issues linked to EWD’s and 
EWM

 Work with politicians including MPs, 
Councillors and the South Yorkshire Mayor to 

Raised profile on a 
South Yorkshire 
footprint

Year round Excess Winter 
Deaths Task Group

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

P
age 380



7

 continue to raise awareness of EWD and 
associated factors

 Share learning from across SY and Barnsley 
that aim to address EWDs and associated 
factors.

Implement a pilot Safe & 
Well checks scheme 

targeting vulnerable 65+ year 
olds, focussing on cold 

homes, falls prevention, fire 
and crime prevention.

 South Yorkshire fire and rescue service to visit 
vulnerable people over 65 in the Cudworth Fire 
Station Area and respond to referrals from 
partner organisation to provide safe and well 
checks

 Prevent crime
 Increase fire safety
 Reduce fuel 

poverty
 Prevent falls

Year round
Adults Early 
Help Delivery 
Group

Make Barnsley an Age 
Friendly borough 

 Implementation of the Age Friendly 
Framework, particularly those elements of the 
framework which relate to tackling EWDs, 
housing and reducing cold related illness

 Assess the needs of the older population, 
considering support for home moving, equity 
release and adaptations of properties

 Make Barnsley 
Age Friendly

Year round 
Adults Early 
Help Delivery 
Group

WHO Age Friendly 
Communities

https://www.ageing-
better.org.uk/age-
friendly-communities

Use of assistive technology

 Work with BMBC’s in-house provider to look in 
more detail at the use of assistive technology in 
to address cold, damp homes and falls 
prevention

 Consider how the “Internet of things” and 
access to smart technology can address 
causes of EWD in Barnsley, in particular those 
who are on low incomes or have a diagnosis of 
dementia.  

 Residents able to 
live in their own 
homes 
independently

Year round

Excess Winter 
Death Task 
Group

Raise awareness of the 
impact of adverse weather 
through alerts, emergency 
preparedness and building 

 Implement adverse weather plan (year round 
and covers all weathers) 

 Review process for cascading alerts and 
information to BMBC, Health and Community 
Partners and supporting local initiatives e.g. 

 Increased 
awareness of cold 
weather and 
impacts on health 
and wellbeing

Year round BMBC  Health, 
Safety & 
Emergency 
Resilience 
Service

Cold Weather Plan 
for England

National Civil 

P
age 381

https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/age-friendly-communities
https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/age-friendly-communities
https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/age-friendly-communities


8

community resilience.  Age UK Barnsley Winter Register
 Communication of national “Get Ready for 

Winter” messages
 Encourage community groups and Ward 

Alliances to develop Community Resilience 
Plans

 Maintain general plans both internally and 
with South Yorkshire Local Resilience Forum 
partners to respond to civil emergencies.

 Improved 
resilience and 
preparedness at a 
community level.

 Council plans to 
respond to civil 
emergencies .

 Contingencies Act

Improve cold homes & energy efficiency

KPI /target – fuel poverty rate for Barnsley is estimated to be12.2% (BEIS, 2016 statistics).  There is currently no agreed Barnsley target 

Objectives Actions 
Outcomes Timescales- 

Winter or 
year round? 

Lead 
organisation/ 
group 

Link to local/ 
national plans and 
guidance

Roll out Fuel poverty training  Provide training to front line workers and those 
who come in to contact with Barnsley residents.  

 Number of training 
sessions delivered

 No of workers 
accessing online 
training (BMBC 
and health staff)

Year round BMBC housing and 
energy team 

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 8-
10 

Billing and tariff switching 
advice

 Provide support to switch suppliers and signpost 
to advice on how to compare tariffs and 
switching suppliers. 

 Ensure residents access Warm Home Discount 
and joint Priority Service Register if eligible

 Promote benefit checks as a mode of reducing 
fuel poverty through income maximisation 

 Launch and promote the Council’s local energy 
offer Great North Energy to residents who could 
save money by switching

 Launch Berneslai Homes’ void switching 
programme Great North Energy to the new local 
energy tariff 

 Number of 
residents switching 
to new local energy 
supply offer and 
cost savings to 
residents as a 
result

 Number of pre-
payment meters 
removed and cost 
savings to 
residents as a 
result

Year round Housing and 
Energy Task Group

Excess Seasonal 
Deaths Toolkit

P
age 382



9

 Work with Great North Energy to remove 
unwanted pre-payment meters when residents 
switch their supply 

 Work with Great North Energy to provide smart 
meters where requested and as standard in void 
Berneslai properties

 Number of smart 
meters installed

NEA Warm Homes 
Campaign Award 18/19

 Apply for funding to promote local schemes and 
raise awareness of fuel poverty and support 
available to residents locally and nationally 

 Raise profile of fuel poverty, excess winter 
deaths and support available locally and 
nationally for Barnsley residents

 Funding awarded 

Winter 
period only 

Dates for 
2018/19 not 
yet released 

BMBC Housing 
and Energy 
team

Cold Weather Plan 
for England 

Promote Barnsley’s home 
energy efficiency offer for 
private sector housing to 
improve thermal comfort 
and increase properties 
EPC rating. 

 Deliver Better Homes Barnsley offer and deliver 
marketing plan

 Deliver Warm Homes Fund for grants for 
residents without central heating systems in 
private sector housing

 Apply for additional Warm Homes funding to 
provide more central heating systems in private 
sector housing

 Delivery of heating systems through DFG
 Stay Put supporting residents to apply for 

additional funding for energy efficiency 
improvements and giving advice on falls 
prevention and housing improvements.

 Work with Better Homes partners to provide 
insulation works in target areas for private 
sector housing

 Work with Better Homes to secure additional 
funding to support delivery of energy efficiency 
works in private sector housing

 Appoint a contractor to deliver an underfloor 
insulation pilot in private sector housing

 Set up a heating on prescription scheme, to be 
delivered via Better Homes Barnsley, for 
emergency cases with health need

 Advertise availability of interest free repayment 
loans for homeowners to improve energy 
efficiency of their property – Energy Repayment 

Improved housing 
standards and more 
energy efficient 
properties leading to 
reduction in fuel 
poverty, social 
isolation, and 
improved health and 
wellbeing of residents 

Number of properties 
receiving energy 
efficiency works 
through BHB – target 
of 100 for 2018/19.

Sept 2018- 
Sept 2019

Housing and 
Energy Task 
Group

Excess Seasonal 
Deaths Toolkit

P
age 383



10

Loan.

Improve housing standards,  
prioritising  interventions on 
private sector housing to 
improve the health and 
wellbeing of residents 

 

 Work across the system to raise awareness of 
the standard of private sector housing, including 
a focus on addressing HHRSS hazards, 
particularly excess cold, damp and mould 
growth and falls

 Engage closely with landlords and tenants to 
gain a greater understanding of the issues faced 
by both groups, provide support and access to 
grants and loans and where necessary take 
enforcement action.   

 Ensure buildings meet ventilation and other 
building and trading standards

 Explore potential of commissioning a private 
sector housing stock condition survey

 Develop a borough-wide approach to 
addressing carbon monoxide that could include 
an awareness campaign and promotion of 
carbon monoxide alarms.  

Improvement in 
housing stock 
conditions 

Year round 
Private sector 
housing task and 
finish group 

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 12

Integrate homeless 
prevention into the wider 
EWD plans

 Consider undertaking a health impact 
assessment of the homeless- community in 
Barnsley

 Support the creation of a severe weather 
emergency protocol (SWEP)

 Support Homeless Alliance to address excess 
winter deaths and identify accommodation for 
those who present as homeless along with 
emergency provision over periods of severe 
weather.  

 Support new powers and statutory 
responsibilities under the Homeless Reduction 
Act 2018

Homelessness 
reduced 

Year round Homeless Alliance Homeless Reduction 
Act 2018

Creation of a single point of 
access for cold homes and 
fuel poverty

 A single point of access for fuel poor and cold 
homes (as set out in NICE guidance) with 
onward referrals to additional support where 
required 

 The creation of a borough wide fuel poverty 
stakeholder group with health and VCF 

New team established 
and fully functioning 
single point of access 
for fuel poverty 

Year round 
Jan 2019- 
December 
2021

Warm Homes Fund 
steering group

NICE guidance NG6 
recommendation 2 
and 3
 
Cold Weather Plan 

P
age 384



11

partners to co-ordinate the approach across 
Barnsley  

 Recruit team of trained specialists charged with 
the  provision of advice designed to address 
issues relating to cold homes and fuel poverty 
(with a focus on off gas, private rented sector 
and those with cold related diseases) 

 The provision of localised support with fuel 
poverty volunteers (in the form of three year 
pilot scheme funded by the North Area Council)

for England 

Continue to work across the 
borough to address fuel 
poverty  

 Support residents to maximise their income 
through benefit checks and accessing energy 
company monies such as Warm Home 
Discount 

 Investigate the possibility of setting up a fuel 
bank in Barnsley 

 Continue to offer crisis loans and grants to 
residents who meet the eligibility criteria.  

 Provide good quality advice to residents 
suffering from fuel debt and those who are self-
disconnecting. 

 Continue to work with Energise Barnsley to 
fund projects that address EWD and EWM

Reduced level of fuel 
poverty in Barnsley 

Year round Anti-Poverty 
Delivery Group NICE Guidance NG6P

age 385



12

Flu vaccination uptake

KPI/targets

 75% % of eligible adults aged 65+ who have received the flu vaccine
 55% Flu vaccination coverage (at risk individuals from age six months to under 65 years, excluding otherwise ‘healthy’ pregnant women and carers)
 48% Population vaccination coverage – Flu (2-4 years old)

Objectives Actions 
Performance 
measures 

Timescales- 
Winter or 
year round? 

Lead 
organisation/ 
group 

Link to local/ 
national plans and 
guidance

Ensure eligible groups 
receive Flu vaccination. 

 Deliver national communications plan/ 
Campaign” to increase awareness around 
staying well in winter and encouraging Flu 
vaccination in vulnerable groups, including 
school aged children.

 Identify and offer flu vaccination to BMBC staff  
for those that are not in any of the eligible 
cohorts to receive a free NHS flu vaccination

 Encourage Barnsley care homes to also offer 
vaccination for staff where appropriate.  To carry 
out the PHE Care Home staff vaccination audit 
with Barnsley Care Homes.

 Barnsley care homes to follow the local Influenza 
outbreak and monitoring pathway. BMBC 
Compliance and contracting team to actively 
monitoring the implementation of the pathway 
with care homes 

 Promote the flu vaccination and raise awareness 
of the children’s programme with early year’s 
providers, settings and family centres

 Increase awareness among professionals and 
volunteers who work with the ‘at risk’ eligible 
population and therefore can promote flu 
vaccinations to their service users, carers and 
families. 

 Promote the flu vaccination and raising 

 Reduced hospital 
admissions

 Reduced GP 
appointment 
waiting list

 Reduced sickness 
at work and school 
from flu related 
illnesses. 

 Reduce the level 
of workplace 
sickness 
absenteeism 
Reduction in 
pressure on local 
services e.g. 
primary care, 
social care, A&E 
and other hospital 
departments

September 
2018- March 
2019

Barnsley Seasonal 
Flu Vaccination 
Steering Group 

Barnsley Localised 
Flu Communications 
Plan

National Annual Flu 
Programme & “Help 
Us Help You” 
campaign

P
age 386



13

awareness of the eligible ‘at risk’ population 
among local authority workers

 Signpost and promote local vaccination 
arrangements

 Advertise directly to the community.
 Health Protection Board to develop local plans 

for mass treatment, outbreaks and pandemic 
influenza

Engage with local business 
community 

 Consider working  with local business and 
employees promote vaccines and link to 
business continuity e.g. stagecoach; larger 
employers link to healthy staff

 Support business to make flu jabs more 
accessible to employees e.g. promoting offers 
from local pharmacies.  

Number of businesses 
supported

Barnsley Seasonal 
Flu Vaccination 
Steering Group 

P
age 387



14

Falls prevention

KPI/target- emergency admissions from falls

 Risk reduction and early intervention/support
 Appropriately targeted and delivered interventions to the older population at risk /individuals 65+
 Age friendly environment (people and place) 

Objective Actions Outcomes 
Timescales - 
winter or year 
round?

 Lead 
organisation/ 
group 

Link to local/ national 
plans and guidance

Ensure appropriate 
measures to reduce fall 
incidences and  injuries 
resulting from falls 
amongst Barnsley 
residents 

 Develop  & promote primary falls prevention 
messages (including sight loss) to reduce first 
falls

 Agree primary prevention falls pathway & 
pathway for those who have fallen  

 Utilise Stay well campaign as a platform to 
promote falls prevention to older people 65+ at 
risk of falls

 Support Area Councils to implement local falls 
prevention schemes

 Explore how to utilise the Rockwood Frailty Tool 
as a tool to identify level of frailty enabling 
access to   appropriate person centred falls 
prevention interventions

 Develop Falls Prevention and Bone Health Plan 

 Promotes self-
care

 Raised workforce 
awareness

 Raised public 
awareness of the 
relationship 
between cold 
homes and falls

 Equality of 
practice relating 
to assessment 
tools

December 
2018
January 2019
March 2019
March 2019

Adult Joint 
Commissioning 
Group 

NICE guidance- CG161

https://www.nice.org.uk/
Guidance/CG161

Address wider 
environmental factors 
impacting on falls 

 Consider improving the built environment 
including public realm, street scene  and links 
with planners to design out falls 

 Work with BMBC and Housing Providers  to 
address maintenance of footpaths

 Raise awareness of hazards in the home 
including improving outdoor and indoor lighting, 
trip hazards and other issues that can result in 

 Reduced injuries 
resulting from falls 

Year round Excess Winter 
deaths task and 
finish group 

NICE guidance- CG161

P
age 388

https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/CG161
https://www.nice.org.uk/Guidance/CG161


15

 

Key strategic partners

trips and falls within the home environment.  
 Disabled Facilities Grant – convert existing 

bathroom to level access showers thus reducing 
falls

 Strengthen home assessments and referral 
process and link in to home visits to make every 
contact count.  

Commission strength and 
balance training 

 Consider commission strength and balance 
training or “move it and loose it” training that is 
accredited and borough wide  

 Reduced injuries 
resulting from falls

Year Round Adult Joint 
Commissioning 
Group

NICE guidance- CG161

 Barnsley CCG  Berneslai Homes  National Energy Alliance
 Community & Voluntary sector  Health & social care agencies  SY Fire & Rescue service
 Barnsley Citizens Advise Bureau
 BMBC & Area Councils

 Age UK Barnsley  Better Homes Yorkshire 

 Private sector landlords
 Barnsley Schools 
 NHS England 

 My Best Life
 South West Yorkshire Partnership Trust 
 Local pharmaceutical committee 

 Barnsley Metropolitan Borough Council
 Barnsley Hospital NHS Foundation Trust
 Barnsley residents 

P
age 389



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Board Meeting held on 5th June, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/2)
	3 Minutes from the Children and Young People's Trust Executive Group held on 27th April, 8th June, and  13th July, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/3)
	CYP TEG Minutes 8 June 2018
	CYP TEG Minutes 13 July 2018

	4 Minutes from the Safer Barnsley Partnership held on 9th May and 8th August, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/4)
	Safer Barnsley Partnership 8th August 2018 Minutes

	5 Minutes from the Provider Forum held on 13th June, and 12th September, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/5)
	Provider Forum Minutes 12th September 2018

	6 Minutes from the Stronger Communities Partnership held on 21st May and 20th August, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/6)
	Stronger Communities Partnership Minutes 20th August 2018

	7 Minutes from the South Yorkshire and Bassetlaw Shadow Integrated Care System Collaborative Board held on 9th February, 2018 (HWB.02.10.2018/7)
	9 Barnsley Safeguarding Adults Board Annual Report 2017-18 (HWB.02.10.2018/9)
	10 Barnsley Safeguarding Children Board Annual Board 2017-18 (HWB.02.10.2018/10)
	11 Public Health Strategy 2018 - 2021 - Renewing Action for a Healthier Barnsley (HWB.02.10.2018/11)
	Appendix 1 Public Health Strategy

	12 Public Health Food Plan (HWB.02.10.2018/12)
	Public Health Food Plan 2018-21

	13 Hospital Services Review (HWB.02.10.2018/13)
	2018-08-24 2 Cover Slides for Boards on SOC FINAL
	2018-08-24 3 SOC - FINAL
	2018-08-24 4 SOC Annex A - Responses to Feedback FINAL
	2018-08-24 5 SOC Annex B - Case for Change FINAL
	2018-08-24 6 SOC Annex C - SYB ICS CPB FINAL (2)
	2018-08-24 7 SOC Annex D - GB and Board Meeting Dates FINAL
	2018-08-24 8 SOC Annex E - Addendum to Modelling FINAL renamed

	14 Tackling Excess Winter Deaths (HWB.02.10.2018/14)
	Excess Winter Deaths plan 2018-21




